
 
 

 

 
To: Councillor Jackie Dunbar, Convener; Councillor Yuill, Vice-Convener,   and 

Councillors Cameron, Cooney, Crockett, Donnelly, Graham, Greig, Lawrence, 
Malik, May, Jean Morrison MBE, Nathan Morrison, Noble, Reynolds and 
Townson.  
  

 

 
Town House, 

ABERDEEN 16 June 2015 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 The Members of the AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE are requested 
to meet in Committee Room 2 - Town House on THURSDAY, 25 JUNE 2015 at 2.00 pm. 
 

 
RODERICK MACBEATH 

SENIOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES MANAGER 
 

 
B U S I N E S S 

 

1 Determination of Exempt Business   

 There are no exempt reports on the agenda. The Committee may require a 
response to questions during the meeting that cannot be released in the public 
domain therefore the exempt paragraph class will be applied where appropriate. 
 

2 Referral   
 

 2.1  Transfer of Site, Langdykes Road - Referral from Finance, Policy and 
Resources Committee  (Pages 1 - 16) 
 

3 Minutes, Workplan and Decision Tracking Sheet   
 

 3.1  Minute of Previous Meeting of 11 May 2015  (Pages 17 - 26) 
 

 3.2  Workplan  (Pages 27 - 38) 
 

 3.3  Decision Tracking Sheet  (Pages 39 - 40) 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 3.4  ALEO Governance Hub Minute of Meetings of 15 June and 17 June 2015 
(to follow)   
 

 3.5  Minute of Meeting of Corporate Health and Safety Committee of 20 
February 2015  (Pages 41 - 52) 
 

4 Performance and Improvement   
 

 4.1  Internal Audit Annual Report - PWC  (Pages 53 - 72) 
 

 4.2  External Audit Progress Update - Report by External Audit  (Pages 73 - 78) 
 

 4.3  Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Annual Report - Report by the Acting Director of 
Corporate Governance  (Pages 79 - 106) 
 

 4.4  Data Protection Reporting - January to March 2015 - Report by the Acting 
Director of Corporate Governance  (Pages 107 - 112) 
 

5 Risk Management   
 

 5.1  Corporate Governance Risk Register - Report by the Acting Director of 
Corporate Governance  (Pages 113 - 126) 
 

6 Control Environment and Assurance - Internal   
 

 6.1  Continuous Controls - Financial Controls Programme - PWC  (Pages 127 - 
164) 
 

 6.2  Pension Fund Financial Controls - PWC  (Pages 165 - 184) 
 

 6.3  Compliance with Public Records (Scotland) Act - Phase 2 - PWC  (Pages 
185 - 208) 
 

 6.4  Management Information ICT - PWC  (Pages 209 - 224) 
 

 6.5  Roads Construction Consent - PWC  (Pages 225 - 242) 
 

7 Control Environment and Assurance - External   
 

 7.1  Review of ICT Services - Report by the External Auditor  (Pages 243 - 256) 
 

8 Control Environment and Assurance - Audit Follow Up   
 



 
 
 

 8.1  Outstanding Audit Recommendations - Report by the Acting Director of 
Corporate Governance  (Pages 257 - 264) 
 

 8.2  Fleet Management Governance - PWC  (Pages 265 - 280) 
 

 8.3  Arm's Length External Organisations Tier 2 Review  (Pages 281 - 284) 
 

9 Financial Reporting   
 

 9.1  Interim Report on the 2014/15 Audit - Report by the External Auditor  
(Pages 285 - 298) 
 

 9.2  Unaudited Annual Accounts 2014/15 - Report by Acting Director of 
Corporate Governance  (Pages 299 - 326) 

  A copy of the unaudited 2014/15 accounts will issued to members 
separately. 
 

10 Value for Money   
 

 10.1  Aberdeen Local Scrutiny Plan and the National Scrutiny Plan 2015/16 - 
Reports by External Audit  (Pages 327 - 348) 
 

11 Exempt Report   
 

 11.1  Matters Under Investigation   
 

 
 

 
 

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Karen 
Rennie, tel 01224 522723 or email karrennie@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



FINANCE, POLICY AND RESOURCES 

ABERDEEN, 9 June 2015 

 

In accordance with the decision made at the start of the meeting, the 

following item was considered with the press and public excluded. 

 

TRANSFER OF SITE - LANGDYKES ROAD (REFERRAL FROM PROPERTY SUB 
COMMITTEE) - CHI/15/7571 
 
26. With reference to article 6 of the minute of meeting of the Property Sub 
Committee of 26 May 2015, the Committee had before it a report by the Director of 
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure which advised that a site had now been 
identified as a suitable location for the proposed development of the Hydrogen 
Energy Station. 
 
In terms of Standing Order 32(1) Councillor Finlayson as local ward member 
addressed the Committee. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee – 
(a) agree that following an initial assessment the chosen site Langdykes Road 

(option 4) is to be progressed for the project; 
(b) note the update regarding progress with the project including the fact that a 

planning application for the proposed development was approved at the 
Planning Committee on the 28th May 2015; 

(c) note that the site extends to 0.32 ha (0.79 acres) and forms part of a larger 
site held by HRA and approve the transfer of the site from the Housing 
Revenue Account to the General Fund; 

(d) note that following discussions with HRA the site is not earmarked for future 
development and HRA have no objections to the transfer, HRA would prefer 
to dispose of the whole site, we would recommend that the whole site is 
declared surplus, 0.32 ha (0.79 acres) is transferred to the General Fund with 
the remainder being marketed and proceeds of sale being lodged with HRA; 

(e) note that following consultation with local tenants / residents at the meeting of 
the Housing Performance and Budget Group on 23rd February, 2015 the 
group confirmed their support of the proposed transfer.  

 
 
The Sub Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the recommendations; and 
(ii) to refer the report to the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee in order for that 

Committee to carry out a comprehensive review of the process followed to 
identify a site on the south side of the city to ensure compliance with legal 
requirements and good practice. 

 

Agenda Item 2.1

Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE  Finance Policy and Resources 
 
DATE  09 June 2015 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Transfer of Site, Langdykes Road 
 
REPORT NUMBER CH1/15/7571 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED     Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to advise members that a site has now 
been identified as a suitable location for the proposed development of 
the Hydrogen energy station. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
It is recommended that the Committee:- 
 

1. agree that following an initial assessment the chosen site  

Langdykes Road (option 4) is to be progressed for the project.  

2. note the update re progress with the project including the fact 
that a planning application for the proposed development was 
approved at the Planning Committee on the 28th May 2015. 

 
3. note that the site extends to 0.32 ha (0.79 acres) and forms part 

of a larger site held by HRA and approve the transfer of the site 
from the Housing Revenue Account to the General Fund 

 
4. note that following discussions with HRA the site is not 

earmarked for future development and HRA have no objections 
to the transfer, HRA would prefer to dispose of the whole site, 
we would recommend that the whole site is declared surplus, 
0.32 ha (0.79 acres) is transferred to the General Fund with the 
remainder being marketed and proceeds of sale being lodged 
with HRA. 

 
5. note that following consultation with local tenants / residents at 

the meeting of the Housing Performance and Budget Group on 

Page 3



 

2 
 

23rd February the group confirmed their support of the proposed 
transfer.  

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
In order to take forward the proposal outlined, the subjects at 
Langdykes Road, Cove currently held by the Housing Revenue 
Account are to be transferred to the General Fund.  The transfer of the 
site has to reflect Market Value and will require the approval of Scottish 
Government. 

 
Against this background the site has been inspected in order to provide 
an indicative Market Value of the site at £500,000 (Five Hundred 
Thousand Pounds Sterling). 

 
It is important to note that the figure provided at this stage is a headline 
indicative figure and will be subject to downward adjustment as further 
information is available particularly in relation to site remediation costs, 
abnormal development factors and any potential planning restrictions. 
 
Whilst a land transaction is normally capital, the council cannot borrow 
to fund the transfer of land internally from one account to another and 
therefore this will require to be met from the General Fund revenue 
budget.  The Council has maintained a strong focus on using 
underspends on the revenue budget to fund its future capital 
investment programme and this transfer can be met from this source.  
The transfer will not affect any currently approved capital budget. 

 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no other significant implications in relation to the proposals, 
although continued legal, finance and land and property assets 
resources will be required to conclude the transaction. 
 
A planning application has been approved for the proposed facility. 
 
There is no impact on any PBB options relating to this Report. 
 
As the proposed transfer is at Market Value there are no state Aid 
Implications. 

 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
 
5.1 ACHES (Aberdeen City Hydrogen Energy Storage Project) is part of a 

wider Strategic Hydrogen Programme which was outlined at EPI 
Committee in November 2013.  

 http://councilcommittees/documents/g2897/Public%20reports%20pack
%2012th-Nov-

Page 4



 

3 
 

2013%2014.00%20Enterprise%20Strategic%20Planning%20and%20I
nfrastructure%20Committe.pdf?T=10 

 
 
In January 2012 full Council approved a strategic European hydrogen 
Transport Projects paper which recommended that there be a phased 
roll out of projects with a longer term view of developing a network of 
refuelling stations. The ACHES project will support delivery of this.  
 
http://councilcommittees/documents/g2395/Public%20reports%20pack
%2025th-Jan-2012%2010.30%20Council.pdf?T=10 
 
 

 
Two reports have subsequently been submitted to Committee: 

 
On the 21st January 2014 the Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure 
Committee considered a report entitled Aberdeen Hydrogen Energy 
Storage. 
  
http://councilcommittees/documents/g2898/Public%20reports%20pack
%2021st-Jan-
2014%2014.00%20Enterprise%20Strategic%20Planning%20and%20I
nfrastructure%20Committe.pdf?T=10 
 
The report recommended and the Committee approved that:- 
 
i) Aberdeen City Council would provide the requested match 

funding for the project of £1,136,500 which would allow the 
project to proceed  

ii) that the Hydrogen station would be built to the south of the City 
within close proximity to the AWPR 

iii) Aberdeen City Council would sign the Charter on High Velocity 
(the Charter is based on establishing A European Network of 
Clean Hydrogen Bus Centres of Excellence) 

 
 

On the 4th September 2014, the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 
Committee considered a further report entitled Aberdeen City 
Hydrogen Energy Project 
 
http://councilcommittees/documents/g2901/Public%20reports%20pack
%2004th-Sep-
2014%2014.00%20Enterprise%20Strategic%20Planning%20and%20I
nfrastructure%20Committe.pdf?T=10 
 
The report recommended and the Committee approved:- 
 
i) the total estimated project costs of £1,894,130 and 
ii) noted the update in respect of the offer and acceptance of a 

grant from the European Regional development fund of 

Page 5



 

4 
 

£757,630. (a copy of the application submitted to Scottish 
Government is attached at Appendix 2.) 

 
 
5.2 Site Options 

 
As part of the hydrogen fuel economy a second hydrogen filling station 

is required for the south side of the city. The purpose of the site is to 

provide a means of filling cars and is the contingency if Kittybrewster 

were to fail. When assessing sites the following criteria was used to 

define what was acceptable. These were:- 

• Cannot be green belt, (unless it is current waste land) 

• Good vehicle access, with 2 way working lanes 

• Clear sight lines for junctions 

• Site owned by ACC 

• HV Electrical Cables available. 

 

From the above, 8 sites were reviewed and are shown in appendix 3. 

These sites and comments are tabled below:- 

Site Comments 

Option 1, Harness 
Road. 

• Site is adjacent to Green belt 

• Land is not owned by Council 

• Minimal Traffic through Cove  

• High Purchase Cost 

• Preferred site until ownership was clarified 

Option 2, Tullos 
Depot. 

• Land owned by council 

• Main depot and issue with public, worker 
interaction 

• Access to site is good 

• Site on split level causing  higher cost 

Option 3, Burn 
Banks Village 

• Site in green belt but waste land 

• Land owned by council 

• On slope meaning increased build cost 

• Increased traffic through Cove 

• Good road access 

Option 4, 
Langdykes Raod 

• Good road access 

• Near HV Cables 

• Not in green belt 

• Close to main highways 

• Economic build cost 

Option 5, Old 
Football ground 
car park 
Langdkyes 
road/coast road 

• Area not in green belt 

• Land owned by council 

• Increased traffic through Cove 

• Site directly in front of residential property 

• Road junctions will cause traffic issues 

Option 6, back of • Land believed to be owned by council 

Page 6



 

5 
 

Gateway industrial 
park 

• Site is too far off main road connection 
causing increased traffic on rural road 

• Away from main city reducing the impact 
of the hydrogen strategy  

Option 7, Loirston 
Close 

• Area next to school and doctors’ surgery 

• Site is restricted in space 

• Economic build cost 

• Increased traffic through Cove Road 
connection to main highway is poor 

Option 8, Lorry 
Park, off Harness 
Road 

• Land owned by council but leased and has 
legal and buy-out issues 

• Access to site is good 

• Site would not be optimised due to its size 

• Higher costs  likely due to contaminated 
ground issues 

 

Following an initial assessment the chosen site was Langdykes Road 

(option 4), the design works were carried out and a planning application 

was submitted for this site. Following a number of discussions with 

interested parties and the Community a ninth site has been highlighted 

off Souter Head Road. If this site had been included in the above 

review it would have been deemed to be the 2nd most suitable site in 

the area. The table below compares the suitability of the new site with 

the site recommended by officers for the works. 

 

Options Appraisal 

Option 4, Langdykes Road (recommended option) 
Site was chosen following assessment of all available sites 
using criteria set down above. 

Advantages Disadvantages 

• Site located on 2 way 
road 

• HV cables located next 
to site 

• Visual impact low 
based on topography 
of site 

• Not in green belt 

• Site in ACC ownership 

• Works can be 
completed by end of 
Aug 2015, to meet 
funding requirements 

• Will not affect 
Wellington Road 
improvements 

• Site has been zoned for 
housing 

• Increased work to allow 
remainder of development to 
happen. 

• Potential noise from plant. 

• Minor increase in traffic on 
congested road (max 16 
vehicle movements a day 

• Residential area within 100m 

• Area required for site was 
increased  by 25m due to 
nearby road junction  

• Site requires transfer from 
Housing to Revenue budget 

Page 7



 

6 
 

• At preplanning meeting 
the planner highlighted 
that there were no 
significant issue with 
the proposed site. 

• Minimal clearance 
work and ecological 
significance 
 

 

Option 9, Souter Head Road 
This site was not reviewed at the initial stage as it is in Green 
belt and has significant flora and fauna and therefore was 
discounted. 

Advantages Disadvantages 

• Site will have minimal 
impact on traffic 
congestion 

• Site away from 
residential areas. 

• Site is not designated 
for housing. 

• Visual impact less as 
the site is bounded by 
green space. 

• Site is in green belt 

• Site is within the zone of 
Wellington road widening 

• Site will prevent green belt off 
set for Wellington road junction 
improvements 

• Site is part of green space 
network 

• Initial meeting with planning 
dept suggests that this site 
would not be favourable. 

• Site requires substantial 
clearance  

• Ecological survey will be 
required 

• Works cannot be completed by 
end of Aug 2015 and will 
therefore miss funding 
requirements 

• Revised layouts will be 
required at completion of 
Wellington road junction 
improvements. 

• Ownership has not been 
clarified 

• Potential noise from plant. 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 8



 

7 
 

Additional Considerations 

Option 4, Langdykes Road 

o Project works on this site currently out to tender 
o Site currently in for planning approval 
o 25% of the Hydrogenics contract has been paid to allow the 

purchase and design of Hydrogen Station 

Option 9, Souter Head Road 
 

o Scheme would be delayed by 4 months if site was chosen as 
new design and planning permission will needed 

o Scheme may not advance as funding deadlines will be missed 
o If scheme doesn’t progress 25% contract payment to  

Hydrogenics would not be recoverable  
 
 

A copy of the Grant Acceptance is shown in Appendix A, it should be 

noted that the project should be completed by the 30th June 2015 with 

the finances being settled by 30th September 2015 

Following a review of the risk assessment of the sites and the 

information provided above the Officers’ preferred site is Langdykes 

Road. This site gives the City the opportunity to maximise further the 

hydrogen strategy, meet funding requirements and protect remaining 

green space. 

   
 

6. IMPACT 
 
The Strategic Infrastructure Plan (SIP) of Aberdeen City Council, at 
pg32, discusses the Aberdeen Hydrogen Project. This plan includes 
the need for “additional refuelling infrastructure” and therefore this 
project will support implementation of the SIP. 
 
In 2013 “A Hydrogen Economy for Aberdeen City” a framework 
strategy for hydrogen in the area was launched. This strategy outlines 
the vision of a low carbon economy with hydrogen playing a key role in 
this. The project supports implementation of this strategy through the 
provision of refuelling infrastructure which is identified within the 
strategy as a key requirement.  
 
http://thezone/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=21820&sID=8218   
 
The proposal is supported by ‘Aberdeen – the Smarter City’ which 
identifies a Smarter Environment as a High-level priority. 
 

Page 9



 

8 
 

We will design and construct all new infrastructures to be energy 
efficient by maximising the use of low carbon technology and materials. 
We will use recycled materials where appropriate. 
 
We will increase energy efficiency and introduce carbon reduction 
measures in our processes and our housing and non housing assets to 
reduce our carbon footprint, save money and to bring people out of fuel 
poverty. 
 
  
We will manage waste effectively and in line with UK and European 
legislative requirements by maximising recycling and reducing waste to 
landfill, thereby reducing our costs and carbon footprint. 
 
We will provide clean, safe and attractive streetscape and promote bio-
diversity and nature conservation. We will encourage wider access to 
green space on our streets, parks and countryside. 
 
 
 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

The project has a number of risks which will be managed through the 
normal risk management process.  In particular the committee should 
note the following: 
 

Risk Comment/ Mitigation 

Site Transfer not 
approved 

If the site selected is not approved for transfer 
from the Housing Revenue Account the 
alternative site will require detailed layout work to 
be carried which will result in the project 
overrunning and losing the appropriate funding 

Funding Funding for the project has been provided 
however this will be lost if not spent in 
accordance with the project end date if the 
transfer is not approved the proposed refuelling 
station will either not be constructed or have to 
be fully funded by Aberdeen City Council. 

Scottish 
Government 
Consent 

Before the construction of the station 
commences Scottish Government Consent for 
the transfer of the site is required. If this is not 
forthcoming the project will be delayed. To 
mitigate this risk an application for Scottish 
Ministers Consent will be sent if this report is 
approved as soon as possible. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 10



 

9 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 None 
 

9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
Debbie Wyllie,                                  Will Burnish 
Estate Surveyor                               Team Leader Flooding and Coastal 
� dwyllie@aberdeencity.gov.uk       wburnish@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
� 01224 52(3189)                             01224 52 
 
. 
 

Page 11



 

10 
 

Page 12



 

11 
 

Appendix 1 

Page 13



 

12 
 

Appendix 2 
 

Notification Of Change 

Application Information 

   Title    Aberdeen City Hydrogen Energy Storage 

             Reference  LUPS/ERDF/2013/10/1/0070 

   Version Number 2 

                  Status Grant Accepted 

       Organisation Aberdeen City Council 

       Programme  LUPS (ESEP) European Regional Development Fund 

         Fund Name Competitiveness 

                      IAB ESEP 

                    Area Lowlands and Uplands Scotland 

 Application Type  European Regional Development Fund 

                Priority Priority 1: Research and Innovation 

Expenditure Type Capital 

    Project Contact  Stuart Bews,                 

01224523773,stbews@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 

Notification Of Change 

            Description of LUPS/ERDF/2013/10/1/0070 - Request to extend  

Notification of Change project end date 

                          Status  Submitted 

   Sections required to  

                  be changed  Extending End Date of Project 

 

Details of Changes Requested 

Aberdeen City Council request to amend the physical and financial project end 

dates as outlined below; 

 

Physical Project End Date - 30 June 2015 

 

Financial Project End Date - 30 September 2015 

 

There are no financial adjustments required, only changes to the end dates. 

 

Justification for Change 

 

Delays have been incurred at various stages of the project including; 

 

          receiving the offer of grant letter 

 developing the invitation to tender documentation 

 

These issues are now resolved, a successful procurement excercise has resulted 

in a chosen contractor and there are clear timeframes for project delivery and 

payments. 

 

Impact of Changes on Expenditure Forecast 

There are no changes to the total expenditure forecast for this project. However, 

the dates of the payments would obviously be later than earlier forecast. 

The chosen contractor has outlined project delivery milestones upon which 

payments will be made as per the payment schedule. 

Following the invitation to Tender Aberdeen City Council has been able to ensure 

that the initial budget for this project is still accurate and there is no need to 

amend the expenditure forecast. 

              Certification Confirmed         ✔✔✔✔ 

                        Certifying Officer  Stuart Bews 

 

EUROSYS - Notification Of Change for Application LUPS/ERDF/2013/10/1/0070 

Page 14



 

13 
 

Appendix 3 

 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 

 
ABERDEEN, 11 May 2015.  Minute of Meeting of the AUDIT, RISK AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE.  Present:-  Councillor  , Convener; Councillor Yuill, 
Vice-Convener;   and Councillors Cameron, Cooney, Crockett, Donnelly, 
Jackie Dunbar, Graham, Greig, Lawrence, Malik, Jean Morrison MBE, 
Nathan Morrison, Noble, Reynolds and Townson.  

 
 
 
VALEDICTORY AND CONGRATULATIONS 
 
1. In recognition of former Convener, Callum McCaig’s successful appointment as 
Member of Parliament for Aberdeen South, the Vice Convener wished him well in his 
new role.  He further congratulated Councillor Jackie Dunbar on her appointment as 
Leader of the SNP. 
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 26 FEBRUARY 2015 
 
2. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 26 February 
2015. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute as a correct record. 
 
 
WORKPLAN 
 
3. The Committee had before it the workplan prepared by the clerk which set out 
the future schedule of reports. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the workplan. 
 
 
DECISION TRACKING STATEMENT 
 
4. The Committee had before it the decision tracking statement as prepared by the 
clerk. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to remove items 1 (Community Centre Internal Audit Report), 2 (Whistleblowing 

Policy) and 7 (Fleet Update); 
(ii) to note that updates in relation to item 3 (Elected Member Development) would 

be reported to this Committee at each cycle therefore could be removed; 
(iii) to otherwise note the decision tracking sheet. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3.1

Page 17



2 

 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
11 May 2015 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

MINUTE OF MEETING OF THE CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
OF 28 NOVEMBER 2014 
 
5. The Committee had before it the minute of meeting of the Corporate Health and 
Safety Committee of 28 November 2014. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the minute. 
 
 
ELECTED MEMBER DEVELOPMENT - CG/14/095 
 
6. With reference to article 6 of the minute of its previous meeting of 26 February 
2015, the Committee had before it a report by the Acting Director of Corporate 
Governance which provided an update on the development of members of this 
Committee. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee note the content of the report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS AND PERFORMANCE 
 
7. The Committee had before it a report by PricewaterhouseCoopers which 
presented the progress against the 2014/15 Audit Plan. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report. 
 
 
AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE SELF EVALUATION - CG/15/057 
 
8. The Committee had before it a report by the Acting Director for Corporate 
Governance which presented the output from the 2015 self-evaluation exercise 
undertaken and outlined recommendations designed to further improve the 
effectiveness of the Committee. 
 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee -  
(i) note the output from the self-evaluation exercise; 
(ii) agree the recommended actions outlined in the report; and  

Page 18



3 

 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
11 May 2015 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

(iii) instruct officers to implement the agreed improvement actions and provide 
regular update reports to the Committee. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
SYSTEM OF RISK MANAGEMENT - CG/15/53 
 
9. With reference to article 14 of the minute of it’s previous meeting of 26 February, 
the Committee had before it a report by the Acting Director of Corporate Governance 
which presented details of a further component of the Council’s System of Risk 
Management which focused specifically on the roles and responsibilities of staff. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee note the further developments in the System of Risk Management. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
COMMUNITIES, HOUSING AND INFRASTRUCTURE RISK REGISTER - CHI/15/139 
 
10. With reference to article 9 of the minute of meeting of the Audit and Risk 
Committee of 23 September 2014, the Committee had before it a report by the Director 
of Communities, Housing and Infrastructure which presented the Service Risk Register. 
 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee -  
(a) approve the Communities, Housing and Infrastructure Service Risk Register; 
(b) note the risks contained within it and the mitigating actions that the service were 

taking to address these risks; and 
(c) note that the Service Risk Register would form an integral part of the 

Communities, Housing and Infrastructure Service Business Plan. 
 
In relation to Complaint Handling System, Councillor Greig sought assurances that staff 
had access to full training, whereupon the Directorate Support Manager advised that 
training was available.  
 
In relation to Health and Safety arrangements, Councillor Townson asked whether 
contractors were less disciplined to report injuries compared to Council employees and 
what controls and mitigating actions were being pursued to prevent and reduce non 
reporting, whereupon the Directorate Support Manager advised that he would liaise 
with colleagues and provide a response. 

Page 19



4 

 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
11 May 2015 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
In relation to the Service Health and Safety Policy, Councillor Cameron enquired as to 
why it was under development when the Corporate Health and Safety Policy had been 
approved and issued, whereupon the Director of Communities, Housing and 
Infrastructure advised that various interventions had been put in place, with operational 
risks being managed and the Service Health and Safety Policy would reflect the 
interventions and risks. 
 
Councillor Dunbar sought clarification on where the interventions and improvement to 
risks would be reported, whereupon the Director of Communities, Housing and 
Infrastructure advised that the Risk register and all other health and safety issues would 
be reported to the Corporate Health and Safety Committee. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in response to a question from Councillor Townson relating to the lack of 

awareness of injuries and whether contractors were less disciplined to report 
injuries compared to Council employees and what controls and mitigating actions 
were being pursued to prevent and reduce non reporting, to request the 
Directorate Support Manager to provide a response and circulate to the 
Committee for their information; and 

(ii) in response to a question from Councillor Dunbar relating to whether a further 
report would be submitted providing an update, to note that the Risk Register 
would be reported to the Corporate Health and Safety Committee; and 

(iii) to otherwise approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
FLEET ASSET VERIFICATION 
 
11. The Committee had before it a report by PricewaterhouseCoopers which 
presented an audit on the asset verification of fleet, plant and equipment.  The auditors 
advised that the Service had requested the audit to assist with the verification of fleet 
assets following the concerns raised by the Traffic Commissioner. 
 
The Head of Public Infrastructure and Environment advised that the Traffic 
Commissioners Public Enquiry was due to be held on 12 May 2015 and that an update 
on their findings would be presented to the appropriate Committee. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report and endorse the recommendations for improvements. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



5 

 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
11 May 2015 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

CORPORATE LANDLORD RESPONSIBILITIES (ASSET MANAGEMENT) 
 
12. The Committee had before it a report by Pricewaterhouse Coopers which 
presented an audit into the design and operating effectiveness of the Council’s 
corporate landlord controls for managing its property portfolio.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report and endorse the recommendations for improvement. 
 
 
LIBRARY SERVICES SELF SERVICE MACHINES 
 
13. The Committee had before it a report by PricewaterhouseCoopers which 
presented an audit into the design and operating effectiveness of the Council’s controls 
in place over the roll out of the service machines within libraries. 
 
Councillor Graham sought clarification relating to the dates when the draft report was 
issued to management for comment, whereupon the auditors advised that there was an 
error and that the dates had been input into the wrong columns. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note the error in relation to the target and actual dates for when the draft 

report was issued for management comment; and  
(ii) to otherwise note the content of the report and endorse the recommendations for 

improvement. 
 
 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE DEVELOPMENT 
 
14. The Committee had before it a report by PricewaterhouseCoopers which 
presented an audit into the design and operating effectiveness of the Council’s Policy 
and Procedure Controls specifically in the Finance and Human Resources sections of 
the organisation. 
 
Councillor Graham sought clarification on whether there was one officer in the 
organisation who monitored all policies and procedures, whereupon the Chief Executive 
advised that the Business Manager within Corporate Governance would be doing this 
via a database system. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in response to a question from Councillor Graham relating to whether there was 

one person within Corporate Governance responsible for monitoring all policies 
and procedures, to note that the Business Manager for Corporate Governance 
would be monitoring all policies via a database system; and 

Page 21



6 

 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
11 May 2015 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

(ii) to otherwise note the content of the report and endorse the recommendations for 
improvement. 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IN CONSTRUCTION 
 
15. The Committee had before it a report by PricewaterhouseCoopers which 
presented an audit relating to the implementation of the 24 recommendations contained 
in the Review of Scottish Public Sector Procurement in Construction produced by the 
Scottish Government. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report and endorse the recommendations for improvement. 
 
 
SECTION 75 PLANNING 
 
16. The Committee had before it a report by PricewaterhouseCoopers which 
presented an audit into the design and operating effectiveness of the Council’s Section 
75 Planning controls. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that the balance of funds from Section 75 Planning agreements would be 

reported to future meetings of the Communities, Housing and Infrastructure 
Committee; and  

(ii) to otherwise note the content of the report and endorse the recommendations for 
improvement. 

 
 

DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Donnelly declared an interest in the subject matter of the 
following article by virtue of his position as Chair of Ferryhill Community 
Centre.  He did not feel it necessary to withdraw from the meeting during 
consideration of the item. 
 
 

AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS OUTSTANDING 
 
17. The Committee had before it a report by PricewaterhouseCoopers which 
provided an update on the progress on implementing Internal Audit, External Audit and 
other investigations recommendations included within previously approved reports 
which were due for implementation prior to 28 February 2015. 
 

Page 22



7 

 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
11 May 2015 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The report recommended: 
that the Committee consider the report and request actions or explanations as 
appropriate. 
 
Members expressed their dissatisfaction that some officers who had outstanding 
actions were not in attendance to respond to questions. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in relation to items 1 and 2 (Arm’s Length Organisations) to note that significant 

work had been undertaken in this area and that the report to be discussed at the 
first Hub meeting would be circulated to members for their information; 

(ii) in relation to item 5 (Community Centres) to note the update provided and that a 
further report would be submitted to the Communities, Housing and 
Infrastructure Committee in September 2015 advising on those Community 
Centres that had not signed the Management Agreement and Lease; 

(iii) to note that any trends would be reported to future meetings of this Committee; 
(iv) to instruct all officers with outstanding audit recommendations to attend the 

Committee to respond to questions; and 
(v) to otherwise note the content of the report. 
 
 
FLEET SERVICES UPDATE ON PROGRESS OF ACTION PLAN - CHI/15/160 
 
18. With reference to article 23 of the minute of its meeting of 26 February 2015, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Director of Communities, Housing and 
Infrastructure which presented an overview of the work undertaken to address the 
outcomes of the Traffic Commissioner’s Public Enquiry and to improve service delivery. 
 
The report receommended: 
That the Committee –  
(a) note the content of the report; and 
(b) instruct the Head of Public Infrastructure and Environment to update future 

meetings of the Communities, Housing and Infrastructure Committee on 
progress made on the Fleet Services Action Plan. 

 
In response to a question from the Vice Convener as to whether a report would be 
submitted to Committee providing an update following the Traffic Commissioners Public 
Enquiry on 12 May 2015, the Chief Executive advised that she would provide a verbal 
update at the Council meeting on 13 May 2015. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to congratulate the Head of Public Infrastructure and Environment and his staff 

on the work undertaken to date to improve the Council’s position in relation to 
Fleet Management; 

Page 23



8 

 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
11 May 2015 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

(ii) to note that the Chief Executive would provide a verbal update would at Full 
Council on Wednesday 13 May 2015 following the Public Enquiry due to be 
heard on Tuesday 12 May 2015; and 

(iii) to otherwise approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
WHISTLEBLOWING FOLLOW UP - CG/15/56 
 
19. With reference to article _ of the minute of its meeting of 20 November 2014, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Acting Director of Corporate Governance which 
provided an update on any implications for the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy arising 
from a recent Scottish Parliament Petition. 
 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee note that the recent Scottish Parliament petition regarding 
Whistleblowing procedures in local government does not impact upon the Council’s 
current Whistleblowing policy. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation. 
 
 
AUDIT SCOTLAND VALUE FOR MONEY NATIONAL REVIEWS - CG/15/058 
 
20. The Committee had before it a report by the Acting Director of Corporate 
Governance which presented a summary of Audit Scotland national studies published 
in the last cycle together with any actions taken or agreed to be taken by the Council in 
response to them. 
 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee – 
(a) note the detail of the following reports 
 “Borrowing and Treasury Management” 
 “An Overview of Local Government in Scotland 2015” 

“Update on Developing Financial Reporting”; and 
(b) give consideration to officers comments made in respect of each of the priorities 

identified within the report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in relation to the report on Borrowing and Treasury Management, to note that 

following consideration by officers, a report would be submitted to this 
Committee then Finance, Policy and Resources Committee; 

Page 24



9 

 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
11 May 2015 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

(ii) in relation to the report An Overview of Local Government in Scotland 2015, to 
note that the Skills Development Programme would include finance training for 
Councillors;  

(iii) in relation to the report An Overview of Local Government in Scotland 2015, to 
request the Finance team to provide a response to a question from Councillor 
Graham relating to the Aberdeen’s percentage of the 8.5% reduction in Scottish 
Government funding; 

(iv) in relation to the report Update on Developing Financial Reporting, to note that 
any changes would be reported to the Finance, Policy and Resources 
Committee; and  

(v) to otherwise note the detail of the reports.  
 

- COUNCILLOR  IAN YUILL, Vice Convener. 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



1
 

  A
U

D
IT

, 
R

IS
K

 a
n

d
 S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 
 W

O
R

K
P

L
A

N
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

2
5

 J
U

N
E

 2
0

1
5

 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
 1
. 

2
7
/0

2
/1

4
 

a
rt

ic
le

 4
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

2
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
2
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

3
. 

 
A

u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 
a
n
d
 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 
A

n
n
u
a

l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &

 
T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

4
. 

 
D

a
ta

 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 

R
e
p
o
rt

in
g

 
–
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 t
o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
 

 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 5
. 

2
7
/0

2
/1

4
 

a
rt

ic
le

 6
 

R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

R
is

k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

6
. 

2
6
/0

6
/1

4
 

a
rt

ic
le

 6
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 

C
o
n
tr

o
ls

 
–
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
  
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

7
. 

2
7
/0

2
/1

4
 

a
rt

ic
le

 8
 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n
d
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

8
. 

2
7
/0

2
/1

4
 

a
rt

ic
le

 8
 

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 
w

it
h
 
P

u
b
lic

 
R

e
c
o
rd

s
 

(S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 
–
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

9
. 

2
7
/0

2
/1

4
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 I

C
T

 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

Agenda Item 3.2

Page 27



2
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

a
rt

ic
le

 8
 

1
0
. 

2
7
/0

2
/1

4
 

a
rt

ic
le

 8
 

R
o
a
d
s
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 C

o
n
s
e
n
t 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

1
1
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
2
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
IC

T
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
  

A
u

d
it

 F
o

ll
o

w
 u

p
 

1
2
. 

 
F

le
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

1
3
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
9
 

A
rm

’s
 

L
e
n
g

th
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 T

ie
r 

2
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

T
o
 

re
q
u
e
s
t 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
to

 
p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
n
 

u
p
d
a
te

 
o
n
 

th
e
 

s
it
u
a
tio

n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 L

e
v
e
l 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 
fo

r 
e
a
c
h
 A

L
E

O
 

H
e
a
d
 

o
f 

L
e
g

a
l 

a
n
d
 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
 1
4
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

A
rt

ic
le

 2
8
 

U
n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

T
o
 p

re
s
e
n
t 
th

e
 u

n
a
u
d
ite

d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 

1
5
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
2
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 
In

te
ri
m

 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
o
n
  

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 A

u
d
it
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 

 1
6
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
2
 

L
o
c
a
l 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

P
la

n
/N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

E
x
e
m

p
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
 1
7
. 

N
/A

 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 U
n
d
e
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
  

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

2
9

 S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

5
 

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 

1
. 

1
1
/0

5
/1

5
 

E
le

c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

2
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

Page 28



3
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

3
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
2
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

4
. 

 
D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 

A
p
ri
l 
to

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
5
 

 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

5
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

S
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
o
 

re
p
o
rt

 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 

to
 

e
a
c
h
 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

R
is

k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

6
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
S

h
a
d
o
w

 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 J

o
in

t 
B

o
a
rd

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

R
is

k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
In

te
rn

a
l 

7
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
o
lic

ie
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

8
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

rs
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

9
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
0
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

C
re

d
it
o
rs

 S
y
s
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
1
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

B
u
d
g

e
t 
S

e
tt
in

g
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
2
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 O
rg

 D
e
v
 

P
a
y
ro

ll 
S

y
s
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
3
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

R
e
n
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
4
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

R
e
n
t 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
5
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

/I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 

J
o
in

t 
B

o
a
rd

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 T
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
6
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

/I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 J

o
in

t 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

Page 29



4
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

B
o
a
rd

 
In

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

(W
h
e
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
) 

1
7
. 

2
7
/0

2
/1

4
 

a
rt

ic
le

 8
 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 M

a
p
p
in

g
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 P

W
C

 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

1
8
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
A

u
d

it
 F

o
ll

o
w

 U
p

 

1
9
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
u
d
it
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
0
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 2
2
 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 

In
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

Y
o
u
th

 
F

e
s
ti
v
a
l 

–
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 

th
e
 

P
u
b
lic

 
P

o
u
n
d
 

T
o
 

re
q
u
e
s
t 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 
to

 
s
u
b
m

it
 

a
 

re
p
o
rt

 
o
n
 

th
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

Y
o
u
th

 F
e
s
ti
v
a
l 

a
t 

th
e
 e

a
rl
ie

s
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
ity

. 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 

2
1
. 

0
7
/0

5
/1

4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 5
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

o
 P

re
v
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 D

e
te

c
t 

F
ra

u
d
 

T
o
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 o

n
 a

ll 
o
n
g
o
in

g
 f
ra

u
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tig

a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

T
o
 

re
q
u
e
s
t 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 
to

 
re

p
o
rt

 
a
t 

le
a
s
t 

a
n
n
u
a
lly

 
o
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

e
te

c
t 
fr

a
u
d
. 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

2
1
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 2
8
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
e
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 

2
2
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
2
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 
to

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

r 
o
f 

A
u
d
it
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

A
u
d
it
 

 
- 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

V
a
lu

e
 F

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 

2
3
. 

 
A

u
d
it
 
S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 
V

a
lu

e
 
fo

r 
M

o
n
e

y
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &

 
T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

E
x
e
m

p
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

s
 

2
4
. 

 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 U
n
d
e
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

 

Page 30



5
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

2
6

 N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0

1
5

 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 

1
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

3
. 

 
D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 

J
u
ly

 t
o
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

4
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

S
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
o
 

re
p
o
rt

 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 

to
 

e
a
c
h
 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

R
is

k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
In

te
rn

a
l 

5
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
L
E

O
’s

 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

6
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

re
la

te
d
 

L
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 

&
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

7
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

8
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

9
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

B
u
ild

in
g

 M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
0
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
1
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

P
u
b
lic

 
In

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

&
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

T
ra

d
e
 W

a
s
te

 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
2
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 F

u
n
d
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

Page 31



6
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

1
3
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
A

u
d

it
 F

o
ll

o
w

 U
p

 

1
4
. 

 
A

u
d
it
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

1
5
. 

 
 

 
 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 

1
6
. 

 
 

 
 

E
x
e
m

p
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

1
7
. 

 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 U
n
d
e
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

 

 2
5

 F
E

B
R

U
A

R
Y

 2
0

1
6

  
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 

1
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
. 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

3
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

4
. 

N
/A

 
–
 

in
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
G

 

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
/ 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
o
rs

  
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &

 
T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

5
. 

 
D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

to
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

6
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

S
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
o
 

re
p
o
rt

 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 

to
 

e
a
c
h
 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

R
is

k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
In

te
rn

a
l 

7
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

Page 32



7
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

T
im

e
 S

h
e
e
ts

/A
llo

w
a
n
c
e
s
 

8
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 P
o
u
n
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

9
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
0
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

B
a
n
k
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
1
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

V
A

T
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
2
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

A
c
a
d
e
m

y
 V

is
it
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
3
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

F
a
m

ily
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
4
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 

V
e
h
ic

le
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
5
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
6
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

/I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 J

o
in

t 
B

o
a
rd

 
S

e
lf
 D

ir
e
c
te

d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
7
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

/I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 J

o
in

t 
B

o
a
rd

 
In

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

(w
h
e
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
) 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
A

u
d

it
 F

o
ll

o
w

 U
p

 

1
8
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
u
d
it
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 

1
9
. 

 
A

u
d
it
 
S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 
V

a
lu

e
 
fo

r 
M

o
n
e

y
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &

 
T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

E
x
e
m

p
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

2
0
. 

 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 U
n
d
e
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

 

Page 33



8
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

2
8

 A
P

R
IL

 2
0

1
6

  

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 

1
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

3
. 

 
D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 t
o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 

 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

4
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

S
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
o
 

re
p
o
rt

 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 

to
 

e
a
c
h
 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

R
is

k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
In

te
rn

a
l 

5
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

re
la

te
d
 

L
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 

&
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

6
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

B
u
d
g

e
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

7
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

8
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
e
a
c
h
e
rs

 P
a
y
ro

ll 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 S

u
p
p
ly

 
T

e
a
c
h
e
rs

 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

9
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

O
u
t 
o
f 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 P
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
0
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 

T
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
1
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

/I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 J

o
in

t 
B

o
a
rd

 
In

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

(w
h
e
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
) 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

Page 34



9
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

1
2
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
A

u
d

it
 F

o
ll

o
w

 U
p

 

1
3
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
u
d
it
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

E
x
e
m

p
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

1
4
. 

 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 U
n
d
e
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

 

2
7

 J
U

N
E

 2
0

1
6

  

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 

1
. 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
. 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

4
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

S
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
o
 

re
p
o
rt

 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 

to
 

e
a
c
h
 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

R
is

k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
In

te
rn

a
l 

–
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 A

G
R

E
E

D
 

5
. 

 
 

 
 

6
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

7
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
A

u
d

it
 F

o
ll

o
w

 U
p

 

8
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
u
d
it
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

9
. 

 
U

n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

T
o
 p

re
s
e
n
t 
th

e
 u

n
a
u
d
ite

d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 

Page 35



1
0
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

1
0
. 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 
In

te
ri
m

 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
o
n
  

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 A

u
d
it
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 

1
1
. 

 
A

u
d
it
 
S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 
V

a
lu

e
 
fo

r 
M

o
n
e

y
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &

 
T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

E
x
e
m

p
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

1
2
. 

 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 U
n
d
e
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

 

2
7

 S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

6
  

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 

1
. 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
. 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

3
. 

 
D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 –

  
A

p
ri
l 
to

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
6
1
6
 

 
 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

4
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

S
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
o
 

re
p
o
rt

 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 

to
 

e
a
c
h
 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

R
is

k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
In

te
rn

a
l 
- 

T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
 O

N
C

E
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 A

G
R

E
E

D
 

5
. 

 
 

 
 

6
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

7
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
A

u
d

it
 F

o
ll

o
w

 U
p

 

8
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
u
d
it
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

9
. 

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
e
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 

1
0
. 

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 
to

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

Page 36



1
1
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

th
e
 

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

r 
o
f 

A
u
d
it
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

2
0
1
6
/1

6
 

A
u
d
it
 

 
- 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 

1
1
. 

 
 

 
 

E
x
e
m

p
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

1
2
. 

 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 U
n
d
e
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

 

2
4

 N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0

1
6

  

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 

1
. 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
. 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

3
. 

 
D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 –

  
J
u
ly

 t
o
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

 
 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

4
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

S
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
o
 

re
p
o
rt

 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 

to
 

e
a
c
h
 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

R
is

k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
In

te
rn

a
l 
- 

T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
 O

N
C

E
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 A

G
R

E
E

D
 

5
. 

 
 

 
 

6
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

7
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
A

u
d

it
 F

o
ll

o
w

 U
p

 

8
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
u
d
it
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

9
. 

 
 

 
 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 

Page 37



1
2
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

1
0
. 

 
A

u
d
it
 
S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 
V

a
lu

e
 
fo

r 
M

o
n
e

y
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &

 
T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

E
x
e
m

p
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

1
1
. 

 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 U
n
d
e
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

 

 

Page 38



 
 

A
U

D
IT

, 
R

IS
K

 a
n

d
 S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

 
 

D
E

C
IS

IO
N

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G
 S

H
E

E
T

 
 

2
5
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
5
 

 
P

le
a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
ta

in
s
 a

 n
o
te

 o
f 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 o

r 
to

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
is

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t

o
 t
ra

c
k
 t
h
a
t 

a
u
d
it
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
e
d
. 

 

N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  A
,R

&
S

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r(

s
) 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
c
is

io
n

 o
r 

U
p

d
a
te

 

1
. 

A
u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

2
6
 F

e
b
 1

5
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
8
 

C
a
re

 F
ir

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
ta

ry
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
a
n

d
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
ti

n
g

  
(i
) 

in
 
re

la
ti
o
n
 
to

 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 
w

it
h
 

th
e
 s

y
s
te

m
, 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

th
a
t 

a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

in
s
ta

n
c
e
 t

o
 

th
is

 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

th
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 t

h
e
 S

h
o
rt

 
T

e
rm

 W
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u
p
. 

T
 C

o
w

a
n

 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
 

2
. 

A
u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

2
6
 F

e
b
 1

5
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
9
 

A
rm

’s
 

L
e
n

g
th

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
 –

 T
ie

r 
2
 

(i
) 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 t

h
e
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 L

e
v
e
l 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n
ts

 
(S

L
A

s
) 

w
it
h
 

e
a
c
h
 

o
f 

th
e
 

A
rm

’s
 

L
e
n
g
th

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

(A
L
E

O
s
) 

w
it
h
in

 
tw

o
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

c
y
c
le

s
 

K
 D

o
n
n
e
lly

 
L
e
g

a
l 
a
n
d
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

A
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
. 

3
. 

A
u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

2
6
 F

e
b
 1

5
 

A
rt

ic
le

 2
2
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 
In

te
rn

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

Y
o

u
th

 
F

e
s
ti

v
a
l 

–
 

F
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 

th
e
 

P
u

b
li
c
 

P
o

u
n

d
 

(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 s

u
b
m

it
 

a
 

re
p
o
rt

 
o
n
 

th
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 

In
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

Y
o
u
th

 
F

e
s
ti
v
a
l 

a
t 

th
e
 

e
a
rl
ie

s
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 

S
 W

h
y
te

 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 

4
. 

A
u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

1
1
 M

a
y
 1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 2
0
 

A
u

d
it

 S
c
o

tl
a
n

d
 V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 

(i
) 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

 a
n
d
 T

re
a
s
u
ry

 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

S
 W

h
y
te

 
 

Agenda Item 3.3

Page 39



N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  A
,R

&
S

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r(

s
) 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
c
is

io
n

 o
r 

U
p

d
a
te

 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t,
 t
o
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 b

y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
h
e
n
 F

in
a
n
c
e
, 

P
o
lic

y
 

a
n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 

Page 40



 
 

CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

 
 

ABERDEEN, Friday, 20 February 2015.  Minute of Meeting of the CORPORATE 
HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE.  Present:- Councillor Graham Chairperson. 
City Council Representatives:- Councillors Cameron and Greig. 
 
Trade Union Representatives:-  Joe Craig (UNITE), Karen Davidson (UNISON), 
George Ferguson (UNISON), John Noble (UCATT), Steve Robb (UNITE), Sid 
Sandison (SSTA), Carole Thorpe (EIS) and Neil Watson (GMB) (as substitute for 
Mike Middleton). 
 
Officers in attendance:-  Angela Scott (Chief Executive), Ewan Sutherland 
(Director of Corporate Governance), Mary Agnew (Health, Safety and Wellbeing 
Manager), Colin Leaver (Team Leader), Abigail Kelman (Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing Team), Euan Couperwhite (Head of Policy, Performance and 
Resources), Martin Allan (Business Manager), Bruce Findlater (Admin Officer), 
Michael Hearns (Directorate Support Manager), Andrew Jones (Service Manager 
(Assets / Finance)) (Education, Culture and Sport), Lesley Kirk (Directorate 
Support Manager), Carol Slessor (Team Manager), Mark Reilly (Head of Public 
Infrastructure and Environment) (for article 7) and Jacqui McKenzie (Customer 
Service Manager) (for article 5). 

 
 
DETERMINATION OF EXEMPT BUSINESS 
 
1. Prior to consideration of the matters before it, the Committee resolved in terms of 
Section 50(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, to exclude the press and 
public from the meeting for article 23 so as to avoid disclosure of exempt information of 
the class described in paragraph 14. 
 
 
APOLOGIES 
 
2. Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of Mike Middleton, David Willis, 
and Kate Mackay. 
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 27 NOVEMBER 2014 
 
3. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 27 November 
2014. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute subject to the following amendment on page 7, last paragraph, 
first sentence to read ‘Sid Sandison stated that within schools there were two forms to 
be completed following an incident, one was a unique form to the school to be 
completed for all types of incidents and the other was the Corporate Incident Reporting 
Form.  He suggested that at the time of completing the first form, not all staff were 

Agenda Item 3.5

Page 41



2 

 
 

reminded to complete the Corporate Incident Reporting Form which may affect the 
number of incidents reported corporately.’ 
 
 
COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT 
 
4. With reference to article 8 of the minute of meeting of 27 November 2014, the 
Committee had before it a statement of outstanding business prepared by the Clerk. 
 
In relation to item 1 (School Security), the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager 
requested that the Service produce an action plan to ensure all aspects of security were 
being addressed whereupon, the Head of Policy, Performance and Resources stated 
that he would discuss the matter out with the meeting. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) subject to the decisions at articles 5 (Marischal College Incident) and 6 (Vehicle 

Fire at Fleet Services, to remove items 2 and 4 from the statement; and 
(ii) to otherwise note the statement of outstanding business. 
 
 
MARISCHAL COLLEGE INCIDENT - UPDATE REPORT 
 
5. With reference to article 7, resolution (ii) of the minute of its previous meeting of 
27 November 2014 and article 6 of the minute of its meeting of 29 August 2014, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Customer Services Manager which provided an 
update on the actions taken in respect of each of the recommendations for 
improvement.   
 
The report provided detailed information relating to each of the recommendations and 
the actions the Service had taken to address them. The report advised that additional 
health and safety measures had been planned an implemented within the Customer 
Service Centre which included (1) a Customer Service Centre Team Leader working 
group had been established to review health and safety considerations and to share 
knowledge on potential risks; (2) new members of staff in the Customer Service Team 
are provided with a comprehensive induction to health and safety arrangements; and 
(3) presentations to staff from Police Scotland Counter Terrorism Adviser had been 
arranged specifically focused on firearms and weapons attacks. 
 
The Chairperson sought assurance that the improvements and training that had been 
put in place at the Customer Service Centre would be implemented across all of the 
Customer Access points, whereupon the Customer Service Manager advised that each 
of the Access points currently have their own procedures in place and that these would 
be reviewed and additional training provided. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the report and the information provided. 
 
 
TOWN HOUSE INJURY INVESTIGATION - REPORT BY HEALTH AND SAFETY 
TEAM 
 
6. The Committee had before it a report prepared by the Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing Team which provided details of an incident of assault to a member of staff on 

Page 42



3 

 
 

Broad Street.  The assailant was known to the employee through the course of their 
previous employment in the Customer Service Centre and there had been a history of 
near misses raised. 
 
The report contained a list of recommendations to be taken into account for future 
incidents and advised that the findings would be shared across directorates.  Following 
the incident various actions had been undertaken. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report and actions taken to date. 
 
 
VEHICLE FIRE AT FLEET SERVICES - UPDATE 
 
7. With reference to article 10 of the minute of its meeting of 27 November 2014, 
the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Communities, Housing and 
Infrastructure which provided an update on the progress made with implementing the 
recommendations for improvement. 
 
The report advised that (1) the incident occurred when a vehicle waiting to be repaired 
was hit by another vehicle resulting in a damaged lock on the rear of the vehicle and 
the welding work introduced an ignition source and combustible materials contained in 
the back of the vehicle caught fire; (2) on 3rd October 2014, the Office of the Traffic 
Commissioner notified the Council that there would be a public enquiry into the 
Council’s Goods Vehicle Operators Licence which had been called following the 
Commissioners concerns on perceived lack of progress with addressing concerns 
identified in an investigation on the 14 January 2014; (3) due to the concerns, Fleet 
Services have been placed under special measures and a full evaluation of health and 
safety compliance within the service was being undertaken in conjunction with the 
Health, Safety and Wellbeing Team; and (4) in relation to Hot Works procedures, the 
Service were working with officers to implement robust health and safety procedures for 
hot working. 
 
The report contained details of the work undertaken to date and those still to be 
implemented.   
 
Councillor Cameron enquired as to why Hot Works Permits weren’t in place across the 
Council, wherein the Head of Public Infrastructure and Environment advised that 
Building Services had a Permit to work and this was being reviewed to roll it out across 
the Council.  The Team Leader advised that there was a procedure in place within Fleet 
Services however it had not been followed at the time of the accident and that this was 
being reviewed to ensure what was in place was sufficient. 
 
George Ferguson enquired as to whether training had been identified for staff wherein 
the Head of Public Infrastructure and Environment advised that a programme of training 
for all staff was being developed and would be implemented. 
 
The Chairperson enquired as to whether he could attend the workshop at Kittybrewster 
so that he could meet the staff and see for himself the operations, wherein the Head of 
Public Infrastructure and Environment advised that he would arrange a meeting.  
 
 
 

Page 43



4 

 
 

The report recommended: 
That the Committee –  
(a) note the progress on implementing the actions; and 
(b) instructs the Head of Public Infrastructure and Environment to report back to the 

next Committee with a further update on the implementation of the revised 
procedure for  Hot Works in Fleet Services. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that the Head of Public Infrastructure and Environment would arrange for 

the Chairperson to visit the workshop to meet staff and to see the work area; and 
(ii) to otherwise approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
HEALTH AND SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
 
8. The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised that (1) a report was being 
submitted to the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee on 26 February 2015 which was to 
present the Health and Safety Assurance Plan and the provide information on the 
assurance system to test the effectiveness of the organisations health and safety 
arrangements; and (2) that it was proposed that Health and Safety audits be carried 
out, the scope of which would be agreed with the Service and that recommendations for 
improvements would be issued with a timeline for completion. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the information provided. 
 
 
CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT - JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2014 
 
9. With reference to article 11 of the minute of its meeting of 29 August 2014, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Acting Director of Corporate Governance which 
provided details of the number and types of accidents, incidents and occurrences 
during the period July to September 2014. 
 
The report provided statistical information broken down into the following categories: 
 
Accidents, Incidents, Accident Rates and Sickness Absence 
• 46 accidents to employees were reported of which 12 were reportable to the 

enforcing authority 
• 61 accidents to third parties were reported of which 6 were reportable to the 

enforcing authority 
• the accident rate for the period was 1.13 
• 123 incidents were reported during the period with the highest attributed to 

threatening or menacing behaviour (47) 
• there were 13701 calendar days lost for all sickness, 212 for industrial injury and 

18 for mental wellbeing 
• the corporate sickness absence rate was 11.20 working days lost per employee 
 
Health and Safety Training and Cancellations 
• 202 employees attended health and safety training 
• 302 employees completed elearning health and safety courses 
• there were 21 late cancellations or no shows which resulted in a total of 

£2457.20 being back charged to Services 

Page 44



5 

 
 

 
Fire Risk Assessments 
• 19 fire risk assessments were carried out 
• a range of both positive and negative findings were reported to the premises 

responsible person and related directorate so that remedial action could be 
progressed and monitored via Service Management Committees 

 
Health and Safety Policies and Guidance 
• The Corporate Health and Safety Policy and Smoke Free at Work Policy have 

been reported to the Corporate Management Team and engagement with 
directorates had commenced. 

 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee refer the report to the Corporate Management Team –  
(a) to discuss and encourage review of statistics by Heads of Service with Service 

specific detail being discussed at Service Management Committees; 
(b) to support actions to reduce accidents and work related ill health in line with 

health and safety targets; and 
(c) to disseminate and take action on the health and safety information in the report. 
 
The Chairperson requested an update in relation to the remedial action from the 
employee reportable accidents, wherein the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager 
advised that she would liaise with colleagues and provide a response at the next 
meeting. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that a response relating to the remedial actions from employee reportable 

accidents would be provided at the next meeting; and  
(ii) to otherwise approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT - OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2014 
 
10. With reference to the previous article, the Committee had before it a report by 
the Acting Director of Corporate Governance which provided details of the number and 
types of accidents, incidents and occurrences during the period October to December 
2014. 
 
The report provided statistical information broken down into the following categories: 
 
Accidents, Incidents, Accident Rates and Sickness Absence 
• 68 accidents to employees were reported of which none were reportable to the 

enforcing authority 
• 118 accidents to third parties were reported of which 2 were reportable to the 

enforcing authority 
• the accident rate for the period was 0 
• 107 incidents were reported during the period with the highest attributed to 

threatening or menacing behaviour (41) 
• there were 17742 calendar days lost for all sickness, 191.5 for industrial injury 

and 107 for mental wellbeing 
• the corporate sickness absence rate was 11.30 working days lost per employee 
 
 

Page 45



6 

 
 

Occupational Health and Wellbeing Events 
• 6 to 10 October - EU-OSHA Healthy Workplaces Manage Stress which was to 

promote stress management techniques and create a greater awareness of 
metal wellbeing in the workplace 

• Various dates in October – Free Employee Flu Vaccinations which was offered 
to prevent or minimise flu related absences to eligible staff 

• 3 November to 21 November – Free Employee Health Checks which was offered 
to all staff and are a good indicator of general employee health as well as a way 
of providing a health intervention and information for employees who may be at 
risk 

• The Council maintained the Healthy Working Lives bronze award 
 
Health and Safety Training and Cancellations 
• 654 employees attended health and safety training 
• 231employees completed elearning health and safety courses 
• There were 60 late cancellations or no shows which resulted in a total of £2731 

being back charged to Services 
 
Fire Risk Assessments and Health and Safety Audits 
• 33 fire risk assessments were carried out 
• a range of both positive and negative findings were reported to the premises 

responsible person and related directorate so that remedial action could be 
progressed and monitored via Service Management Committees 

• 11 audits relating to ‘control’ were carried out 
• a range of both positive and negative findings were identified 
 
Health and Safety Policies and Guidance 
• the Corporate Health and Safety Policy will be submitted to the next meeting of 

the Finance, Policy and Resources Committee for approval 
 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee refer the report to the Corporate Management Team –  
(a) to discuss and encourage review of statistics by Heads of Service with Service 

specific detail being discussed at Service Management Committees; 
(b) to support actions to reduce accidents and work related ill health in line with 

health and safety targets; and 
(c) to disseminate and take action on the health and safety information in the report. 
 
Sid Sandison enquired as to where the security breach occurred, wherein the Health, 
Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised that she would provide the details to the 
Committee. 
 
John Noble advised that the test at the end of the Construction Skills Certification 
Scheme had not been completed by the majority of attendees and requested an 
update, wherein the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised that it was up to 
the Service to organise and that there were a few reasons why there has been a delay. 
 
The Chief Executive sought clarification over the figures provided relating to sickness 
absence and stated that there appeared to be no improvement over the last 12 month 
period.  She further requested information on how the Council compared to the industry 
average for sickness absence.  The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised 
that the figures were provided to her from colleagues so she would seek clarification 
from them and would request the comparison figures.  Sid Sandison stated that the 

Page 46



7 

 
 

absence figures included part time staff with the absence recorded as full time and also 
weekends were included so this may account for the high absence figures. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager would provide clarity in 

relation to the absence figures and would provide a comparison to the industry 
average for sickness absence; and 

(ii) to otherwise approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH REPORT - JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2014 
 
11. With reference to article 10 of the minute of its meeting of 29 August 2014, the 
Committee had before it a report prepared by Serco which outlined the activities of the 
Occupational Health Service for the period 1 July to 30 September 2014. 
 
The report provided the following statistical information: 
• 307 appointments had been delivered which included: 31 Audiometry 

Assessments, 56 Physiotherapy sessions, 19 Hand Arm Vibration Syndrome 
Assessments were carried out 17 at tier 3 and 2 at tier 4, 100 medicals 
comprising 2 Light Goods Vehicles, 41 School Crossing Patrollers and 57 Taxi 
Drivers and 101 referrals had been received 

• 43 New Employee Questionnaires were completed 
• There were 3 cases of ‘Did Not Attend’ 
• 8 Hep B Vaccinations were carried out 
• The highest diagnosis categories from the referrals were musculoskeletal (30) of 

which 4 were work related and Psychological (26) of which 18 were work related 
• Of the 101 referrals, 38 were deemed fit for work and 29 were deemed fit with 

restrictions 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report. 
 
 
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH REPORT - OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2014 
 
12. With reference to the previous article, the Committee had before it a report 
prepared by Serco which outlined the activities of the Occupational Health Service for 
the period 1 October to 31 December 2014. 
 
The report provided the following statistical information: 
• 330 appointments had been delivered which included: 68 Physiotherapy 

sessions, 3 Hand Arm Vibration Syndrome Assessments were carried out 2 at 
tier 3 and 1 at tier 4, 101 medicals comprising 9 Light Goods Vehicles and 92 
Taxi Drivers and 158 referrals had been received 

• 83 New Employee Questionnaires were completed 
• There were 6 cases of ‘Did Not Attend’ and 13 cancelled appointments 
• 13 Hep B Vaccinations were carried out 
• The highest diagnosis categories from the referrals were musculoskeletal (57) of 

which 4 were work related and Psychological (39) of which 24 were work related 
• Of the 158 referrals, 61 were deemed fit for work, 39 were deemed fit with 

restrictions and 34 were deemed temporarily unfit 
 

Page 47



8 

 
 

The Chief Executive sought clarification relating to the number of employees off long 
term sick (81) and how many of those were deemed fit to work and had returned or if 
there was a plan for those employees to return to work.  The Chairperson sought 
clarification on employees that had returned to work on different duties.  The Health, 
Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised that she would liaise with Serco to gain the 
information. 
 
Sid Sandison sought clarification relating to the Psychological figures and how the 
Council were performing against other Local Authorities and the industry average.  The 
Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised that Serco didn’t currently provide 
benchmarking figures and that she would ask for these for future reports. 
 
The Team Leader for the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Team advised that Services had 
plans in place to assist people back to work and systems in place to manage this and 
that the Service look at the suitability of lighter duties for each employee.   
 
Joe Craig advised that sometimes the report from Serco conflicted with the report from 
the employees Doctor and that this should be investigated.  The Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing Manager advised that she would discuss the individual cases directly with 
Joe out with the meeting. 
 
The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised that she had requested Serco to 
provide feedback responses in future reports so that the Committee could monitor the 
service being provided. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to request the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager to liaise with Serco to gain 

additional information on whether there was a plan in place to get the 81 
employees currently off on long term sick back to work; 

(ii) to request the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager to liaise with Serco to gain 
additional information on how many employees had returned to work on lighter 
duties; 

(iii) to note that feedback responses had been requested for future reports; and 
(iv) to otherwise note the content of the report. 
 
 
EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAMME REPORT - JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2014 
 
13. With reference to article 9 of the minute of its meeting of 29 August 2014, the 
Committee had before it a report prepared by Time for Talking which presented the 
utilisation of the Employee Assistance Programme for the period 1 July to 30 
September 2014. 
 
The report advised that there had been 22 referrals during the period, of which 17 
related to personal issues and 5 related to work issues.  There had been 59 face to 
face counselling sessions, 19 telephone counselling sessions and 1 counselling 
session still to be arranged due to client commitments. 
 
The Committee noted that the format of the report was not ideal as it split between 
pages and the information was not easy to read.  The Clerk advised that she would try 
to amend the layout for future reports. 
 
 

Page 48



9 

 
 

The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to request the Clerk to present the report in a different format for future meetings 

to make it easier to follow and understand; and  
(ii) to otherwise note the content of the report. 
 
 
EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE REPORT - OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2014 
 
14. With reference to the previous article, the Committee had before it a report 
prepared by Time for Talking which presented the utilisation of the Employee 
Assistance Programme for the period 1 October to 31 December 2014. 
 
The report advised that there had been 21 referrals during the period, of which 13 
related to personal issues and 8 related to work issues.  There had been 52 face to 
face counselling sessions, 21 telephone counselling sessions and 1 requesting 
information or advice. 
 
Sid Sandison asked if there was any evidence that the service was beneficial to the 
employee wherein the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised that she receives 
the feedback during her quarterly meetings with Time for Talking and that the feedback 
from those who had provided it was positive.  She further advised that it was important 
to receive all feedback so that if there was anything negative that it could be addressed. 
 
The Chief Executive requested that the feedback information be included in future 
reports. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to request Time for Talking to provide the feedback responses in future reports; 

and 
(ii) to otherwise note the report. 
 
 
HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 
15. With reference to article 13 of the minute of its previous meeting of 28 November 
2014, the Committee had before it the Corporate Health and Safety Improvement Plan 
for 2014-2016 prepared by the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager which outlined 
each of the improvement themes and associated tasks, measurements and responsible 
person for each of the improvements. 
 
The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager specifically drew attention to items 3 and 4 
which outlined the percentages for reducing the number of incidents and absences in 
the workplace. 
 
The Chief Executive requested that the Improvement Plan be amended to contain more 
detail on what interventions would be put in place to meet the aim and the targets set.  
She also sought clarification on how each of the improvement areas would be 
monitored. 
 
The Team Leader for the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Team advised that the 
Corporate Plan was fed down to each Service and their improvement plans would 
contain the additional detail.  The Chief Executive stated that the Improvement Plan 
had to be discussed with each Service to ensure that the targets and actions were not 

Page 49



10 

 
 

unrealistic.  She further requested that the Improvement Plan be discussed by the 
Corporate Management Team to ensure the targets and actions were acceptable and 
manageable. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to instruct the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager to submit the Improvement 

Plan to the Corporate Management Team for discussion and approval; and 
(ii) to otherwise note the Improvement Plan. 
 
 
DIRECTORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PLANS 
 
16. The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised that once agreement had 
been reached on the format and content of the Corporate Health and Safety 
Improvement Plan and this had been issued to Services to be included in their 
individual Improvement Plans, that at each Committee meeting, the Service 
Improvement Plans would be presented so that the Committee could monitor the 
improvements that had been identified.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the information provided. 
 
 
FUTURE MEETING ARRANGEMENTS AND SERVICE REPORTING TIMETABLE 
2015 
 
17. The Committee had before it the dates and service reporting timetable prepared 
by the Clerk.  The Clerk advised that there were some changes to the one issued in the 
papers and that this would be amended and issued to all Services. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the reporting timetable. 
 
 

EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
 In accordance with the decision taken at article 1 of this minute, the 

following item of business was considered with the press and public 
excluded. 

 
SCHOOL SECURITY 
 
18. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education and Children’s 
Services which (1) presented an update on progress in developing a programme of 
security improvements for schools in Aberdeen City; and (2) presented a draft 
programme of works to be undertaken over the next five years. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee note the contents of the report. 
 
The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager commended the Service of the amount of 
work that had been undertaken to date and requested that an action plan be 

Page 50



11 

 
 

implemented to capture all aspects of health, safety and wellbeing for each of the 
schools.   
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to request the Service to complete an action plan to capture all information 

relating to school security so that all aspects of health, safety and wellbeing were 
being addressed; and 

(ii) to otherwise note the contents of the report. 
 
- GORDON GRAHAM, Chairperson. 
 
 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



www.pwc.co.uk          FINAL 

 

 
 

Internal Audit 

Annual Report 
2014/2015 
 

 

Aberdeen City Council 

For year ended  
31st March 2015 

FINAL 

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 53



Annual Report 2014/2015 Draft 

Internal audit report for Aberdeen City Council PwC · Contents 

Contents 

1. Executive summary 1 

2. Summary of findings 3 

3. Internal Audit work conducted 5 

4. Follow up work conducted 9 

Appendices 12 

Appendix 1: Limitations and responsibilities 13 
Appendix 2: Opinion types 14 
Appendix 3: Basis of our classifications 15 
Appendix 3: Performance of internal audit 17 

 

Distribution List  

For action    

 

Audit, Risk and Scrutiny  Committee 

For information Director of Corporate Governance 

 

This document has been prepared only for Aberdeen City Council and solely for the 
purpose and on the terms agreed with Aberdeen City Council under our engagement 
letter dated 4th October 2010.  

 

Page 54



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

Annual Internal audit report for 

Aberdeen City Council PwC · 1 

Introduction 
This report outlines the internal audit work we have carried out for the year ended 31st March 2015.  

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Head of Internal Audit to provide an annual opinion, 
based upon and limited to the work performed, on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control (i.e. the organisation’s system of internal control).  
This is achieved through a risk-based plan of work, agreed with management and approved by the Audit 
Committee, which should provide a reasonable level of assurance, subject to the inherent limitations described 
below and set out in Appendix 1.  The opinion does not imply that Internal Audit has reviewed all risks relating 
to the organisation. 

The Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee agreed to a level of internal audit input of 563 days, of which 563 days 
were delivered. 

Internal audit work was performed in accordance with PwC's Internal Audit methodology which is in 
conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  

Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
We are satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken to allow an opinion to be given as to the 
adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management and control.  In giving this opinion, it should be 
noted that assurance can never be absolute.  The most that the internal audit service can provide is reasonable 
assurance that there are no major weaknesses in the system of internal control. 

Opinion 

Our opinion is as follows:  

 

Adequate and effective Improvement 

required 

Major improvement 

required 

Unsatisfactory 

There are weaknesses in the framework of governance, risk management and control which potentially put the 
achievement of organisational objectives at risk and there is non-compliance with controls that may put the 
achievement of organisational objectives at risk. 

Improvements are required in those areas to enhance the adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk 
management and control. Please see our Summary of Findings in Section 2. 

 

Basis of opinion  

Our opinion is based on: 

· All audits undertaken during the year. 

· Any follow up action taken in respect of audits from previous periods. 

The commentary below provides the context for our opinion and together with the opinion should be read in its 
entirety. 

 

 

 

1. Executive summary 

Page 55



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

Annual Internal audit report for 

Aberdeen City Council PwC · 2 

Commentary 

The key factors that contributed to our opinion are summarised as follows: 

Whilst we have identified that there are improvements required in the framework of governance, risk 
management and control, we are clear that Aberdeen City Council is making improvement and that there is a 
good culture focused on risk and governance within senior management. 

We have noted, during the year, that the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee functions well and has improved 
in its understanding of risk and in the challenge it gives to Council Officers on internal audit findings. Officers 
have also embraced a risk-based approach to internal audit and are focused on continuous improvement, 
particularly as they address a challenging management agenda. 

We have conducted eight reviews that have identified findings considered as high risk, these were; Continuous 
Financial Controls, Car Parking and Bus Lane Enforcement, Corporate Landlord Responsibilities, ALEO Tier 2 
Review, Compliance with Laws and Regulations, Service Reviews – Adult and Older People, Aberdeen 
International Youth Festival – Following the Public Pound and Fleet Management. The areas we have deemed 
high risk are not pervasive to the Council’s operations but do pose significant risks, and improvements are 
required to ensure objectives in these areas are met. The key findings within these reports are summarised in 
Section 2. 

We have also identified a number of areas of good practice within individual reviews. Where good practice has 
been identified this is reflected within the final individual internal audit reports. 

Acknowledgement 
We would like to take this opportunity to thank Aberdeen City Council staff, for their co-operation and 
assistance provided during the year.  

Page 56



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

PwC   3 

Our annual internal audit report is timed to inform the organisation’s Annual Governance Statements.  

A summary of key findings from our programme of internal audit work for the year is recorded in the table 
below: 

Description Detail 

Overview 

We completed 27 internal audit reviews. This resulted 
in the identification of 17 high, 52 medium and 64 low 
risk findings to improve weaknesses in the design of 
controls and operating effectiveness. 

 

All internal audit reviews have been completed in 
accordance with the approved Internal Audit Plan, 
subject to the amendments approved by the Audit, 
Risk and Scrutiny Committee, with the exception of 
the Assurance Mapping review that remains 
outstanding. As this review does not involve an 
assessment of existing controls, the fact that it 
remains outstanding does not impact on our ability to 
provide an annual opinion. 
 

Overall, our findings have allowed Officers to identify 
specific control weaknesses within their current 
systems and to address these to improve the efficiency 
and effectiveness of controls and processes. 

Internal Control Issues 

During the course of our work we identified a number 
of weaknesses that we consider should be reported in 
your Annual Governance Statement. 

 

· Car Parking and Bus Lane Enforcement 
Review – The review identified that a control 
that had been in operation prior to the 
reorganisation now does not operate. This finding 
related to the need to confirm that the amount 
collected by the parking machines was the amount 
eventually banked by the third party contractor 
that banks the cash. 

 

· ALEO Tier 2 Review – Our review noted two 
high risk findings. The first identifies a lack of 
consideration of the risks to the Council of the 
relationship with two of the Arm’s Length 
Organisations. The second found a lack of 
adherence to the Council’s ‘Following the Public 
Pound’ Guidance.  
 

· Compliance with Laws and Regulations 
Review – Our review identified that a significant 
number of reports by Council Officers did not 
have evidence of being properly submitted to the 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services prior to 
consideration by Council Committees. This was in 
breach of the Council’s Standing Orders for 
Committee reports.  

 

· Service Review – Adult and Older People – 
We noted two high risk findings. These related to 
the inadequacy of the reviewing of care needs for 
vulnerable adults and older people. We found that 
non-performance of review was widespread and 
further noted that there were inconsistencies in 
the understanding of what constituted a review 

2. Summary of findings 

Page 57



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

PwC   4 

depending on the reviewer.   
 

· Aberdeen International Youth Festival – 
Following the Public Pound – We noted two 
high risk findings these relate to an inappropriate 
relationship between the Council and the arm’s 
length organisation. The first relates to the level of 
involvement of ACC management in the 
governance of the Youth Festival and the second 
relates to the level of oversight of the funding of 
the Youth Council. This lack of oversight was due 
to the failure to submit financial reports. 

 

· Fleet Management Governance – We noted 
one high risk finding concerning the controls in 
operation over the Tranman fleet asset recording 
system. Our review highlighted significant 
concerns over the completeness and accuracy of 
the system as a result of failures in control around 
the acquisition and disposal of fleet assets and 
their recording on Tranman. This control failing 
was also noted as having an impact on the 
financial reporting of fixed assets in the Council’s 
financial statements. 

 

Follow up 
During the year we have undertaken follow up work 
on previously agreed actions.  
 

 

 

We have followed up with management on the status 
of outstanding audit actions from internal audits 
completed in prior years. In total 112 actions were 
followed up on this year from prior year audit reports, 
of which 100 were identified as being implemented. 
Full details are included in Section 4 of this report. 

Good practice 
We also identified a number of areas where few 
weaknesses were identified and / or areas of good 
practice. 

Throughout our work we have identified areas of good 
practice and these have been noted in the relevant 
reports. 

 

 

 

 

Page 58



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

PwC   5 

Introduction 
The table below sets out the results of our internal audit work. 

We also include a comparison between planned internal audit activity and actual activity.  

Results of individual assignments 

3. Internal Audit work conducted 

Review 
Report 
classification  

Number of findings 

Critical High Medium Low 

Continuous Financial Controls Period 
1 April 2014 to 30 September 2014 

N/A - 2 3 8 

Continuous Financial Controls Period 
1 October 2014 to 31 March 2015 

N/A - 3 8 8 

Procurement Controls out with 
PECOS 

Low - - 1 3 

Car Parking and Bus Lane 
Enforcement 

High - 1 6 3 

Pension Fund and Financial Controls 
and Pension Payroll 

Medium - - 2 2 

IT Disaster Recovery Low - - - 4 

IT Security (Network and Perimeter) Medium - - 2 1 

IT Asset Management Medium - - 2 2 

Compliance with the Public Records 
(Scotland) Act – Phase 1 

Low - - 1 - 

Compliance with the Public Records 
(Scotland ) Act – Phase 2 

Medium - - 4 1 

Management Information Low - - 1 2 

Procurement in Construction Low - - 1 - 

Corporate Landlord Responsibilities Medium - 1 1 1 

Flooding and Coastal Risk 
Management 

Medium - - 2 4 

Corporate Policy and Procedures 
Development 

Low - - - 2 

ALEO Tier 2 Review High - 2 3 - 

Controls Assurance Mapping N/A - - - - 

Page 59



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

PwC   6 

 

    

Complaints Handling Process Medium - - 2 3 

Compliance with Laws and 
Regulations 

High - 1 3 - 

Library Services (Self-Service 
Machines) 

Low - - - 3 

Fraud Governance – Housing 
Tenancy and the Scottish Welfare 
Fund 

Low - - 2 - 

Service Reviews – Adult and Older 
People 

High - 2 1 - 

Road Construction Consent Low - - - 4 

CareFirst: Budgetary Controls and 
Forecasting 

Medium - - 3 1 

Section 75 Planning Medium - - 2 3 

Transport Contracts within Education 
and Social Care 

Low - - - 2 

Parent Council Funds Low - - - 5 

Aberdeen International Youth 
Festival – Following the Public Pound 

High - 2 1 2 

Fleet Management Governance Medium - 1 1 - 

Fleet Asset Verification N/A - - - - 

Devolved School Management N/A - - - - 

Total - 17 52 64 

Page 60



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

PwC   7 

 

Direction of control travel 

Finding rating 
Trend between current 
and prior year 

Number of findings 

2014/15 2013/14 2012/13 

Critical 
 

- - - 

High  17 13 7 

Medium  52 38 32 

Low  64 68 26 

Total  133 119 65 

 

Implications for management 
Overall there has been an increase in the number of findings, particularly in the number of high and medium 
risk findings. However, as noted in our commentary to the Executive Summary, we have been specifically 
requested by senior management, and the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee, to focus our internal audit work 
on areas of greater risk to the Council. This has naturally led us to identifying more significant findings in areas 
where have made findings, given that these areas are of greater risk to the Council overall. 

It is our view that management should work to implement the agreed actions that address the findings made in 
order to continue to strengthen the Council’s internal controls in response to these significant risks. 

 

  

Page 61



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

PwC   8 

Comparison of planned and actual activity 
Audit Review Budgeted days Actual days 

Continuous Financial Controls 75 75 

Car Parking and Bus Lane Enforcement 12 12 

School PTA Funds 12 12 

Disaster Recovery 15 15 

Security Review 20 20 

Asset Management 15 15 

Compliance with Public Records (Scotland) Act 20 20 

Management Information 30 20 

Procurement in Construction 15 15 

Use of PECOS 25 25 

New Schools Programme 25 - 

Corporate Landlord Responsibilities 15 15 

Flooding and Coastal Risk Management 10 10 

Policy and Procedure Development 12 12 

ALEO Review 25 25 

Controls Assurance Mapping 20 40 

Complaints Handling Process 12 12 

Legal Services 15 15 

Library Services 15 15 

Fraud Governance within Housing and Environment 15 15 

Service Reviews – Adult and Older People 15 15 

Roads Construction 15 15 

Care First Budgetary Control and Forecasting 20 20 

Music Services 20 - 

Taxi Contracts 20 20 

Aberdeen International Youth Festival - 10 

Fleet Management - 30 

Section 75 Planning - 20 

Devolved School Management - 10 

Follow-up of Internal Audit Recommendations 25 25 

Contingency Days 50 10 

Total Budgeted Versus Actual 563 563 

Page 62



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

PwC   9 

Introduction 
In order for the organisation to derive maximum benefit from internal audit, agreed actions should be 
implemented.  In accordance with our internal audit plan, we followed up on all recommendations made in 
prior years to ascertain whether action had been taken.  The table below summarises the follow up work 
performed. 

4. Follow up work conducted 

Page 63



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

PwC   10 

Results of follow up work 
Audit unit Report 

Risk 
Rating 

Number 
of 
agreed 
actions 

Status of agreed actions 

Implemented Ongoing Outstanding Not yet 
due 

2013/2014 

Fraud 
Governance 
Arrangements 

Medium Risk 4 4 0 0 0 

Pension payroll 
and pension fund 
financial controls 

Low Risk 2 2 0 0 0 

Staff Performance 
management 

Medium Risk 4 4 0 0 0 

Contract 
management - 
Social Care and 
Wellbeing 

High Risk 

 
3 2 0 1 0 

Corporate travel 
arrangements 

Medium Risk 

 
5 5 0 0 0 

Following the 
public pound 

Medium Risk 5 5 0 0 0 

European grant 
funding 

Medium Risk 6 6 0 0 0 

Fleet 
management 

Low Risk 5 4 0 1 0 

Regeneration Medium Risk 3 3 0 0 0 

Building Services 
– Phase 1 

High Risk 9 9 0 0 0 

Sport Aberdeen High Risk 5 5 0 0 0 

IT Third Party 
Management 

Low Risk 2 2 0 0 0 

IT -Project Nevis 
- tranche 1 

Low Risk 3 3 0 0 0 

Building Services 
– Phase 2 (Follow 
Up) 

Low Risk 

 
2 2 0 0 0 

Community 
centres 

High Risk 4 0 0 2 2 

Stakeholder 
Engagement  

Low Risk 4 2 0 0 2 

Roads 
reinstatements by 
utility companies   

Medium Risk 5 4 0 0 1 

ICT Governance Medium Risk 3 2 0 0 1 

Aberdeen 
Western 
Peripheral Route  

Low Risk 1 1 0 0 0 

Sourcing and 
Management of 
Agency Staff  

High Risk 5 5 0 0 0 

Private Sector 
Housing  

Medium Risk 6 6 0 0 0 

Self-Directed 
Support  

Medium Risk 4 4 0 0 0 

2012/2013 

Page 64



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

PwC   11 

Arm’s Length 
Organisations 

High Risk 6 4 0 2 0 

Homelessness 
Targets 

Low Risk 3 3 0 0 0 

Lone Workers 
Review 

High Risk 8 8 0 0 0 

2011/2012 

Capital and 
Repairs 
Management 

High Risk 4 4 0 0 0 

 
 

112 100 0 6 6 

 

Summary 
We recommend that further work is conducted by Aberdeen City Council to ensure all previously agreed 
recommendations are implemented at the earliest opportunity. 

 

  

Page 65



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

PwC   12 

 

Appendices 

Page 66



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

PwC   13 

Limitations inherent to the internal auditor’s work 
Our work has been performed subject to the limitations outlined below.  

Opinion 
The opinion is based solely on the work undertaken as part of the agreed internal audit plan.  There might be 
weaknesses in the system of internal control that we are not aware of because they did not form part of our 
programme of work, were excluded from the scope of individual internal audit assignments or were not brought 
to our attention. As a consequence management and the Audit Committee should be aware that our opinion 
may have differed if our programme of work or scope for individual reviews was extended or other relevant 
matters were brought to our attention.  

Internal control 
Internal control systems, no matter how well designed and operated, are affected by inherent limitations. These 
include the possibility of poor judgment in decision-making, human error, control processes being deliberately 
circumvented by employees and others, management overriding controls and the occurrence of unforeseeable 
circumstances. 

Future periods 
Our assessment of controls relating to Aberdeen City Council is for the period 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2015. 
Historic evaluation of effectiveness may not be relevant to future periods due to the risk that: 

· the design of controls may become inadequate because of changes in operating environment, law, 
regulation or other; or 

· the degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate. 

The specific time period for each individual internal audit is recorded within section3 of this report.  

Responsibilities of management and internal auditors 
It is management’s responsibility to develop and maintain sound systems of risk management, internal control 
and governance and for the prevention and detection of irregularities and fraud. Internal audit work should not 
be seen as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the design and operation of these systems. 

We endeavour to plan our work so that we have a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control 
weaknesses and, if detected, we shall carry out additional work directed towards identification of consequent 
fraud or other irregularities. However, internal audit procedures alone, even when carried out with due 
professional care, do not guarantee that fraud will be detected, and our examinations as internal auditors 
should not be relied upon to disclose all fraud, defalcations or other irregularities which may exist. 

  

Appendix 1: Limitations and 
responsibilities 

Page 67



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

PwC   14 

The table below sets out the four types of opinion that we use, along with an indication of the types of findings 
that may determine the opinion given.  The Head of Internal Audit will apply his/her judgement when 
determining the appropriate opinion so the guide given below is indicative rather than definitive. 

Type of opinion  Indication of when this type of opinion may be given 

Adequate and 
effective 

· Generally only low risk rated weaknesses found in individual assignments; 
and 

· None of the individual assignment reports have an overall report 
classification of either high or critical risk. 

Improvement 
required 

· Medium risk rated weaknesses identified in individual assignments that are 
not significant in aggregate to the system of internal control; and/or 

· High risk rated weaknesses identified in individual assignments that are 
isolated to specific systems or processes; and 

· None of the individual assignment reports have an overall classification of 
critical risk. 

Major improvement 
required 

· Medium risk rated weaknesses identified in individual assignments that are 
significant in aggregate but discrete parts of the system of internal control 
remain unaffected; and/or 

· High risk rated weaknesses identified in individual assignments that are 
significant in aggregate but discrete parts of the system of internal control 
remain unaffected; and/or 

· Critical risk rated weaknesses identified in individual assignments that are 
not pervasive to the system of internal control; and 

· A minority of the individual assignment reports may have an overall report 
classification of either high or critical risk. 

Unsatisfactory · High risk rated weaknesses identified in individual assignments that in 
aggregate are pervasive to the system of internal control; and/or 

· Critical risk rated weaknesses identified in individual assignments that are 
pervasive to the system of internal control; and/or 

· More than a minority of the individual assignment reports have an overall 
report classification of either high or critical risk. 

Disclaimer opinion · An opinion cannot be issued because insufficient internal audit work has 
been completed.  This may be due to either:  

o Restrictions in the audit programme agreed with the Audit 
Committee, which meant that our planned work would not allow us 
to gather sufficient evidence to conclude on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of governance, risk management and control; or 

o We were unable to complete enough reviews and gather sufficient 
information to conclude on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
arrangements for governance, risk management and control.  

 

 

  

Appendix 2: Opinion types  

Page 68



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

PwC   15 

Report classifications 
The report classification is determined by allocating points to each of the findings included in the report 

Findings rating Points 

Critical 40 points per finding 

High 10 points per finding 

Medium 3 points per finding 

Low 1 point per finding 

 

Report 
classification 

Points 

Critical risk 40 points and over 

High risk 16– 39 points 

Medium risk 7– 15 points 

Low risk 6 points or less 

 

  

Appendix 3: Basis of our 
classifications  

Page 69



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

PwC   16 

Individual finding ratings  
 

Finding rating Assessment rationale 

Critical A finding that could have a: 

· Critical impact on operational performance or 

· Critical monetary or financial statement impact ; or 

· Critical breach in laws and regulations that could result in material fines or 
consequences; or 

· Critical impact on the reputation or brand of the organisation which could 
threaten its future viability. 

High A finding that could have a:  

· Significant impact on operational performance ; or 

· Significant monetary or financial statement impact ; or 

· Significant breach in laws and regulations resulting in significant fines and 
consequences; or 

· Significant impact on the reputation or brand of the organisation. 

Medium A finding that could have a: 

· Moderate impact on operational performance; or 

· Moderate monetary or financial statement impact; or 

· Moderate breach in laws and regulations resulting in fines and consequences ; or 

· Moderate impact on the reputation or brand of the organisation. 

Low A finding that could have a: 

· Minor impact on the organisation’s operational performance; or 

· Minor monetary or financial statement impact; or 

· Minor breach in laws and regulations with limited consequences; or  

· Minor impact on the reputation of the organisation. 

Advisory A finding that does not have a risk impact but has been raised to highlight areas of 
inefficiencies or good practice.  

 

  

Page 70



Internal Audit Annual Report 2014/15 for Aberdeen city Council Final 

PwC   17 

Appendix 3: Performance of 
internal audit  

Key Performance Indicators 

We agreed a suite of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) with management and the Audit Committee. Our 
performance against each KPI is shown in the table below. These highlight the focus of our work and the 
standard attained: 

KPI  Target Performance 

Terms of reference agreed 4 weeks prior to fieldwork 95% 72% 

Planned fieldwork start date 95% 97% 

Fieldwork completion date 95% 68% 

Issuing draft reports for management comments (2 weeks 
completion of field work) 

95% 82% 

Receiving management comments (2 weeks after issuing 
draft report) 

95% 51% 

Issuing finalised reports (within 1 week of receiving final 
management response) 

95% 100% 

Final reports presented to the Audit and Risk Committee in 
accordance with the agreed timetable 

100% 97% 

 

Quality assurance and improvement programme 
As part of our quality assurance and improvement programme we have agreed the above suite of KPIs as a 
mechanism to monitor our performance and identify areas for improvement.  We also obtain feedback on an 
annual basis from the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee in order to help us identify areas for further 
improvement.  The Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee perform a formal assessment of the effectiveness of the 
Internal Audit function on an annual basis through which we can also measure our performance. 

Page 71



 

In the event that, pursuant to a request which Aberdeen city Councilhas received under the Freedom of Information Act 
2000 (as the same may be amended or re-enacted from time to time) or any subordinate legislation made thereunder 
(collectively, the “Legislation”), it is required to disclose any information contained in this terms of reference, it will notify 
PwC promptly and consult with PwC prior to disclosing such information. Aberdeen city Council agrees to pay due regard to 
any representations which PwC may make in connection with such disclosure and to apply any relevant exemptions which 
may exist under the Act to such information. If, following consultation with PwC, Aberdeen city Councildiscloses any such 
information, it shall ensure that any disclaimer which PwC has included or may subsequently wish to include in the 
information is reproduced in full in any copies disclosed. 

This document has been prepared only for Aberdeen city Council and solely for the purpose and on the terms agreed with 
Aberdeen city Council in our agreement dated 4th October 2010.  We accept no liability (including for negligence) to anyone 
else in connection with this document, and it may not be provided to anyone else. 

© 2015 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. In this document, "PwC" refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
(a limited liability partnership in the United Kingdom), which is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International 
Limited, each member firm of which is a separate legal entity. 

Page 72



  

 
 E

x
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 P

ro
g

re
s
s

 U
p

d
a

te
 

P
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

  

1
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 a
im

s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1

a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 (

A
R

S
C

) 
w

it
h
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 a
t 

w
h

ic
h
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 a
u

d
it

 w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5

2
. 

. 
F

o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
, 
o
u
r 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 w

o
rk

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
: 

•
 

a
n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 w

h
e
th

e
r:

−
 

th
e
y
 g

iv
e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 f
a
ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
n
 e

n
d
e
d
 

−
 

th
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
(S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 

1
9
7
3
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 2

0
1

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 i
n
 t
h
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 K

in
g

d
o
m

 (
th

e
 C

o
d
e
)

•
 

a
n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
 o

p
in

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 t
ru

s
ts

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 t

h
e
 s

o
le

 t
r

•
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

h
a
re

d
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
n
 a

N
e
tw

o
rk

’s
 (

L
A

N
) 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
it
s
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
  
 

1
 

E
x

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 P

ro
g

re
s
s

 U
p

d
a

te
 –

 2
0
1

4
/1

5
 A

u
d

it
  
  

P
re

p
a
re

d
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

A
u
d
it

a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

  
T

h
e
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it

w
it
h
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 a
t 

e
a
c
h
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

. 
 O

u
r 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 w

e
re

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 o

u
r 

2
0
1

w
h

ic
h
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
5
. 
 A

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

e
le

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

w
o
rk

 r
e
la

te
s
 t

o
 g

a
th

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
  

5
 

a
n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 w

h
e
th

e
r:

 

th
e
y
 g

iv
e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 f
a
ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
 

th
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
(S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 

1
9
7
3
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 2

0
1

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 i
n
 t
h
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 K

in
g

d
o
m

 (
th

e
 C

o
d
e
) 

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
 o

p
in

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 t
ru

s
ts

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 t

h
e
 s

o
le

 t
r

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

h
a
re

d
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
n
 a

 L
o
c
a
l 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

la
n
. 

 T
h
is

 w
a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

n
e
w

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
it
s
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g

 s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

A
u

d
it

  
  

 

P
re

p
a
re

d
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

A
u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
5
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

  
T

h
e
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
, 
R

is
k
 

O
u
r 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 w

e
re

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 o

u
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 p

la
n
 

. 
 A

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

e
le

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

w
o
rk

 r
e
la

te
s
 t

o
 g

a
th

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

 a
n
d
 i
ts

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
(S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 

1
9
7
3
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
4
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
 o

p
in

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 t
ru

s
ts

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 t

h
e
 s

o
le

 t
ru

s
te

e
 

w
a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g

 s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

Agenda Item 4.2

Page 73



 

2
 

 •
 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
k
e
y
 a

re
a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f:
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

; 
th

e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
c
y
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
a
u
d
it
; 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
; 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
tu

d
y
 f

o
llo

w
-u

p
 w

o
rk

; 

a
n
d
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 I

C
T

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
 

•
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
g

ra
n
t 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
tu

rn
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 W

h
o
le

 o
f 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 

•
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
F

ra
u
d
 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

  

M
a
tt

e
rs

 f
o

r 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
  

3
. 

W
e
 w

o
u
ld

 h
ig

h
lig

h
t 
th

e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
  

p
o
in

ts
 f

o
r 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

: 

• •••
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e
n

ts
: 
T

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 (
S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

R
e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 2

0
1

4
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
u
d
it
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
b
y
  

  
  

3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

to
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
ig

n
a
tu

re
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 f
ro

m
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 I
n
 

th
e
 p

a
s
t,
 w

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 a
n
 I

S
A

2
6
0
 R

e
p
o
rt

 –
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
o
s
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 

w
it
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 -

 b
y
 3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
u
r 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
tr

o
lle

r 
o
f 

A
u
d
it
 a

 m
o
n
th

 l
a
te

r.
  
O

u
r 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
 F

ro
m

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
, 

w
e
 w

ill
 

c
o
m

b
in

e
 o

u
r 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 I
S

A
2
6
0
 a

n
d
 b

ri
n
g

 t
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
  

in
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 
 A

s
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 a
d
v
is

e
d
, 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 w

o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 h

is
 t

e
a
m

 t
o
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

o
u
r 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

. 

• •••
 

L
o

c
a
l 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

la
n

: 
E

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

a
 s

h
a
re

d
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

is
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

b
y
 a

 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 (
L
A

N
) 

w
h
ic

h
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
e
s
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

th
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 b

o
d
ie

s
 w

h
o
 e

n
g
a
g

e
 w

it
h
 a

 c
o
u
n
c
il.

 T
h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 s

h
a
re

d
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 p
la

n
 

w
h

ic
h
 f

o
c
u
s
e
s
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

h
e
re

 i
t 

is
 m

o
s
t 

n
e
e
d
e
d
. 

 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

A
N

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 

a
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

rs
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
e
rs

 b
ri
n
g
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 b

o
d
ie

s
. 

 T
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
s
e
 s

tr
a
n
d
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 a
re

 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 a
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 L

o
c
a
l 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

la
n
. 
  
  
 

• •••
 

In
 p

re
p
a
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 p

la
n
, 

th
e
 L

A
N

 c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

B
e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
 W

in
te

r 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
. 
T

h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 
th

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 i
n
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 1

8
 m

o
n
th

s
. 
 F

ie
ld

w
o
rk

 

fo
r 

th
e
 B

e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 a

u
d
it
 t
o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 a
n
d
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
5
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 f
o
r 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 2

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
5
. 
  

4
. 

In
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 o

u
r 

fe
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
, 

w
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 a

u
d
it
. 
 A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 a
re

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

  
A

 s
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

o
u
r 

p
la

n
s
 i
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo

w
. 

Page 74



 

3
 

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

f 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 –
 p

la
n

n
e
d

 a
u

d
it

 o
u

tp
u

ts
  

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

/R
e
la

te
d

 a
c
ti

v
it

y
  

 

T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 f
o

r 

A
R

S
C

  

A
c
tu

a
l 
d

a
te

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

 
l 

 
 

 

A
n
n

u
a

l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

o
u
r 

fe
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
  

 
2
6
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 

2
0
1
5

 

2
6
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 

2
0
1
5

 

Y
e
s
  

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 A

u
d
it
, 
R

is
k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
  

2
6
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
5
  

L
o
c
a
l 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

la
n

  
3
0
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

1
5

 
2
5
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
5
  

Y
e
s
  

O
n
 a

g
e

n
d
a

 f
o
r 

2
5
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

5
 

T
h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 s

c
h
e
d
u

le
d
 f

o
r 

3
0
 

A
p
ri

l 
w

a
s
 r

e
s
c
h
e

d
u

le
d
 t

o
 1

1
 M

a
y
. 
 A

s
 w

e
 

w
e
re

 u
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

re
v
is

e
d
 d

a
te

, 
it
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
n

v
e
n

e
r/

V
ic

e
-C

o
n

v
e

n
e
r 

th
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 u

n
ti
l 
J
u
n

e
. 
  

In
te

ri
m

 r
e
p
o
rt

 o
n

 2
0

1
4
/1

5
 a

u
d
it
 –

 c
o

v
e
rs

 i
n
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
n

d
 a

 

fo
llo

w
 u

p
 o

f 
2
0

1
3
/1

4
 I

n
te

ri
m

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
  

2
5
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
5
  

2
5
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
5

 
Y

e
s
  

O
n
 a

g
e

n
d
a

 f
o
r 

2
5
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

5
  

 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

 
 

 

A
n
n

u
a

l 
re

p
o
rt

 t
o
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
tr

o
lle

r 
o
f 

A
u

d
it
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

IS
A

2
6
0
) 

  
 

2
4
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

 

2
0
1
5

 

 
 

 

In
d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n
t 

a
u

d
it
o
r'
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 
2
4
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

 

2
0
1
5

 

 
 

 

A
u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 c

h
a
ri

ta
b

le
 t

ru
s
ts

 
2
4
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

 

2
0
1
5

 

 
 

 

Page 75



 

4
 

  P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

f 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 –
  

re
tu

rn
s
  
 

5
. 

W
e
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 c

e
rt

if
y
/s

u
b
m

it
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 b

u
t 

w
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 
ro

u
ti
n
e
ly

 b
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
s
e
 m

a
tt
e
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
: 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

/R
e
la

te
d

 a
c
ti

v
it

y
  

 

T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 f
o

r 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
  

 

A
c
tu

a
l 
d

a
te

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e
n

ts
  

 
 

 
 

A
u
d

it
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 W

h
o
le

 o
f 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
A

c
c
o
u

n
ts

 (
W

G
A

) 

 

3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

 

2
0
1
5

 

  
  

T
h
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 W

G
A

 p
a
c
k
 i

s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

S
c
o
tt
is

h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

w
h
o
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rs
 i
t 

to
 H

M
 

T
re

a
s
u
ry

 
fo

r 
u
p
lo

a
d
 

to
 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

w
h
ic

h
  

b
ri
n
g
s
 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 
c
o
n
s
o

lid
a
ti
o

n
 
o
f 

a
ll 

U
K

 

lo
c
a
l 
g
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

. 

T
h
e
 W

G
A

 p
a
c
k
 i

s
 a

 s
e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e

e
ts

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

b
y
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

u
s
in

g
 

th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

g
ro

u
p
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
s
 a

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 l

is
t 

o
f 

in
te

r-
p
u
b

lic
 

s
e
c
to

r 
tr

a
n
s
a
c
ti
o

n
s
 

a
n
d

 

d
e
b
to

r 
a
n
d
 c

re
d

it
o
r 

b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 

w
h
ic

h
 

is
 

u
s
e
d
 

la
te

r 
in

 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
o

lid
a
ti
o
n

 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

to
 

e
lim

in
a
te

 
c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d

in
g

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
s
. 

 

G
ra

n
ts

 
 

 
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
s
  

3
1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1

5
 

 
 

 

C
ri
m

in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 R

e
tu

rn
s
  

 
3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5

 

 
 

 

Page 76



 

5
 

 P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

/R
e
la

te
d

 a
c
ti

v
it

y
  

 

T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 f
o

r 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
  

 

A
c
tu

a
l 
d

a
te

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
  

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
a
n

d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
S

u
b
s
id

y
  

 
3

0
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5

 

 
O

n
g
o
in

g
  

T
h
e
 

fi
rs

t 
s
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

te
s
ti
n
g

 
2
0
1

4
/1

5
 

b
e

n
e
fi
t 

c
a
s
e
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 o

u
r 

H
B

C
o

u
n
t 

m
e
th

o
d
o

lo
g

y
 

is
 

n
e

a
ri
n

g
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
. 

 
F

in
d

in
g
s
 

w
ill

 
b
e

 

e
v
a

lu
a
te

d
 
a

n
d
 
a
n

y
 
fo

llo
w

 
u
p
 
w

o
rk

 
w

ill
 
b
e

 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 

a
n

d
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

R
e

v
e
n

u
e
s
 

te
a
m

 b
y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 f

o
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 o

v
e
r 

th
e

 

s
u
m

m
e
r.

  

D
u
ri
n

g
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 w
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
d
u
c
t 

th
e
 f

in
a

l 

tr
a
n
c
h
e
 o

f 
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

te
s
ti
n
g

 a
n
d
 p

u
ll 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

c
a
s
e
s
 e

x
a

m
in

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

a
u
d

it
 
in

 
o
rd

e
r 

th
a
t 

th
e

 
o
p
in

io
n
 
c
a
n
 
b

e
 

g
iv

e
n
 b

y
 3

0
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

5
. 
  

N
o
n
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 R

a
te

s
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
tu

rn
  

 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

1
6

 
 

 
 

  A
n
n
e
 M

a
c
D

o
n
a
ld

, 
S

e
n
io

r 
A

u
d
it
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
5
  
  

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE  Audit, Risk & Scrutiny 
 
DATE  25th June 2015 
 
DIRECTOR  Angela Scott 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee – Annual 

Report 
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG/15/79 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to present the annual report of the Audit, 
Risk & Scrutiny Committee. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
that the Committee:– 
 
(a) Approve the annual report; and 

 
(b) Refer the report to the Council for their consideration. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
 During the Committee’s self-evaluation exercise in 2014, Member’s 

agreed that the Committee prepare an annual report of its activities and 
that this be referred to Council.  This report attaches a draft of that 
annual report. 
 

6. IMPACT 
 
There is impact on the Council’s governance arrangements through 
improved transparency, understanding and challenge of the activity and 
outcomes from the Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee. 

 

Agenda Item 4.3

Page 79



2 
 

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

There are no identified material risks which would result from the 
approval of the recommendations in this report. 
 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 “A Toolkit for Local Authority Audit Committees” - CIPFA 
 “Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police” 

- CIPFA (2013) 
  
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
Martin Murchie, Office of Chief Executive 
mmurchie@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
(01224) 522008 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 80



3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Annual Report 2014/15 

Page 81



4 
 

Introduction 
 
I am pleased to present this year’s Annual Report of the Audit, Risk & Scrutiny 
Committee. An annual report to Council is a useful way to develop 
understanding of the Committee’s role and functions. The Committee is 
accountable to Council and welcomes scrutiny of its effectiveness in fulfilling 
its terms of reference and its impact on the improvement of governance, risk 
and control within the authority. This report covers the work of the Audit, Risk 
& Scrutiny Committee during the period April 2014 – March 2015. In addition, 
to a summary of work undertaken, the report includes details of the 
Committee’s membership, officer support to the Committee, and the results of 
a self-evaluation of the Committee’s effectiveness.  The report ends with a 
look forward to 2015/16 and the Committee would welcome any feedback 
from Members of the Council on the themes identified. 
 
 
 
 
 
Jackie Dunbar 
Convener 
Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

Page 82



5 
 

The role of the Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee 
 
Cipfa (the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) defines the 
purpose of an audit committee as: 
 

“...to provide to those charged with governance independent assurance on 
the adequacy of the risk management framework, the internal control 
environment and the integrity of the financial reporting and annual 
governance processes.”1 

 
In accordance with this, the role of the Committee is primarily concerned with 
assuring itself, and advising the Council as necessary, that the Council’s 
policies are being implemented and has in place systems which provide 
adequate controls over the Council’s resources and assets to prevent the risk 
of loss through fraud and corruption. It is not the role of the Audit, Risk & 
Scrutiny Committee to be responsible for, or manage, the arrangements 
themselves. 
 
Key to the role of the Committee is that it should be independent; have clear 
reporting lines and rights of access to other committees; and that its members 
should be properly trained to fulfil the role. The Orders of Reference for the 
Committee are listed below with a summary of work undertaken. 
 
 

                                            
1
 CIPFA (2013) Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police 

Page 83



6 
 

1. Risk Management 
 
The Committee will:- 

(a) receive an annual review of the risk management process, and an 
update every six months on the risk register and related action plans; 

(b) approve the risk management strategy and implementation plan; 

(c) monitor risk management and internal control arrangements; and 

(d) commission and review annual assessments of the effectiveness of the 
risk management and control framework. 

 

Summary of Activity 

• Reviewed and approved a revised Risk Management Strategy; 

• Reviewed and approved annual Statement of Internal Control, 
specifically for risk management; 

• Reviewed reports on each aspect of the Council’s “System of Risk 
Management”, namely, Strategy; Structure; Skills; System; Shared 
Values; and Staff.  In doing so, identified strengths, weaknesses and 
required improvement actions; 

• Instigated reporting of reviews of critical incidents; 

• Instigated regular reporting, to the Committee, of strategic and 
operational risk registers. 

Outcomes 

• The Committee is aware of the need to continuously strengthen risk 
management arrangements and its activity in the last 12 months has 
established a clearer and stronger strategic direction for risk 
management; 

• Improvements have been identified and actions taken in all areas of the 
“System of Risk Management”; 

• There is increased transparency and focus on the effectiveness of risk 
registers and the management of risks; 

• Through specific training, members of the Committee, are better able to 
challenge officers in the implementation of the Risk Management 
Strategy. 

 

Page 84



7 
 

 

2. Internal Audit 
 
The Committee is charged with responsibility for ensuring that there is an 
effective Internal Audit function.  This to be achieved through the following:- 

(a) the approval of the Internal Audit Annual Plan; 

(b) the consideration of all reports issued by Internal Audit with the 
exception of those on the Pension Fund; 

(c) responsibility for ensuring that there is an adequately resourced 
Internal Audit service; and 

(d) the consideration of performance reports on Internal Audit activity. 

 

Summary of Activity 

• Approved a risk based Audit Plan 2014/15 and Internal Audit Charter; 

• Reviewed the performance of Internal Audit, including the progress in 
completing the Audit Plan, at each meeting; 

• Considered each internal audit report and management responses; 

• Followed up on the implementation of all recommendations agreed 
following audit reviews; 

• Considered an Annual Report by the Head of Internal Audit which 
included the Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion on the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk 
management and control; 

• Considered and approved an option appraisal for the future delivery of 
internal audit service as a shared service with Aberdeenshire Council. 

Outcomes 

• Whilst a small number of reviews within the 2014/15 Audit Plan are 
carried forward into 2015/16, the Plan has been implemented, 
assurances given and, where required, further controls identified; 

• Significant improvement has been seen during the year in the number 
of recommended actions implemented on time. 

 

Page 85



8 
 

3. External Audit 
 

To receive all reports prepared by the Council's External Auditor with the 
exception of those on the Pension Fund. 
 

Summary of Activity 

• Received and reviewed the Council’s external auditor’s (Audit 
Scotland) annual Audit Plan and assessment of significant audit risks. 

• Instigated regular reports from the external auditor on progress in 
implementing the Audit Plan; 

• Considered the Assurance & Improvement Plan for the Council from 
the Local Area Network; 

• Considered a number of specific reports from the external auditor, as 
well as local impact reports from national initiatives; 

• Considered the external auditor’s ISA 260 report to those charged with 
governance; independent report on the financial statements*; and 
annual report to members and the Controller of Audit. 

Outcomes 

• Ensured the discharge of the Council’s responsibilities with regard the 
external audit function; and 

• Improved the Committee’s review of external audit activity throughout 
the year. 

 

*The Committee determined that due to late submission, that a special meeting was required 
to consider the external auditor’s communication of audit matters arising from the financial 
statements. 

 
4. Accounts 

To consider and approve the Council’s Annual Report, Annual Accounts and 
Trading Services Annual Report and Accounts. 

Summary of Activity 

• Considered and approved the Statement of Accounts for the Council; 

• Within the accounts, the Annual Governance Statement was 
specifically considered and approved. 

Outcomes 

• A full set of accounts were completed and signed off. 

 

* The audited accounts formed part of the papers for the special meeting of the Committee 
referred to at 3. above. 

 

Page 86



9 
 

5. Whistleblowing and Other Investigations 
 

Summary of Activity 

• The Committee gave consideration to a petition submitted to the 
Scottish Parliament on the operation of Whistleblowing Schemes in 
Scotland’s public bodies; 

• The Committee heard oral reports on a small number of investigations 
during 2014/15; 

• No whistleblowing reports were received or considered. 

 

 

6. Anti-Fraud 

The approval of an anti-fraud policy and monitoring its implementation; and 

(a) Commissioning investigations to secure value for money in the 
delivery of services. 

(b) To oversee the processes by which services are exposed to 
competition and costs are let, where the Council itself is a bidder 
for the work. 

 

Summary of Activity 

• The Committee commissioned, considered and approved a review 
which recommended that:- 
o the Head of Legal Services revise the Council’s “Policy and 

strategic Response to Fraud, Bribery and Corruption”; 
o that the finalised policy should be formally communicated to staff 

and line management; and 
o a paper summarising Fraud, Bribery, Corruption and 

Whistleblowing will submitted to the Audit Scrutiny and Risk 
Committee on an annual basis. 

 
The implementation of these recommendations is now being 
monitored. 
 

• The Committee also reviewed the design and operating effectiveness 
of controls for the prevention and detection of fraud in housing tenancy 
and the Scottish Welfare Fund; 

• No frauds were reported to the Committee during the year.. 

 

 

Page 87



10 
 

7. Legal Compliance 

To review minuted actions from all main Committees with the exception of the 
Planning Development Management and Licensing Committees (or 
Regulatory Committee) to ensure compliance with legal requirements and 
good practice.  The Committee will not prevent any decision being taken and 
will only review a decision. 
 

Summary of Activity 

• The Committee commissioned and considered, in November 2014, a 
review by internal audit on the Council’s compliance with laws and 
regulations.  It approved recommendations relating to the role of the 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services in reviewing committee 
reports; collaboration between legal Services and other Council 
services; training on compliance with laws and regulations; and 
reporting on fraud, bribery, corruption and whistleblowing. 

Outcomes 

• Compliance with the requirements to consult the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services on all committee reports is now monitored by the 
Corporate Management Team and mitigates the risk of non-compliance 
with laws and regulations. 

 

 

8. Health and Safety 

Approve the Council’s Health & Safety Policy, including its annual review and 
implementation. 

Summary of Activity 

• The Corporate Health and Safety Committee (CHSC) was designated 
as a Sub Committee of the Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee in August 
2014; 

• The minutes of each meeting of the CHSC are now submitted to the 
Committee for consideration; 

• The Committee approved revisions to the constitution of the CHSC in 
September; 

• Commissioned and considered a report establishing assurance 
reporting arrangements for health & safety. 

 

 

Page 88



11 
 

9. Arm’s Length External Organisations (ALEOs) 

The Committee will ensure, through consideration of a quarterly report from 
the governance hub, that each tier 1 Arm’s Length External Organisation has 
an effective system of risk management in place, covering strategy, structure, 
skills, system, staff and shared values.  The Committee will use this to 
determine the level of assurance it can place on the effectiveness of that 
system and its ability to achieve the organisational objectives. 

 

Summary of Activity 

• The Committee has received officers’ updates at each meeting on 
outstanding actions to establish effective ALEO governance 
arrangements; 

• The Committee commissioned and considered a review from internal 
audit into the design and operation of governance arrangements in 
place for the Tier 2 ALEOs: Aberdeen Performing Arts and Aberdeen 
Heat and Power; 

• The Committee considered a report by the external auditor which set 
out the follow up work being undertaken with all Councils in respect of 
the Accounts Commission’s 2011 report ‘Arm’s Length External 
Organisations: Are you getting it right?’. 

 
Outcomes 

• The committee’s remit was revised in order that there would be 
improved consideration of governance issues with respect to ALEOs.  
The Committee has not yet received full assurance that governance of 
ALEOs is effectively controlled.  The Committee is aware of recent 
work undertaken to design and implemented an ALEO Governance 
Hub and is due to consider a further report on this in June 2015. 

 
 

Page 89



12 
 

Membership of the Committee 
 
The Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee is composed of 17 Members from 
across all parties. Members bring with them business experience of audit, risk 
management, health & safety, project management and relevant service and 
local governance knowledge. During the self-evaluation of the committee’s 
effectiveness, Members and officers acknowledged the skills and knowledge 
of the Committee. 
 
During 2014/15 significant improvements were made to the training offered to 
members of the committee.  A new training package was designed and 
delivered to each member of the Committee.  This included:- 
 

- An overview of the role of the Committee and the member’s role in this; 
- The annual accounts process; 
- Internal Audit; 
- Risk Management. 

 
This was very well received by Members and is being rolled out to all 
members of the Council.   Further, and ongoing, training specifically for 
members of the Committee is currently being developed. 
 
Attendance: 

Member Total 
Expected 

Attendances 

Total 
Attendances 

Nominated 
Substitute 
Attended 

Cllr McCaig 
Former Convener 

6 6 N/A 

Cllr Yuill 
Vice Convener 

6 5 None 

Cllr Adam, Lord Provost 
(A&R May to Oct 2014) 

4 3 Cllr Taylor 

Cllr Cameron 6 5 Cllr Cormie 

Cllr Cooney 6 4 Cllr Allan (both) 

Cllr Crockett (AR&S Oct 
14 onwards) 

2 2 N/A 

Cllr Donnelly 6 6 N/A 

Cllr Jackie Dunbar 6 4 Cllr Cormie (both) 

Cllr Graham 6 5 Cllr Jean Morrison 

Cllr Greig 6 6 N/A 

Cllr Lawrence 6 4 Cllr Milne (1) 

Cllr Malik 6 5 Cllr Young 

Cllr May 6 3 Cllr Dickson (2) 
Cllr Kiddie 

Cllr Jean Morrison (AR&S 
Oct 14 onwards) 

2 2 N/A 

Cllr Nathan Morrison 6 5 Cllr Young 

Cllr Noble 6 6 N/A 

Cllr Reynolds 6 4 None 

Page 90



13 
 

Cllr Townson (AR&S Oct 
14 onwards) 

2 2 N/A 

Page 91



14 
 

Officer support to the Committee 
 
The Chief Executive 
 
The Chief Executive has taken a very active role in the development and 
support of the Committee over the last 12 months.  She regularly attends the 
Committee and ensures that the Committee is effectively supported.  
  
The Section 95 Officer 
 
Steve Whyte, provides key support to the Committee. Statute requires every 
local authority to make arrangements for the proper administration of their 
financial affairs and requires one officer to be nominated to take responsibility 
for the administration of those affairs. The Section 95 Officer, with the support 
of his colleagues and external audit, has provided reports and training in 
relation to the Statement of Accounts, external audit activity and financial 
management. They have attended every Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee 
meeting and ensured that the Committee has received the information and 
advice that it needs to do its job effectively. 
 
Chief Internal Auditor 
 
During 2014/15, the Chief Internal Auditor role has been undertaken by David 
Brown of PricewaterhouseCoopers.  David and his colleagues have attended 
each meeting of the Committee to present their reviews, answer members 
questions and provide advice in relation to scrutiny and the regulatory 
framework. 
 
Lead Executive Support 
 
The lead executive support role for the Committee has been performed during 
2014/15 by Martin Murchie.  As well as the general executive support, Martin 
was “client” officer for the contracted internal audit services; took responsibility 
for risk management; and facilitated the development of the Committee 
through the self-evaluation.  
 
External Audit 
 
Audit Scotland are the Council’s appointed external auditors. The appointed 
auditor for the Council is Stephen Boyle and the local contact responsible for 
day to day management of the audit is Anne MacDonald.  Their primary 
responsibility is to give their opinion on whether the Council’s accounts give a 
true and fair view of the Council’s financial transactions. Audit Scotland also 
deliver a targeted programme of risk based reviews and take the lead role in 
the Local Area Network, which determines the level and nature of external 
scrutiny which will be applied to the Council’s services. 

Page 92



15 
 

Attendance: 
 

Officer Total Expected 
Attendances 

Total 
Attendances 

Nominated 
Substitute 
Attended 

Chief Executive 6 5 1 

Steve Whyte 6 6 N/A 

David Brown (PWC) 5 4 1 

Anne Macdonald 6 6 N/A 

Martin Murchie 6 6 N/A 

 

Page 93



16 
 

Effectiveness review through self-evaluation 
 
In April / May 2014, the Committee undertook a facilitated self-evaluation of 
the Committee’s effectiveness in line with Cipfa’s “Audit Committees: Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities and Police”.  This guidance includes a self-
evaluation tool, which was used to assess the Committee’s compliance with 
commonly agreed standards and to identify areas for improvement. 
 
The Committee was found to have areas of strength, but a number of 
improvement actions were identified where the Committee considered best 
practice was not yet in place. 
 
These improvement actions have been reported to each meeting of the 
Committee throughout the year and progress in their implementation 
monitored.  The self-evaluation exercise has now been repeated for 2015.  
Members and officers are agreed that significant progress was made during 
the year and that the Committee is well placed to further improve its 
effectiveness. 
 
The output from the most recent self-evaluation is included as Appendix A. 
 

 

Next year’s focus 
 
The Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee will continue to review and challenge 
the Council’s arrangements with regards to risk management, corporate 
governance, internal and external audit and treasury management throughout 
2015/16. 
 
Amongst the issues which are likely to receive particular focus are:- 
 

• The operation of the new shared internal audit function with 
Aberdeenshire Council; 

• The revised governance arrangements for the Council’s Arm’s Length 
External Organisations; 

• Confirmation of scrutiny arrangements to be implemented with respect 
to integrated health and social care; 

• A revised strategic risk register and operation of the system of risk 
management; 

• The exercise of the Committee’s new responsibilities for Health and 
Safety; 

• A revised strategy for anti-fraud, bribery, corruption and whistleblowing; 

• The outcomes of the recently completed follow-up Best Value Audit, led 
by Audit Scotland.  

 
 
 
 

Page 94



17 
 

APPENDIX A 

Question  Self-
Evaluation 
Method & 
Evidence 

Response 

 

Establishment, Operation & Duties Role & Remit Comments 2015 Status 

1. Does the committee have written terms of reference? Officers  � 
2. Do the terms of reference cover the core functions of a committee as 

identified in the CIPFA guidance? 
Officers Yes.  The core functions are described 

as:- 

• Annual Governance Statement; 

• Internal Audit; 

• Risk Management 

• Assurance Frameworks and 
Assurance Planning 

• Value for Money and Best Value; 

• Countering Fraud and Corruption 

• External Audit; 

• Financial  Reporting; 

• Partnership Governance. 

� 

3. Are the terms of reference approved by the council and reviewed 
periodically? 

Officers These are approved by Council and 
reviewed periodically, but not in line with 
an agreed timetable. 

� 

4. Has the committee been provided with sufficient membership, 
authority and resources to perform its role effectively and 
independently? 

Officer Input  & 
Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

Members agreed that the Committee did 
have the membership, authority and 
resources to perform and role, but raised 
questions on how the Committee would 
be supported to undertake its remit with 
respect to the Council’s relationship with 
ALEOs; with significant shared services 
and nationally based partners, such as 

� 

P
a
g
e
 9

5



18 
 

Police Scotland. 

5. Can the committee access other committees and full council as 
necessary? 

Officer Input  & 
Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

During discussions members agreed 
there was a need for items identified by 
the Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee to 
be routinely and systematically reported 
to appropriate committees. 

� 

6. Does the authority’s annual governance statement include a 
description of the committee’s establishment and activities? 

Officers Yes. This was added in 2014. 
� 

7. Does the committee periodically review its own effectiveness? Officers Yes, through this self-evaluation. � 
8. Does the committee make a formal annual report on its work and 

performance during the year to full council? 
Officers No.  It is recommended that an Annual 

Report is prepared for the year 2014/15. x 

Membership, Induction & Training   
9. Has the membership of the committee been formally agreed and a 

quorum set? 
Officers  

� 

10. Is the chair independent of the executive function? Officers  � 
11. Has the committee chair either previous knowledge of, or received 

appropriate training, on financial and risk management, accounting 
concepts and standards, and the regulatory regime? 

Interview with 
Convenor and 
Vice Convenor 

Training has been given and knowledge 
acquired.  It is acknowledged that this is, 
and requires to be, a continual process. 

� 

12. Are new committee members provided with an appropriate 
induction? 

Officer Input  & 
Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

Training for members of the Committee 
has been significantly increased and 
improved in the last year. 

� 

13. Have all members’ skills and experiences been assessed and 
training given for identified gaps? 

Officer Input  & 
Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

Organisational Development advise that 
1-2-1 sessions have been made 
available for members.  Members’ 
feedback during this self-evaluation 
process was that take up has been slow. 

x 

14. Has each member declared his or her business interests? Officer Input  & 
Interviews with 
Committee 

The Council’s process for declaring 
interests and the advice of officers is 
consistent.  

� 

P
a

g
e
 9

6



19 
 

Members 

15. Are members sufficiently independent of the other key committees 
of the council? 

Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

Members believe that recent training has 
reinforced the distinct role of members of 
the Committee and that behaviours 
reflect this. 

� 

Meetings   
16. Does the committee meet regularly? Officers  � 
17. Do the terms of reference set out the frequency of meetings? Officers No, but an 18 month schedule is 

reported to Council. x 

18. Does the committee calendar meet the authority’s business needs, 
governance needs and the financial calendar? 

Officer Input  & 
Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

Yes.  Greater planning was introduced 
during 2014 to ensure this is systematic. 

� 

19. Are members attending meetings on a regular basis and if not, is 
appropriate action taken? 

Officers There have been 5 meetings and 1 
special meeting. 1 councillor has had 3 
absences. 4 with 2 absences and 6 with 
one. 
 
Number of members absent from 
meetings over past year - 
07/05/2014 – 3 (2 subs provided) 
26/06/2014 – 1 (1 sub provided) 
23/09/2014 – 4 (3 subs provided) 
25/09/2014 – 6 (4 subs provided) 
20/11/2014 – 2 (2 subs provided) 
26/02/2015 – 1 (1 sub provided)  

- 

20. Are meetings free and open without political influences being 
displayed? 

Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

Members reflected that there has been a 
reduction in adversarial behaviours and 
that the Committee acts more as a team. 

� 

21. Does the Chief Financial Officer or deputy attend all meetings? Officers  � 

P
a
g
e
 9

7



20 
 

22. Does the committee have the benefit of attendance of appropriate 
officers at its meetings? 

Officer Input  & 
Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

Mostly.  Improvement has been evident 
during 2014/15, but members identified 
occasions when the appropriate officers 
had not been present. 
 

- 

Internal Control   
23. Does the committee consider the findings of the annual review of the 

effectiveness of the system of internal control including the review of 
the effectiveness of the system of internal audit? 

Officers  

� 

24. Does the committee have responsibility for review and approval of 
the Annual Governance Statement and does it consider it separately 
from the accounts? 

Officers Review, but approval is reserved to 
Council.  In 2014/15 it was reported with 
the accounts.  This is under review. 

x 

25. Does the committee consider how meaningful the Annual 
Governance Statement is? 

Officer Input  & 
Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

Members reflected that meaningful 
consideration had been given to the 
AGS, as part of the Annual Accounts, 
but there is some lack of clarity about 
these as separate documents.  

- 

26. Does the committee satisfy itself that the system of internal control 
has operated effectively throughout the reporting period? 

Officers The Committee receives assurance 
through the statement of internal control 
and the individual audit reviews.  
However, a broad overview of the 
system of internal control and systematic 
review of each aspect of the system is 
pending the completion of an Assurance 
Map by PWC.  

- 

27. Has the committee considered how it integrates with other 
committees that may have responsibility for risk management? 

Officer Input  & 
Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

Yes. The system of risk management 
explores this and members have been 
trained on their role re risk management. 

� 

28. Has the committee or the full council adopted managing the risk of 
fraud – actions to counter fraud and corruption? 

Officers  
� 

P
a

g
e
 9

8



21 
 

29. Does the committee ensure that actions to counter fraud and 
corruption are being implemented? 

Officer Input  & 
Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

There have been relatively recent audits 
on the arrangements for the detection 
and prevention of fraud and agreed 
recommendations are followed up. An 
action outstanding for officers to report 
annually on arrangements for the 
prevention and detection of fraud. 

� 

30. Is the committee made aware of the role of risk management in the 
preparation of the annual internal audit plan? 

Officers  
� 

31. Does the committee review the authority’s strategic risk register at 
least annually? 

Officers  
� 

32. Does the committee monitor how the authority assesses its risk? Officer Input  & 
Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

This is now more systematically reported 
through analysis of the system of risk 
management. 

� 

33. Do the committee’s terms of reference include oversight of the risk 
management process? 

Officers  
� 

Financial Reporting & Regulatory Matters   
34. Is the committee’s role in the consideration and / or approval of the 

annual accounts clearly defined? 
Officers The Committee’s role is to “consider” the 

accounts.  Approval is reserved for 
Council. (This has now changed in 2015) 

x 

35. Does the committee consider specifically: 
• the suitability of accounting policies and treatments 
• major judgements made 
• large write offs 
• changes in accounting treatment 
• the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
• the narrative aspects of reporting 

Officers These are included within the annual 
accounts. 

� 

36. Is a committee meeting scheduled to receive the external auditor’s 
report to those charged with governance including a discussion of 
proposed adjustments to the accounts and other issues arising from 

Officers The Committee meetings are scheduled 
for this purpose.  The report to “those 
charged with governance” is included in 

� 

P
a
g
e
 9

9



22 
 

the audit? the reporting schedule. 

37. Does the committee review management’s letter of representation? Officers This was done in 2014/15. � 
38. Does the committee annually review the accounting policies of the 

authority? 
Officers Not explicitly, although these are 

referred to within reporting on the annual 
accounts and members have the 
opportunity to ask questions. 

- 

39. Does the committee gain an understanding of management’s 
procedures for preparing the authority’s annual accounts? 

Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

The Corporate Accounting Manager 
reports to the Committee advising of the 
arrangements for preparation of the 
accounts.  In addition, training has been 
held for all Committee members during 
2014/15. 

� 

40. Does the committee have a mechanism to keep it aware of topical 
legal and regulatory issues, for example by receiving circulars and 
through training? 

Officer Input  & 
Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

Nationally reports are now reported 
when published. The Information Bulletin 
exists for other issues.  Whilst this is not 
actively used, members did not feel that 
significant issues were not being 
reported. 

- 

Internal Audit   
41. Does the committee approve annually and in detail the internal audit 

strategic and annual plans including consideration of whether the 
scope of internal audit work addresses the authority’s significant 
risks? 

Officers  

� 

42. Does internal audit have an appropriate reporting line to the audit 
committee? 

Officers  
� 

43. Does the committee receive periodic reports from the internal audit 
service including an annual report from the head of internal audit? 

Officers  
� 

44. Are follow up audits by internal audit monitored by the committee 
and does the audit committee consider the adequacy of 
implementation of recommendations? 

Officers Follow up on agreed recommendations 
are undertaken and reported by Internal 
Audit.  

� 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
0



23 
 

45. Does the committee hold periodic private discussions with the head 
of internal audit? 

Officers Yes, this was done for the first time 
during 2014/15. 

� 

46. Is there appropriate co-operation between internal and external 
auditors? 

Officers Both the Head of Internal Audit and the 
lead auditor from External Audit reported 
that there was appropriate co-operation. 
As there are new arrangements for 
Internal Audit during 2014/15 this will be 
kept under review.  

� 

47. Does the committee review the adequacy of internal audit staffing 
and other resources? 

Officers During 2014/15 the Committee receives 
performance metrics which cover 
aspects of the internal audit process.  
This will require to be reviewed for the 
new Internal Audit arrangements. 

� 

48. Has the committee evaluated whether its internal audit service 
complies with the CIPFA code of practice for internal audit in local 
government in the UK? 

Officers The Committee has not formally 
considered this, but External audit give 
assurances on internal audit each year 
as part of their annual audit plan and 
annual audit report. 

x 

49. Are internal audit performance measures monitored by the audit 
committee? 

Officers Yes, from February 2014 
� 

50. Has the audit committee considered the information it wishes to 
receive from internal audit? 

Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

Members expressed a desire to meet in 
early course with the Head of Internal 
Audit to discuss the reporting needs of 
the Committee. 

� 

External Audit   
51. Do the external auditors present and discuss their audit plans and 

strategy with the committee (recognising the statutory duties of 
external audit)? 

Officers  

� 

52. Does the committee hold private periodic discussions with the 
external auditor? 

Officers Planned for June 2015. 
� 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
1



24 
 

53. Does the committee review the external auditor’s annual report to 
those charged with governance? 

Officers  
� 

54. Does the committee ensure that officers are monitoring action taken 
to implement external audit recommendations? 

Officers During 2014/15 all recommendations 
were included within the follow up 
monitoring undertaken through Internal 
Audit. 

� 

55. Are reports on the work of external audit and other inspection 
agencies presented to audit committee? 

Officers This was put in place during 2014/15. 
� 

56. Does the committee assess the performance of external audit? Officers Performance reporting was requested in 
February 2014, and External Audit now 
report regularly on the status of their 
agreed annual plan.  In addition, Audit 
Scotland request councils to complete a 
questionnaire on the performance of the 
auditor every 2-3 years.  This is brought 
together for all LG auditors and the 
outcome shared with each council. 

- 

57. Does the committee consider and approve the external audit fee? Officers  � 
Administration Agenda Management   
58. Does the committee have a designated secretary from committee / 

member services? 
Officers  

� 

59. Are agenda papers circulated in advance of meetings to allow 
adequate preparation by committee members? 

Officers  
� 

60. Are outline agendas planned one year ahead to cover issues on a 
cyclical basis? 

Officers Agendas are now planned 3 cycles in 
advance.  Outstanding issues remain in 
the business statement until discharged. 

- 

61. Are inputs for any other business formally requested in advance 
from committee members, relevant officers, internal and external 
audit? 

Officers There is no “Other Business” mechanism 
other than raising a motion.  However, 
an informal session is now held at the 
conclusion of each Committee meeting 

- 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
2



25 
 

for members and officers to raise any 
issues which are pertinent to the 
business of the committee. 

Papers   
62. Do reports to the committee communicate relevant information at 

the right frequency, time and in a format that is effective? 
Interviews with 
Committee 
Members 

Members were, on the whole, content 
but there was some discussion on the 
length of some reports. 

� 

63. Does the committee issue guidelines and / or a proforma concerning 
the format and content of the papers to be presented? 

Officers Both internal and external audit have 
their own formats. � 

Actions Arising   
64. Are minutes prepared and circulated promptly to the appropriate 

people? 
Officers  

� 

65. Is a report on matters arising made and minuted at the committee’s 
next meeting? 

Officers  
� 

66. Do action points indicate who is to perform what and by when? Officers Whilst the minute does not always 
include dates, the Business Statement 
does. 

� 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
3



26 
 

APPENDIX B 
 
Title of Report Lead Officer 7th May 

2014 

26th Jun 

2014 

23rd Sept 

2014 

25th Sept 

2014 

(Special) 

20th Nov 

2015 

26th Feb 

2015 

Risk Management 

Risk Management Strategy 2015 N Buck      � 

System of Risk Management (Skills) N Buck �      

System of Risk Management (System) N Buck  �     

System of Risk Management (Structure) N Buck   �    

System of Risk Management (Strategy) N Buck      � 

Forward Electronic Registration – Incident Report N Buck   �    

Risk Register – Social Care & Wellbeing L Taylor     �  

Risk Register – Education & Children’s Services G Gorman      � 

Internal Audit 

Supply & Delivery of Internal Audit Services M Murchie   �  � � 

Internal Audit Progress Report & Performance D Brown � � �  � � 

Internal Audit Follow Up D Brown � � �  � � 

Internal Audit Annual Report D Brown  �     

Internal Audit Plan 2015/16 D Hughes      � 

Internal Audit Charter D Hughes      � 

ICT Third Party Management D Brown �      

ICT – Project Nevis D Brown / 

P Fleming 

� �     

ICT Governance D Brown  �     

ICT Security D Brown  � �    

ICT Disaster Recovery D Brown      � 

ICT Asset Management D Brown      � 

Regeneration D Brown /  

P Leonard 

� �     

Continuous Financial Controls D Brown  �    � 

Road Reinstatement by Utility Contracts D Brown  �     

Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route D Brown  �     

Private Sector Housing D Brown  �     

Building Services – Phase 2 Follow Up D Brown  �     

Community Centres D Brown  �     

Stakeholder Engagement & Consultation D Brown  �     

Sourcing & Management of Agency Staff D Brown  �     

P
a
g

e
 1

0
4



27 
 

Social Care & Wellbeing Contracts L Taylor  �     

Self Directed Support D Brown   �    

Complaints Handling Procedure D Brown   �    

Structures, Flooding & Coastal Risk Management D Brown   �    

School Councils D Brown   �    

Car Parking D Brown   �    

Compliance with Public Records Act D Brown     �  

Compliance with Laws & Regulations D Brown     �  

Fraud Governance  - Housing Tenancy & Scottish Welfare 

Fund 

D Brown / 

W Connell 

    � � 

Transport Contracts Within Education & Social Work D Brown     �  

Procurement Controls Outwith Pecos D Brown     �  

Devolved School Management – Phase 1 D Brown     �  

Care First Budgetary Control Process D Brown      � 

Care Users – Service Reviews D Brown      � 

ALEO Tier 2 Review D Brown      � 

Aberdeen International Youth Festival D Brown      � 

External Audit (Non-Accounts) 

Assurance & Improvement Plan Update S Boyle � � �    

External Audit Performance Indicators  A MacDonald  �     

External Audit Progress & Performance A MacDonald   �  � � 

Arm’s Length External Organisations – Targeted Follow Up A MacDonald  �     

Major Capital Investment in Councils A MacDonald      � 

Other External Inspection & Regulation 

Information Commissioner – Follow Up P Fleming �* � �  �  

Office of the Surveillance Commissioner – Findings and 

Action Plan 

F Smith   �    

Transport Commissioner – Fleet Follow Up M Riley      �* 

Annual Accounts 

Internal Controls Management Letter & Interim Report on 

the 2013/14 Audit 

A MacDonald  �     

Draft Statement of Accounts & Annual Governance 

Statement 

J Belford  �*     

Communication of Audit Matters to Those Charged with 

Governance in Terms of ISA 260 

A MacDonald   �* �   

Report on the 2013/14 Audit S Boyle     �  

Annual Accounts 2014/15 – Action Plan and Key Dates 

 

J Belford      � 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
5



28 
 

Audit Scotland – National Reports 

Managing Early Departures from the Scottish Public Sector M Murchie �      

Welfare Reform Update M Murchie �      

Maintaining Scotland’s Roads M Murchie �      

Housing in Scotland M Murchie �      

Charging for Services: Are You Getting it Right? M Murchie �      

Local Government Overview M Murchie  �     

Modern Apprenticeships M Murchie  �     

Procurement in Councils M Murchie  �     

Reshaping Care M Murchie  �     

Self Directed Support M Murchie   �    

School Education M Murchie   �    

National Fraud Initiative M Murchie   �    

Community Planning – Turning Ambition into Action M Murchie      � 

Health & Safety 

Corporate Health & Safety Committee Reporting 

Arrangements 

K Rennie     � � 

Minute of Meeting of the Corporate Health & Safety 

Committee of 29th August 2014 

K Rennie      � 

Health & Safety Assurance M Agnew      � 

Fraud, Corruption, Bribery and Whistleblowing 

Matters Under Investigation M Murchie �      

Whistleblowing Policy – Scottish Parliament Petition R MacBeath     �  

Committee Development 

Elected Member Development A McQuarrie / K 

Rennie 

� � �  � � 

Self-Evaluation of the Committee M Murchie � � �  � � 

Other Reports 

Service & Corporate Induction A McQuarrie  �     

Data Protection Monitoring F Smith   �  � � 

 
* Late paper. 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
6



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\3\AI00032304\$vp2qz1hu.doc 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  AUDIT, RISK & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
DATE  25TH JUNE 2015 
 
INTERIM DIRECTOR  ANGELA SCOTT 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  DATA PROTECTION REPORTING – 

JANUARY – MARCH 2015 
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG/15/82 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED YES 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide an overview for quarter 4 
(January – March 2015) to Committee of the following areas: 

  
a) Aberdeen City Council Subject Access Request statistics 
b) Data Breaches and Near Misses 
c) Data Protection training 
d) General Update 

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
It is recommended that the Committee note the report. 
 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial implications at this time. 
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
 

a) Aberdeen City Council Subject Access Request Statistics 
 
A recommendation of the Information Commissioners Office (ICO) 
inspection of the Council’s compliance with Data Protection legislation 
was that the number of Subject Access Requests (SARs) and Third 

Agenda Item 4.4

Page 107



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\3\AI00032304\$vp2qz1hu.doc 

Party Requests received by the Council be recorded and reported to 
the appropriate Committee.  As previously advised, these figures will 
be reported to the Audit & Risk Committee on a quarterly basis.  The 
figures for the latest complete quarter, January – March 2015, are 
detailed below.   
 
In the reporting quarter Aberdeen City Council received 60 Subject 
Access Requests and 8 requests from 3rd parties for personal data held 
by it. 
 
By Service: 
 
Service Subject Access 

Requests 
3rd Party Requests 

Office of Chief Executive 
 

0 0 

Communities, Housing & 
Infrastructure 

3 6 

Corporate Governance 
 

7 0 

Education & Children’s 
Services 

50 2 

TOTAL 
 

60 8 

 
 
In the quarter, 59 requests have been responded to.  The requirement 
of the Data Protection Act is that requests are responded to within 40 
days.  52 requests were responded to within 40 days in the reporting 
quarter, some 91% of requests responded to.   
 
The Council can charge a fee, maximum of £10, prior to responding to 
a Subject Access Request.  In the reporting period fees were charged 
in respect of 6 requests. 
 

b) Data Breaches and Near Misses  
 
In addition to the above, the Council has an established procedure for 
the recording and reporting of data protection breaches.  This 
information is reported to Members in order to provide an overview of 
the Council’s performance in relation to keeping personal data secure. 
 
In the reporting quarter the following breaches occurred: 
 
 
By Service: 
 

Service 
 

Number of Breaches 

Office of Chief Executive 
 

0 

Page 108



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\3\AI00032304\$vp2qz1hu.doc 

Communities, Housing & 
Infrastructure 

1 

Corporate Governance 
 

1 

Education & Children’s Services 
 

4 

TOTAL 
 

6 

 
By Breach Type: 
 
Type of Breach 
 

Number of Breaches 

Human Error 
 

3 

Unauthorised Disclosure 
 

3 

Unauthorised Access 
 

0 

Loss 
 

0 

Theft 
 

0 

Other 
 

0 

TOTAL 
 

6 

 
 
Data Protection breaches are dealt with in a way which is dependent 
on the nature and potential severity of the breach.  Where a breach 
involves or potentially involves a large volume of personal data or 
sensitive personal data which is likely to have an adverse impact of the 
data subject, then more often than not, the Council as Data Controller 
will ‘self-report’ the breach to the ICO.  
 
During the reporting period none of the breaches were such that a self-
report to the ICO was required.   
 
The regular reports to this Committee will also provide an opportunity to 
update Members in relation to any significant breaches, including those 
where the Council has ‘self-reported’.  It will also allow for an update in 
respect of previous significant breaches, particularly where there may 
have been media coverage.  
 
There has been one determination by the ICO of outstanding breach 
investigations during the reporting period.  This determination was that 
regulatory action was not necessary and one recommendation was 
made.  This recommendation related to the need to ensure that, in any 
future mass mailing campaign, sufficient testing is undertaken to 

Page 109



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\3\AI00032304\$vp2qz1hu.doc 

account for human error.  An update on the Zone detailing this 
requirement was published on 5th May 2015. 
 
Proposals for options for the recording and reporting of Data Protection 
Near Misses are to be discussed with Service Information Management 
Liaison Officers (IMLO’s) in late June and thereafter a confirmed 
process for this will be introduced. 
 
 

c) Data Protection Training 
 

As previously reported to Committee, a review of induction Data 
Protection has been undertaken.  Data Protection induction training is 
mandatory for all staff and the content of the training has been 
substantially redesigned in order to focus on the responsibilities and 
expectations for individual staff members rather than on the detail 
statutory requirements of the Data Protection Act.    
 
Following the conclusion of this review, the revised training package 
will now require to be formatted into both on-line and hard copy 
learning materials.  It is envisaged that this will be completed by the 
end of the Summer period and thereafter that the revised training will 
be available for staff in the early Autumn of 2015.   
 
As previously reported to Committee, a further aspect which requires to 
be implemented is a process for monitoring completion of the Induction 
Training give it is a mandatory requirement for all staff.  It has not yet 
been possible to seek the views of CMT on options for doing so, but 
this will be progressed once the Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
is in post.  
 

 
d) Complaints about Data Handling  

 
A further aspect of the Data Protection responsibilities of Aberdeen City 
Council is responding to any complaints received from data subjects 
relating to the manner in which the Council processes their personal 
data. 
 
The process for handling complaints is two-fold.  At the first stage, 
when the complaint is raised with the Council, the organisation will 
seek to respond to the complainant and resolve the concern.  This may 
be by providing information relating to the manner in which personal 
data has been processed or by identifying and rectifying any 
weakness. 
 
The second stage, if a complainant remains dissatisfied is where a 
data subject can make a complaint to the ICO.  The ICO will invite the 
Council to detail its handling of the issue under consideration and 
thereafter investigate such complaints and determine whether or not it 
is likely that the Council has fulfilled its obligations and duties under the 
Data Protection Act. 

Page 110



 

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\0\3\AI00032304\$vp2qz1hu.doc 

 
If the Council has failed in its obligations and duties, the ICO can 
require the organisation to take action to mitigate any risk. 
 
In the reporting period, 1 complaint was received by the Data Controller 
from a data subject.   
 
Further, in the reporting period, there have been no notifications from 
the ICO that any complaints about Aberdeen City Council had been 
received in its office.   

 
  
6. IMPACT 

 
None 
 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

Adherence to the Council’s policies and procedures for the handling of 
personal data is essential to the management of the risk associated 
with the management of information.  Strong monitoring of the 
effectiveness of these arrangements is necessary in order to identify 
any areas of concern and implement appropriate arrangements to 
mitigate this.   
 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
None  
 

 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Fiona Smith, Governance Support Officer 
 
E-mail: fismith@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
Telephone:  01224 522516 

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE Audit, Risk and Scrutiny 
 
DATE  25 June 2015 
 
DIRECTOR  Angela Scott 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Corporate Governance Risk Register 
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG/15/80 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED         Yes 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To present the Committee with a register of risks with potential to impact the 
operation of the functions and services carried out by the Corporate 
Governance Service.   
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
The Committee are asked to: 

 
(i) Note the content of the Corporate Governance Risk Register and the 

status of controls and mitigation in place to manage risks. (Appendix 1) 
(ii) Note that the content of the register will be kept under regular review 

by the service’s Senior Management Team. 
(iii) Note that the Risk Register will be reported twice each year to the 

Finance Policy and Resources Committee as part of the regular service 
performance reporting process.  
  

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no specific financial implications arising from the report.  However, 
the proper identification, assessment and management of risks impacting our 
operations reduces both the likelihood of financial loss occurring and the 
impact of reducing resources on the delivery of essential services to 
communities.    
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no other implications specifically arising from this report.  
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

Agenda Item 5.1

Page 113



 

 

2 

The Committee resolved on 23 September 2014 to receive at successive 
meetings risk registers reflecting the identification and assessment of 
operational risks impacting services across the new Council structure.  The 
Corporate Governance Risk Register is the last in the current series of reports 
to be presented to the Committee in support of that resolution. 
 
The Corporate Governance service directs a broad range of strategic 
functions including finance, legal and democratic, I.T. procurement and 
human resources, on behalf of the Council.  The directorate also manages a 
number of essential services to our citizens and communities including 
customer services, the Regional Communications Centre and the delivery of 
the revenues and benefits services. 
 
A comprehensive engagement and consultation process has taken place with 
senior managers across Corporate Governance in order to effectively identify 
and capture the breadth of risks with potential to impact those functions and 
services.  
 

6. IMPACT 
 
Corporate – Risk Registers form an important component of the system of risk 
management, notably in the structure of the system.  The system of risk 
management impacts on all aspects of decision making across the Council.   
The Local Code of Corporate Governance tasks councils with six principles.  
Principle 4 requires that councils maintain transparent, informed decision-
making which is subject to effective scrutiny and the management of risk.  The 
various components of the system are regularly reported to the Committee 
with details of current practice and planned improvements. 
 
Public – The report is designed for information purposes and no Equalities 
and Human Rights Impact Assessment has been prepared.   
 
Services are required to carry out regular reporting of performance to 
committees.  Corporate Governance undertakes to report our own 
performance to the Finance Policy and Resources Committee on a quarterly 
basis, along with a biannual service risk register update.  In addition, the 
Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee will receive service risk registers on a 
rolling cycle, as part of the Council’s overall risk management assurance 
framework.  The Strategic Risk Register represents the highest level of 
assessment of risk to the Council and will be reported to the Committee 
annually. 
 
 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 
The report details information on the Corporate Governance Service’s risk 
profile. 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Page 114



 

 

3 

 
None 

 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Neil Buck 
Performance and Risk Manager 
nebuck@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 522408 
 

10. REPORT 
 
10.1 The Risk Management Strategy which was approved by the Committee in 

February, requires that all services prepare and maintain a register of 
operational risks which identify both threats and opportunities with the 
potential to present and impact on the management of functions and delivery 
of services.  Each identified risk will include a description, named owner, and 
an evaluation of causes, impact and likelihood of occurrence.  Risks are 
managed through the application of controls and mitigation which are 
designed to bring threats to a tolerable level and in the case of opportunity 
risks, to enhance the likelihood and impact of occurrence. 

 
10.2 The risks contained in the appended register have been identified and 

assessed through analysis of the service’s functions, services and 
dependencies.  Some risks detail the potential impacts of threats which could 
arise in any area of the Directorate such as workforce planning, health and 
safety, or business continuity.  Other risks reflect specific threats to the 
effectiveness of our business, including the delivery of certain IT functions. 

 
10.3 The component teams of Corporate Governance will maintain registers of 

risks which reflect operations at lower levels of business than those reflected 
in the appended service risk register.   These risks will be subject to a similar 
review regime at the team level.  Where a risk at this level appears to be 
developing and a threat may be realised, managers may escalate such risks 
to the service register where a higher level of control can be authorised.  
Similarly, when threats recede as part of this process, the risk may be de-
escalated to the team level.  

 
10.4 The register is a dynamic document and will be subject to regular review.  As 

risks become controlled, they will be removed from the active review regime 
and new or emerging risks will be added, to ensure the service continues to 
monitor the operational environment and identify and manage risks to our 
success. 

  

Page 115



 

 

4 

Appendix 1 

Corporate Governance Operational Risk Register  

 

 
 

Title Current Risk Profile 

Corporate Governance Operational 
Risk Profile 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

1
6



 

 

5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Title Risk Factors Potential Impact Current Risk Matrix Residual Risk Matrix 

The absence of a statutory duty to hold Business 
Continuity Plans compromises the quality and 
reliability of the Plans and the testing of them. 

Inadequate disaster recovery planning 
and business continuity arrangements 
across the range of Corporate 
Governance business critical 
functions.  
Business Continuity Plans are not 
tested regularly or subject to timely 
review  

The Service suffers a breakdown in 
key systems (IT, Financial, HR, 
Legal and Commercial and 
Procurement.  
Potential for serious harm / loss of 
life to members of the community.  
Inability to collect income or make 
required payments.  
Litigation.  
Prosecution.  
Reputational damage  

  

Drivers 

Business Continuity Management is not given sufficient 
priority across the directorate’s management structure in 
service and post incident or disruption planning.  

Description 
The Council is bound by legislation and in its role as a corporate body as a public service provider. Effective 
disaster recovery and business continuity arrangements are essential to ensure business as usual is possible at 
the earliest point following a critical incident  

Low Very Low 

Internal Controls 
Internal audit arrangements covering business continuity planning.  
BCPs are now in place regarding all of the Directorate's critical functions.  

Very serious Very serious 

Mitigating Actions 

The Council has a Business Continuity Policy document. This also contains a template to assist Services to produce Business Continuity Plans for critical functions.  
 
Critical functions have been agreed by CMT based on one or more of the following criteria being met.  
Functions which have a significant impact on:  
 
1. Human welfare or the environment  
2. The finances of the Council  
3. The Council's statutory obligations  
4. The Council's reputation  
5. The Council's ability to respond to emergencies  
 
Rigorous testing regime to support continuing fit for purpose.  
Non-critical BCPs to be reported to Committee and review regime for critical BCPs to be devised.  

Assigned To Martin Allan Latest Note Date 20 May 2015 Latest Note 

Risk re-scoped and 
incorporated into revised 

CG Operational Risk 
Register 20/05/15.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
7



 

 

6 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Title Risk Factors Potential Impact Current Risk Matrix Residual Risk Matrix 

Absence of effectively maintained and managed 
Contracts Register 

Absence of effectively maintained 
contracts register.  
Contract expirations not properly 
managed.  
Poor contractor relationship 
management.  
Poor contract management skills.  
Absence of effective health 
surveillance scrutiny.  

Costs become prohibitive.  
Emergency sourcing of additional 
support required.  
Inability to support essential 
services.  
Censure by regulatory bodies.  
Reduced pool of tenderers.  

  

Drivers 

Insufficient resources are directed at the preparation and 
maintenance of a contracts register. Failure to understand 
the significance for effective contracts management. 

Description 
Significant proportion of the service's resources are bound up in contractual activity. The service and Council are 
at risk of exposure to financial loss, legal challenge and reputational damage.  

Significant Very Low 

Internal Controls 
Contract Register regularly updated. Standing Orders for Contracts & Procurement in place with defined 
authorisation levels.  

Very serious Very serious 

Mitigating Actions 
Contracts Register being updated for completion 15/16. Updated Procurement Standing Orders, Guidance Documents and Templates, which will include contract 
management procedures. Additional training for all identified staff involved in Procurement at any level within Services. (PACE, Procurement Achieving Commercial 
Excellence – programme of work to introduce a hybrid Business Model for Procurement).  

Assigned To Craig Innes Latest Note Date 21 May 2015 Latest Note 
Risk identified for 
Operational Risk Register 
May 2015.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

1
8



 

 

7 

 
 
 
 
 

Title Risk Factors Potential Impact Current Risk Matrix Residual Risk Matrix 

Risk that financial stewardship is not robust or 
organisational transformation and innovation is 
hindered by finance capability. 

Skills deficit.  
Workforce attrition.  
Inability to support transformational 
change.  
The Finance Service does not 
innovate or adapt to the needs of new 
organisational requirements.  
Skills sets do not meet new 
requirements.  
Organisational resistance to 
transformation.  

The service and organisation does 
not meet legislative and 
stewardship requirements and 
customer needs.  
The ability of the service to meet 
its objectives is negatively 
impacted.  

  

Drivers 

Inadequate controls or systems to enable finance to meet 
stewardship requirements and be responsive to external 
change impacting the organisation.  

Description 
Service failures can lead to inability to provide core services and to carry out key functions. The Council is 
undergoing a programme of transformational change. Finance needs to provide services adequate to support 
those changes.  

Low Very Low 

Internal Controls Internal audit of key financial systems.  Serious Serious 

Mitigating Actions 
Reinforce performance management and resource management.  
Implement workforce planning requirements for core finance functions.  

Assigned To Steve Whyte Latest Note Date 28 May 2015 Latest Note 

Residual risk added in as 
very low - serious per J 
Hashmi which means the 
risk has reached residual 
status..  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
9



 

 

8 

 
 
 
 

Title Risk Factors Potential Impact Current Risk Matrix Residual Risk Matrix 

Risk that essential overnight system back-up 
arrangements are unsuccessful. 

Poor internal and external ICT 
processes.  
Driver: No back up is available or 
tested.  

Systems failure  

  

Drivers 

Lack of understanding or appreciation of the cost of back up 
failure.  Insufficient resources applied to securing and testing 
fit for purpose back up arrangements. 

Description Serious impact on the delivery of services and core functions if failure occurs.  Very Low Almost Impossible 

Internal Controls Robust back-up monitoring arrangements  Ad-hoc test recovery of systems  Very serious Very serious 

Mitigating Actions 
Full audit of backup arrangements for all systems.  
Annual test restore of critical systems.  
Test recoveries of specific Novell storage.  

Assigned To Sandra Massey Latest Note Date 10 Mar 2015 Latest Note 
Mitigating actions 
reviewed with risk owner 
6/3/15  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

2
0



 

 

9 

 
 
 
 
 

Title Risk Factors Potential Impact Current Risk Matrix Residual Risk Matrix 

Risk of major business IT systems failure Virus attack - inadequate protection 
in terms of firewall and other barriers 
to the internal systems.  
Systems are unsupported.  
Systems are no longer fit for purpose. 
Risk of systems failure and 
communication network failure due to 
power fluctuations.  
Loss of data due to inadequate 
backup facility or procedure.  
poorly trained, poorly skilled IT staff 
that lack sufficient knowledge.  
Poor IT management practices and 
lack of proper processes for storage 
and and back up of data in all areas 
of business.  

Lack of facilities and keeping IT 
systems in poor environments.  

Poor customer experience.  
Poor staff experience.  
Poor use of resources.  
Customers are unable to access 
the customer service centre.  
Staff may not get paid on time.  
The Council is unable to complete 
its financial duties or manage its 
budget.  
Suppliers may not get paid.  
The Council is unable to manage 
its contracts and suppliers.  
The Council is unable to manage 
its workforce.  

  

Drivers 

Absence of a Council wide IT strategy and supporting 
governance resources and expertise to manage the full life 
cycle of IT systems.  
 

 

Description 
Corporate Governance business systems are critical to the provision of services and the performance of statutory 
functions.  

Low Very Low 

Internal Controls 

Robust and customer-led governance structures.  
Adoption of an enterprise approach to the whole IT eco-system.  
A full contracts register with a forward plan of contract expiry and renewal.  
Business continuity plans and disaster recovering.  
Customer-led business systems reviews.  
Adoption of best practice security controls.  
Training and development for all staff in IT operations.  

Very serious Very serious 

Mitigating Actions 

Understanding the customer needs and reviewing these systematically.  
Ensure total cost of ownership.  
Sound contract and supplier management.  
Best practice change controls.  
Best practice life cycle management.  

Assigned To Simon Haston Latest Note Date 10 Mar 2015 Latest Note 

Risk scoped to replace 
previous systems failure 
risk around poor security 
and operational 
arrangements.  

 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
1



 

 

10 

Title Risk Factors Potential Impact Current Risk Matrix Residual Risk Matrix 

Risk that software licensing agreements are 
infringed 

Driver: No resources or controls are 
in place to manage software.  
 
Poor or inadequate monitoring of 
license agreements.  
Single point of failure re "Software 
Librarian".  

Financial implications  
Poor relationship with providers  
Legal challenge  

  

Drivers 

Failure to appreciate the necessity for software management 
controls to prevent exposure to legal challenge and financial 
penalty. 

Description Monitoring software licensing compliance offers protection for continuing effective service delivery. Very Low Almost Impossible 

Internal Controls 
Robust monitoring of licensing arrangements.  Good liaison with software providers. Dedicated role of Software 
Librarian to ensure accurate record keeping of software licences.  

Serious Serious 

Mitigating Actions 

Desktop Lockdown controls to block unauthorised downloading of unlicensed software.  
Integrate purchasing records with licencing records within Asset Register.  
Review of licenses being undertaken as laptops built for Smarter Working.  
ICT Management to review contingency for single point of failure.  
Procurement of the integrated service management tool.  

Assigned To Sandra Massey Latest Note Date 04 Jul 2014 Latest Note 

Software Librarian in 
post. This mitigating 
action moved to internal 
control.  

 

P
a
g

e
 1

2
2



 

 

11 

 

 

Title 
Risk Factors Potential Impact Current Risk Matrix Residual Risk Matrix 

Risk that transition to new data centre leads to 
failure of Council systems. 

Resources not available at the tight 
time to manage transition effectively.  

Operational timescales for 
successor datacentre 
implementation are impacted 
negatively.  

  

Drivers 

No resources or programme management approaches are 
adopted.  
 

Description Risk refers to the transition ATOS provision to new datacentre provision following the end of the ATOS contract.  Low Almost Impossible 

Internal Controls 
ATOS have allocated a transition manager and issued a draft exit plan for ACC review and approval by end of 
June.  

Very serious Very serious 

Mitigating Actions 
A Business Case to resource transition has been issued for consultation with the final date for response 28/5/15. Following assimilation of the response this will now be 
progressed.  

Assigned To Simon Haston Latest Note Date 28 May 2015 Latest Note 
Risk mitigating actions , 
controls and notes 
updated 28/5/15.  

P
a
g
e
 1

2
3



 

 

12 

 
 

Title Risk Factors Potential Impact Current Risk Matrix Residual Risk Matrix 

Risk that workforce planning, recruitment, 
retention, training and development do not 
support the improvement agenda 

Inadequate arrangements for 
linking workforce planning to 
business need.  
Knowledge capture processes not 
in place or implemented.  
Recruitment processes inadequate 
in terms of skills match.  
Training approaches not matched 
to business need.  
Poor employee development 
opportunities.  

Poor service delivery 
standards.  
Inability to retain key staff.  
Excessive use of agency / 
consultancy resources.  
Council not seen as employer 
of first choice.  

  

Drivers 

Poor workforce planning leaves the service exposed to 
under-resourced delivery arrangements and inability to 
forward plan. 

Description 
Workforce planning impacts directly across the service with notable dependencies in Customer Services 
Operations, IT, Finance (inc Revenues and Benefits), Legal & Democratic Services, Human Resources 
and Commercial and Procurement.  

Low Very Low 

Internal Controls 
PBB Workforce Stream;  
Workforce Planning Strategy.  
Service Workforce Plans  

Serious Serious 

Mitigating 
Actions 

Effective implementation of the Workforce Plan across all parts of the Service.  

Assigned To Ewan Sutherland Latest Note Date 21 May 2015 Latest Note 
Risk included in 
operational risk 
register May 2015.  

 

 

P
a
g

e
 1

2
4



 

 

13 

 

Title Risk Factors Potential Impact Current Risk Matrix Residual Risk Matrix 

Risk that Health, Safety and Wellbeing 
incidents including cases of ill health, are not 
recorded, reported, reviewed and monitored 
and that areas for improvement are not 
identified and implemented. 

Incidents and work related ill 
health are not reported.  
Identified improvements resulting 
from lessons learned are not 
identified and implemented.  
The electronic accident / incident / 
absence recording and reporting 
system is not comprehensively 
used.  
Realistic targets are not set.  
Actions to prevent a reoccurrence 
are not implemented.  
Compliance is not monitored.  
The 'Plan, Do, Check, Act' 
approach based on known and 

potential significant risk is not 
adopted.  

Non – compliance with HSE 
legislation / guidance, 
initiatives and corporate Health 
and Safety policy.  
Increased costs to the 
organisation relating to 
employee absence.  
Criminal prosecution resulting 
in fines or imprisonment.  
Reputational damage.  
Compensation claims  
Attendance levels impacting 
service delivery.  

  
Drivers 

Failure to conduct post incident evaluations and to 
embed incident and health surveillance results in 
inability to develop improvements and minimise risk 
exposure. 

Description 
To improve the health, Safety and Wellbeing culture, it is important that available recording, reporting 
and monitoring mechanisms are enforced and that post incident activity includes lessons learnt and 
effective improvements.  

Significant Very Low 

Internal Controls Audit of H&S processes effectiveness - management assurance.  Serious Serious 

Mitigating 
Actions 

Investigation of all accidents and incidents, recording, reporting, reviewing and learning lessons.  
Review of related risk assessments.  
Discuss findings and identified improvements at Corporate Health and Safety Committee.  
Use of and further development of of electronic reporting and recording accident system to assist in analysis and ability to access days lost and related 
costs.  
H&S trends highlighted at Directorate H&S Group and at SMT.  
Processes and compliance monitored through audits and management assurance.  
Implementation of Maximising Attendance Improvement Plan for Corporate Governance including implementation of target reduction, evidenced 
through performance indicators.  
Creating a Directorate that is 'H&S risk intelligent.'  

Assigned To Mary Agnew Latest Note Date 29 May 2015 Latest Note 
Risk re-scoped in 
discussion with risk 
owner.  

 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
5



 

 

14 

 

Title Risk Factors Potential Impact Current Risk Matrix Residual Risk Matrix 

Risk of the Council losing its representation 
within National Collective Bargaining 
arrangements through the SLGP not being 
able to secure an agreement with COSLA on 
these arrangements. 

Negotiations between the SLGP 
and COSLA over the cost of 
participation in collective 
bargaining are not successful.  

The Council experiences loss of 
influence in national collective 
bargaining, leading to exposure 
to potentially disadvantageous 
terms in national pay awards.  

  
Drivers 

Poor negotiation between the SLGP and COSLA 
exposes the Council to high cost or loss of influence in 
collective bargaining. 

Description 

The Council ended its membership of COSLA on 31 March 2015. The risk reflects that that we are 
currently bound contractually in collective bargaining and require to ensure the new arrangements 
through the SLGP retain a negotiating place in national collective bargaining so that the Council's 
position is safeguarded as far as possible.  

Significant Very Low 

Internal Controls   Serious Serious 

Mitigating 
Actions 

Proceed through SLGP to negotiate a cost-effective solution.  

Assigned To Ewan Sutherland Latest Note Date 10 Jun 2015 Latest Note 
Risk scoped in 
discussion with HR 
Manager.  

 

P
a
g

e
 1

2
6



w
w

w
.p

w
c.

co
.u

k

A
b

e
r

d
e

e
n

C
it

y
C

o
u

n
c

il
C

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
R

e
p

o
rt

P
e

r
io

d
1

O
c

to
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

to
3

1
M

a
r

c
h

2
0

1
5

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 127



P
a
g
e

1
o
f

3
7

T
a

b
le

o
f

C
o

n
te

n
ts

1.
In

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
2

2
.

O
v

er
a

ll
su

m
m

a
ry

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

4

3
.

S
y

st
em

su
m

m
a

ri
es

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
8

4
.

C
o

n
tr

o
l

d
es

ig
n

im
p

ro
v

e
m

en
ts

id
e

n
ti

fi
ed

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

3
1

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
1:

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

cr
it

er
ia

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
3

3

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
2

:
L

im
it

a
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.3
5

T
h

is
re

p
o

rt
h

a
s

b
ee

n
p

re
p

a
re

d
so

le
ly

fo
r

A
b

er
d

e
en

C
it

y
C

o
u

n
ci

l
in

a
cc

o
rd

a
n

ce
w

it
h

th
e

te
rm

s
a

n
d

co
n

d
it

io
n

s
se

t
o

u
t

in
o

u
r

e
n

g
a

g
em

en
t

le
tt

er
4

th
O

ct
o

b
er

2
0

10
.

W
e

d
o

n
o

t

a
cc

ep
t

o
r

a
ss

u
m

e
a

n
y

li
a

b
il

it
y

o
r

d
u

ty
o

f
ca

re
fo

r
a

n
y

o
th

er
p

u
rp

o
se

o
r

to
a

n
y

o
th

er
p

a
rt

y
.

T
h

is
re

p
o

rt
sh

o
u

ld
n

o
t

b
e

d
is

cl
o

se
d

to
a

n
y

th
ir

d
p

a
rt

y
,

q
u

o
te

d
o

r
re

fe
rr

ed
to

w
it

h
o

u
t

o
u

r
p

ri
o

r
w

ri
tt

en
co

n
se

n
t.

In
te

rn
a

l
a

u
d

it
w

o
rk

w
il

l
b

e
p

er
fo

rm
ed

in
a

cc
o

rd
a

n
ce

w
it

h
P

u
b

li
c

S
ec

to
r

In
te

rn
a

l
A

u
d

it
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

(P
S

IA
S

).
A

s
a

re
su

lt
,

o
u

r
w

o
rk

a
n

d
d

e
li

v
er

a
b

le
s

a
re

n
o

t
d

es
ig

n
e

d
o

r

in
te

n
d

ed
to

co
m

p
ly

w
it

h
th

e
In

te
rn

a
ti

o
n

a
l

A
u

d
it

in
g

a
n

d
A

ss
u

ra
n

ce
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

B
o

a
rd

(I
A

A
S

B
),

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l
F

ra
m

ew
o

rk
fo

r
A

ss
u

ra
n

ce
E

n
g

a
g

em
en

ts
(I

F
A

E
)

a
n

d

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
o

n
A

ss
u

ra
n

ce
E

n
g

a
g

em
e

n
ts

(I
S

A
E

)
3

0
0

0
.

Page 128



P
a
g
e

2
o
f

3
7

1
.

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n

P
u

r
p

o
s

e
o

f
th

is
r

e
p

o
r

t
T

h
is

re
p

o
rt

su
m

m
a

ri
se

s
th

e
w

o
rk

th
a

t
In

te
rn

a
l

A
u

d
it

h
a

s
u

n
d

er
ta

k
en

o
n

co
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l
a

u
d

it
in

g
fo

r
th

e
si

x
m

o
n

th
s

to
3

1
M

a
rc

h
2

0
15

.
T

h
is

w
o

rk
h

a
s

b
ee

n
u

n
d

er
ta

k
en

a
s

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e
2

0
14

/1
5

In
te

rn
a

l
A

u
d

it
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

a
p

p
ro

v
ed

b
y

th
e

A
u

d
it

,
R

is
k

a
n

d
S

cr
u

ti
n

y
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

in
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
2

0
14

.

B
a

c
k

g
r

o
u

n
d

to
c

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s

a
u

d
it

in
g

a
n

d
m

o
n

it
o

r
in

g
C

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s

a
u

d
it

in
g

is
th

e
p

ro
ce

ss
o

f
o

n
g

o
in

g
te

st
in

g
o

f
k

ey
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l

co
n

tr
o

ls
to

a
ss

es
s

w
h

et
h

er
th

ey
a

re
o

p
er

a
ti

n
g

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y

,
a

n
d

to
fl

a
g

a
re

a
s

a
n

d
re

p
o

rt

tr
a

n
sa

ct
io

n
s

th
a

t
a

p
p

ea
r

to
ci

rc
u

m
v

e
n

t
co

n
tr

o
l

p
a

ra
m

e
te

rs
.

W
e

u
se

a
co

m
b

in
a

ti
o

n
o

f
m

a
n

u
a

l
te

st
in

g
a

n
d

co
m

p
u

te
r

a
id

ed
a

u
d

it
te

ch
n

iq
u

es
(C

A
A

T
s)

to
ex

tr
a

ct

d
a

ta
fr

o
m

th
e

IT
sy

st
e

m
a

n
d

to
v

a
li

d
a

te
th

a
t

co
n

tr
o

ls
a

re
o

p
er

a
ti

n
g

a
s

d
es

ig
n

ed
.

T
h

er
ef

o
re

,
co

n
ti

n
u

o
u

s
a

u
d

it
in

g
p

ro
v

id
es

re
g

u
la

r
a

n
d

ti
m

el
y

co
n

tr
o

ls
a

ss
u

ra
n

ce
o

v
er

th
e

C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s
co

re
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l

sy
st

em
s

a
n

d
in

fo
rm

s
o

u
r

co
n

si
d

er
a

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e

a
d

eq
u

a
cy

a
n

d
e

ff
ec

ti
v

en
es

s
o

f
th

es
e

sy
st

em
s

w
it

h
in

o
u

r
In

te
rn

a
l

A
u

d
it

A
n

n
u

a
l

R
e

p
o

rt
,

w
h

ic
h

li
n

k
s

to
y

o
u

r
a

n
n

u
a

l
g

o
v

er
n

a
n

ce
st

a
te

m
en

t
w

it
h

in
th

e
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l

st
a

te
m

en
ts

.
O

u
r

te
st

in
g

o
v

er
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l

co
n

tr
o

ls
is

u
n

d
er

ta
k

en
o

n
a

si
x

m
o

n
th

ly
b

a
si

s,
a

ll
o

w
in

g
fo

r
th

e
id

e
n

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

a
n

d
re

p
o

rt
in

g
o

f
tr

en
d

s
o

v
er

a
lo

n
g

er

p
er

io
d

o
f

ti
m

e
,

a
n

d
p

ro
v

id
e

s
th

e
fo

ll
o

w
in

g
k

ey
b

en
ef

it
s:

It
p

ro
v

id
es

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
en

t
w

it
h

a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

o
v

er
th

e
o

p
er

a
ti

o
n

o
f

k
ey

co
n

tr
o

ls
o

n
a

re
g

u
la

r
b

a
si

s
th

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t
th

e
y

ea
r;

C
A

A
T

s
a

ll
o

w
te

st
in

g
o

f
10

0
%

o
f

th
e

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

ra
th

er
th

a
n

re
ly

in
g

o
n

a
sa

m
p

le
(w

h
er

e
co

n
tr

o
ls

a
re

a
u

to
m

a
te

d
);

C
o

n
tr

o
l

w
ea

k
n

es
se

s
ca

n
b

e
a

d
d

re
ss

ed
d

u
ri

n
g

th
e

y
ea

r
ra

th
er

th
a

n
a

ft
er

th
e

y
ea

r
e

n
d

;
a

n
d

T
h

e
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v

e
b

u
rd

en
o

n
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

en
t

is
re

d
u

ce
d

in
a

re
a

s
w

h
er

e
th

e
re

is
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t
e

v
id

en
ce

th
a

t
k

e
y

co
n

tr
o

ls
a

re
o

p
e

ra
ti

n
g

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y

,
w

h
e

n

co
m

p
a

re
d

w
it

h
a

fu
ll

in
te

rn
a

l
a

u
d

it
sy

st
em

s
re

v
ie

w
.

Page 129



P
a
g
e

3
o
f

3
7

S
c

o
p

e
C

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s

a
u

d
it

in
g

h
a

s
b

e
en

a
d

o
p

te
d

fo
r

n
in

e
o

f
th

e
C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l
sy

st
em

s
th

is
y

ea
r.

T
h

e
sy

st
em

s
a

re
:

F
ix

ed
A

ss
et

s;

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

R
ec

ei
v

a
b

le
;

N
o

n
D

o
m

es
ti

c
R

a
te

s
(N

D
R

);

P
a

y
ro

ll
;

T
re

a
su

ry
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

en
t;

C
a

sh
;

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

P
a

y
a

b
le

;

C
o

u
n

ci
l

T
a

x
;

a
n

d

H
o

u
si

n
g

B
en

ef
it

s.

T
h

e
co

n
tr

o
ls

w
e

h
a

v
e

te
st

e
d

h
a

v
e

b
ee

n
id

en
ti

fi
ed

th
ro

u
g

h
d

is
cu

ss
io

n
w

it
h

re
le

v
a

n
t

st
a

ff
fr

o
m

ea
ch

sy
st

em
,

th
e

p
er

fo
rm

a
n

ce
o

f
w

a
lk

th
ro

u
g

h
s,

a
n

d
th

ro
u

g
h

co
m

p
a

ri
so

n
a

g
a

in
st

A
u

d
it

S
co

tl
a

n
d

(e
x

te
rn

a
l

a
u

d
it

)
b

es
t

p
ra

ct
ic

e
co

n
tr

o
l

m
a

tr
ic

es
.

A
ll

co
n

tr
o

ls
h

a
v

e
b

ee
n

id
en

ti
fi

ed
u

si
n

g
a

ri
sk

b
a

se
d

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

.

C
A

A
T

s
w

o
r

k
T

o
d

a
te

w
e

h
a

v
e

d
es

ig
n

ed
a

n
d

re
fi

n
ed

fi
v

e
a

n
d

se
v

e
n

C
A

A
T

s
te

st
s

w
it

h
in

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

R
ec

e
iv

a
b

le
a

n
d

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

P
a

y
a

b
le

re
sp

ec
ti

v
el

y
w

it
h

th
e

a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

o
f

o
u

r

d
a

ta
a

ss
u

ra
n

ce
sp

ec
ia

li
st

s.
T

h
e

re
su

lt
s

o
f

th
es

e
a

re
in

cl
u

d
ed

w
it

h
in

th
is

re
p

o
rt

.
T

h
er

e
a

re
ce

rt
a

in
a

re
a

s,
su

ch
a

s
ca

sh
a

n
d

fi
x

ed
a

ss
et

s,
w

h
er

e
th

e
co

n
tr

o
ls

in

p
la

ce
a

re
p

re
d

o
m

in
a

n
tl

y
m

a
n

u
a

l
a

n
d

so
C

A
A

T
s

ca
n

n
o

t
b

e
u

se
d

.

Page 130



P
a
g
e

4
o
f

3
7

2
.

O
v

e
r

a
ll

s
u

m
m

a
r

y

S
et

o
u

t
b

el
o

w
is

th
e

su
m

m
a

ry
p

er
sy

st
em

,
ta

k
in

g
in

to
a

cc
o

u
n

t
th

e
n

u
m

b
er

a
n

d
ex

te
n

t
o

f
ex

ce
p

ti
o

n
s

w
e

fo
u

n
d

d
u

ri
n

g
te

st
in

g
a

n
d

th
e

n
u

m
b

er
a

n
d

se
v

er
it

y
o

f

co
n

tr
o

l
d

es
ig

n
im

p
ro

v
e

m
en

ts
id

en
ti

fi
ed

.
T

h
e

cr
it

er
ia

th
a

t
h

a
v

e
b

ee
n

u
se

d
to

ra
te

ea
ch

sy
st

em
a

re
d

et
a

il
ed

in
A

p
p

en
d

ix
1.

P
e

r
io

d
1
:

1
A

p
ri

l
2

0
14

to
3

0
S

ep
te

m
b

er
2

0
14

(r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
to

th
e

A
u

d
it

,
R

is
k

a
n

d
S

cr
u

ti
n

y
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

in
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
2

0
15

)

P
e

r
io

d
2

:
1

O
ct

o
b

er
2

0
14

to
3

1
M

a
rc

h
2

0
15

(a
s

re
p

o
rt

ed
in

th
is

re
p

o
rt

)

T
a

b
le

1:
S

u
m

m
a

ry
o

f
P

er
io

d
1

a
n

d
P

er
io

d
2

ra
ti

n
g

a
n

d
d

ir
ec

ti
o

n
o

f
tr

a
v

el

S
y

s
te

m
R

a
ti

n
g

to
3

0
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r
2

0
1
4

R
a

ti
n

g
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

D
ir

e
c

ti
o

n
o

f
T

r
a

v
e

l/
T

r
e

n
d

(R
e

d
,

A
m

b
e

r
,

G
r

e
e

n
)

(R
e

d
,

A
m

b
e

r
,

G
r

e
e

n
)

(
)

F
ix

e
d

A
s

s
e

ts
G

re
en

R
ed

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
R

e
c

e
iv

a
b

le
R

ed
A

m
b

er

N
D

R
A

m
b

er
G

re
en

P
a

y
r

o
ll

G
re

en
A

m
b

er

T
r

e
a

s
u

r
y

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

G
re

en
G

re
en

C
a

s
h

G
re

en
G

re
en

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
P

a
y

a
b

le
G

re
en

A
m

b
er

C
o

u
n

c
il

T
a

x
G

re
en

G
re

en

H
o

u
s

in
g

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

G
re

en
G

re
en

Page 131



P
a
g
e

5
o
f

3
7

T
a

b
le

2
:

P
er

io
d

2
re

su
lt

s

S
y

s
te

m

N
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

te
s

te
d

N
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

w
h

e
r

e
o

p
e

r
a

ti
o

n
a

l
e

x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
s

w
e

r
e

fo
u

n
d

N
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

w
h

e
r

e
d

e
s

ig
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
w

e
r

e
fo

u
n

d

F
ix

e
d

A
s

s
e

ts
12

3
2

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
R

e
c

e
iv

a
b

le
13

4
1

N
D

R
6

2
0

P
a

y
r

o
ll

9
3

0

T
r

e
a

s
u

r
y

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

15
1

1

C
a

s
h

5
0

0

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
P

a
y

a
b

le
13

2
0

C
o

u
n

c
il

T
a

x
10

0
0

H
o

u
s

in
g

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

10
0

0

T
o

ta
l

9
3

1
5

4

A
p

er
ce

n
ta

g
e

b
re

a
k

d
o

w
n

o
f

co
n

tr
o

l
ex

ce
p

ti
o

n
s

a
g

a
in

st
th

e
to

ta
l

n
u

m
b

er
o

f
co

n
tr

o
ls

te
st

ed
is

p
ro

v
id

ed
o

n
th

e
n

e
x

t
p

a
g

e.

D
ia

g
ra

m
1:

P
er

io
d

2
re

su
lt

s

02468
1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

N
o

.
o
f

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

te
s
te

d

N
o

.
o
f

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

w
it
h

o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n
a

l
e

x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
s

N
o

.
o
f

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

w
it
h

d
e

s
ig

n
e
x
c
e

p
ti
o
n
s

P
e

r
io

d
2

r
e

s
u

lt
s

(1
O

c
to

b
e

r
2

0
1
4

to
3

1
M

a
r

c
h

2
0

1
5

)

T
h

e
re

su
lt

s
o

f
o

u
r

P
er

io
d

2
te

st
in

g
a

re
su

m
m

a
ri

se
d

b
el

o
w

.
A

d
et

a
il

ed
b

re
a

k
d

o
w

n
o

f
re

su
lt

s
is

d
o

cu
m

en
te

d
in

S
e

c
ti

o
n

3
.

Page 132



P
a
g
e

6
o
f

3
7

C
o

m
p

a
r

is
o

n
o

f
P

e
r

io
d

1
r

e
s

u
lt

s
w

it
h

P
e

r
io

d
2

T
h

e
ch

a
rt

s
a

n
d

ta
b

le
b

el
o

w
sh

o
w

th
e

re
su

lt
s

fo
r

p
er

io
d

2
a

n
d

p
er

io
d

1
fo

r
co

m
p

a
ri

so
n

.
A

s
ca

n
b

e
se

e
n

fr
o

m
th

e
d

ia
g

ra
m

s,
th

e
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

o
f

co
n

tr
o

l
ex

ce
p

ti
o

n
s

h
a

s
ri

se
n

fr
o

m
11

%
to

16
%

fr
o

m
p

er
io

d
1

to
p

er
io

d
2

.

T
a

b
le

3
:

C
o

m
p

a
ri

so
n

o
f

P
1

a
n

d
P

2

S
y

s
te

m
N

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
c

o
n

tr
o

ls
te

s
te

d

N
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

w
h

e
r

e
e

x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
s

w
e

r
e

fo
u

n
d

P
1

P
2

P
1

P
2

F
ix

e
d

A
s

s
e

ts
14

12
1

5

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
r

e
c

e
iv

a
b

le
13

13
6

5

N
D

R
6

6
2

2

P
a

y
r

o
ll

9
9

0
3

T
r

e
a

s
u

r
y

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

15
15

2
2

C
a

s
h

5
5

1
0

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
P

a
y

a
b

le
13

13
0

2

C
o

u
n

c
il

T
a

x
10

10
1

0

H
o

u
s

in
g

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

10
10

1
0

T
o

ta
l

9
5

9
3

1
4

1
9

D
ia

g
ra

m
2

:
C

o
m

p
a

ri
so

n
o

f
P

1
a

n
d

P
2

8
9

%

11
%

P
e
ri

o
d

1
re

s
u

lt
s P

er
ce

n
ta

g
e

o
f

co
n

tr
o

ls
w

it
h

n
o

e
x

ce
p

ti
o

n
s

P
er

ce
n

ta
g

e
o

f
co

n
tr

o
ls

w
it

h
e

x
ce

p
ti

o
n

s

8
4

%

16
%

P
e
ri

o
d

2
re

s
u

lt
s P

er
ce

n
ta

g
e

o
f

co
n

tr
o

ls
w

it
h

n
o

e
x

ce
p

ti
o

n
s

P
er

ce
n

ta
g

e
o

f
co

n
tr

o
ls

w
it

h
e

x
ce

p
ti

o
n

s

Page 133



P
a
g
e

7
o
f

3
7

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
en

t
n

o
te

s
th

a
t

th
e

re
co

n
ti

n
u

es
to

b
e

a
n

ef
fe

ct
iv

e
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l

co
n

tr
o

l
en

v
ir

o
n

m
en

t
o

v
e

ra
ll

a
n

d
th

a
t

te
st

in
g

is
id

en
ti

fy
in

g
a

sm
a

ll
n

u
m

b
er

s
o

f
ex

ce
p

ti
o

n
s

th
a

t
a

re
g

en
e

ra
ll

y
a

t
th

e
lo

w
er

en
d

o
f

th
e

ri
sk

sc
a

le
.

It
is

re
co

g
n

is
ed

th
a

t
im

p
ro

v
e

m
en

ts
ca

n
b

e
m

a
d

e
a

n
d

th
er

e
a

re
a

n
u

m
b

er
o

f
re

co
m

m
e

n
d

ed
co

n
tr

o
l

d
es

ig
n

im
p

ro
v

e
m

en
ts

th
a

t
a

re
h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
in

th
e

re
p

o
rt

.
T

h
es

e
w

il
l

b
e

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
b

y
th

e
re

le
v

a
n

t
o

ff
ic

er
s

in
th

e
ti

m
es

ca
le

s
d

et
a

il
ed

Page 134



P
a
g
e

8
o
f

3
7

3
.

S
y

s
te

m
s

u
m

m
a

r
ie

s
F

ix
e

d
A

s
s

e
ts

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

A
c

q
u

is
it

io
n

s
a

n
d

c
a

p
it

a
l

p
r

o
je

c
ts

F
A

1

A
ca

p
it

a
l

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
is

d
ra

w
n

u
p

a
t

th
e

b
eg

in
n

in
g

o
f

ea
ch

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l
y

ea
r

a
n

d
b

u
d

g
et

s
a

re
a

ll
o

ca
te

d
to

ea
ch

b
u

d
g

et
h

o
ld

er
in

re
sp

ec
t

o
f

d
e

fi
n

ed
p

ro
je

ct
s

a
p

p
ro

v
ed

v
ia

th
e

b
id

p
ro

ce
ss

.
T

h
e

ca
p

it
a

l
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

is
fo

rm
a

ll
y

a
p

p
ro

v
ed

b
y

th
e

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

M
a

n
a

g
em

en
t

T
ea

m
(C

M
T

)
a

n
d

F
in

a
n

ce
,

P
o

li
cy

a
n

d
R

es
o

u
rc

es
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

(F
P

R
).

N
/A

0

F
A

2

A
ro

ll
in

g
5

y
ea

r
re

p
la

ce
m

e
n

t
re

p
o

rt
is

su
b

m
it

te
d

to
a

n
d

a
p

p
ro

v
ed

b
y

C
o

u
n

ci
l.

T
h

e
C

o
u

n
ci

l
a

ss
es

s
th

e
le

v
el

o
f

fu
n

d
in

g
to

b
e

a
ll

o
ca

te
d

to
fl

ee
t

m
a

n
a

g
em

en
t

fo
r

th
is

5
y

ea
r

p
er

io
d

.

N
/A

0

F
A

3

C
a

p
it

a
l

p
u

rc
h

a
se

s
a

re
m

a
d

e
th

ro
u

g
h

th
e

P
E

C
O

S
p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t

sy
st

em
.

P
u

rc
h

a
se

a
u

th
o

ri
sa

ti
o

n
li

m
it

s
a

re
se

t
fo

r
p

u
rc

h
a

se
rs

w
it

h
in

th
e

sy
st

em
w

it
h

a
u

to
m

a
te

d
ro

u
ti

n
g

to
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
a

p
p

ro
v

er
s

w
it

h
in

th
e

C
o

u
n

ci
l'

s
sc

h
em

e
o

f
d

e
le

g
a

ti
o

n
.

0
0

Page 135



P
a
g
e

9
o
f

3
7

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

F
A

4

C
a

p
it

a
li

sa
ti

o
n

th
re

sh
o

ld
is

in
p

la
ce

fo
r

a
ll

a
ss

et
ca

te
g

o
ri

es
o

f
£

6
k

.
O

n
a

m
o

n
th

ly
b

a
si

s,
ca

p
it

a
l

a
cc

o
u

n
ta

n
ts

ru
n

a
re

p
o

rt
o

f
a

ll
p

u
rc

h
a

se
s

o
u

t
o

f
th

e
re

v
en

u
e

b
u

d
g

et
(a

n
d

th
er

ef
o

re
h

a
v

e
n

o
t

b
ee

n
co

d
ed

a
s

ca
p

it
a

l
ex

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
w

it
h

in
th

e
le

d
g

er
),

w
h

ic
h

ex
ce

ed
£

6
k

a
n

d
ca

p
it

a
li

se
a

n
y

n
ec

es
sa

ry
tr

a
n

sa
ct

io
n

s
th

ro
u

g
h

a
m

a
n

u
a

l
jo

u
rn

a
l.

0
0

F
A

5

O
n

a
m

o
n

th
ly

b
a

si
s,

ca
p

it
a

l
a

cc
o

u
n

ta
n

ts
d

o
w

n
lo

a
d

a
ll

g
e

n
er

a
l

le
d

g
er

e
n

tr
ie

s
to

ca
p

it
a

l
a

cc
o

u
n

ts
a

n
d

p
er

fo
rm

a
re

v
ie

w
to

en
su

re
th

a
t

a
ll

tr
a

n
sa

ct
io

n
s

a
re

co
d

ed
co

rr
ec

tl
y

.
T

h
e

ca
p

it
a

l
a

cc
o

u
n

ta
n

ts
w

il
l

th
en

m
a

n
u

a
ll

y
en

te
r

th
e

a
ss

et
s

o
n

to
th

e
F

ix
ed

A
ss

et
R

eg
is

te
r,

a
ll

o
ca

ti
n

g
th

e
cl

a
ss

o
f

a
ss

et
s

a
n

d
a

d
ef

in
ed

u
se

fu
l

li
fe

.

0
0

D
e

p
r

e
c

ia
ti

o
n

F
A

6
U

se
fu

l
li

fe
fo

r
P

ro
p

er
ty

,
P

la
n

t
a

n
d

E
q

u
ip

m
en

t
is

id
en

ti
fi

ed
,

re
v

ie
w

ed
a

n
d

a
p

p
ro

v
ed

o
n

a
n

o
n

g
o

in
g

b
a

si
s.

0
N

/A

C
o

n
tr

o
l

o
p

er
a

te
s

a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
in

A
p

ri
l;

th
er

ef
o

re
it

h
a

d
n

o
t

o
p

er
a

te
d

a
t

th
e

ti
m

e
o

f
o

u
r

P
h

a
se

T
w

o
fi

e
ld

w
o

rk
.

T
h

is
co

n
tr

o
l

w
a

s
te

st
ed

w
it

h
n

o
ex

ce
p

ti
o

n
s

d
u

ri
n

g
o

u
r

P
h

a
se

O
n

e
w

o
rk

.

F
A

7
A

ll
a

ss
et

s
a

re
a

u
to

m
a

ti
ca

ll
y

d
e

p
re

ci
a

te
d

th
ro

u
g

h
th

e
F

A
R

sy
st

em
(A

IR
S

)
in

a
cc

o
rd

a
n

ce
w

it
h

th
e

p
re

d
et

er
m

in
ed

u
se

fu
l

li
v

es
.

o
0

D
is

p
o

s
a

ls

Page 136



P
a
g
e

1
0

o
f
3
7

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

F
A

8

D
is

p
o

sa
ls

o
f

p
ro

p
er

ty
w

it
h

a
v

a
lu

e
>

£
2

5
0

k
m

u
st

b
e

a
p

p
ro

v
ed

b
y

th
e

H
ea

d
o

f
F

in
a

n
ce

,
H

ea
d

o
f

L
eg

a
l

a
n

d
F

P
R

P
ro

p
er

ty
S

u
b

co
m

m
it

te
e.

P
ro

p
er

ty
d

is
p

o
sa

ls
<

£
2

5
0

k
a

re
a

p
p

ro
v

ed
b

y
th

e
H

ea
d

o
f

A
ss

et
M

a
n

a
g

em
en

t.

0
1

F
in

d
in

g
R

a
ti

n
g

:
L

o
w

In
1

o
u

t
o

f
2

d
is

p
o

sa
ls

sa
m

p
le

d
,

th
e

co
rr

ec
t

a
u

th
o

ri
sa

ti
o

n
p

er
th

e
S

ch
ed

u
le

o
f

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

h
a

d
n

o
t

b
ee

n
o

b
ta

in
ed

b
y

th
e

H
ea

d
o

f
F

in
a

n
ce

.
T

h
is

co
n

ce
rn

ed
th

e
sa

le
o

f
B

a
lg

o
w

n
ie

P
ri

m
a

ry
S

ch
o

o
l

fo
r

£
1.

4
m

in
F

eb
ru

a
ry

2
0

15
.

T
h

e
ri

sk
is

so
m

ew
h

a
t

m
it

ig
a

te
d

h
o

w
ev

er
a

s
th

e
sa

le
w

a
s

a
p

p
ro

v
ed

b
y

th
e

H
ea

d
o

f
A

ss
et

M
a

n
a

g
em

en
t,

th
e

H
ea

d
o

f
L

eg
a

l
a

n
d

th
e

P
ro

p
er

ty
S

u
b

-C
o

m
m

it
te

e.

F
A

9
D

is
p

o
sa

ls
o

f
v

eh
ic

le
s

a
re

m
a

d
e

th
ro

u
g

h
a

u
ct

io
n

.
T

h
e

F
le

et
M

a
n

a
g

er
m

u
st

a
p

p
ro

v
e

a
ll

v
eh

ic
le

d
is

p
o

sa
ls

.
N

/A
1

F
in

d
in

g
R

a
ti

n
g

:
H

ig
h

In
o

u
r

‘F
le

et
A

ss
et

V
er

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

’r
ep

o
rt

to
th

e
A

u
d

it
,

R
is

k
a

n
d

S
cr

u
ti

n
y

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
o

n
11

M
a

y
2

0
15

,
w

e
re

p
o

rt
ed

th
e

re
su

lt
s

o
f

o
u

r
p

h
y

si
ca

l
v

er
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s

fl
ee

t
a

ss
et

s.
T

h
is

p
ro

ce
ss

id
en

ti
fi

ed
2

2
9

a
ss

et
s

th
a

t
w

er
e

re
co

rd
ed

o
n

T
ra

n
m

a
n

b
u

t
th

a
t

co
u

ld
n

o
t

b
e

p
h

y
si

ca
ll

y
v

er
if

ie
d

.
O

u
r

fu
rt

h
er

in
v

es
ti

g
a

ti
o

n
s

w
it

h
fl

e
et

m
a

n
a

g
em

e
n

t
h

a
v

e
id

en
ti

fi
ed

si
g

n
if

ic
a

n
t

fa
il

in
g

s
in

th
e

co
n

tr
o

l
a

ro
u

n
d

re
co

rd
in

g
o

f
th

e
a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

a
n

d
d

is
p

o
sa

l
o

f
fl

ee
t

a
ss

et
s

in
th

e
C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s

fl
ee

t
m

a
n

a
g

em
en

t
sy

st
em

s.
A

s
a

re
su

lt
w

e
h

a
v

e
co

n
cl

u
d

ed
th

a
t

co
n

tr
o

ls
a

re
n

o
t

d
e

si
g

n
ed

o
r

o
p

er
a

ti
n

g
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y
fo

r
v

eh
ic

le
d

is
p

o
sa

ls
.

H
o

w
e

v
er

,
it

is
n

o
te

d
,

a
s

o
f

th
e

la
st

A
u

d
it

,
R

is
k

a
n

d
S

cr
u

ti
n

y
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

,
th

a
t

m
a

n
a

g
em

en
t

a
re

fo
cu

se
d

o
n

th
is

a
re

a
a

n
d

a
re

im
p

le
m

en
ti

n
g

n
e

w
co

n
tr

o
ls

o
v

er
th

e
T

ra
n

m
a

n
sy

st
em

to
a

d
d

re
ss

th
e

is
su

es
id

en
ti

fi
ed

.

Page 137



P
a
g
e

1
1

o
f
3
7

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

F
A

1
0

D
is

p
o

sa
l

fo
rm

s
fo

r
p

ro
p

er
ty

a
re

co
m

p
le

te
d

a
n

d
a

u
th

o
ri

se
d

b
y

th
e

H
ea

d
o

f
F

in
a

n
ce

a
n

d
H

ea
d

o
f

L
eg

a
l

a
n

d
a

p
p

ro
v

ed
b

y
th

e
F

P
R

.
D

is
p

o
sa

ls
a

re
u

p
d

a
te

d
o

n
th

e
F

A
R

w
h

en
th

e
F

in
a

n
ce

d
ep

a
rt

m
en

t
a

re
n

o
ti

fi
ed

o
f

th
e

d
is

p
o

sa
l

a
ft

er
co

m
m

it
te

e
a

p
p

ro
v

a
l

h
a

s
ta

k
e

n
p

la
ce

.

0
1

F
in

d
in

g
R

a
ti

n
g

:
L

o
w

S
ee

ex
ce

p
ti

o
n

a
t

F
A

8
.

F
A

1
1

D
is

p
o

sa
l

fo
rm

s
a

re
se

n
t

fr
o

m
th

e
F

le
et

D
ep

a
rt

m
en

t
to

th
e

F
in

a
n

ce
T

e
a

m
w

h
o

u
p

d
a

te
th

e
F

A
R

.
1

1
F

in
d

in
g

R
a

ti
n

g
:

H
ig

h

S
ee

ex
ce

p
ti

o
n

a
t

F
A

9
.

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
&

p
e

r
io

d
e

n
d

c
lo

s
e

F
A

1
2

V
eh

ic
le

s
a

re
se

rv
ic

ed
o

n
a

n
o

n
g

o
in

g
b

a
si

s
to

en
su

re
th

ey
a

re
st

il
l

w
o

rk
in

g
a

n
d

in
g

o
o

d
o

rd
er

.
T

h
e

fl
ee

t
m

a
n

a
g

em
en

t
sy

st
em

(T
ra

n
sm

a
n

)
is

u
p

d
a

te
d

w
it

h
d

et
a

il
s

o
f

v
eh

ic
le

se
rv

ic
es

.

1
1

F
in

d
in

g
R

a
ti

n
g

:
H

ig
h

S
ee

ex
ce

p
ti

o
n

a
t

F
A

9
.

F
A

1
3

L
a

n
d

a
n

d
b

u
il

d
in

g
s

a
re

re
v

a
lu

ed
o

n
a

ro
ll

in
g

fi
v

e
y

ea
r

b
a

si
s

in
a

cc
o

rd
a

n
ce

w
it

h
th

e
re

le
v

a
n

t
re

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s.
R

ev
a

lu
ed

a
ss

et
s

a
re

u
p

d
a

te
d

in
th

e
F

A
R

.

0
N

/A

C
o

n
tr

o
l

o
p

er
a

te
s

a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
in

A
p

ri
l;

th
er

ef
o

re
it

h
a

d
n

o
t

o
p

er
a

te
d

a
t

th
e

ti
m

e
o

f
o

u
r

P
h

a
se

T
w

o
fi

e
ld

w
o

rk
.

T
h

is
co

n
tr

o
l

w
a

s
te

st
ed

w
it

h
n

o
ex

ce
p

ti
o

n
s

d
u

ri
n

g
o

u
r

P
h

a
se

O
n

e
w

o
rk

.

Page 138



P
a
g
e

1
2

o
f
3
7

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

F
A

1
4

T
h

e
v

a
lu

e
o

f
a

ss
et

s
p

er
th

e
A

IR
S

sy
st

em
is

re
co

n
ci

le
d

to
eF

in
a

n
ci

a
ls

o
n

a
n

a
n

n
u

a
l

b
a

si
s

a
s

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e
a

n
n

u
a

l
a

cc
o

u
n

ts
p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
p

ro
ce

ss
.

0
N

/A

C
o

n
tr

o
l

o
p

er
a

te
s

a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
in

A
p

ri
l;

th
er

ef
o

re
it

h
a

d
n

o
t

o
p

er
a

te
d

a
t

th
e

ti
m

e
o

f
o

u
r

P
h

a
se

T
w

o
fi

e
ld

w
o

rk
.

T
h

is
co

n
tr

o
l

w
a

s
te

st
ed

w
it

h
n

o
ex

ce
p

ti
o

n
s

d
u

ri
n

g
o

u
r

P
h

a
se

O
n

e
w

o
rk

.

T
o

ta
l

1
5

Page 139



P
a
g
e

1
3

o
f
3
7

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
R

e
c

e
iv

a
b

le

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

P
r

o
c

e
s
s
-w

id
e

c
o

n
s
id

e
r

a
ti

o
n

s

A
R

1

T
h

er
e

is
a

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

H
a

n
d

b
o

o
k

w
h

ic
h

h
a

s
th

e
st

a
tu

to
ry

o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s
d

et
a

il
ed

.
In

a
d

d
it

io
n

th
er

e
is

a
n

In
co

m
e

S
er

v
ic

e
M

a
n

u
a

l
th

a
t

d
et

a
il

s
d

a
y

-
to

-d
a

y
p

ro
ce

ss
in

g
a

ct
iv

it
ie

s
fo

r
a

cc
o

u
n

ts
re

ce
iv

a
b

le

0
0

N
ew

co
n

tr
o

l
te

st
ed

in
6

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

rc
h

2
0

14

O
r

d
e

r
P

r
o

c
e

s
s
in

g

A
R

2

O
n

ly
th

e
d

eb
to

rs
te

a
m

ca
n

se
t

u
p

n
ew

cu
st

o
m

er
s

o
n

th
e

sy
st

em
a

n
d

th
is

is
n

o
t

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
w

h
o

p
ro

ce
ss

in
v

o
ic

es
.

D
et

a
il

s
a

re
p

a
ss

ed
to

th
e

te
a

m
o

n
C

u
st

o
m

er
In

v
o

ic
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

(C
IC

)
fo

rm
s

fr
o

m
th

e
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l

d
ep

a
rt

m
en

ts
.

3
2

F
in

d
in

g
R

a
ti

n
g

:
L

o
w

F
ro

m
a

sa
m

p
le

o
f

4
5

te
st

ed
,

th
re

e
in

st
a

n
ce

s
w

er
e

id
en

ti
fi

ed
w

h
er

e
a

C
u

st
o

m
er

In
v

o
ic

e
C

o
n

tr
o

l
fo

rm
co

u
ld

n
o

t
b

e
fo

u
n

d
to

e
v

id
en

ce
th

a
t

a
u

th
o

ri
sa

ti
o

n
h

a
d

b
ee

n
g

iv
en

to
cr

ea
te

a
n

ew
cu

st
o

m
er

o
n

th
e

sy
st

em
.

C
a

s
h

R
e

c
e

ip
ts

A
R

3
U

n
id

en
ti

fi
ed

re
ce

ip
ts

a
re

p
o

st
e

d
to

a
d

ed
ic

a
te

d
su

sp
en

se
a

cc
o

u
n

t
w

h
ic

h
is

re
g

u
la

rl
y

ex
a

m
in

ed
a

n
d

cl
ea

re
d

.
1

1

F
in

d
in

g
R

a
ti

n
g

:
M

ed
iu

m

U
n

id
en

ti
fi

ed
re

ce
ip

ts
a

re
n

o
t

b
ei

n
g

re
g

u
la

rl
y

ex
a

m
in

ed
in

o
rd

er
to

cl
ea

r
cu

st
o

m
er

in
v

o
ic

es
.

B
a

d
d

e
b

ts

Page 140



P
a
g
e

1
4

o
f
3
7

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

A
R

4
D

is
p

u
te

d
cu

st
o

m
er

b
a

la
n

ce
s

a
re

m
o

n
it

o
re

d
m

o
n

th
ly

a
n

d
fo

ll
o

w
ed

-u
p

w
it

h
S

er
v

ic
es

to
id

en
ti

fy
st

a
tu

s
o

f
b

a
la

n
ce

.
2

4
2

9

F
in

d
in

g
R

a
ti

n
g

:
M

ed
iu

m

F
ro

m
a

sa
m

p
le

o
f

4
5

te
st

ed
,

2
9

in
st

a
n

ce
s

w
er

e

id
en

ti
fi

ed
w

h
er

e
n

o
ev

id
e

n
ce

w
a

s
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

to
v

er
if

y

w
h

et
h

er
d

is
p

u
te

d
cu

st
o

m
er

b
a

la
n

ce
s

h
a

d
b

e
en

fo
ll

o
w

ed
-u

p
w

it
h

th
e

re
le

v
a

n
t

S
er

v
ic

e.

A
R

5

D
eb

t
re

co
v

er
y

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s
a

re
in

p
la

ce
:

th
e

sy
st

em
a

u
to

m
a

ti
ca

ll
y

is
su

es
re

m
in

d
er

le
tt

er
s

a
ft

er
3

5
d

a
y

s
o

f
d

eb
t

b
ei

n
g

d
u

e
a

n
d

a
fi

n
a

l
n

o
ti

ce
a

ft
er

14
d

a
y

s
o

f
th

e
fi

rs
t

d
a

te
.

A
ft

er
a

fu
rt

h
er

7
d

a
y

s,
d

eb
t

is
tr

a
n

sf
er

re
d

to
th

e
S

h
er

if
f

O
ff

ic
er

.

3
5

4
5

F
in

d
in

g
R

a
ti

n
g

:
M

ed
iu

m

In
re

la
ti

o
n

to
d

eb
t

re
co

v
er

y
p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s:

F
o

r
3

4
o

u
t

o
f

4
5

te
st

ed
th

e
re

m
in

d
er

le
tt

er
w

a
s

is
su

ed
la

te
(a

ft
er

3
1

d
a

y
s)

;

F
o

r
19

o
u

t
o

f
4

5
te

st
e

d
th

e
fi

n
a

l
n

o
ti

ce
w

a
s

is
su

ed
la

te
(a

ft
er

17
);

a
n

d
F

o
r

4
5

o
u

t
o

f
4

5
te

st
ed

th
e

d
e

b
t

h
a

d
b

ee
n

se
n

t
to

th
e

S
h

er
if

f
O

ff
ic

er
la

te
.

It
w

a
s

n
o

te
d

th
a

t
d

u
e

to
a

sy
st

e
m

s
is

su
e

th
er

e
w

a
s

a
la

rg
e

b
a

ck
lo

g
o

f
in

v
o

ic
es

a
n

d
a

s
a

re
su

lt
th

e
w

ee
k

ly
re

m
in

d
er

s
w

er
e

n
o

t
ru

n
a

s
n

o
rm

a
l.

A
R

6
T

h
e

H
ea

d
o

f
F

in
a

n
ce

a
p

p
ro

v
es

a
ll

w
ri

te
o

ff
s

o
n

a
q

u
a

rt
er

ly
b

a
si

s.
0

0

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
a

n
d

p
e

r
io

d
e

n
d

c
lo

s
e

A
R

7

S
er

v
ic

es
co

m
p

le
te

a
C

re
d

it
N

o
te

A
u

th
o

ri
sa

ti
o

n
(C

N
A

)
fo

rm
th

a
t

is
a

p
p

ro
v

ed
b

y
a

se
rv

ic
e

li
n

e
m

a
n

a
g

er
.

A
n

a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
si

g
n

a
to

ry
li

st
d

et
a

il
s

w
h

o
ca

n
a

p
p

ro
v

e
cr

ed
it

n
o

te
s.

4
2

F
in

d
in

g
R

a
ti

n
g

:
L

o
w

F
o

r
2

fr
o

m
a

sa
m

p
le

o
f

2
5

cr
ed

it
n

o
te

s
te

st
ed

,
th

e
C

re
d

it
N

o
te

A
u

th
o

ri
sa

ti
o

n
fo

rm
co

u
ld

n
o

t
b

e
fo

u
n

d
to

ev
id

en
ce

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l
b

y
a

se
rv

ic
e

li
n

e
m

a
n

a
g

er
fo

r
th

e
cr

ed
it

n
o

te
to

b
e

is
su

ed
.

Page 141



P
a
g
e

1
5

o
f
3
7

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

T
h

e
a

u
th

o
ri

se
d

si
g

n
a

to
ry

li
st

fo
r

cr
ed

it
n

o
te

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l
is

in
th

e
p

ro
ce

ss
o

f
b

ei
n

g
u

p
d

a
te

d
a

s
a

n
u

m
b

er
o

f
si

g
n

a
to

ri
es

a
re

n
o

lo
n

g
er

a
p

p
li

ca
b

le
.

A
R

8
T

h
e

a
cc

o
u

n
ts

re
ce

iv
a

b
le

su
b

-l
e

d
g

er
is

re
co

n
ci

le
d

to
th

e
g

en
er

a
l

le
d

g
er

e
v

er
y

m
o

n
th

.
0

0

T
o

ta
l

6
7

8
0

Page 142



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

1
6

o
f
3
7

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
R

e
c

e
iv

a
b

le
–

C
A

A
T

s

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

T
it

le
D

e
s
c

r
ip

ti
o

n
E

x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
s

fr
o

m
s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

A
R

C
A

A
T

1
C

re
d

it
li

m
it

s
n

o
n

ze
ro

A
ll

u
se

rs
w

it
h

a
n

o
n

ze
ro

cr
ed

it
li

m
it

.
It

is
ex

p
ec

te
d

th
a

t
ea

ch
o

f
th

es
e

p
e

o
p

le
is

in
th

e
se

rv
ic

e
in

co
m

e
te

a
m

o
r

w
it

h
in

p
en

si
o

n
s

0
0

A
R

C
A

A
T

2
G

L
a

u
th

o
ri

se
r

n
o

t
in

u
se

r
ta

b
le

A
li

st
o

f
u

se
rs

w
h

o
h

a
v

e
tr

a
n

sa
ct

io
n

s
in

th
e

S
a

le
s

L
ed

g
er

b
u

t
n

o
e

n
tr

y
in

th
e

U
se

r
ta

b
le

s
0

0

A
R

C
A

A
T

3
In

v
o

ic
e

>
li

m
it

A
li

st
o

f
cr

ed
it

m
em

o
s

th
a

t
w

er
e

a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
b

y
so

m
eb

o
d

y
w

h
er

e
th

e
to

ta
l

v
a

lu
e

ex
ce

ed
s

th
ei

r
a

u
th

o
ri

se
r

li
m

it
.

0
0

A
R

C
A

A
T

4
C

re
d

it
>

L
im

it
A

li
st

o
f

in
v

o
ic

e
s

th
a

t
w

er
e

a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
b

y
so

m
eb

o
d

y
w

h
er

e
th

e
to

ta
l

v
a

lu
e

ex
ce

ed
s

th
ei

r
a

u
th

o
ri

se
r

li
m

it
.

0
0

A
R

C
A

A
T

5
S

el
f-

A
u

th
o

ri
se

d
C

re
d

it
N

o
te

s
A

n
ex

tr
a

ct
o

f
u

se
rs

w
h

o
h

a
v

e
ra

is
ed

se
lf

-
a

u
th

o
ri

se
d

cr
ed

it
n

o
te

s
o

n
th

e
sy

st
em

0
0

T
o

ta
l

0
0

Page 143



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

1
7

o
f
3
7

N
D

R

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

V
a

lu
a

ti
o

n

N
D

R
1

R
ec

o
n

ci
li

a
ti

o
n

s
ta

k
e

p
la

ce
o

n
a

w
ee

k
ly

b
a

si
s

b
et

w
ee

n
th

e
G

ra
m

p
ia

n
J

o
in

t
V

a
lu

a
ti

o
n

B
o

a
rd

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
ro

ll
a

n
d

th
e

N
D

R
sy

st
em

,
w

h
ic

h
a

g
re

es
b

o
th

n
u

m
b

er
o

f
p

ro
p

er
ti

es
a

n
d

ra
te

a
b

le
v

a
lu

e.
T

h
es

e
a

re
si

g
n

ed
a

s
re

v
ie

w
ed

b
y

a
d

ep
a

rt
m

en
t

m
a

n
a

g
er

.

0
0

B
il

li
n

g

N
D

R
2

B
il

ls
a

re
ca

lc
u

la
te

d
a

u
to

m
a

ti
ca

ll
y

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

to
ea

ch
p

ro
p

er
ty

's
ra

te
a

b
le

v
a

lu
e

a
n

d
a

n
y

d
is

co
u

n
ts

/r
el

ie
fs

a
p

p
li

ed
.

0
0

C
o

ll
e

c
ti

o
n

N
D

R
3

A
rr

ea
rs

le
tt

er
s

a
re

a
u

to
m

a
ti

ca
ll

y
se

n
t

b
y

th
e

N
o

rt
h

g
a

te
sy

st
em

in
a

cc
o

rd
a

n
ce

w
it

h
a

p
re

-d
ef

in
ed

ca
le

n
d

a
r.

T
h

e
le

tt
er

s
a

re
ex

tr
a

ct
ed

fr
o

m
th

e
sy

st
em

in
a

fi
le

w
h

ic
h

is
sp

o
t

ch
ec

k
ed

b
y

th
e

T
ea

m
L

ea
d

er
.

T
h

e
fi

le
is

th
en

se
n

t
to

A
b

er
d

ee
n

sh
ir

e
C

o
u

n
ci

l
w

h
o

p
ri

n
t

th
e

le
tt

er
s.

T
h

e
le

tt
er

s
a

re
o

n
ce

a
g

a
in

ch
ec

k
ed

p
ri

o
r

to
b

e
in

g
se

n
t

to
b

u
si

n
es

se
s

b
y

th
e

N
D

R
T

ea
m

.

0
0

M
o

n
it

o
r

in
g

a
n

d
a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts

Page 144



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

1
8

o
f
3
7

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

N
D

R
4

W
ri

te
o

ff
s

a
n

d
re

fu
n

d
s

w
il

l
n

o
t

b
e

p
ro

ce
ss

ed
u

n
ti

l
th

e
re

le
v

a
n

t
fo

rm
h

a
s

b
ee

n
co

m
p

le
te

d
b

y
a

m
em

b
er

o
f

th
e

te
a

m
a

n
d

a
p

p
ro

v
ed

b
y

a
n

o
th

er
m

em
b

er
o

f
th

e
te

a
m

.
2

1

R
is

k
R

a
ti

n
g

:
L

o
w

F
o

r
1

o
u

t
o

f
2

0
re

fu
n

d
s

te
st

ed
it

w
a

s
id

en
ti

fi
ed

th
a

t
th

e
re

fu
n

d
h

a
d

b
ee

n
a

ct
io

n
ed

a
n

d
a

p
p

ro
v

ed
b

y
th

e
sa

m
e

p
er

so
n

.

S
ta

n
d

in
g

D
a

ta
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

N
D

R
5

G
en

er
a

l
N

D
R

p
o

li
ci

es
a

n
d

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s
su

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
N

D
R

p
ro

ce
ss

e
s

a
n

d
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
a

re
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

to
a

ll
st

a
ff

v
ia

R
o

b
o

h
el

p
.

0
0

N
D

R
6

A
cc

es
s

to
th

e
N

D
R

sy
st

em
is

re
st

ri
ct

ed
to

se
le

ct
m

em
b

er
s

o
f

st
a

ff
b

y
w

a
y

o
f

p
a

ss
w

o
rd

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

.
A

ll
u

se
rs

ex
ce

p
t

a
te

a
m

o
f

5
a

n
d

th
e

S
y

st
em

s
a

n
d

B
il

li
n

g
M

a
n

a
g

er
h

a
v

e
re

a
d

o
n

ly
a

cc
es

s.
P

a
ss

w
o

rd
s

a
re

p
ro

m
p

te
d

to
b

e
ch

a
n

g
ed

ev
er

y
9

0
d

a
y

s.

4
3

R
is

k
R

a
ti

n
g

:
L

o
w

3
u

se
rs

w
er

e
id

e
n

ti
fi

ed
w

it
h

a
cc

es
s

to
th

e
N

o
rt

h
g

a
te

sy
st

em
th

a
t

n
o

lo
n

g
er

re
q

u
ir

e
a

cc
es

s.
H

o
w

e
v

er
,

a
ll

th
re

e
u

se
rs

w
er

e
id

en
ti

fi
ed

a
s

h
a

v
in

g
n

o
t

lo
g

g
ed

in
to

th
ei

r
a

cc
o

u
n

ts
in

th
e

la
st

si
x

m
o

n
th

s.

T
o

ta
l

5
4

Page 145



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

1
9

o
f
3
7

P
a

y
r

o
ll

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
5

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

T
im

e
R

e
c

o
r

d
in

g

P
R

1
S

er
v

ic
es

p
ro

v
id

e
a

n
a

p
p

ro
v

ed
E

x
ce

l
sp

re
a

d
sh

ee
t

o
f

em
p

lo
y

ee
ti

m
es

h
ee

ts
to

p
a

y
ro

ll
fo

r
m

a
n

u
a

l
en

tr
y

.
0

0

P
a

y
r

o
ll

C
a

lc
u

la
ti

o
n

s

P
R

2
A

ll
sa

la
ri

es
g

re
a

te
r

th
a

n
£

4
.5

k
a

re
in

v
es

ti
g

a
te

d
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

ex
ce

p
ti

o
n

re
p

o
rt

in
g

p
er

fo
rm

ed
0

0

P
R

3
M

o
n

th
ly

st
a

ff
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
re

p
o

rt
s

a
re

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
to

b
u

d
g

et
h

o
ld

er
s

fo
r

re
v

ie
w

.
0

3

R
is

k
R

a
ti

n
g

:
L

o
w

F
o

r
3

o
u

t
o

f
2

5
te

st
e

d
,

ev
id

en
ce

co
u

ld
n

o
t

p
ro

v
id

ed
to

v
er

if
y

th
a

t
m

o
n

th
ly

st
a

ff
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
re

p
o

rt
s

h
a

d
b

ee
n

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
to

b
u

d
g

et
h

o
ld

er
s

fo
r

re
v

ie
w

.

S
ta

n
d

in
g

D
a

ta
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

P
R

4
P

ro
ce

d
u

re
s

a
re

d
o

cu
m

en
te

d
w

h
ic

h
d

et
a

il
d

a
y

to
d

a
y

o
p

er
a

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
p

a
y

ro
ll

sy
st

em
a

n
d

ro
le

s
a

n
d

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s.

0
0

P
R

5
N

ew
st

a
rt

s
re

q
u

ir
e

a
n

o
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
o

f
a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t

fo
rm

to
b

e
co

m
p

le
te

d
a

n
d

a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
b

y
H

R
p

ri
o

r
to

b
ei

n
g

in
p

u
t

in
to

th
e

P
a

y
ro

ll
sy

st
em

0
3

R
is

k
R

a
ti

n
g

:
M

ed
iu

m

F
o

r
3

o
u

t
o

f
2

5
n

e
w

em
p

lo
y

ee
s

te
st

ed
,

th
e

n
o

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

o
f

a
p

p
o

in
tm

en
t

fo
rm

h
a

d
n

o
t

b
ee

n
a

u
th

o
ri

se
d

b
y

H
R

p
ri

o
r

to
th

e
em

p
lo

y
e

e
b

ei
n

g
in

p
u

t
in

to
th

e
P

a
y

ro
ll

sy
st

em
.

Page 146



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

2
0

o
f
3
7

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
5

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

P
R

6
L

ea
v

er
s

re
q

u
ir

e
a

n
o

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

o
f

te
rm

in
a

ti
o

n
fo

rm
to

b
e

co
m

p
le

te
d

a
n

d
a

u
th

o
ri

se
d

b
y

H
R

p
ri

o
r

to
b

ei
n

g
in

p
u

t
in

to
th

e
P

a
y

ro
ll

sy
st

em
0

4

R
is

k
R

a
ti

n
g

:
L

o
w

F
o

r
4

o
u

t
o

f
2

5
te

st
e

d
,

th
e

n
o

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

o
f

te
rm

in
a

ti
o

n
fo

rm
co

u
ld

n
o

t
b

e
fo

u
n

d
to

v
er

if
y

th
a

t
a

le
a

v
er

h
a

d
b

ee
n

p
ro

p
er

ly
a

u
th

o
ri

se
d

b
y

H
R

b
ef

o
re

b
ei

n
g

re
m

o
v

ed
fr

o
m

th
e

P
a

y
ro

ll
sy

st
em

.

P
R

7
C

h
a

n
g

es
to

b
a

n
k

d
et

a
il

s
p

ro
ce

ss
ed

b
y

th
e

P
a

y
ro

ll
te

a
m

a
re

o
n

ly
a

ct
io

n
ed

o
n

re
ce

ip
t

o
f

w
ri

tt
en

n
o

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

fr
o

m
em

p
lo

y
ee

s.
0

0

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
a

n
d

p
e

r
io

d
e

n
d

c
lo

s
e

P
R

8
A

cc
es

s
to

th
e

p
a

y
ro

ll
sy

st
em

is
re

st
ri

ct
ed

to
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
st

a
ff

.
M

a
n

a
g

em
en

t
re

v
ie

w
a

cc
es

s
o

n
a

q
u

a
rt

er
ly

b
a

si
s

fo
r

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

n
es

s.
0

0

P
R

9
R

ec
o

n
ci

li
a

ti
o

n
s

a
re

p
er

fo
rm

ed
b

et
w

ee
n

th
e

p
a

y
ru

n
,

to
p

a
y

ro
ll

to
ta

ls
a

n
d

th
e

g
en

er
a

l
le

d
g

er
.

0
0

T
o

ta
l

0
1
0

Page 147



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

2
1

o
f
3
7

T
r

e
a

s
u

r
y

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
14

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

P
r

o
c

e
s
s

W
id

e
C

o
n

s
id

e
r

a
ti

o
n

s

T
R

1
A

T
re

a
su

ry
M

a
n

a
g

em
en

t
M

a
n

u
a

l
h

a
s

b
ee

n
p

re
p

a
re

d
to

p
ro

v
id

e
a

co
m

p
re

h
en

si
v

e
g

u
id

e
to

a
ll

a
sp

ec
ts

o
f

th
e

d
u

ti
es

in
v

o
lv

ed
in

T
re

a
su

ry
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

en
t

fo
r

A
C

C
.

0
0

T
R

2
S

ta
ff

re
ce

iv
e

tr
ea

su
ry

tr
a

in
in

g
a

n
d

re
fr

es
h

er
tr

a
in

in
g

o
n

a
re

g
u

la
r

b
a

si
s.

0
0

In
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t
T

r
a

n
s
a

c
ti

o
n

s

T
R

3
T

re
a

su
ry

re
v

ie
w

th
e

w
ee

k
ly

cr
e

d
it

ra
ti

n
g

s
p

ro
d

u
ce

d
b

y
C

a
p

it
a

.
T

h
es

e
a

re
th

en
u

se
d

to
u

p
d

a
te

th
e

a
p

p
ro

v
ed

li
st

o
f

d
ep

o
si

t
ta

k
er

s.
0

0

T
R

4
T

h
e

F
in

a
n

ce
,

P
o

li
cy

a
n

d
R

e
so

u
rc

es
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

(F
P

R
)

a
p

p
ro

v
e

a
ll

ch
a

n
g

e
s

to
th

e
d

ep
o

si
t

ta
k

er
s

li
st

a
n

d
th

e
in

v
es

tm
e

n
t

li
m

it
s

fo
r

ea
ch

co
u

n
te

rp
a

rt
y

.
0

0

T
R

5
T

h
er

e
is

a
cl

ea
r

se
g

re
g

a
ti

o
n

o
f

d
u

ti
es

b
et

w
ee

n
o

ff
ic

er
s

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
fo

r
d

ea
li

n
g

,
re

co
rd

in
g

a
n

d
re

ce
iv

in
g

co
n

fi
rm

a
ti

o
n

o
f

tr
a

n
sa

ct
io

n
s

0
1

R
is

k
R

a
ti

n
g

:
M

ed
iu

m

S
ee

C
o

n
tr

o
l

T
R

13
.

T
R

6
In

te
re

st
R

a
te

s
a

n
d

B
a

n
k

B
a

la
n

ce
s

sh
ee

ts
(D

R
IB

B
)

a
re

co
m

p
le

te
d

d
a

il
y

a
n

d
a

u
th

o
ri

se
d

0
0

T
R

7
T

h
e

in
v

e
st

m
en

t
sy

st
em

(P
S

T
M

)
is

co
n

fi
g

u
re

d
so

th
a

t
in

v
es

tm
e

n
t

d
ep

o
si

ts
ca

n
n

o
t

ex
ce

ed
th

e
li

m
it

s
se

t
b

y
th

e
F

P
R

o
n

th
e

co
u

n
te

rp
a

rt
y

li
st

.
0

0

Page 148



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

2
2

o
f
3
7

T
R

8

A
ll

d
ea

le
r

re
ce

ip
ts

o
f

n
ew

b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
s

a
re

re
ta

in
ed

a
n

d
ca

n
n

o
t

ex
ce

ed
P

ru
d

en
ti

a
l

C
o

d
e

li
m

it
s

a
s

se
t

a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
.

In
a

d
d

it
io

n
,

a
ll

ex
te

rn
a

l
lo

a
n

p
ro

v
id

er
s

a
re

is
su

ed
w

it
h

a
n

A
C

C
le

tt
er

si
g

n
e

d
a

s
a

u
th

o
ri

se
d

.

0
0

T
R

9
P

S
T

M
ca

lc
u

la
te

s
re

p
a

y
m

en
ts

a
n

d
in

te
re

st
.

T
h

e
T

re
a

su
ry

O
ff

ic
er

se
n

se
ch

ec
k

s
a

ll
ca

lc
u

la
ti

o
n

s
b

e
fo

re
p

a
y

m
en

t.
0

0

T
R

1
0

A
re

g
is

te
r

m
a

in
ta

in
ed

to
a

cc
o

u
n

t
fo

r
a

ll
fi

x
ed

te
rm

lo
a

n
s.

T
h

is
is

p
ro

d
u

ce
d

el
ec

tr
o

n
ic

a
ll

y
to

sh
o

w
th

e
p

ri
n

ci
p

a
l

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

lo
a

n
,i

n
te

re
st

ra
te

,
in

te
re

st
p

a
y

m
en

t
d

a
te

a
s

w
el

l
a

s
th

e
fe

e
p

a
y

a
b

le
to

th
e

b
ro

k
er

fo
r

a
rr

a
n

g
in

g
th

e
lo

a
n

(1
/1

0
th

%
o

f
th

e
lo

a
n

a
m

o
u

n
t

a
n

d
p

er
io

d
-

p
ro

ra
te

d
if

le
ss

th
a

n
12

m
o

n
th

s)
.

0
0

T
R

1
1

A
ll

ch
a

n
g

es
to

b
o

rr
o

w
er

b
a

n
k

d
et

a
il

s
m

u
st

b
e

a
cc

o
m

p
a

n
ie

d
b

y
a

si
g

n
ed

le
tt

er
h

ea
d

fr
o

m
th

e
ex

te
rn

a
l

p
a

rt
y

.
0

0

T
R

1
2

A
ll

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
re

q
u

ir
e

a
u

th
o

ri
sa

ti
o

n
b

y
so

m
eo

n
e

se
p

a
ra

te
fr

o
m

w
h

o
ra

is
e

s
th

e
p

a
y

m
en

t
w

it
h

in
th

e
o

n
li

n
e

b
a

n
k

in
g

sy
st

em
.

0
0

T
R

1
3

A
ll

le
d

g
er

p
o

st
in

g
sl

ip
s

fo
r

p
a

y
m

en
t

a
re

p
re

p
a

re
d

a
n

d
a

u
th

o
ri

se
d

p
ri

o
r

to
in

p
u

t
in

to
th

e
le

d
g

er
.

6
2

R
is

k
R

a
ti

n
g

:
M

ed
iu

m

F
o

r
2

o
u

t
o

f
2

0
p

o
st

in
g

sl
ip

s
fo

r
p

a
y

m
en

t
te

st
ed

,
ev

id
en

ce
co

u
ld

n
o

t
b

e
o

b
ta

in
e

d
o

f
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
a

u
th

o
ri

sa
ti

o
n

si
g

n
a

tu
re

.

T
R

1
4

A
ll

b
ro

k
er

p
a

y
m

en
ts

a
re

a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
b

y
th

e
C

h
ie

f
A

cc
o

u
n

ta
n

t
p

ri
o

r
to

p
a

y
m

en
t

a
n

d
a

g
re

ed
to

b
ro

k
er

st
a

te
m

en
ts

.
0

0

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
a

n
d

p
e

r
io

d
e

n
d

c
lo

s
e

T
R

1
5

A
m

o
n

th
ly

re
co

n
ci

li
a

ti
o

n
is

co
m

p
le

te
d

w
h

en
a

ll
le

d
g

er
en

tr
ie

s
fo

r
th

e
p

er
io

d
h

a
v

e
b

ee
n

p
o

st
ed

(s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
7

d
a

y
s

a
ft

er
th

e
en

d
o

f
ea

ch
p

er
io

d
).

T
h

e
T

re
a

su
ry

O
ff

ic
er

p
ro

d
u

ce
s

a
re

p
o

rt
co

v
er

in
g

in
te

re
st

p
a

y
m

en
ts

a
n

d
ex

p
en

se
s,

lo
a

n
s

(l
o

n
g

a
n

d
sh

o
rt

te
rm

)
th

ro
u

g
h

u
se

o
f

a
n

a
n

a
ly

se
r

re
p

o
rt

w
ri

ti
n

g
to

o
l

fo
r

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
d

o
w

n
lo

a
d

ed
fr

o
m

ef
in

a
n

ci
a

ls
.

T
h

e
T

re
a

su
ry

O
ff

ic
er

su
b

m
it

s
th

e
re

p
o

rt
to

th
e

C
h

ie
f

A
cc

o
u

n
ta

n
t

w
h

o
ch

ec
k

s
a

sa
m

p
le

o
f

en
tr

ie
s

o
n

th
e

re
p

o
rt

a
g

a
in

st
su

p
p

o
rt

in
g

sp
re

a
d

sh
ee

t
re

co
rd

s.

0
0

Page 149



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

2
3

o
f
3
7

T
o

ta
l

6
2

Page 150



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

2
4

o
f
3
7

C
a

s
h

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

C
1

T
h

er
e

a
re

a
n

u
m

b
er

o
f

d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
in

p
la

ce
co

n
ta

in
in

g
p

ro
ce

d
u

ra
l

g
u

id
a

n
ce

fo
r

ca
sh

.
T

h
es

e
a

re
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

w
it

h
in

a
sh

a
re

d
fi

le
o

n
th

e
sy

st
em

a
n

d
a

re
re

v
ie

w
ed

a
n

d
u

p
d

a
te

d
re

g
u

la
rl

y
.

0
0

C
2

T
h

e
b

a
n

k
re

co
n

ci
li

a
ti

o
n

te
a

m
a

re
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

fo
r

m
a

in
ta

in
in

g
th

e
ca

sh
b

o
o

k
.

T
h

er
e

is
a

se
p

a
ra

te
ca

sh
ie

r
o

ff
ic

e
w

h
o

is
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

fo
r

h
a

n
d

li
n

g
ca

sh
.

0
0

C
3

M
o

st
b

a
n

k
a

cc
o

u
n

ts
a

re
re

co
n

ci
le

d
o

n
a

m
o

n
th

ly
b

a
si

s
a

ft
er

m
o

n
th

en
d

.
R

ec
o

n
ci

li
a

ti
o

n
s

a
re

re
v

ie
w

ed
a

n
d

si
g

n
ed

o
ff

b
y

a
m

o
re

se
n

io
r

te
a

m
m

em
b

er
.

T
h

e
g

en
er

a
l

a
cc

o
u

n
t

is
n

o
w

re
co

n
ci

le
d

o
n

a
d

a
il

y
b

a
si

s.
T

h
e

cu
rr

en
t

p
la

n
is

to
m

o
v

e
a

ll
b

a
n

k
a

cc
o

u
n

ts
to

d
a

il
y

re
co

n
ci

li
a

ti
o

n
s.

2
5

0

C
4

U
n

a
ll

o
ca

te
d

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
a

re
re

v
ie

w
ed

in
to

a
tt

em
p

t
to

cl
ea

r
tr

a
n

sa
ct

io
n

s.
T

h
e

b
a

n
k

re
c

te
a

m
a

ls
o

h
a

v
e

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
fo

r
th

e
d

eb
to

r’
s

su
sp

en
se

a
cc

o
u

n
t.

0
0

C
5

A
cc

es
s

to
o

n
li

n
e

b
a

n
k

in
g

is
re

st
ri

ct
ed

b
y

u
se

rn
a

m
e

a
n

d
p

a
ss

w
o

rd
a

n
d

a
se

cu
ri

ty
fo

b
.

A
cc

es
s

to
th

e
B

a
n

k
R

ec
sy

st
em

is
re

st
ri

ct
ed

b
y

u
se

rn
a

m
e

a
n

d
p

a
ss

w
o

rd
.

A
cc

es
s

to
th

e
Ic

o
n

sy
st

em
(i

n
co

m
e

tr
a

n
sa

ct
io

n
s)

is
re

st
ri

ct
ed

b
y

u
se

rn
a

m
e

a
n

d
p

a
ss

w
o

rd
.

0
0

T
o

ta
l

2
5

0

Page 151



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

2
5

o
f
3
7

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
P

a
y

a
b

le

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

O
r

d
e

r
in

g

A
P

1
P

u
rc

h
a

se
o

rd
er

s
w

it
h

n
ew

v
en

d
o

rs
re

q
u

ir
e

re
v

ie
w

a
n

d
a

p
p

ro
v

a
l

fr
o

m
m

a
n

a
g

em
en

t
a

n
d

u
p

d
a

te
to

th
e

v
en

d
o

r
m

a
st

er
fi

le
b

y
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t.

0
2

R
is

k
R

a
ti

n
g

:
M

ed
iu

m

F
o

r
2

o
u

t
o

f
2

5
te

st
ed

,
th

e
re

v
ie

w
a

n
d

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l
b

y
m

a
n

a
g

em
en

t
co

u
ld

n
o

t
b

e
ev

id
en

ce
d

p
ri

o
r

to
th

e
v

en
d

o
r

b
ei

n
g

cr
ea

te
d

in
th

e
v

e
n

d
o

r
m

a
st

er
fi

le
.

A
P

2
A

P
fo

re
n

si
cs

so
ft

w
a

re
is

u
se

d
to

sc
a

n
th

e
p

a
y

m
en

ts
fi

le
fo

r
d

u
p

li
ca

te
p

a
y

m
en

ts
a

n
d

fr
a

u
d

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

.
It

em
s

fl
a

g
g

ed
b

y
th

e
so

ft
w

a
re

a
re

st
o

p
p

ed
fr

o
m

p
a

y
m

en
t

u
n

ti
l

in
v

es
ti

g
a

te
d

.
0

0

A
P

3
T

h
e

re
le

a
se

o
f

ch
eq

u
es

fo
r

p
ri

n
ti

n
g

a
n

d
si

g
n

in
g

o
r

re
le

a
se

o
f

el
ec

tr
o

n
ic

fu
n

d
s

is
ca

rr
ie

d
o

u
t

b
y

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
se

p
a

ra
te

fr
o

m
th

o
se

w
h

o
g

iv
e

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l
fo

r
in

v
o

ic
es

.
0

0

A
P

4

A
cc

es
s

to
p

ro
ce

ss
d

is
b

u
rs

em
en

ts
is

se
g

re
g

a
te

d
fr

o
m

v
e

n
d

o
r

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

,
p

u
rc

h
a

si
n

g
,

g
o

o
d

s
re

ce
ip

ts
,

a
n

d
a

cc
o

u
n

ts
p

a
y

a
b

le
.

T
h

e
d

is
b

u
rs

em
en

t
a

p
p

ro
v

a
l

fu
n

ct
io

n
s

a
n

d
th

e
d

is
b

u
rs

em
e

n
t

p
re

p
a

ra
ti

o
n

fu
n

ct
io

n
s

a
re

se
g

re
g

a
te

d
.

T
h

e
re

co
rd

in
g

o
f

ca
sh

d
is

b
u

rs
em

en
ts

is
se

g
re

g
a

te
d

fr
o

m
th

e
g

en
er

a
l

le
d

g
er

fu
n

ct
io

n
.

0
0

Page 152



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

2
6

o
f
3
7

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

S
ta

n
d

in
g

D
a

ta
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

A
P

6

O
n

a
w

ee
k

ly
b

a
si

s,
a

m
em

b
er

o
f

th
e

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

P
a

y
a

b
le

te
a

m
ru

n
s

a
re

p
o

rt
sh

o
w

in
g

a
ll

ch
a

n
g

es
to

st
a

n
d

in
g

d
a

ta
.

A
sa

m
p

le
is

th
en

se
le

ct
ed

fr
o

m
th

es
e

ch
a

n
g

es
(t

y
p

ic
a

ll
y

a
sa

m
p

le
o

f
5

)
a

n
d

tr
a

ce
d

to
so

m
e

fo
rm

o
f

b
a

ck
u

p
.

T
h

is
te

a
m

m
em

b
er

th
en

p
er

fo
rm

s
a

g
en

e
ra

l
o

v
er

a
ll

ch
ec

k
fo

r
re

a
so

n
a

b
le

n
es

s
o

f
a

ll
ch

a
n

g
es

.

0
2

R
is

k
R

a
ti

n
g

:
M

ed
iu

m

F
o

r
2

w
ee

k
s

o
u

t
o

f
a

sa
m

p
le

te
st

ed
o

f
5

,
ev

id
e

n
ce

co
u

ld
n

o
t

b
e

p
ro

v
id

ed
to

v
er

if
y

th
a

t
th

e
w

ee
k

ly
a

u
d

it
re

v
ie

w
h

a
d

b
ee

n
p

er
fo

rm
ed

o
f

ch
a

n
g

es
to

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

P
a

y
a

b
le

st
a

n
d

in
g

d
a

ta
.

T
o

ta
l

2
4

Page 153



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

2
7

o
f
3
7

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
P

a
y

a
b

le
–

C
A

A
T

s

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

T
it

le
D

e
s
c

r
ip

ti
o

n
E

x
c

e
p

ti
o

n
s

fr
o

m
s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

A
P

C
A

A
T

1
G

L
a

u
th

o
ri

se
r

n
o

t
in

u
se

r
ta

b
le

A
li

st
o

f
u

se
rs

w
h

o
h

a
v

e
tr

a
n

sa
ct

io
n

s
in

th
e

P
u

rc
h

a
se

L
ed

g
er

b
u

t
n

o
en

tr
y

in
th

e
U

se
r

ta
b

le
s

0
0

A
P

C
A

A
T

2
C

re
d

it
li

m
it

s
>

li
m

it
A

li
st

o
f

cr
ed

it
p

u
rc

h
a

se
s

th
a

t
w

er
e

a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
b

y
so

m
eb

o
d

y
w

h
er

e
th

e
to

ta
l

v
a

lu
e

ex
ce

ed
s

th
ei

r
a

u
th

o
ri

se
r

li
m

it
.

0
0

A
P

C
A

A
T

3
P

u
rc

h
a

se
In

v
o

ic
e

s
>

L
im

it

A
li

st
o

f
p

u
rc

h
a

se
in

v
o

ic
e

s
th

a
t

w
er

e
a

u
th

o
ri

se
d

b
y

so
m

eb
o

d
y

w
h

er
e

th
e

to
ta

l
v

a
lu

e
ex

ce
ed

s
th

ei
r

a
u

th
o

ri
se

r
li

m
it

.
0

0

A
P

C
A

A
T

4
S

u
p

p
li

er
s

w
it

h
N

o
b

a
n

k
d

et
a

il
s

A
li

st
o

f
su

p
p

li
er

s
th

a
t

d
o

n
o

t
h

a
v

e
a

n
y

d
et

a
il

s.
0

0

A
P

C
A

A
T

5
S

u
p

p
li

er
s

w
it

h
th

e
sa

m
e

b
a

n
k

d
et

a
il

s
a

s
E

m
p

lo
y

ee
s

A
li

st
o

f
su

p
p

li
er

s
a

n
d

em
p

lo
y

e
es

w
it

h
m

a
tc

h
in

g
b

a
n

k
d

et
a

il
s

0
0

A
P

C
A

A
T

6

E
m

p
lo

y
ee

s
th

a
t

h
a

v
e

D
u

p
li

ca
te

B
a

n
k

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

in
th

e
sy

st
em

A
li

st
o

f
d

u
p

li
ca

te
b

a
n

k
d

et
a

il
s

in
th

e
sy

st
em

.
0

0

A
P

C
A

A
T

7
S

u
p

p
li

er
s

w
it

h
D

u
p

li
ca

te
en

tr
ie

s

A
li

st
o

f
su

p
p

li
er

s
w

it
h

d
u

p
li

ca
te

en
tr

ie
s

in
th

e
su

p
p

li
er

ta
b

le
(b

a
se

d
o

n
th

e
a

cc
o

u
n

t
n

u
m

b
er

a
n

d
so

rt
co

d
e)

.
T

h
e

ri
sk

h
er

e
is

d
u

p
li

ca
te

p
a

y
m

en
ts

.

0
0

T
o

ta
l

0
0

Page 154



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

2
8

o
f
3
7

C
o

u
n

c
il

T
a

x

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

C
T

1

W
ee

k
ly

a
ss

e
ss

o
r

re
p

o
rt

s
a

re
re

ce
iv

ed
a

n
d

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
is

u
p

d
a

te
d

in
to

th
e

C
o

u
n

ci
l

T
a

x
sy

st
em

m
a

n
u

a
ll

y
.

R
ep

o
rt

s
a

re
si

g
n

ed
o

n
ce

u
p

d
a

te
d

a
n

d
st

o
re

d
w

it
h

in
th

e
d

ep
a

rt
m

en
t.

5
0

C
T

2

A
b

i-
a

n
n

u
a

l
re

co
n

ci
li

a
ti

o
n

is
p

er
fo

rm
ed

b
et

w
ee

n
a

fu
ll

li
st

in
g

o
f

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

a
n

d
b

a
n

d
s

re
ce

iv
ed

fr
o

m
th

e
a

ss
e

ss
o

r
a

n
d

a
re

p
o

rt
ru

n
fr

o
m

th
e

A
ca

d
em

y
sy

st
em

.
A

n
y

v
a

ri
a

n
ce

s
a

re
fl

a
g

g
ed

a
n

d
in

v
es

ti
g

a
te

d
.

0
0

C
T

3

T
h

e
A

ca
d

em
y

sy
st

em
a

u
to

m
a

ti
ca

ll
y

ca
lc

u
la

te
s

co
u

n
ci

l
ta

x
b

il
ls

b
a

se
d

o
n

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
w

it
h

in
th

e
sy

st
em

.

0
0

S
y

st
em

p
a

ra
m

et
er

s
en

te
re

d
a

t
th

e
st

a
rt

o
f

ea
ch

y
ea

r,
a

re

in
d

ep
en

d
e

n
tl

y
ch

ec
k

ed
a

n
d

a
re

in
li

n
e

w
it

h
d

ec
is

io
n

s
ta

k
en

b
y

th
e

C
o

u
n

ci
l.

C
T

4
C

a
p

a
b

il
it

y
to

m
a

k
e

ch
a

n
g

es
to

sy
st

em
p

a
ra

m
et

er
s

is
re

st
ri

ct
e

d
to

th
e

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

p
eo

p
le

.
0

0

C
T

5
D

is
co

u
n

ts
a

re
ca

lc
u

la
te

d
a

u
to

m
a

ti
ca

ll
y

b
a

se
d

o
n

sy
st

em
p

a
ra

m
et

er
s

w
it

h
in

A
ca

d
em

y
.

0
0

C
T

6
D

is
co

u
n

ts
a

re
o

n
ly

a
w

a
rd

ed
fo

ll
o

w
in

g
re

v
ie

w
o

f
re

le
v

a
n

t
su

p
p

o
rt

in
g

d
o

cu
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
(i

.e
.

E
v

id
en

ce
o

f
st

u
d

e
n

t
m

a
tr

ic
u

la
ti

o
n

)
0

0

Page 155



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

2
9

o
f
3
7

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

C
T

7
T

h
e

A
ca

d
em

y
sy

st
em

a
u

to
m

a
ti

ca
ll

y
g

e
n

er
a

te
s

a
le

tt
er

if
p

a
y

m
en

ts
a

re
o

v
er

d
u

e.
R

em
in

d
er

le
tt

er
s

a
n

d
fi

n
a

l
re

m
in

d
er

le
tt

er
s

a
re

a
ls

o
a

u
to

m
a

ti
ca

ll
y

g
e

n
er

a
te

d
.

0
0

C
T

8

C
o

u
n

ci
l

ta
x

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s
a

re
co

n
ta

in
ed

w
it

h
in

a
ce

n
tr

a
l

d
o

cu
m

en
t

li
b

ra
ry

(R
o

b
o

h
el

p
).

N
/A

0
R

o
b

o
h

el
p

is
u

p
d

a
te

d
re

g
u

la
rl

y
in

li
n

e
w

it
h

st
a

tu
to

ry
re

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s.

C
T

9
R

ef
u

n
d

s
m

u
st

b
e

a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
b

y
th

e
te

a
m

le
a

d
er

p
ri

o
r

to
b

ei
n

g
p

ro
ce

ss
ed

.
0

0

C
T

1
0

T
h

e
H

ea
d

o
f

F
in

a
n

ce
m

u
st

a
p

p
ro

v
e

w
ri

te
-o

ff
s

o
f

£
10

,0
0

0
a

n
d

o
v

er
.

A
n

a
n

n
u

a
l

re
p

o
rt

is
su

b
m

it
te

d
to

th
e

F
in

a
n

ce
a

n
d

R
es

o
u

rc
es

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
in

d
ic

a
ti

n
g

th
e

to
ta

ls
w

ri
tt

en
o

ff
.

0
0

T
o

ta
l

5
0

Page 156



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

3
0

o
f
3
7

H
o

u
s

in
g

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

C
o

n
tr

o
l

R
e

fe
r

e
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

o
l

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

2
0

1
4

E
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
fr

o
m

s
ix

m
o

n
th

s
to

3
1

M
a

r
c

h
2

0
1
5

N
o

te
s

o
n

e
x

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
r

e
a

s
n

o
t

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

H
B

1

A
w

a
rd

s
a

re
p

ro
ce

ss
ed

o
n

ly
o

n
re

ce
ip

t
o

f
a

p
ro

p
er

ly
co

m
p

le
te

d
cl

a
im

fo
rm

si
g

n
ed

b
y

th
e

cl
a

im
a

n
t

w
it

h
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
su

p
p

o
rt

in
g

d
o

cu
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
a

n
d

,
in

th
e

ca
se

o
f

in
co

m
e

su
p

p
o

rt
ca

se
s,

su
p

p
o

rt
fr

o
m

th
e

B
en

ef
it

s
A

g
e

n
cy

.

0
0

H
B

2
C

la
im

a
n

t'
s

te
n

a
n

cy
d

et
a

il
s

a
re

v
er

if
ie

d
a

g
a

in
st

h
o

u
si

n
g

re
co

rd
s

(l
o

ca
l

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

te
n

a
n

ts
)

o
r

te
n

a
n

cy
a

g
re

em
en

ts
(p

ri
v

a
te

se
ct

o
r

te
n

a
n

ts
).

0
0

H
B

3
T

h
e

re
n

t
a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

el
em

en
ts

o
f

th
e

b
en

e
fi

t
sy

st
e

m
a

re
re

g
u

la
rl

y
re

co
n

ci
le

d
w

it
h

th
e

re
n

t
a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
sy

st
em

fo
r

co
u

n
ci

l
te

n
a

n
ts

.
0

0

H
B

4
T

h
e

re
n

t
re

b
a

te
el

em
en

ts
o

f
th

e
b

en
e

fi
t

sy
st

e
m

a
re

re
g

u
la

rl
y

re
co

n
ci

le
d

w
it

h
th

e
re

n
t

a
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

sy
st

e
m

fo
r

co
u

n
ci

l
te

n
a

n
ts

.
0

0

H
B

5
R

en
t

a
ll

o
w

a
n

ce
p

a
y

m
en

t
ru

n
s

a
re

ex
a

m
in

ed
fo

r
re

a
so

n
a

b
le

n
e

ss
o

f
a

m
o

u
n

ts
a

n
d

co
rr

ec
t

le
d

g
er

co
d

in
g

,
a

n
d

a
re

a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
b

y
a

se
n

io
r

o
ff

ic
er

0
0

H
B

7
A

d
eq

u
a

te
se

cu
ri

ty
ex

is
ts

o
v

er
p

a
y

m
en

ts
m

a
d

e
b

y
ch

eq
u

e
a

n
d

th
e

ci
rc

u
m

st
a

n
ce

s
b

eh
in

d
lo

st
,

st
o

le
n

,
o

r
u

n
ca

sh
ed

ch
eq

u
e

s
a

re
fo

ll
o

w
ed

u
p

.
0

0

H
B

8
A

fo
rm

a
l

p
o

li
cy

ex
is

ts
to

co
v

er
a

p
p

ro
a

ch
to

re
co

v
er

in
g

o
v

er
p

a
y

m
en

ts
a

n
d

th
e

C
o

u
n

ci
l

h
a

s
in

st
it

u
te

d
p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s

fo
r

it
s

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
.

0
0

H
B

8
P

ro
ce

d
u

re
s

ex
is

t
to

en
su

re
th

e
co

rr
ec

t
cl

a
ss

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

o
f

o
v

er
p

a
y

m
en

ts
b

et
w

ee
n

L
A

er
ro

r,
cl

a
im

a
n

t
er

ro
r,

fr
a

u
d

u
le

n
t,

o
th

er
er

ro
r,

a
n

d
te

ch
n

ic
a

l.
0

0

H
B

9
O

v
er

p
a

y
m

en
ts

to
b

e
w

ri
tt

en
o

ff
o

r
li

st
ed

a
s

n
o

n
-r

ec
o

v
er

a
b

le
m

u
st

b
e

a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
b

y
th

e
te

a
m

le
a

d
er

.
0

0

H
B

1
0

Is
su

e
s

o
f

fr
a

u
d

a
re

p
a

ss
ed

to
th

e
fr

a
u

d
in

v
es

ti
g

a
ti

o
n

te
a

m
.

T
h

e
d

ec
is

io
n

to
in

v
es

ti
g

a
te

th
e

fr
a

u
d

o
r

n
o

t
is

n
o

te
d

w
it

h
in

th
e

sy
st

em
a

s
is

th
e

o
u

tc
o

m
e.

4
0

T
o

ta
l

4
0

Page 157



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

3
1

o
f
3
7

4
.

C
o

n
tr

o
l

d
e

s
ig

n
im

p
r

o
v

e
m

e
n

ts
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

W
e

h
a

v
e

n
o

te
d

b
el

o
w

w
h

er
e

th
e

d
es

ig
n

o
f

co
n

tr
o

ls
co

u
ld

b
e

im
p

ro
v

ed
to

fu
rt

h
er

e
n

h
a

n
ce

th
e

co
n

tr
o

l
en

v
ir

o
n

m
en

t
o

r
to

im
p

ro
v

e
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

.

A
c

c
o

u
n

ts
R

e
c

e
iv

a
b

le

1
.

U
n

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
r

e
c

e
ip

ts
a

r
e

n
o

t
b

e
in

g
r

e
v

ie
w

e
d

to
c

le
a

r
c

u
s

to
m

e
r

in
v

o
ic

e
s

–
M

e
d

iu
m

R
is

k

M
a

tt
e

r
s

a
r

is
in

g

T
h

er
e

co
n

ti
n

u
es

to
b

e
n

o
co

n
tr

o
l

in
p

la
ce

to
en

su
re

u
n

id
en

ti
fi

ed
ca

sh
re

ce
ip

ts
a

re
a

ll
o

ca
te

d
to

in
v

o
ic

es
.

R
is

k

W
h

er
e

re
ce

ip
ts

a
re

n
o

t
m

a
tc

h
ed

to
in

v
o

ic
es

th
er

e
is

a
ri

sk
th

a
t

th
e

C
o

u
n

ci
l

d
o

es
n

o
t

h
a

v
e

fu
ll

v
is

ib
il

it
y

o
v

er
th

e
a

m
o

u
n

ts
o

w
ed

to
th

e
C

o
u

n
ci

l
b

y
d

e
b

to
rs

.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

F
in

a
n

ce
sh

o
u

ld
re

v
ie

w
th

e
u

n
id

en
ti

fi
ed

ca
sh

re
ce

ip
ts

to
a

ll
o

ca
te

th
es

e
to

u
n

p
a

id
in

v
o

ic
es

in
th

e
A

cc
o

u
n

ts
R

ec
ei

v
a

b
le

sy
st

e
m

.

A
co

n
tr

o
l

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
to

re
g

u
la

rl
y

re
v

ie
w

u
n

a
ll

o
ca

te
d

p
a

y
m

en
ts

a
n

d
to

m
a

tc
h

th
es

e
to

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

d
eb

to
rs

a
cc

o
u

n
ts

.

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
O

ff
ic

e
r

:

B
il

li
n

g
a

n
d

C
o

ll
ec

ti
o

n
M

a
n

a
g

er

T
a

r
g

e
t

D
a

te
:

J
u

n
e

2
0

15

Page 158



C
o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
A

u
d

it
in

g

P
a
g
e

3
2

o
f
3
7

N
D

R

1
.

U
s

e
r

a
c

c
e

s
s

to
N

o
r

th
g

a
te

is
n

o
t

b
e

in
g

r
e

g
u

la
r

ly
r

e
v

ie
w

e
d

–
L

o
w

R
is

k

M
a

tt
e

r
s

a
r

is
in

g

O
u

r
re

v
ie

w
o

f
u

se
r

a
cc

es
s

to
N

o
rt

h
g

a
te

id
en

ti
fi

ed
th

re
e

a
ct

iv
e

u
se

r
a

cc
o

u
n

ts
th

a
t

n
o

lo
n

g
er

re
q

u
ir

ed
a

cc
es

s
to

th
e

sy
st

em
.

A
ll

th
re

e
a

cc
o

u
n

ts
h

a
d

b
e

en
id

en
ti

fi
ed

a
s

h
a

v
in

g
n

o
t

lo
g

g
ed

in
in

th
e

la
st

si
x

m
o

n
th

s.
T

h
is

is
sy

st
em

a
ti

c
o

f
th

e
fa

ct
th

a
t

th
er

e
is

n
o

re
v

ie
w

ta
k

in
g

p
la

ce
to

ch
ec

k
w

h
et

h
er

u
se

rs
w

h
o

h
a

v
e

b
ee

n
g

ra
n

te
d

a
cc

es
s

to
th

is
sy

st
em

st
il

l
re

q
u

ir
e

th
a

t
a

cc
es

s.

R
is

k

In
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
a

cc
es

s
to

sy
st

em
s

ca
n

u
n

d
er

m
in

e
se

g
re

g
a

ti
o

n
o

f
d

u
ti

es
co

n
tr

o
ls

a
n

d
ex

p
o

se
s

th
e

C
o

u
n

ci
l

to
th

e
ri

sk
o

f
fr

a
u

d
o

r
er

ro
r

w
h

er
e

u
se

rs
h

a
v

e
a

cc
es

s

th
a

t
is

n
o

t
co

m
m

en
su

ra
te

w
it

h
th

e
ir

jo
b

ro
le

a
n

d
re

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
ie

s.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

A
q

u
a

rt
er

ly
re

v
ie

w
o

f
u

se
r

a
cc

es
s

to
N

o
rt

h
g

a
te

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
w

it
h

th
e

S
y

st
em

s
a

n
d

B
il

li
n

g
M

a
n

a
g

er
si

g
n

in
g

o
ff

a
cc

es
s

a
s

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

.

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
O

ff
ic

e
r

:

S
y

st
em

s
a

n
d

B
il

li
n

g
M

a
n

a
g

er

T
a

r
g

e
t

D
a

te
:

S
ep

te
m

b
er

2
0

15

Page 159



P
a
g
e

3
3

o
f
3
7

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
1
:

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

c
r

it
e

r
ia

P
ri

o
ri

ty
ra

ti
n

g
s

u
se

d
fo

r
th

e
co

n
tr

o
l

d
es

ig
n

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
.

R
is

k
r

a
ti

n
g

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
r

a
ti

o
n

a
le

C
r

it
ic

a
l

C
o

n
tr

o
l

w
ea

k
n

es
s

th
a

t
co

u
ld

h
a

v
e

a
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t
im

p
a

ct
u

p
o

n
n

o
t

o
n

ly
th

e
sy

st
em

,
fu

n
ct

io
n

o
r

p
ro

ce
ss

o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s,
b

u
t

a
ls

o
th

e
a

ch
ie

v
em

en
t

o
f

th
e

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
’s

o
b

je
ct

iv
es

in
re

la
ti

o
n

to
:

T
h

e
ef

fi
ci

en
t

a
n

d
ef

fe
ct

iv
e

u
se

o
f

re
so

u
rc

es

T
h

e
sa

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
o

f
a

ss
et

s

T
h

e
p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
o

f
re

li
a

b
le

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l
a

n
d

o
p

er
a

ti
o

n
a

l
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

li
a

n
ce

w
it

h
la

w
s

a
n

d
re

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s.

H
ig

h
C

o
n

tr
o

l
w

ea
k

n
es

s
th

a
t

h
a

s
o

r
is

li
k

e
ly

to
h

a
v

e
a

si
g

n
if

ic
a

n
t

im
p

a
ct

u
p

o
n

th
e

a
ch

ie
v

em
en

t
o

f
k

ey
sy

st
em

,
fu

n
ct

io
n

o
r

p
ro

ce
ss

o
b

je
ct

iv
es

.

T
h

is
w

ea
k

n
es

s,
w

h
il

st
h

ig
h

im
p

a
ct

fo
r

th
e

sy
st

em
,

fu
n

ct
io

n
o

r
p

ro
ce

ss
d

o
es

n
o

t
h

a
v

e
a

si
g

n
if

ic
a

n
t

im
p

a
ct

o
n

th
e

a
ch

ie
v

em
en

t
o

f
th

e
o

v
er

a
ll

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l
o

b
je

ct
iv

es
.

M
e

d
iu

m
C

o
n

tr
o

l
w

ea
k

n
es

s
th

a
t

h
a

s
a

lo
w

im
p

a
ct

o
n

th
e

a
ch

ie
v

em
e

n
t

o
f

th
e

k
ey

sy
st

em
,

fu
n

ct
io

n
o

r
p

ro
ce

ss
o

b
je

ct
iv

e
s;

o
r

T
h

is
w

ea
k

n
es

s
h

a
s

ex
p

o
se

d
th

e
sy

st
em

,
fu

n
ct

io
n

o
r

p
ro

ce
ss

to
a

k
ey

ri
sk

,
h

o
w

ev
er

th
e

li
k

el
ih

o
o

d
o

f
th

is
ri

sk
o

cc
u

rr
in

g
is

lo
w

.

L
o

w
C

o
n

tr
o

l
w

ea
k

n
es

s
th

a
t

d
o

es
n

o
t

im
p

a
ct

u
p

o
n

th
e

a
ch

ie
v

em
en

t
o

f
k

ey
sy

st
em

,
fu

n
ct

io
n

o
r

p
ro

ce
ss

o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s;
h

o
w

ev
er

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e

re
co

m
m

en
d

a
ti

o
n

w
o

u
ld

im
p

ro
v

e
o

v
er

a
ll

co
n

tr
o

l.

Page 160



P
a
g
e

3
4

o
f
3
7

R
a

ti
n

g
s

u
se

d
fo

r
a

ss
es

si
n

g
e

a
ch

sy
st

em
:

F
in

d
in

g
s

r
a

ti
n

g
P

o
in

ts

C
ri

ti
ca

l
4

0
p

o
in

ts
p

er
fi

n
d

in
g

H
ig

h
10

p
o

in
ts

p
er

fi
n

d
in

g

M
ed

iu
m

3
p

o
in

ts
p

er
fi

n
d

in
g

L
o

w
1

p
o

in
t

p
er

fi
n

d
in

g

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

P
o

in
ts

L
o

w
ri

sk
/G

re
en

6
p

o
in

ts
o

r
le

ss

M
ed

iu
m

ri
sk

/A
m

b
er

7
–

15
p

o
in

ts

H
ig

h
ri

sk
/R

ed
16

–
3

9
p

o
in

ts

C
ri

ti
ca

l
ri

sk
/R

ed
4

0
p

o
in

ts
a

n
d

o
v

er

Page 161



P
a
g
e

3
5

o
f
3
7

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
2

:
L

im
it

a
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s

L
im

it
a

ti
o

n
s

in
h

e
re

n
t

to
th

e
in

te
rn

a
l

a
u

d
it

o
r’

s
w

o
rk

W
e

h
a

v
e

u
n

d
er

ta
k

en
a

re
v

ie
w

o
f

C
o

n
ti

n
u

o
u

s
F

in
a

n
ci

a
l

C
o

n
tr

o
ls

,
su

b
je

ct
to

th
e

li
m

it
a

ti
o

n
s

o
u

tl
in

ed
b

el
o

w
.

In
te

rn
a

l
co

n
tr

o
l

In
te

rn
a

l
co

n
tr

o
l,

n
o

m
a

tt
er

h
o

w
w

el
l

d
es

ig
n

ed
a

n
d

o
p

e
ra

te
d

,
ca

n
p

ro
v

id
e

o
n

ly

re
a

so
n

a
b

le
a

n
d

n
o

t
a

b
so

lu
te

a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

re
g

a
rd

in
g

a
ch

ie
v

e
m

en
t

o
f

a
n

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
's

o
b

je
ct

iv
es

.
T

h
e

li
k

el
ih

o
o

d
o

f
a

ch
ie

v
em

en
t

is
a

ff
ec

te
d

b
y

li
m

it
a

ti
o

n
s

in
h

er
e

n
t

in
a

ll
in

te
rn

a
l

co
n

tr
o

l
sy

st
e

m
s.

T
h

es
e

in
cl

u
d

e
th

e

p
o

ss
ib

il
it

y
o

f
p

o
o

r
ju

d
g

m
en

t
in

d
ec

is
io

n
-m

a
k

in
g

,
h

u
m

a
n

e
rr

o
r,

co
n

tr
o

l

p
ro

ce
ss

es
b

e
in

g
d

el
ib

er
a

te
ly

ci
rc

u
m

v
en

te
d

b
y

e
m

p
lo

y
ee

s
a

n
d

o
th

er
s,

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
en

t
o

v
er

ri
d

in
g

co
n

tr
o

ls
a

n
d

th
e

o
cc

u
rr

en
ce

o
f

u
n

fo
re

se
ea

b
le

ci
rc

u
m

st
a

n
ce

s.

F
u

tu
re

p
e

ri
o

d
s

O
u

r
a

ss
es

sm
en

t
o

f
C

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
is

fo
r

th
e

p
er

io
d

1
O

ct
o

b
e

r

2
0

14
to

3
1

M
a

rc
h

2
0

15
.

H
is

to
ri

c
ev

a
lu

a
ti

o
n

o
f

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s
is

n
o

t
re

le
v

a
n

t
to

fu
tu

re
p

er
io

d
s

d
u

e
to

th
e

ri
sk

th
a

t:

th
e

d
es

ig
n

o
f

co
n

tr
o

ls
m

a
y

b
ec

o
m

e
in

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
b

ec
a

u
se

o
f

ch
a

n
g

es
in

o
p

er
a

ti
n

g
en

v
ir

o
n

m
en

t,
la

w
,

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
o

r
o

th
er

;
o

r

th
e

d
eg

re
e

o
f

co
m

p
li

a
n

ce
w

it
h

p
o

li
ci

es
a

n
d

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s
m

a
y

d
e

te
ri

o
ra

te
.

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
ie

s
o

f
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
a

n
d

in
te

rn
a

l
a

u
d

it
o

rs

It
is

m
a

n
a

g
em

e
n

t’
s

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
to

d
ev

el
o

p
a

n
d

m
a

in
ta

in
so

u
n

d
sy

st
em

s
o

f

ri
sk

m
a

n
a

g
em

en
t,

in
te

rn
a

l
co

n
tr

o
l

a
n

d
g

o
v

er
n

a
n

ce
a

n
d

fo
r

th
e

p
re

v
en

ti
o

n

a
n

d
d

et
ec

ti
o

n
o

f
ir

re
g

u
la

ri
ti

es
a

n
d

fr
a

u
d

.
In

te
rn

a
l

a
u

d
it

w
o

rk
sh

o
u

ld
n

o
t

b
e

se
en

a
s

a
su

b
st

it
u

te
fo

r
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

en
t’

s
re

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
ie

s
fo

r
th

e
d

es
ig

n
a

n
d

o
p

er
a

ti
o

n
o

f
th

es
e

sy
st

em
s.

W
e

en
d

ea
v

o
u

r
to

p
la

n
o

u
r

w
o

rk
so

th
a

t
w

e
h

a
v

e
a

re
a

so
n

a
b

le
ex

p
ec

ta
ti

o
n

o
f

d
et

ec
ti

n
g

si
g

n
if

ic
a

n
t

co
n

tr
o

l
w

ea
k

n
es

se
s

a
n

d
,

if
d

et
e

ct
ed

,
w

e
sh

a
ll

ca
rr

y
o

u
t

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l

w
o

rk
d

ir
ec

te
d

to
w

a
rd

s
id

en
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
o

f
co

n
se

q
u

en
t

fr
a

u
d

o
r

o
th

er

ir
re

g
u

la
ri

ti
es

.
H

o
w

ev
e

r,
in

te
rn

a
l

a
u

d
it

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s
a

lo
n

e,
ev

e
n

w
h

en
ca

rr
ie

d

o
u

t
w

it
h

d
u

e
p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

l
ca

re
,

d
o

n
o

t
g

u
a

ra
n

te
e

th
a

t
fr

a
u

d
w

il
l

b
e

d
et

ec
te

d
.

A
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
,

o
u

r
ex

a
m

in
a

ti
o

n
s

a
s

in
te

rn
a

l
a

u
d

it
o

rs
sh

o
u

ld
n

o
t

b
e

re
li

ed
u

p
o

n

so
le

ly
to

d
is

cl
o

se
fr

a
u

d
,

d
ef

a
lc

a
ti

o
n

s
o

r
o

th
er

ir
re

g
u

la
ri

ti
es

w
h

ic
h

m
a

y
ex

is
t.

d
is

cl
o

se
fr

a
u

d
,

d
ef

a
lc

a
ti

o
n

s
o

r
o

th
er

ir
re

g
u

la
ri

ti
es

w
h

ic
h

m
a

y
ex

is
t.

Page 162



In
th

e
ev

en
t

th
a

t,
p

u
rs

u
a

n
t

to
a

re
q

u
es

t
w

h
ic

h
A

b
er

d
ee

n
C

it
y

C
o

u
n

ci
l

h
a

s
re

ce
iv

ed
u

n
d

er
th

e
F

re
e

d
o

m
o

f
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

A
ct

2
0

0
0

o
r

th
e

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
en

ta
l

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
R

eg
u

la
ti

o
n

s
2

0
0

4
(a

s
th

e
sa

m
e

m
a

y
b

e
a

m
en

d
ed

o
r

re
-e

n
a

ct
ed

fr
o

m
ti

m
e

to
ti

m
e)

o
r

a
n

y
su

b
o

rd
in

a
te

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
m

a
d

e
th

er
eu

n
d

er
(c

o
ll

ec
ti

v
el

y
,

th
e

“L
eg

is
la

ti
o

n
”)

,
A

b
er

d
ee

n
C

it
y

C
o

u
n

ci
l

is
re

q
u

ir
ed

to
d

is
cl

o
se

a
n

y
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

co
n

ta
in

ed
in

th
is

d
o

cu
m

en
t,

it
w

il
l

n
o

ti
fy

P
w

C
p

ro
m

p
tl

y
a

n
d

w
il

l
co

n
su

lt
w

it
h

P
w

C
p

ri
o

r
to

d
is

cl
o

si
n

g
su

ch
d

o
cu

m
en

t.
A

b
er

d
ee

n
C

it
y

C
o

u
n

ci
l

a
g

re
es

to
p

a
y

d
u

e
re

g
a

rd
to

a
n

y
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
w

h
ic

h

P
w

C
m

a
y

m
a

k
e

in
co

n
n

ec
ti

o
n

w
it

h
su

ch
d

is
cl

o
su

re
a

n
d

to
a

p
p

ly
a

n
y

re
le

v
a

n
t

ex
em

p
ti

o
n

s
w

h
ic

h
m

a
y

ex
is

t
u

n
d

er
th

e
L

eg
is

la
ti

o
n

.
If

,
fo

ll
o

w
in

g
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
w

it
h

P
w

C
,

A
b

er
d

ee
n

C
it

y
C

o
u

n
ci

l
d

is
cl

o
se

s

a
n

y
th

is
d

o
cu

m
en

t
o

r
a

n
y

p
a

rt
th

er
eo

f,
it

sh
a

ll
en

su
re

th
a

t
a

n
y

d
is

cl
a

im
er

w
h

ic
h

P
w

C
h

a
s

in
cl

u
d

ed
o

r
m

a
y

su
b

se
q

u
en

tl
y

w
is

h
to

in
cl

u
d

e
in

th
e

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
is

re
p

ro
d

u
ce

d
in

fu
ll

in
a

n
y

co
p

ie
s

d
is

cl
o

se
d

.

T
h

is
d

o
cu

m
en

t
h

a
s

b
ee

n
p

re
p

a
re

d
o

n
ly

fo
r

A
b

er
d

ee
n

C
it

y
C

o
u

n
ci

l
a

n
d

so
le

ly
fo

r
th

e
p

u
rp

o
se

a
n

d
o

n
th

e
te

rm
s

a
g

re
ed

w
it

h
A

b
er

d
ee

n
C

it
y

C
o

u
n

ci
l

in
o

u
r

a
g

re
em

en
t

d
a

te
d

4
O

ct
o

b
er

2
0

10
.

W
e

a
cc

ep
t

n
o

li
a

b
il

it
y

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
fo

r
n

eg
li

g
en

ce
)

to
a

n
y

o
n

e
el

se
in

co
n

n
ec

ti
o

n
w

it
h

th
is

d
o

cu
m

en
t,

a
n

d
it

m
a

y
n

o
t

b
e

p
ro

v
id

ed
to

a
n

y
o

n
e

el
se

.

©
2

0
15

P
ri

ce
w

a
te

rh
o

u
se

C
o

o
p

er
s

L
L

P
.

A
ll

ri
g

h
ts

re
se

rv
ed

.
In

th
is

d
o

cu
m

en
t,

"P
w

C
"

re
fe

rs
to

P
ri

ce
w

a
te

rh
o

u
se

C
o

o
p

er
s

L
L

P
(a

li
m

it
ed

li
a

b
il

it
y

p
a

rt
n

er
sh

ip
in

th
e

U
n

it
ed

K
in

g
d

o
m

),
w

h
ic

h
is

a
m

em
b

er

fi
rm

o
f

P
ri

ce
w

a
te

rh
o

u
se

C
o

o
p

er
s

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l
L

im
it

ed
,

ea
ch

m
em

b
er

fi
rm

o
f

w
h

ic
h

is
a

se
p

a
ra

te
le

g
a

l
en

ti
ty

.

Page 163



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



A
b
e
r
d
e
e
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

P
en
si
o
n
F
u
n
d
F
in
a
n
ci
a
l
C
o
n
tr
o
ls
a
n
d

P
en
si
o
n
P
a
y
ro
ll

In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
R
ep
o
rt
–

F
in
a
l

2
0
14
/2
0
15
fo
r
A
b
e
rd
ee
n

C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l

M
a

y
2

0
1
5

In
te

r
n

a
l

A
u

d
it

K
P

I
T

a
r

g
e

ts
T

a
r
g

e
t

d
a

te
s

A
c

tu
a

l
d

a
te

s
R

e
d

/A
m

b
e

r
/

G
r

e
e

n

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
r
y

w
h

e
r

e

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

T
er
m
s
o
r
re
fe
re
n
ce
a
g
re
ed
4
w
ee
k
s

p
ri
o
r
to
fi
el
d
w
o
rk

G
r

e
e

n

P
la
n
n
ed
fi
el
d
w
o
rk
st
a
rt
d
a
te

16
D
ec
em
b
er
2
0
14

16
D
ec
em
b
er
2
0
14

G
r

e
e

n

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
co
m
p
le
ti
o
n
d
a
te

16
J
a
n
u
a
ry
2
0
15

3
A
p
ri
l
2
0
15

R
e

d
S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
d
el
a
y
s
in

co
m
p
le
ti
n
g
C
A
A
T
s
te
st
in
g

Is
su
in
g
d
ra
ft
re
p
o
rt
s
fo
r

m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
co
m
m
en
ts

17
A
p
ri
l
2
0
15

17
A
p
ri
l
2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

R
ec
ei
v
in
g
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
co
m
m
en
ts

1
M
a
y
2
0
15

3
M
a
y
2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

Is
su
in
g
fi
n
a
li
se
d
re
p
o
rt
s

8
M
a
y
2
0
15

8
M
a
y
2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

F
in
a
l
re
p
o
rt
s
p
re
se
n
te
d
to
th
e

P
en
si
o
n
s
C
o
m
m
it
te
e

15
J
u
n
e
2
0
15

15
J
u
n
e
2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

Agenda Item 6.2

Page 165



T
h
is
re
p
o
rt
h
a
s
b
ee
n
p
re
p
a
re
d
so
le
ly
fo
r
A
b
er
d
e
en
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
in
a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
te
rm
s
a
n
d
co
n
d
it
io
n
s
se
t
o
u
t
in
o
u
r
e
n
g
a
g
em
en
t
le
tt
er
4
th
O
ct
o
b
er
2
0
10
.
W
e
d
o
n
o
t
a
cc
ep
t
o
r

a
ss
u
m
e
a
n
y
li
a
b
il
it
y
o
r
d
u
ty
o
f
ca
re
fo
r
a
n
y
o
th
er
p
u
rp
o
se
o
r
to
a
n
y
o
th
er
p
a
rt
y
.
T
h
is
re
p
o
rt
sh
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
d
is
cl
o
se
d
to
a
n
y
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
y
,
q
u
o
te
d
o
r
re
fe
rr
ed
to
w
it
h
o
u
t
o
u
r
p
ri
o
r

w
ri
tt
en
co
n
se
n
t.

In
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
w
o
rk
w
il
l
b
e
p
er
fo
rm
ed
in
a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce
w
it
h
P
u
b
li
c
S
ec
to
r
In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
(P
S
IA
S
).
A
s
a
re
su
lt
,
o
u
r
w
o
rk
a
n
d
d
e
li
v
er
a
b
le
s
a
re
n
o
t
d
es
ig
n
e
d
o
r
in
te
n
d
ed
to

co
m
p
ly
w
it
h
th
e
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
A
u
d
it
in
g
a
n
d
A
ss
u
ra
n
ce
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
B
o
a
rd
(I
A
A
S
B
),
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
F
ra
m
ew
o
rk
fo
r
A
ss
u
ra
n
ce
E
n
g
a
g
em
e
n
ts
(I
F
A
E
)
a
n
d
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
o
n

A
ss
u
ra
n
ce
E
n
g
a
g
em
en
ts
(I
S
A
E
)
3
0
0
0
.

In
te

r
n

a
l

A
u

d
it

r
e

p
o

r
t

fo
r
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l

P
w
C

C
o
n
te
n
ts

C
o
n
te
n
ts

S
e

c
ti

o
n

P
a

g
e

1.
E
x
e
cu
ti
v
e
S
u
m
m
a
ry

1

2
.
B
a
ck
g
ro
u
n
d
a
n
d
sc
o
p
e

3

3
.
D
et
a
il
ed
fi
n
d
in
g
s
a
n
d
re
co
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
s

7

A
p
p
en
d
ix
1
–
B
a
si
s
o
f
o
u
r
cl
a
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

12

A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
–
T
er
m
s
o
f
re
fe
re
n
ce

14

A
p
p
en
d
ix
3
–
L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s

17

Page 166



1

1.
E
x
ec
u
ti
v
e
S
u
m
m
a
ry

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

M
ed
iu
m

T
o

ta
l

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

fi
n

d
in

g
s

S
ec
ti
o
n
3

S
u

m
m

a
r

y
o

f
fi

n
d

in
g

s

1.
0
1
T
h
e
sc
o
p
e
o
f
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
w
a
s
to
co
n
si
d
er
th
e
d
es
ig
n
a
n
d
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s
o
f
th
e
k
ey
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
re
la
ti
o
n
to
th
e
p
en
si
o
n
p
a
y
ro
ll
,
a
s
w
el
l
a
s
th
e
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g

ef
fe
ct
iv
e
n
es
s
o
f
th
e
k
ey
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
re
la
ti
o
n
to
th
e
p
en
si
o
n
fu
n
d
,
a
t
th
e
N
o
rt
h
E
a
st
o
f
S
co
tl
a
n
d
P
en
si
o
n
F
u
n
d
a
n
d
T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
F
u
n
d
.
O
u
r
te
st
in
g
co
v
er
ed
ea
ch

o
f
th
e
k
ey
su
b
-p
ro
ce
ss
es
,
a
n
d
in
v
o
lv
ed
a
n
a
ss
es
sm
e
n
t
o
f
th
e
d
es
ig
n
a
n
d
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s
o
f
th
e
k
ey
co
n
tr
o
ls
th
a
t
h
el
p
a
ch
ie
v
e
th
e
co
n
tr
o
l
o
b
je
ct
iv
es
a
s
se
t
o
u
t
in

th
e
a
g
re
ed
te
rm
s
o
f
re
fe
re
n
ce
.

1.
0
2
In
g
en
e
ra
l
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
id
e
n
ti
fi
ed
a
so
u
n
d
sy
st
em
o
f
co
n
tr
o
l;
h
o
w
ev
er
,
th
er
e
w
er
e
a
re
a
s
fo
r
im
p
ro
v
em
e
n
t
id
e
n
ti
fi
ed
in
h
o
w
so
m
e
k
ey
co
n
tr
o
ls
o
p
er
a
te
d
,
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y

a
ro
u
n
d
en
su
ri
n
g
e
v
id
e
n
ce
o
f
p
ro
p
er
a
u
th
o
ri
sa
ti
o
n
a
n
d
re
v
ie
w
b
y
se
n
io
r
p
en
si
o
n
o
ff
ic
er
s.
F
ro
m
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
co
n
tr
o
ls
im
p
le
m
en
te
d
b
y
th
e
N
o
rt
h
E
a
st
o
f
S
co
tl
a
n
d

P
en
si
o
n
F
u
n
d
a
n
d
T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
F
u
n
d
w
e
h
a
v
e
id
en
ti
fi
ed
th
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
tw
o
m
ed
iu
m
ri
sk
fi
n
d
in
g
s:

In
o
n
e
in
st
a
n
ce
,
fr
o
m
a
sa
m
p
le
o
f
4
5
te
st
ed
,
n
o
ev
id
e
n
ce
w
a
s
re
ta
in
ed
o
f
a
se
n
io
r
p
en
si
o
n
o
ff
ic
er
a
u
th
o
ri
sa
ti
o
n
fo
r
p
a
y
m
en
t
o
f
th
e
b
a
la
n
ce
o
f
p
e
n
si
o
n
fo
r
a

d
ec
ea
se
d
m
e
m
b
er
.
W
e
a
ls
o
fo
u
n
d
th
a
t
in
tw
o
o
u
t
o
f
fo
u
r
m
o
n
th
s
te
st
ed
,
n
o
ev
id
en
ce
w
a
s
re
ta
in
ed
to
v
er
if
y
th
a
t
a
se
n
io
r
p
en
si
o
n
o
ff
ic
er
h
a
d
re
v
ie
w
ed
th
e

p
a
y
m
e
n
t
ch
ec
k
li
st
a
n
d
co
m
p
le
te
d
th
e
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
re
co
n
ci
li
a
ti
o
n
s.
In
a
ll
ca
se
s
a
se
n
io
r
p
e
n
si
o
n
o
ff
ic
e
r
sh
o
u
ld
b
e
a
u
th
o
ri
si
n
g
a
n
d
re
v
ie
w
in
g
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
to
m
it
ig
a
te

a
g
a
in
st
th
e
ri
sk
o
f
fr
a
u
d
o
r
er
ro
r;
a
n
d

F
ro
m
a
sa
m
p
le
o
f
4
5
te
st
ed
,
w
e
id
en
ti
fi
ed
o
n
e
ca
se
w
h
er
e
n
o
ev
id
e
n
ce
h
a
d
b
e
en
re
ta
in
ed
to
v
er
if
y
a
re
q
u
es
t
fo
r
a
ch
a
n
g
e
in
a
m
em
b
er
’s
b
a
n
k
d
et
a
il
s.
W
e
a
ls
o

fo
u
n
d
o
n
e
in
st
a
n
ce
w
h
er
e
a
m
em
b
er
’s
ch
a
n
g
e
o
f
a
d
d
re
ss
h
a
d
n
o
t
b
ee
n
p
ro
p
er
ly
ev
id
en
ce
d
.
E
n
su
ri
n
g
p
ro
p
er
co
n
tr
o
l
o
v
er
ch
a
n
g
es
in
m
em
b
er
’s
d
et
a
il
s
is

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t
to
p
re
v
en
ti
n
g
fr
a
u
d
o
r
er
ro
r.

C
r

it
ic

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

iu
m

L
o

w
A

d
v

is
o

r
y

C
o
n
tr
o
l
d
es
ig
n

-
-

-
-

-

O
p
er
a
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s

-
-

2
2

-

T
o
ta
l

-
-

2
2

-

Page 167



2

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

c
o

m
m

e
n

t

P
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d
P
ro
ce
d
u
re
w
il
l
co
n
ti
n
u
ed
to
b
e
re
v
ie
w
ed
th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t
2
0
15
to
e
n
su
re
p
ro
p
er
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
re
in
p
la
ce
.

Page 168



3

2
.
B
a
ck
g
ro
u
n
d
a
n
d
sc
o
p
e

B
a

c
k

g
r

o
u

n
d

2
.0
1

T
h
e
N
o
rt
h
E
a
st
o
f
S
co
tl
a
n
d
P
en
si
o
n
F
u
n
d
(N
E
S
P
F
)
a
n
d
th
e
T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
F
u
n
d
a
re
a
d
m
in
is
te
re
d
b
y
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
w
it
h
in
th
e
L
o
ca
l
G
o
v
er
n
m
en
t
P
en
si
o
n

S
ch
em
e
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s.
T
h
er
e
a
re
13
S
ch
ed
u
le
d
b
o
d
ie
s
in
cl
u
d
in
g
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l,
S
co
tt
is
h
W
a
te
r,
A
b
er
d
ee
n
sh
ir
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
n
d
T
h
e
M
o
ra
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
n
d
4
1

a
d
m
it
te
d
b
o
d
ie
s.

2
.0
2

A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
h
a
s
d
el
eg
a
te
d
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y
fo
r
th
e
a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
P
en
si
o
n
F
u
n
d
s
to
th
e
P
en
si
o
n
s
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
,
w
h
ic
h
is
re
sp
o
n
si
b
le
fo
r
b
en
ef
it
s

a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
in
v
es
tm
en
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t.
T
h
e
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
co
n
si
st
s
o
f
n
in
e
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
el
ec
te
d
m
e
m
b
er
s.
A
ll
m
em
b
er
s
h
a
v
e
eq
u
a
l
v
o
ti
n
g
ri
g
h
ts
.
T
h
er
e
is
a
ls
o
a

J
o
in
t
In
v
es
tm
en
t
A
d
v
is
o
ry
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
(J
IA
C
),
w
h
ic
h
h
a
s
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y
fo
r
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
th
e
in
v
es
tm
e
n
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
o
f
th
e
P
en
si
o
n
F
u
n
d
a
n
d
m
a
k
in
g

re
co
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
to
th
e
P
e
n
si
o
n
s
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
o
n
th
e
a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
t,
re
te
n
ti
o
n
a
n
d
te
rm
in
a
ti
o
n
o
f
in
v
es
tm
en
t
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
co
n
tr
a
ct
s.

C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
w

it
h

R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s

2
.0
3

W
e
a
ss
es
se
d
th
e
k
ey
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
in
p
la
ce
a
t
th
e
N
E
S
P
F
fo
r
e
n
su
ri
n
g
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
te
rm
s
o
f
a
ll
re
le
v
a
n
t
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s,
in
cl
u
d
in
g
T
h
e
L
o
ca
l
G
o
v
er
n
m
en
t
P
en
si
o
n

S
ch
em
e
(B
e
n
ef
it
s,
M
em
b
e
rs
h
ip
a
n
d
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s)
(S
co
tl
a
n
d
)
R
eg
u
la
ti
o
n
s.
O
u
r
re
v
ie
w
id
en
ti
fi
ed
th
e
k
ey
co
n
tr
o
ls
o
p
e
ra
te
d
b
y
N
E
S
P
F
in
cl
u
d
in
g
:
q
u
a
rt
er
ly

co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
;
a
n
d
th
a
t
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
a
ll
re
le
v
a
n
t
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
is
re
q
u
ir
ed
to
b
e
re
p
o
rt
ed
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
p
en
si
o
n
fu
n
d
’s
a
n
n
u
a
l
re
p
o
rt
.
T
h
e

p
en
si
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
er
is
re
q
u
ir
e
d
to
re
p
o
rt
to
th
e
J
IA
C
a
n
d
P
en
si
o
n
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
o
n
a
n
y
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
fa
il
u
re
s
th
a
t
a
re
id
en
ti
fi
ed
in
th
es
e
q
u
a
rt
er
ly
re
v
ie
w
s.

2
.0
4

T
h
e
N
E
S
P
F
h
a
s
a
n
in
v
es
tm
en
t
st
ra
te
g
y
a
n
d
th
is
st
ra
te
g
y
h
a
s
b
ee
n
a
p
p
ro
v
ed
b
y
th
e
J
IA
C
a
n
d
P
e
n
si
o
n
s
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
.
T
h
e
fu
n
d
s
in
v
es
te
d
in
b
y
th
e
N
E
S
P
F
a
re
a
ls
o

a
p
p
ro
v
ed
b
y
th
e
J
IA
C
a
n
d
P
en
si
o
n
s
C
o
m
m
it
te
e.
T
h
e
p
en
si
o
n
s
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
is
re
sp
o
n
si
b
le
fo
r
co
ll
a
ti
n
g
re
p
o
rt
s
fr
o
m
th
e
fu
n
d
m
a
n
a
g
er
s
to
m
o
n
it
o
r
th
ei
r
a
d
h
e
re
n
ce
to

th
e
in
v
es
tm
e
n
t
st
ra
te
g
y
.
O
n
a
q
u
a
rt
er
ly
b
a
si
s
th
e
p
en
si
o
n
s
m
a
n
a
g
er
re
p
o
rt
s
to
th
e
J
IA
C
a
n
d
P
e
n
si
o
n
s
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
o
n
th
e
cu
rr
e
n
t
st
a
tu
s
o
f
ea
ch
fu
n
d
m
a
n
a
g
er
,
a
n
d

h
o
w
th
ey
a
re
p
er
fo
rm
in
g
a
g
a
in
st
th
e
in
v
es
tm
en
t
st
ra
te
g
y
.

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
to

S
ta

n
d

in
g

D
a

ta

2
.0
5

W
e
re
v
ie
w
ed
th
e
d
es
ig
n
o
f
th
e
k
ey
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
p
la
ce
fo
r
a
m
en
d
in
g
st
a
n
d
in
g
d
a
ta
:
th
is
in
cl
u
d
ed
th
e
co
n
tr
o
ls
fo
r
n
ew
st
a
rt
s,
le
a
v
er
s,
re
ti
re
es
,
d
ea
th
o
f
m
em
b
er
s
o
r

p
en
si
o
n
er
s,
a
n
d
ch
a
n
g
in
g
b
a
n
k
a
n
d
a
d
d
re
ss
d
et
a
il
s.

2
.0
6

N
ew
m
e
m
b
e
rs
o
f
th
e
p
e
n
si
o
n
sc
h
em
e
a
re
n
o
ti
fi
ed
to
th
e
N
E
S
P
F
b
y
th
ei
r
e
m
p
lo
y
er
th
ro
u
g
h
su
b
m
is
si
o
n
o
f
th
e
re
le
v
a
n
t
fo
rm
;
w
h
it
e
sh
ee
ts
o
r
P
E
N
1
fo
rm
s
a
re

re
ce
iv
ed
fr
o
m
th
e
em
p
lo
y
e
r
fo
r
a
ll
n
ew
m
e
m
b
er
s
o
th
er
th
a
n
e
m
p
lo
y
er
s
u
si
n
g
iC
o
n
n
ec
t
o
r
E
m
p
lo
y
er
S
e
rv
ic
es
.
N
o
n
e
w
m
e
m
b
er
ca
n
b
e
en
ro
ll
ed
in
th
e
p
en
si
o
n

sc
h
em
e
w
it
h
o
u
t
th
e
N
E
S
P
F
h
a
v
in
g
re
ce
iv
ed
th
is
fo
rm
o
r
P
E
N
1
en
ro
lm
e
n
t
fo
rm
e
x
ce
p
t
w
h
en
a
n
em
p
lo
y
er
u
se
s
iC
o
n
n
ec
t/
E
S
in
w
h
ic
h
n
ew
m
em
b
er
s
a
re
u
p
lo
a
d
ed

o
n
li
n
e.

Page 169



4

2
.0
7

W
h
en
a
m
e
m
b
er
le
a
v
es
th
e
p
en
si
o
n
sc
h
em
e
th
e
e
m
p
lo
y
er
w
il
l
su
b
m
it
a
ce
ss
a
ti
o
n
n
o
ti
ce
to
th
e
N
E
S
P
F
.
N
o
m
em
b
er
is
re
m
o
v
ed
fr
o
m
th
e
sc
h
em
e
w
it
h
o
u
t
re
ce
ip
t
o
f

th
is
n
o
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
.
A
n
y
ca
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s
re
q
u
ir
ed
to
d
et
er
m
in
e
th
e
ex
te
n
t
o
f
a
n
y
re
fu
n
d
s
d
u
e
to
th
e
le
a
v
er
o
r
to
d
et
er
m
in
e
th
e
le
a
v
er
s
d
ef
er
re
d
p
en
si
o
n
b
en
e
fi
ts
m
u
st
b
e

a
p
p
ro
v
ed
b
y
tw
o
se
p
a
ra
te
p
en
si
o
n
s
o
r
se
n
io
r
p
e
n
si
o
n
o
ff
ic
er
s.

2
.0
8

T
h
e
p
e
n
si
o
n
sy
st
e
m
is
co
n
fi
g
u
re
d
to
id
en
ti
fy
w
h
en
a
m
em
b
er
h
a
s
re
a
ch
ed
re
ti
re
m
en
t
a
g
e.
N
o
p
en
si
o
n
p
a
y
m
en
ts
a
re
m
a
d
e
u
n
ti
l
th
e
N
E
S
P
F
h
a
s
re
ce
iv
ed
a
P
E
N
6

ce
ss
a
ti
o
n
n
o
ti
ce
fr
o
m
th
e
e
m
p
lo
y
er
co
n
fi
rm
in
g
th
a
t
th
e
em
p
lo
y
e
e
h
a
s
re
ti
re
d
a
n
d
is
el
ig
ib
le
to
re
ce
iv
e
th
e
ir
p
en
si
o
n
.
W
h
e
n
a
m
em
b
er
is
el
ig
ib
le
fo
r
ea
rl
y
re
ti
re
m
e
n
t

fu
rt
h
er
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
u
st
b
e
g
a
th
er
ed
b
ef
o
re
m
a
k
in
g
a
n
y
p
e
n
si
o
n
p
a
y
m
en
ts
;
th
is
ca
n
d
ep
e
n
d
o
n
th
e
n
a
tu
re
o
f
th
e
re
a
so
n
fo
r
ea
rl
y
re
ti
re
m
en
t.
F
o
r
ex
a
m
p
le
,
if
th
e

ea
rl
y
re
ti
re
m
en
t
is
fo
r
il
l
h
e
a
lt
h
a
d
o
ct
o
r’
s
le
tt
er
m
u
st
b
e
o
b
ta
in
ed
.

2
.0
9

W
h
en
n
o
ti
ce
is
re
ce
iv
ed
th
a
t
a
p
en
si
o
n
er
h
a
s
p
a
ss
ed
a
w
a
y
th
ey
a
re
a
u
to
m
a
ti
ca
ll
y
‘c
lo
se
d
’
in
th
e
sy
st
em
to
p
re
v
e
n
t
a
n
y
fu
rt
h
er
p
en
si
o
n
p
a
y
m
en
ts
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e

p
en
si
o
n
p
a
y
ro
ll
.
O
n
re
ce
ip
t
o
f
n
o
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
o
f
a
p
e
n
si
o
n
er
’s
d
ea
th
th
e
N
E
S
P
F
w
il
l
lo
o
k
to
o
b
ta
in
a
d
ea
th
ce
rt
if
ic
a
te
to
v
e
ri
fy
th
e
d
ea
th
.

2
.1
0

C
h
a
n
g
es
a
n
d
a
m
en
d
m
en
ts
to
b
a
n
k
d
et
a
il
s
a
n
d
a
d
d
re
ss
es
a
re
o
n
ly
m
a
d
e
b
y
th
e
N
E
S
P
F
th
ro
u
g
h
a
si
g
n
ed
le
tt
er
th
a
t
in
cl
u
d
es
th
e
ir
p
e
n
si
o
n
re
fe
re
n
ce
n
u
m
b
er
/N
I

n
u
m
b
er
,
o
r
o
n
li
n
e
th
ro
u
g
h
M
y
P
en
si
o
n
,
w
h
ic
h
n
o
ti
fi
es
th
e
P
en
si
o
n
D
ep
a
rt
m
en
t
v
ia
em
a
il
o
f
th
e
ch
a
n
g
e,
o
r
v
ia
a
re
p
o
rt
fr
o
m
th
e
B
a
n
k
in
fo
rm
in
g
o
f
th
e
ch
a
n
g
e
m
a
d
e

b
y
a
m
em
b
er
.
O
n
ce
a
n
y
ch
a
n
g
es
a
re
m
a
d
e
th
e
N
E
S
P
F
w
il
l
se
n
d
a
le
tt
er
to
th
e
m
e
m
b
e
r
co
n
fi
rm
in
g
th
e
ch
a
n
g
e
to
v
er
if
y
th
a
t
th
e
d
et
a
il
s
h
a
v
e
b
ee
n
ch
a
n
g
ed
co
rr
ec
tl
y
.

2
.1
1

R
eq
u
es
ts
fo
r
a
ch
a
n
g
e
to
a
n
a
d
d
re
ss
fo
r
b
o
th
p
e
n
si
o
n
er
s,
w
id
o
w
er
s
a
n
d
n
o
n
-p
en
si
o
n
er
s
m
u
st
b
e
m
a
d
e
b
y
e
it
h
er
a
si
g
n
ed
le
tt
er
,
e
m
a
il
o
r
ca
ll
q
u
o
ti
n
g
a
p
en
si
o
n

re
fe
re
n
ce
n
u
m
b
e
r,
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l
In
su
ra
n
ce
n
u
m
b
er
,
o
r
p
re
v
io
u
s
a
d
d
re
ss
if
se
n
t
b
y
m
em
b
er
,
o
r
w
h
e
n
a
n
em
p
lo
y
er
ch
a
n
g
es
a
d
d
re
ss
d
et
a
il
s
v
ia
E
m
p
lo
y
er
S
er
v
ic
es
o
r

iC
o
n
n
ec
t.
N
o
ch
a
n
g
es
sh
o
u
ld
b
e
m
a
d
e
w
h
er
e
th
e
m
em
b
er
o
r
em
p
lo
y
er
d
o
es
n
o
t
p
ro
v
id
e
so
m
e
fo
rm
o
f
ev
id
en
ce
.

2
.1
2

N
ew
m
e
m
b
er
s
m
u
st
o
p
t
to
tr
a
n
sf
er
in
th
ei
r
ex
is
ti
n
g
p
e
n
si
o
n
to
th
e
N
E
S
P
F
w
it
h
in
12
m
o
n
th
s
o
f
jo
in
in
g
.
T
h
e
e
x
ce
p
ti
o
n
to
th
is
ru
le
is
m
e
m
b
e
rs
w
h
o
a
re
tr
a
n
sf
e
rr
in
g

in
fr
o
m
a
n
o
th
er
N
E
S
P
F
a
d
m
in
is
te
re
d
sc
h
em
e,
fo
r
e
x
a
m
p
le
a
m
e
m
b
er
w
h
o
m
o
v
ed
em
p
lo
y
m
en
t
fr
o
m
A
b
er
d
e
en
sh
ir
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
to
A
b
er
d
e
en
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l.
O
n
ly

m
em
b
er
s
w
h
o
w
er
e
p
re
v
io
u
sl
y
a
m
em
b
er
o
f
a
n
o
th
er
P
u
b
li
c
S
ec
to
r
T
ra
n
sf
er
C
lu
b
p
e
n
si
o
n
sc
h
em
e
m
a
y
tr
a
n
sf
e
r
in
th
e
ir
p
en
si
o
n
to
th
e
N
E
S
P
F
.

2
.1
3

W
h
en
a
m
em
b
er
o
p
ts
to
tr
a
n
sf
er
o
u
t
o
f
th
e
N
E
S
P
F
sc
h
em
e
to
a
n
ew
p
en
si
o
n
sc
h
e
m
e
th
ey
m
u
st
p
ro
v
id
e
a
si
g
n
ed
tr
a
n
sf
er
o
u
t
re
q
u
es
t
d
e
ta
il
in
g
th
e
n
ew
sc
h
em
e
th
e
y

w
is
h
to
jo
in
.
T
h
e
p
en
si
o
n
o
ff
ic
er
s
w
il
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
ch
ec
k
o
f
th
e
n
ew
sc
h
em
e
a
n
d
co
n
fi
rm
th
a
t
it
is
H
M
R
C
re
g
is
te
re
d
b
u
t
th
er
e
is
n
o
o
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
o
n
th
e
N
E
S
P
F
to
p
re
v
e
n
t

m
em
b
er
s
jo
in
in
g
n
o
n
-H
M
R
C
re
g
is
te
re
d
sc
h
em
es
,
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
th
ey
w
il
l
a
s
a
co
u
rt
es
y
n
o
ti
fy
m
e
m
b
er
s
if
th
ey
h
a
v
e
co
n
ce
rn
s
re
g
a
rd
in
g
th
e
v
a
li
d
it
y
o
f
th
e
n
e
w
sc
h
em
e
.

A
n

n
u

a
l

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

N
o

ti
c

e
s

a
n

d
C

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
s

2
.1
4

W
it
h
th
e
u
se
o
f
C
o
m
p
u
te
r
A
ss
is
te
d
A
u
d
it
T
ec
h
n
iq
u
es
w
e
re
-p
er
fo
rm
ed
th
e
m
o
n
th
ly
p
en
si
o
n
ca
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
lu
m
p
su
m
s
w
h
ic
h
a
re
a
u
to
m
a
ti
ca
ll
y
ca
lc
u
la
te
d
b
y
th
e

p
en
si
o
n
sy
st
em
.
U
si
n
g
th
is
m
et
h
o
d
w
e
w
e
re
a
b
le
to
te
st
th
e
fu
ll
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
o
f
2
1,
5
9
7
ca
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s
si
n
ce
1
O
ct
o
b
er
2
0
13
.
T
h
e
re
su
lt
s
o
f
th
is
te
st
a
re
sh
o
w
n
o
v
er
le
a
f:

Page 170



5

C
o

u
n

t
P

e
r

c
e

n
ta

g
e

C
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s
a
g
re
ed
a
s
a
cc
u
ra
te
th
ro
u
g
h
u
se
o
f
C
A
A
T
s

2
0
,2
3
6

9
3
.7
%

It
em
s
n
o
t
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
st
a
n
d
a
rd
ca
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
d
u
e
to
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l

in
st
ru
ct
io
n
s
fo
r
sh
a
ri
n
g
a
rr
a
n
g
em
en
ts
o
r
o
v
er
p
a
y
m
en
ts

2
3

0
.1
%

It
em
s
w
h
er
e
th
e
p
er
so
n
h
a
s
a
n
ea
rl
y
re
d
em
p
ti
o
n
d
a
te
a
g
a
in
st
th
e
ir

p
en
si
o
n
a
n
d
so
d
o
es
n
o
t
fo
ll
o
w
th
e
st
a
n
d
a
rd
ca
lc
u
la
ti
o
n

1,
3
3
8

6
.2
%

T
o

ta
l

2
1
,5

9
7

1
0

0
%

2
.1
5

A
s
ca
n
b
e
se
e
n
fr
o
m
th
e
ta
b
le
a
b
o
v
e
w
e
w
er
e
a
b
le
to
a
g
re
e
th
e
a
cc
u
ra
cy
o
f
9
9
.9
%
o
f
p
en
si
o
n
ca
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
u
se
o
f
C
A
A
T
s.
W
e
sa
m
p
le
te
st
ed
ca
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s

fr
o
m
th
e
re
m
a
in
in
g
0
.1
%
a
n
d
fo
u
n
d
n
o
ex
ce
p
ti
o
n
s.

P
e

n
s

io
n

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts

2
.1
6

N
E
S
P
F
h
a
s
h
a
d
to
d
ev
el
o
p
n
ew
p
ro
ce
ss
es
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
th
e
co
n
te
x
t
o
f
th
e
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
st
a
ff
in
g
re
so
u
rc
es
.
T
h
er
e
a
re
n
o
d
ed
ic
a
te
d
p
e
n
si
o
n
p
a
y
ro
ll
st
a
ff
a
n
d
th
e

p
ro
ce
ss
in
g
o
f
p
en
si
o
n
p
a
y
ro
ll
h
a
s
b
ee
n
b
ro
u
g
h
t
w
it
h
in
th
e
sc
o
p
e
o
f
th
e
se
n
io
r
p
en
si
o
n
o
ff
ic
er
s.
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
a
re
a
w
a
re
o
f
th
e
ri
sk
th
is
cr
ea
te
s
a
ro
u
n
d
a
la
ck
o
f

se
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
o
f
d
u
ti
es
,
a
n
d
th
er
ef
o
re
co
n
tr
o
ls
h
a
v
e
b
e
en
d
ev
el
o
p
ed
in
o
rd
er
to
m
it
ig
a
te
th
is
ri
sk
,
w
it
h
th
e
re
q
u
ir
em
e
n
t
fo
r
d
o
u
b
le
re
v
ie
w
a
n
d
si
g
n
-o
ff
o
f
p
e
n
si
o
n

p
a
y
ro
ll
p
ro
ce
ss
in
g
a
n
d
p
a
y
m
en
t.

2
.1
7

Im
m
ed
ia
te
P
a
y
m
en
ts
(I
M
M
)
is
n
o
w
u
se
d
fo
r
a
ll
o
th
er
p
a
y
m
en
ts
re
la
te
d
to
p
en
si
o
n
s
n
o
t
co
v
er
ed
b
y
th
e
m
o
n
th
ly
p
a
y
ro
ll
ru
n
,
w
h
ic
h
in
cl
u
d
es
tr
a
n
sf
er
s
o
u
t,
lu
m
p

su
m
s,
b
a
la
n
ce
o
f
p
en
si
o
n
s
a
n
d
re
fu
n
d
s.
S
en
io
r
P
en
si
o
n
s
O
ff
ic
er
s
ru
n
a
re
p
o
rt
fr
o
m
th
e
sy
st
em
w
h
ic
h
g
en
er
a
te
s
a
ll
p
a
y
m
en
ts
n
ee
d
in
g
to
b
e
p
a
id
fo
r
th
e
sp
ec
if
ie
d

p
er
io
d
,
th
es
e
re
p
o
rt
s
a
re
ru
n
b
i-
w
ee
k
ly
.
S
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
o
f
d
u
ti
es
ex
is
ts
b
et
w
ee
n
th
e
se
n
io
r
p
en
si
o
n
s
o
ff
ic
er
g
en
er
a
ti
n
g
th
e
re
p
o
rt
a
n
d
th
e
se
n
io
r
p
e
n
si
o
n
s
o
ff
ic
er

a
u
th
o
ri
si
n
g
th
e
p
a
y
m
en
t.

2
.1
8

T
h
e
N
E
S
P
F
p
o
li
cy
,
in
li
n
e
w
it
h
p
en
si
o
n
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s,
is
fo
r
co
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
to
b
e
re
ce
iv
ed
fr
o
m
m
em
b
er
s
b
y
th
e
19
th
o
f
th
e
m
o
n
th
.
W
e
re
v
ie
w
ed
d
o
cu
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
to

en
su
re
th
a
t
p
ro
ce
ss
es
w
er
e
in
p
la
ce
to
m
o
n
it
o
r
th
e
re
ce
ip
t
o
f
co
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
to
fo
ll
o
w
-u
p
w
h
en
co
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
a
re
co
n
si
st
en
tl
y
n
o
t
re
ce
iv
ed
in
li
n
e
w
it
h
p
o
li
cy
a
n
d

re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s.

2
.1
9

M
o
n
th
ly
a
n
a
ly
ti
ca
l
ch
ec
k
s
a
re
p
er
fo
rm
ed
b
y
th
e
p
e
n
si
o
n
a
cc
o
u
n
ti
n
g
te
a
m
th
a
t
in
v
o
lv
es
co
m
p
a
ri
n
g
d
a
ta
o
n
th
e
p
en
si
o
n
co
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
p
en
si
o
n
p
a
y
ro
ll
.
T
h
e

p
en
si
o
n
a
cc
o
u
n
ti
n
g
te
a
m
w
il
l
a
n
a
ly
se
th
e
co
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
re
ce
iv
ed
fr
o
m
ea
ch
em
p
lo
y
er
o
n
a
m
o
n
th
ly
b
a
si
s.
W
h
er
e
v
a
ri
a
n
ce
s
a
re
id
en
ti
fi
ed
b
et
w
e
en
th
e
a
ct
u
a
l
a
m
o
u
n
t

re
ce
iv
ed
a
n
d
th
e
a
m
o
u
n
t
ex
p
ec
te
d
to
b
e
re
ce
iv
ed
,
th
es
e
a
re
lo
g
g
ed
a
n
d
a
ss
es
se
d
fo
r
re
a
so
n
a
b
le
n
es
s
a
n
d
if
m
a
te
ri
a
l
in
v
es
ti
g
a
te
d
b
y
th
e
p
en
si
o
n
a
cc
o
u
n
ti
n
g
te
a
m
w
it
h

th
e
re
le
v
a
n
t
em
p
lo
y
er
.

Page 171



6

U
s

e
o

f
T

h
ir

d
P

a
r

ti
e

s

2
.2
0

T
h
e
N
E
S
P
F
u
ti
li
se
s
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
ie
s
fo
r
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
th
e
a
ss
et
s
o
f
th
e
p
en
si
o
n
fu
n
d
.
T
h
es
e
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
ie
s
a
re
re
q
u
ir
ed
to
p
ro
v
id
e
a
n
n
u
a
l
S
A
S
7
0
o
r
IS
A
E
3
4
0
2
re
p
o
rt
s
to

p
ro
v
id
e
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
co
n
ce
rn
in
g
th
e
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s
o
f
th
ei
r
co
n
tr
o
l
en
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
T
h
e
p
en
si
o
n
s
m
a
n
a
g
er
w
il
l
re
ce
iv
e
a
n
d
re
v
ie
w
th
es
e
re
p
o
rt
s
a
n
d
w
il
l
co
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
a
n
y

fi
n
d
in
g
s
to
th
e
J
IA
C
a
t
th
e
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
q
u
a
rt
er
ly
m
e
et
in
g
.
In
th
e
e
v
en
t
th
a
t
a
se
ri
o
u
s
is
su
e
is
e
v
er
id
en
ti
fi
ed
th
e
p
en
si
o
n
s
m
a
n
a
g
er
ca
n
ca
ll
fo
r
a
n
em
er
g
en
cy

m
ee
ti
n
g
o
f
th
e
J
IA
C
to
p
re
se
n
t
th
e
fi
n
d
in
g
s.

S
c

o
p

e
a

n
d

li
m

it
a

ti
o

n
s

o
f

s
c

o
p

e

2
.2
1

T
h
e
d
et
a
il
ed
sc
o
p
e
o
f
th
is
re
v
ie
w
is
se
t
o
u
t
in
th
e
T
er
m
s
o
f
R
ef
e
re
n
ce
(w
it
h
in
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
2
).

Page 172



7

3
.
D
et
a
il
ed
fi
n
d
in
g
s
a
n
d
re
co
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
s

3
.0

1
P

a
y

m
e

n
t

a
n

d
r

e
c

o
n

c
il

ia
ti

o
n

s
–

C
o

n
tr

o
l

o
p

e
r

a
ti

o
n

F
in

d
in

g

F
o
r
C
es
sa
ti
o
n
N
o
ti
ce
s,
a
n
y
ca
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s
re
q
u
ir
ed
fo
r
d
e
fe
rr
ed
le
a
v
e
rs
o
r
re
fu
n
d
s
a
re
m
a
d
e
b
y
th
e
sy
st
e
m
a
n
d
ch
ec
k
ed
b
y
a
se
n
io
r
p
en
si
o
n
o
ff
ic
er
.
A
s
p
er
th
e

P
en
si
o
n
A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
S
tr
a
te
g
y
2
0
13
,
th
e
ta
rg
et
to
p
ro
ce
ss
,
re
fu
n
d
a
n
d
is
su
e
p
a
y
m
en
t
is
10
d
a
y
s.
H
o
w
e
v
er
,
in
o
n
e
in
st
a
n
ce
fr
o
m
a
sa
m
p
le
o
f
4
5
te
st
ed
,
w
e

id
en
ti
fi
ed
a
re
fu
n
d
ca
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
a
n
d
a
u
th
o
ri
sa
ti
o
n
o
f
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
th
a
t
h
a
d
n
o
t
b
ee
n
p
ro
ce
ss
ed
a
n
d
w
a
s
st
il
l
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
,
w
it
h
th
e
ce
ss
a
ti
o
n
n
o
ti
ce
b
e
in
g

re
ce
iv
ed
fr
o
m
th
e
m
em
b
er
o
v
er
th
re
e
m
o
n
th
s
p
ri
o
r
to
th
e
d
a
te
o
f
o
u
r
te
st
in
g
.

O
u
r
re
v
ie
w
fu
rt
h
e
r
id
e
n
ti
fi
ed
o
n
e
ca
se
,
fr
o
m
a
sa
m
p
le
o
f
4
5
te
st
ed
,
w
h
er
e
a
u
th
o
ri
sa
ti
o
n
b
y
a
se
n
io
r
p
e
n
si
o
n
o
ff
ic
er
fo
r
p
a
y
m
en
t
o
f
th
e
b
a
la
n
ce
o
f
p
en
si
o
n

fo
r
a
d
ec
ea
se
d
m
em
b
er
co
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
ev
id
en
ce
d
.
A
ll
su
ch
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
sh
o
u
ld
b
e
a
u
th
o
ri
se
d
b
y
a
se
n
io
r
p
e
n
si
o
n
o
ff
ic
er
p
ri
o
r
to
p
a
y
m
en
t.
W
e
a
ls
o
id
en
ti
fi
ed

m
is
si
n
g
d
o
cu
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
fo
r
tw
o
m
o
n
th
s
o
u
t
o
f
fo
u
r
se
le
ct
ed
fo
r
te
st
in
g
w
h
er
e
re
co
n
ci
li
a
ti
o
n
s
b
et
w
ee
n
th
e
B
A
C
S
p
a
y
m
en
t,
th
e
a
m
o
u
n
t
p
er
th
e
p
a
y
ro
ll

re
p
o
rt
a
n
d
th
e
a
m
o
u
n
t
p
er
th
e
sy
st
em
,
co
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
e
v
id
en
ce
d
a
s
th
e
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
h
a
d
n
o
t
b
ee
n
sc
a
n
n
ed
o
n
to
th
e
sy
st
em
.
A
s
a
re
su
lt
w
e
co
u
ld
n
o
t
fi
n
d

ev
id
en
ce
th
a
t
a
se
n
io
r
p
en
si
o
n
o
ff
ic
er
a
u
th
o
ri
sa
ti
o
n
a
n
d
ch
ec
k
h
a
d
b
ee
n
p
er
fo
rm
e
d
fo
r
th
o
se
m
o
n
th
s.

R
is

k
s

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
co
u
ld
b
e
in
co
rr
ec
t
o
r
th
a
t
fr
a
u
d
o
r
er
ro
r
m
a
y
o
cc
u
r
in
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
w
it
h
o
u
t
p
ro
p
er
ch
ec
k
s
d
u
e
.

Page 173



8

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

M
ed
iu
m

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
re
it
er
a
te
to
se
n
io
r
p
en
si
o
n
o
ff
ic
er
s
th
e
im
p
o
rt
a
n
ce
o
f
fo
ll
o
w
in
g

p
ro
ce
d
u
re
a
n
d
e
n
su
ri
n
g
th
a
t
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ch
ec
k
s
h
a
v
e
b
ee
n
p
e
rf
o
rm
ed
fo
r
a
ll
p
a
y
m
en
ts
.

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
a
ls
o
en
su
re
th
a
t
re
co
n
ci
li
a
ti
o
n
s
a
re
p
er
fo
rm
ed
a
n
d
th
a
t
th
e
m
o
n
th
ly

p
en
si
o
n
ch
ec
k
li
st
s
a
re
co
m
p
le
te
d
.

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
a
im
to
p
ro
ce
ss
re
fu
n
d
s
in
li
n
e
w
it
h
P
A
S
2
0
13
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
ta
rg
et
s
a
n
d

co
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
ta
rg
et
s
to
em
p
lo
y
ee
s.

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
en
su
re
b
e
tt
er
co
n
tr
o
l
is
h
el
d
a
ro
u
n
d
th
e
p
ro
v
is
io
n
o
f
d
o
cu
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
.

P
en
si
o
n
s
M
a
n
a
g
er

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

Im
m
ed
ia
te
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f

a
ct
io
n
s
a
g
re
ed
w
h
il
e
a
ll
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d

p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
w
il
l
co
n
ti
n
u
e
to
b
e

re
v
ie
w
ed
.

Page 174



9

3
.0

2
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

in
m

e
m

b
e

r
d

e
ta

il
s

–
C

o
n

tr
o

l
o

p
e

r
a

ti
o

n

F
in

d
in

g

In
o
n
e
in
st
a
n
ce
,
fr
o
m
a
sa
m
p
le
o
f
4
5
te
st
ed
,
w
e
fo
u
n
d
n
o
ev
id
en
ce
o
f
a
n
y
co
rr
e
sp
o
n
d
en
ce
re
ce
iv
ed
fr
o
m
e
it
h
er
th
e
e
m
p
lo
y
e
r,
o
r
m
e
m
b
e
r,
n
o
ti
fy
in
g
o
f
a

n
ee
d
fo
r
a
ch
a
n
g
e
in
b
a
n
k
d
et
a
il
s.
C
h
a
n
g
es
to
b
a
n
k
d
e
ta
il
s
m
u
st
b
e
m
a
d
e
b
y
a
m
e
m
b
e
r
ei
th
er
th
ro
u
g
h
a
si
g
n
ed
le
tt
er
o
r
e
m
a
il
th
a
t
in
cl
u
d
es
th
ei
r
p
en
si
o
n

re
fe
re
n
ce
n
u
m
b
er
o
r
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l
In
su
ra
n
ce
n
u
m
b
er
,
o
n
li
n
e
th
ro
u
g
h
M
y
P
en
si
o
n
,
o
r
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
a
re
p
o
rt
fr
o
m
th
e
b
a
n
k
in
fo
rm
in
g
o
f
th
e
ch
a
n
g
e
m
a
d
e
b
y
th
e

m
em
b
er
.
N
o
ch
a
n
g
es
sh
o
u
ld
b
e
m
a
d
e
o
th
er
th
a
n
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
es
a
b
o
v
e
.

W
e
a
ls
o
id
en
ti
fi
ed
o
n
e
in
st
a
n
ce
,
fr
o
m
a
sa
m
p
le
o
f
4
5
te
st
ed
,
w
h
er
e
a
m
em
b
er
’s
re
q
u
es
t
fo
r
a
ch
a
n
g
e
o
f
a
d
d
re
ss
w
a
s
m
a
d
e
th
ro
u
g
h
a
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
ca
ll
.
C
h
a
n
g
es

to
a
d
d
re
ss
sh
o
u
ld
fo
ll
o
w
a
si
m
il
a
r
p
ro
ce
ss
to
a
ch
a
n
g
e
in
b
a
n
k
d
et
a
il
s;
h
o
w
ev
er
,
in
th
is
in
st
a
n
ce
th
er
e
w
a
s
n
o
fu
rt
h
er
ev
id
en
ce
to
su
p
p
o
rt
th
e
m
em
b
er
’s

re
q
u
es
t
o
th
er
th
a
n
a
lo
g
o
f
th
e
d
a
te
a
n
d
ti
m
e
o
f
th
e
ca
ll
.

R
is

k
s

Im
p
ro
p
e
r
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
a
ro
u
n
d
ch
a
n
g
es
in
m
em
b
e
r
d
et
a
il
s,
su
ch
a
s
b
a
n
k
d
et
a
il
s
a
n
d
a
d
d
re
ss
es
,
in
cr
ea
se
th
e
ri
sk
o
f
m
em
b
er
s
b
ec
o
m
in
g
th
e
v
ic
ti
m
s
o
f
fr
a
u
d
.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

M
ed
iu
m

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
en
su
re
b
et
te
r
co
n
tr
o
l
a
ro
u
n
d
h
o
ld
in
g
su
ff
ic
ie
n
t
d
o
cu
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
fo
r

ev
id
en
ce
w
il
l
b
e
ca
rr
ie
d
o
u
t,
es
p
ec
ia
ll
y
a
ro
u
n
d
a
re
a
s
o
f
th
e
sy
st
em
co
n
ta
in
in
g
se
n
si
ti
v
e

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
su
ch
a
s
b
a
n
k
d
et
a
il
s.

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
a
g
re
ed
w
h
en
a
m
em
b
e
r
se
n
d
s
a
re
q
u
es
t
to
ch
a
n
g
e
th
e
ir
a
d
d
re
ss
v
ia
a

te
le
p
h
o
n
e
ca
ll
,
th
a
t
th
e
m
em
b
e
r
w
il
l
b
e
re
q
u
ir
ed
to
p
ro
v
id
e
fu
rt
h
er
e
v
id
en
ce
to
v
er
if
y
th
e

v
er
a
ci
ty
o
f
th
ei
r
re
q
u
es
t.

P
en
si
o
n
s
M
a
n
a
g
er

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

Im
m
ed
ia
te
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f

a
ct
io
n
s
a
g
re
ed
w
h
il
e
a
ll
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d

p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
w
il
l
co
n
ti
n
u
e
to
b
e

re
v
ie
w
ed
.

Page 175



1
0

3
.0

3
S

ta
tu

to
r

y
n

o
ti

c
e

s
fo

r
n

e
w

m
e

m
b

e
r

s
–

c
o

n
tr

o
l

o
p

e
r

a
ti

o
n

F
in

d
in

g

W
h
it
e
sh
ee
ts
o
r
P
E
N
1
fo
rm
s
a
re
re
ce
iv
ed
fr
o
m
th
e
em
p
lo
y
er
fo
r
a
ll
n
ew
m
e
m
b
er
s
o
th
er
th
a
n
em
p
lo
y
er
s
u
si
n
g
iC
o
n
n
ec
t
o
r
E
m
p
lo
y
er
S
er
v
ic
es
.
F
ro
m
a

sa
m
p
le
o
f
4
5
te
st
ed
w
e
fo
u
n
d
fo
u
r
ca
se
s
w
h
er
e
th
er
e
w
a
s
n
o
ev
id
en
ce
o
f
a
st
a
tu
to
ry
n
o
ti
ce
b
ei
n
g
se
n
t
to
m
em
b
e
rs
.
R
e
g
a
rd
le
ss
o
f
th
e
m
et
h
o
d
ch
o
se
n
to

en
ro
l
m
e
m
b
er
s
in
to
th
e
p
en
si
o
n
sc
h
e
m
e
,
a
st
a
tu
to
ry
n
o
ti
ce
sh
o
u
ld
b
e
a
u
to
m
a
ti
ca
ll
y
g
en
e
ra
te
d
a
n
d
se
n
t
to
th
e
m
em
b
er
.

R
is

k
s

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
m
em
b
er
d
a
ta
m
a
y
b
e
in
co
m
p
le
te
o
r
in
a
cc
u
ra
te
,
a
n
d
th
a
t
p
ro
p
er
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
m
a
y
n
o
t
h
a
v
e
b
e
en
fo
ll
o
w
ed
.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

L
o
w

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
en
su
re
ev
id
en
ce
o
f
st
a
tu
to
ry
n
o
ti
ce
s
b
ei
n
g
se
n
t
to
a
ll
m
em
b
er
s
is
re
ta
in
ed
fo
r

ea
ch
m
e
m
b
er
a
n
d
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
d
o
cu
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
is
h
el
d
fo
r
a
u
d
it
p
u
rp
o
se
s.

P
en
si
o
n
s
M
a
n
a
g
er

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

Im
m
ed
ia
te
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f

a
ct
io
n
s
a
g
re
ed
w
h
il
e
a
ll
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d

p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
w
il
l
co
n
ti
n
u
e
to
b
e

re
v
ie
w
ed
.

Page 176



1
1

3
.0

4
T

h
ir

d
p

a
r

ty
c

o
n

tr
o

ls
r

e
p

o
r

t
r

e
v

ie
w

-
c

o
n

tr
o

l
o

p
e

r
a

ti
o

n

F
in

d
in

g

O
n
a
n
a
n
n
u
a
l
b
a
si
s
th
e
P
en
si
o
n
s
M
a
n
a
g
er
is
re
q
u
ir
e
d
to
re
v
ie
w
th
e
co
n
tr
o
ls
re
p
o
rt
s
is
su
ed
b
y
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
y
fu
n
d
m
a
n
a
g
er
s
a
n
d
cu
st
o
d
ia
n
s
o
f
th
e
p
en
si
o
n

fu
n
d
.
T
h
e
P
en
si
o
n
s
M
a
n
a
g
er
m
u
st
th
en
re
p
o
rt
to
th
e
P
en
si
o
n
s
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
o
n
a
n
y
is
su
es
id
en
ti
fi
ed
in
th
o
se
re
p
o
rt
s.
In
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
,
fo
r
th
e
10
re
p
o
rt
s

re
ce
iv
ed
in
2
0
14
,
w
e
fo
u
n
d
o
n
e
in
st
a
n
ce
w
h
er
e
th
e
co
n
tr
o
ls
re
p
o
rt
re
ce
iv
ed
fr
o
m
th
e
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
y
h
a
d
n
o
t
b
e
en
re
v
ie
w
ed
a
n
d
re
p
o
rt
ed
o
n
to
th
e
P
en
si
o
n
s

C
o
m
m
it
te
e.

R
is

k
s

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
a
n
y
is
su
es
id
en
ti
fi
ed
in
th
e
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
y
re
p
o
rt
s
w
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
id
e
n
ti
fi
ed
o
n
a
ti
m
el
y
b
a
si
s.
C
o
n
tr
o
l
fa
il
u
re
s
a
t
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
ie
s
(i
.e
.
fu
n
d

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
o
r
p
en
si
o
n
cu
st
o
d
ia
n
s)
co
u
ld
re
su
lt
in
lo
ss
es
o
f
d
a
ta
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
lo
ss
fo
r
th
e
p
en
si
o
n
fu
n
d
in
tu
rn
re
su
lt
in
g
in
re
g
u
la
to
ry
n
o
n
-c
o
m
p
li
a
n
ce
is
su
es
.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

L
o
w

T
h
e
P
en
si
o
n
s
M
a
n
a
g
er
w
il
l
en
su
re
th
a
t
re
v
ie
w
a
n
d
si
g
n
o
ff
o
f
a
ll
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
y
re
p
o
rt
s
is

p
er
fo
rm
ed
a
n
n
u
a
ll
y
a
n
d
a
n
y
is
su
es
re
p
o
rt
ed
to
th
e
P
en
si
o
n
s
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
o
n
a
ti
m
el
y
b
a
si
s.

P
en
si
o
n
s
M
a
n
a
g
er

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

Im
m
ed
ia
te
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f

a
ct
io
n
s
a
g
re
ed
w
h
il
e
a
ll
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d

p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
w
il
l
co
n
ti
n
u
e
to
b
e

re
v
ie
w
ed
.

Page 177



1
2

A
p
p
en
d
ix
1
–
B
a
si
s
o
f
o
u
r
cl
a
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l
fi

n
d

in
g

r
a

ti
n

g
s

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

r
a

ti
o

n
a

le

C
ri
ti
ca
l

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

C
r
it
ic
a
l
im
p
a
ct
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

C
r
it
ic
a
l
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

C
r
it
ic
a
l
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
th
a
t
co
u
ld
re
su
lt
in
m
a
te
ri
a
l
fi
n
es
o
r
co
n
se
q
u
en
ce
s;
o
r

C
r
it
ic
a
l
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
r
b
ra
n
d
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
w
h
ic
h
co
u
ld
th
re
a
te
n
it
s
fu
tu
re
v
ia
b
il
it
y
.

H
ig
h

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
im
p
a
ct
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
e
n
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
re
su
lt
in
g
in
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t
fi
n
es
a
n
d
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s
;
o
r

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
r
b
ra
n
d
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

M
ed
iu
m

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
im
p
a
ct
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
re
su
lt
in
g
in
fi
n
es
a
n
d
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s;
o
r

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
r
b
ra
n
d
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

L
o
w

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

M
in
o
r
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
’s
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

M
in
o
r
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

M
in
o
r
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
w
it
h
li
m
it
ed
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s;
o
r

M
in
o
r
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

A
d
v
is
o
ry

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
d
o
es
n
o
t
h
a
v
e
a
ri
sk
im
p
a
ct
b
u
t
h
a
s
b
ee
n
ra
is
e
d
to
h
ig
h
li
g
h
t
a
re
a
s
o
f
in
ef
fi
ci
e
n
ci
es
o
r
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e.

Page 178



1
3

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

s

F
in

d
in

g
s

r
a

ti
n

g
P

o
in

ts

C
ri
ti
ca
l

4
0
p
o
in
ts
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

H
ig
h

10
p
o
in
ts
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

M
ed
iu
m

3
p
o
in
ts
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

L
o
w

1
p
o
in
t
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

P
o

in
ts

L
o
w
ri
sk

6
p
o
in
ts
o
r
le
ss

M
ed
iu
m
ri
sk

7
–
15
p
o
in
ts

H
ig
h
ri
sk

16
–
3
9
p
o
in
ts

C
ri
ti
ca
l
ri
sk

4
0
p
o
in
ts
a
n
d
o
v
er

Page 179



1
4

A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
–
T
er
m
s
o
f
re
fe
re
n
ce

A
b
e
r
d
e
e
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

T
e
r
m
s
o
f
R
e
fe
r
e
n
c
e
–
P
e
n
s
io
n
F
u
n
d
F
in
a
n
c
ia
l
C
o
n
tr
o
ls
a
n
d

P
e
n
s
io
n
P
a
y
r
o
ll

T
h
is
re
v
ie
w
is
b
e
in
g
u
n
d
er
ta
k
en
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
2
0
14
/2
0
15
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
p
la
n
a
p
p
ro
v
ed
b
y
th
e
A
u
d
it
&
R
is
k
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
a
p
p
ro
v
ed
in
A
p
ri
l
2
0
14
.

B
a
ck
g
ro
u
n
d

T
h
e
N
o
rt
h
E
a
st
o
f
S
co
tl
a
n
d
P
en
si
o
n
F
u
n
d
a
n
d
th
e
T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
F
u
n
d
a
re
a
d
m
in
is
te
re
d
b
y
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
w
it
h
in
th
e
L
o
ca
l
G
o
v
er
n
m
e
n
t
P
en
si
o
n
S
ch
em
e

re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s.
T
h
er
e
a
re
13
sc
h
ed
u
le
d
b
o
d
ie
s
in
cl
u
d
in
g
A
C
C
,
S
co
tt
is
h
W
a
te
r,
A
b
er
d
e
en
sh
ir
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
n
d
T
h
e
M
o
ra
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l.

A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
h
a
s
d
el
eg
a
te
d
st
ra
te
g
ic
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y
fo
r
th
e
a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
P
en
si
o
n
F
u
n
d
s
to
th
e
P
en
si
o
n
s
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
,
w
h
o
a
re
re
sp
o
n
si
b
le
fo
r

b
en
e
fi
ts
a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
in
v
es
tm
en
t
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t.
T
h
e
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
co
n
si
st
s
o
f
9
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
el
ec
te
d
m
em
b
er
s,
in
cl
u
d
in
g
a
t
le
a
st
o
n
e
fr
o
m
ea
ch
o
f
th
e
m
a
jo
r

p
o
li
ti
ca
l
p
a
rt
ie
s.
A
ll
m
em
b
e
rs
h
a
v
e
eq
u
a
l
v
o
ti
n
g
ri
g
h
ts
.
T
h
er
e
is
a
ls
o
a
J
o
in
t
In
v
es
tm
en
t
A
d
v
is
o
ry
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
(J
IA
C
).
T
h
e
J
IA
C
h
a
v
e
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y
fo
r
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

th
e
in
v
es
tm
e
n
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
o
f
th
e
P
en
si
o
n
F
u
n
d
a
n
d
m
a
k
in
g
re
co
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
s
to
th
e
P
en
si
o
n
s
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
o
n
th
e
a
p
p
o
in
tm
en
t,
re
te
n
ti
o
n
a
n
d
te
rm
in
a
ti
o
n
o
f

in
v
es
tm
en
t
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
co
n
tr
a
ct
s.

S
co
p
e

T
h
e
o
v
er
a
ll
sc
o
p
e
o
f
th
is
re
v
ie
w
w
il
l
b
e
to
co
n
si
d
er
th
e
d
es
ig
n
a
n
d
o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s
o
f
th
e
k
ey
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
re
la
ti
o
n
to
th
e
p
e
n
si
o
n
p
a
y
ro
ll
a
s
w
el
l
a
s
th
e

o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
n
es
s
o
f
th
e
k
ey
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
re
la
ti
o
n
to
th
e
p
en
si
o
n
fu
n
d
.
T
h
e
su
b
-p
ro
ce
ss
es
a
n
d
re
la
te
d
co
n
tr
o
l
o
b
je
ct
iv
es
in
cl
u
d
ed
in
th
is
re
v
ie
w
a
re
:

Page 180



1
5

C
o
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s

P
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
a
re
in
p
la
ce
fo
r
co
m
p
ly
in
g
w
it
h
th
e
te
rm
s
o
f
a
ll
re
le
v
a
n
t
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s,
in
cl
u
d
in
g

T
h
e
L
o
ca
l
G
o
v
e
rn
m
en
t
P
en
si
o
n
S
ch
e
m
e
(B
en
e
fi
ts
,
M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
a
n
d
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s)

(S
co
tl
a
n
d
)
R
eg
u
la
ti
o
n
s.

A
n
in
v
es
tm
en
t
st
ra
te
g
y
ex
is
ts
a
t
a
fu
n
d
le
v
el
a
n
d
o
n
ly
a
ss
et
s
in
li
n
e
w
it
h
th
is
st
ra
te
g
y
a
re

in
v
es
te
d
in
.

A
m
en
d
m
e
n
ts
to
S
ta
n
d
in
g
D
a
ta

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
a
re
im
p
le
m
en
te
d
in
o
rd
er
th
a
t
a
m
en
d
m
en
ts
to
st
a
n
d
in
g
d
a
ta
,
su
ch

a
s
n
ew
st
a
rt
s,
le
a
v
er
s,
re
ti
re
es
a
n
d
d
ea
th
o
f
p
en
si
o
n
er
s
a
re
re
co
rd
ed
ti
m
eo
u
sl
y
a
n
d

a
cc
u
ra
te
ly
.
T
h
is
in
cl
u
d
es
le
a
v
er
n
o
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
s,
d
ea
th
ce
rt
if
ic
a
te
s
a
n
d
p
en
si
o
n
e
n
ro
lm
en
t

fo
rm
s.

A
ll
tr
a
n
sf
er
s
in
h
a
v
e
a
v
a
li
d
tr
a
n
sf
er
p
a
ck
to
en
su
re
a
ll
re
le
v
a
n
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
h
a
s
b
ee
n

o
b
ta
in
ed
.

P
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
ex
is
t
to
en
su
re
tr
a
n
sf
er
s
o
u
t
a
re
to
v
a
li
d
sc
h
em
es
.

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
a
re
im
p
le
m
en
te
d
in
o
rd
er
th
a
t
a
m
en
d
m
e
n
ts
su
ch
a
s
b
a
n
k
d
et
a
il
s

a
n
d
a
d
d
re
ss
es
a
re
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
a
u
th
o
ri
se
d
a
s
co
m
p
le
te
a
n
d
a
cc
u
ra
te
.

A
n
n
u
a
l
B
en
ef
it
N
o
ti
ce
s
a
n
d
C
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s

M
o
n
th
ly
p
en
si
o
n
ca
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
lu
m
p
su
m
s
a
re
ca
lc
u
la
te
d
a
cc
u
ra
te
ly
(t
h
is
w
il
l
b
e
te
st
ed

th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
u
se
o
f
C
o
m
p
u
te
r
A
ss
is
te
d
A
u
d
it
T
ec
h
n
iq
u
es
).

A
n
n
u
a
l
b
en
ef
it
n
o
ti
ce
s
a
re
a
cc
u
ra
te
a
n
d
a
re
d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
to
ex
is
ti
n
g
a
ct
iv
e
m
em
b
er
s
o
n
a

ti
m
el
y
b
a
si
s.

P
en
si
o
n
P
a
y
m
en
ts

P
en
si
o
n
p
a
y
m
en
ts
a
re
o
n
ly
m
a
d
e
to
th
o
se
m
em
b
er
s
o
f
th
e
p
e
n
si
o
n
sc
h
e
m
e
e
n
ti
tl
ed
to

re
ce
iv
e
su
ch
b
en
ef
it
s
a
n
d
th
a
t
p
a
y
m
en
ts
m
a
d
e
a
t
p
o
in
t
o
f
re
ti
re
m
en
t.

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
re
in
p
la
ce
so
th
a
t
p
en
si
o
n
p
a
y
m
en
ts
a
re
co
m
p
le
te
a
n
d
a
cc
u
ra
te
.

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ch
ec
k
s
a
re
in
p
la
ce
to
en
su
re
co
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
a
re
p
a
id
to
th
e
sc
h
em
e
b
y
19
th
o
f

th
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
ca
le
n
d
a
r
m
o
n
th
in
li
n
e
w
it
h
p
en
si
o
n
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s.

M
o
n
th
ly
a
n
a
ly
ti
ca
l
ch
ec
k
s
a
re
p
e
rf
o
rm
ed
to
id
en
ti
fy
a
n
y
u
n
u
su
a
l
tr
en
d
s
a
n
d
th
es
e
a
re
a
ct
ed

u
p
o
n
.

U
se
o
f
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
ie
s

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
h
a
s
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
o
v
er
th
e
co
n
tr
o
l
en
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
a
t
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
ie
s
su
ch
a
s

p
en
si
o
n
cu
st
o
d
ia
n
s
th
ro
u
g
h
o
b
ta
in
in
g
a
n
d
re
v
ie
w
in
g
S
A
S
7
0
a
n
d
IS
A
E
3
4
0
2
co
n
tr
o
ls

re
p
o
rt
s.

Page 181



1
6

A
u
d
it
a
p
p
ro
a
ch

O
u
r
a
u
d
it
a
p
p
ro
a
ch
is
a
s
fo
ll
o
w
s:

O
b
ta
in
a
n
u
n
d
er
st
a
n
d
in
g
o
f
th
e
k
ey
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
p
la
ce
th
ro
u
g
h
d
is
cu
ss
io
n
s
w
it
h
k
ey
p
er
so
n
n
el
,
a
n
d
re
v
ie
w
o
f
su
p
p
o
rt
in
g
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
d
o
cu
m
en
ta
ti
o
n

Id
en
ti
fy
th
e
k
ey
ri
sk
s
o
f
th
e
p
en
si
o
n
fu
n
d
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
n
d
p
a
y
ro
ll

E
v
a
lu
a
te
th
e
d
es
ig
n
o
f
th
e
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
p
la
ce
to
a
d
d
re
ss
th
e
k
e
y
ri
sk
s

T
es
t
th
e
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
n
es
s
o
f
th
e
k
ey
co
n
tr
o
ls
o
n
a
sa
m
p
le
b
a
si
s

U
se
co
m
p
u
te
r
a
ss
is
te
d
a
u
d
it
te
ch
n
iq
u
es
(C
A
A
T
s)
to
te
st
th
e
a
cc
u
ra
cy
o
f
p
e
n
si
o
n
ca
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s.

L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
o
f
sc
o
p
e

T
h
e
sc
o
p
e
o
f
o
u
r
w
o
rk
is
o
u
tl
in
ed
a
b
o
v
e.
O
u
r
re
v
ie
w
w
il
l
b
e
co
n
d
u
ct
ed
o
n
a
sa
m
p
le
b
a
si
s.
W
e
w
il
l
n
o
t
a
ss
es
s
th
e
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
ce
a
rr
a
n
g
em
en
ts
in
p
la
ce
a
ro
u
n
d
th
e

p
en
si
o
n
fu
n
d
s.

In
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l,
n
o
m
a
tt
er
h
o
w
w
el
l
d
es
ig
n
ed
a
n
d
o
p
er
a
te
d
,
ca
n
p
ro
v
id
e
o
n
ly
re
a
so
n
a
b
le
a
n
d
n
o
t
a
b
so
lu
te
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
re
g
a
rd
in
g
a
ch
ie
v
e
m
en
t
o
f
a
n
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
's

o
b
je
ct
iv
es
.
T
h
e
li
k
el
ih
o
o
d
o
f
a
ch
ie
v
em
en
t
is
a
ff
ec
te
d
b
y
li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
in
h
er
e
n
t
in
a
ll
in
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l
sy
st
em
s.
T
h
es
e
in
cl
u
d
e
th
e
p
o
ss
ib
il
it
y
o
f
p
o
o
r
ju
d
g
m
en
t
in

d
ec
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
,
h
u
m
a
n
er
ro
r,
co
n
tr
o
l
p
ro
ce
ss
es
b
ei
n
g
d
el
ib
e
ra
te
ly
ci
rc
u
m
v
en
te
d
b
y
em
p
lo
y
ee
s
a
n
d
o
th
er
s,
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
o
v
e
rr
id
in
g
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
n
d
th
e
o
cc
u
rr
en
ce

o
f
u
n
fo
re
se
ea
b
le
ci
rc
u
m
st
a
n
ce
s.

Page 182



1
7

A
p
p
en
d
ix
3
–
L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s

L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
in
h
e
re
n
t
to
th
e
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
r’
s
w
o
rk

W
e
h
a
v
e
u
n
d
er
ta
k
en
a
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
P
e
n
si
o
n
F
u
n
d
F
in
a
n
ci
a
l
C
o
n
tr
o
ls
a
n
d

P
en
si
o
n
P
a
y
ro
ll
.

In
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l

In
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l,
n
o
m
a
tt
er
h
o
w
w
el
l
d
es
ig
n
ed
a
n
d
o
p
er
a
te
d
,
ca
n
p
ro
v
id
e
o
n
ly

re
a
so
n
a
b
le
a
n
d
n
o
t
a
b
so
lu
te
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
re
g
a
rd
in
g
a
ch
ie
v
em
e
n
t
o
f
a
n

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
's
o
b
je
ct
iv
es
.
T
h
e
li
k
el
ih
o
o
d
o
f
a
ch
ie
v
em
e
n
t
is
a
ff
ec
te
d
b
y

li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
in
h
er
en
t
in
a
ll
in
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l
sy
st
em
s.
T
h
es
e
in
cl
u
d
e
th
e

p
o
ss
ib
il
it
y
o
f
p
o
o
r
ju
d
g
m
e
n
t
in
d
ec
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
,
h
u
m
a
n
er
ro
r,
co
n
tr
o
l

p
ro
ce
ss
es
b
e
in
g
d
el
ib
er
a
te
ly
ci
rc
u
m
v
e
n
te
d
b
y
em
p
lo
y
e
es
a
n
d
o
th
er
s,

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
o
v
er
ri
d
in
g
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
n
d
th
e
o
cc
u
rr
en
ce
o
f
u
n
fo
re
se
ea
b
le

ci
rc
u
m
st
a
n
ce
s.

F
u
tu
re
p
e
ri
o
d
s

O
u
r
a
ss
es
sm
en
t
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
re
la
ti
n
g
to
th
e
P
en
si
o
n
F
u
n
d
F
in
a
n
ci
a
l
C
o
n
tr
o
ls

a
n
d
P
en
si
o
n
P
a
y
ro
ll
is
a
t
A
p
ri
l
2
0
15
.
H
is
to
ri
c
ev
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
o
f
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s
is

n
o
t
re
le
v
a
n
t
to
fu
tu
re
p
er
io
d
s
d
u
e
to
th
e
ri
sk
th
a
t:

th
e
d
es
ig
n
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
m
a
y
b
ec
o
m
e
in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
b
ec
a
u
se
o
f
ch
a
n
g
es
in

o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
en
v
ir
o
n
m
en
t,
la
w
,
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
o
r
o
th
er
;
o
r

th
e
d
eg
re
e
o
f
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
m
a
y
d
e
te
ri
o
ra
te
.

R
e
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s
o
f
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
rs

It
is
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t’
s
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y
to
d
ev
el
o
p
a
n
d
m
a
in
ta
in
so
u
n
d
sy
st
em
s
o
f

ri
sk
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t,
in
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l
a
n
d
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
fo
r
th
e
p
re
v
en
ti
o
n

a
n
d
d
et
ec
ti
o
n
o
f
ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ti
es
a
n
d
fr
a
u
d
.
In
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
w
o
rk
sh
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e

se
en
a
s
a
su
b
st
it
u
te
fo
r
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t’
s
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s
fo
r
th
e
d
es
ig
n
a
n
d

o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
o
f
th
es
e
sy
st
em
s.

W
e
en
d
ea
v
o
u
r
to
p
la
n
o
u
r
w
o
rk
so
th
a
t
w
e
h
a
v
e
a
re
a
so
n
a
b
le
ex
p
ec
ta
ti
o
n
o
f

d
et
ec
ti
n
g
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t
co
n
tr
o
l
w
ea
k
n
es
se
s
a
n
d
,
if
d
et
ec
te
d
,
w
e
sh
a
ll
ca
rr
y
o
u
t

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
w
o
rk
d
ir
ec
te
d
to
w
a
rd
s
id
en
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
o
f
co
n
se
q
u
en
t
fr
a
u
d
o
r
o
th
er

ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ti
es
.
H
o
w
e
v
er
,
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
a
lo
n
e,
e
v
en
w
h
e
n
ca
rr
ie
d

o
u
t
w
it
h
d
u
e
p
ro
fe
ss
io
n
a
l
ca
re
,
d
o
n
o
t
g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
th
a
t
fr
a
u
d
w
il
l
b
e
d
et
ec
te
d
.

A
cc
o
rd
in
g
ly
,
o
u
r
e
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
s
a
s
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
rs
sh
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
re
li
ed
u
p
o
n

so
le
ly
to
d
is
cl
o
se
fr
a
u
d
,
d
ef
a
lc
a
ti
o
n
s
o
r
o
th
er
ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ti
es
w
h
ic
h
m
a
y
ex
is
t.

Page 183



In
th
e
ev
en
t
th
a
t,
p
u
rs
u
a
n
t
to
a
re
q
u
es
t
w
h
ic
h
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
h
a
s
re
ce
iv
ed
u
n
d
er
th
e
F
re
e
d
o
m
o
f
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
A
ct
2
0
0
0
o
r
th
e
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
en
ta
l
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
R
eg
u
la
ti
o
n
s
2
0
0
4
(a
s
th
e
sa
m
e
m
a
y
b
e

a
m
en
d
ed
o
r
re
-e
n
a
ct
ed
fr
o
m
ti
m
e
to
ti
m
e)
o
r
a
n
y
su
b
o
rd
in
a
te
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
m
a
d
e
th
er
eu
n
d
er
(c
o
ll
ec
ti
v
el
y
,
th
e
“L
eg
is
la
ti
o
n
”)
,
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
is
re
q
u
ir
ed
to
d
is
cl
o
se
a
n
y
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
co
n
ta
in
ed
in
th
is

d
o
cu
m
en
t,
it
w
il
l
n
o
ti
fy
P
w
C
p
ro
m
p
tl
y
a
n
d
w
il
l
co
n
su
lt
w
it
h
P
w
C
p
ri
o
r
to
d
is
cl
o
si
n
g
su
ch
d
o
cu
m
en
t.
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
g
re
es
to
p
a
y
d
u
e
re
g
a
rd
to
a
n
y
re
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
w
h
ic
h
P
w
C
m
a
y
m
a
k
e
in

co
n
n
ec
ti
o
n
w
it
h
su
ch
d
is
cl
o
su
re
a
n
d
to
a
p
p
ly
a
n
y
re
le
v
a
n
t
ex
em
p
ti
o
n
s
w
h
ic
h
m
a
y
ex
is
t
u
n
d
er
th
e
L
eg
is
la
ti
o
n
.
If
,
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
co
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
P
w
C
,
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
d
is
cl
o
se
s
a
n
y
th
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t
o
r

a
n
y
p
a
rt
th
er
eo
f,
it
sh
a
ll
en
su
re
th
a
t
a
n
y
d
is
cl
a
im
er
w
h
ic
h
P
w
C
h
a
s
in
cl
u
d
ed
o
r
m
a
y
su
b
se
q
u
en
tl
y
w
is
h
to
in
cl
u
d
e
in
th
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
is
re
p
ro
d
u
ce
d
in
fu
ll
in
a
n
y
co
p
ie
s
d
is
cl
o
se
d
.

T
h
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t
h
a
s
b
ee
n
p
re
p
a
re
d
o
n
ly
fo
r
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
n
d
so
le
ly
fo
r
th
e
p
u
rp
o
se
a
n
d
o
n
th
e
te
rm
s
a
g
re
ed
w
it
h
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
in
o
u
r
a
g
re
em
en
t
d
a
te
d
4
O
ct
o
b
er
2
0
10
.
W
e
a
cc
ep
t
n
o

li
a
b
il
it
y
(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
fo
r
n
eg
li
g
en
ce
)
to
a
n
y
o
n
e
el
se
in
co
n
n
ec
ti
o
n
w
it
h
th
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t,
a
n
d
it
m
a
y
n
o
t
b
e
p
ro
v
id
ed
to
a
n
y
o
n
e
el
se
.

©
2
0
15
P
ri
ce
w
a
te
rh
o
u
se
C
o
o
p
er
s
L
L
P
.
A
ll
ri
g
h
ts
re
se
rv
ed
.
In
th
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t,
"P
w
C
"
re
fe
rs
to
P
ri
ce
w
a
te
rh
o
u
se
C
o
o
p
er
s
L
L
P
(a
li
m
it
ed
li
a
b
il
it
y
p
a
rt
n
er
sh
ip
in
th
e
U
n
it
ed
K
in
g
d
o
m
),
w
h
ic
h
is
a
m
em
b
er
fi
rm

o
f
P
ri
ce
w
a
te
rh
o
u
se
C
o
o
p
er
s
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
L
im
it
ed
,
ea
ch
m
em
b
er
fi
rm
o
f
w
h
ic
h
is
a
se
p
a
ra
te
le
g
a
l
en
ti
ty
.

Page 184



A
b
e
r
d
e
e
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

C
o
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
P
u
b
li
c
R
ec
o
rd
s
(S
co
tl
a
n
d
)
A
ct
–
P
h
a
se
2

T
a

r
g

e
t

D
a

te
s

p
e

r
a

g
r

e
e

d

In
te

r
n

a
l

A
u

d
it

C
h

a
r
te

r

A
c

tu
a

l
D

a
te

s
R

e
d

/A
m

b
e

r
/G

r
e

e
n

a
n

d
c

o
m

m
e

n
ta

r
y

w
h

e
r

e
a

p
p

li
c

a
b

le

T
er
m
s
o
r
re
fe
re
n
ce
a
g
re
ed
4
w
ee
k
s
p
ri
o
r
to

fi
el
d
w
o
rk

0
8
J
u
ly
2
0
14

2
4
J
u
ly
2
0
14

R
e

d
–
D
u
e
to
a
n
n
u
a
l
le
a
v
e

P
la
n
n
ed
fi
el
d
w
o
rk
st
a
rt
d
a
te

3
0
M
a
rc
h
2
0
15

3
0
M
a
rc
h
2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
co
m
p
le
ti
o
n
d
a
te

0
3
A
p
ri
l
2
0
15

0
3
A
p
ri
l
2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

D
ra
ft
re
p
o
rt
is
su
ed
fo
r
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
co
m
m
en
t

17
A
p
ri
l
2
0
15

14
M
a
y
2
0
15

R
e

d
–
In
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
r
o
n
st
u
d
y
le
a
v
e

M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
C
o
m
m
en
ts
re
ce
iv
ed

2
8
M
a
y
2
0
15

2
8
M
a
y
2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

R
ep
o
rt
fi
n
a
li
se
d

0
4
J
u
n
e
2
0
15

0
4
J
u
n
e
2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

S
u
b
m
it
te
d
to
A
u
d
it
,
R
is
k
a
n
d
S
cr
u
ti
n
y

C
o
m
m
it
te
e

2
5
J
u
n
e
2
0
15

2
5
J
u
n
e
2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
R
ep
o
rt

2
0
14
/2
0
15
fo
r
A
b
e
rd
ee
n

C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l

J
u

n
e

2
0

1
5

Agenda Item 6.3

Page 185



T
h
is
re
p
o
rt
h
a
s
b
ee
n
p
re
p
a
re
d
so
le
ly
fo
r
A
b
er
d
e
en
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
in
a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
te
rm
s
a
n
d
co
n
d
it
io
n
s
se
t
o
u
t
in
o
u
r
e
n
g
a
g
em
en
t
le
tt
er
4
O
ct
o
b
er
2
0
10
.
W
e
d
o
n
o
t
a
cc
ep
t
o
r

a
ss
u
m
e
a
n
y
li
a
b
il
it
y
o
r
d
u
ty
o
f
ca
re
fo
r
a
n
y
o
th
er
p
u
rp
o
se
o
r
to
a
n
y
o
th
er
p
a
rt
y
.
T
h
is
re
p
o
rt
sh
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
d
is
cl
o
se
d
to
a
n
y
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
y
,
q
u
o
te
d
o
r
re
fe
rr
ed
to
w
it
h
o
u
t
o
u
r
p
ri
o
r

w
ri
tt
en
co
n
se
n
t.

In
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
w
o
rk
w
il
l
b
e
p
er
fo
rm
ed
in
a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce
w
it
h
P
u
b
li
c
S
ec
to
r
In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s.
A
s
a
re
su
lt
,
o
u
r
w
o
rk
a
n
d
d
el
iv
er
a
b
le
s
a
re
n
o
t
d
e
si
g
n
ed
o
r
in
te
n
d
ed
to
co
m
p
ly
w
it
h

th
e
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
A
u
d
it
in
g
a
n
d
A
ss
u
ra
n
ce
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
B
o
a
rd
(I
A
A
S
B
),
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
F
ra
m
ew
o
rk
fo
r
A
ss
u
ra
n
ce
E
n
g
a
g
em
en
ts
(I
F
A
E
)
a
n
d
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
o
n
A
ss
u
ra
n
ce

E
n
g
a
g
em
en
ts
(I
S
A
E
)
3
0
0
0
.

In
te

r
n

a
l

A
u

d
it

r
e

p
o

r
t

fo
r
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l

P
w
C

C
o
n
te
n
ts

C
o
n
te
n
ts

S
e

c
ti

o
n

P
a

g
e

1.
E
x
e
cu
ti
v
e
S
u
m
m
a
ry

1

2
.
B
a
ck
g
ro
u
n
d
a
n
d
sc
o
p
e

4

3
.
D
et
a
il
ed
fi
n
d
in
g
s
a
n
d
re
co
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
s

6

A
p
p
en
d
ix
1
–
B
a
si
s
o
f
o
u
r
cl
a
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

15

A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
–
A
g
re
e
d
T
er
m
s
o
f
re
fe
re
n
ce

17

A
p
p
en
d
ix
3
–
L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s

2
0

Page 186



1

1.
E
x
ec
u
ti
v
e
S
u
m
m
a
ry

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

M
ed
iu
m
R
is
k

T
o

ta
l

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

fi
n

d
in

g
s

S
ec
ti
o
n
3

S
u

m
m

a
r

y
o

f
fi

n
d

in
g

s

1.
0
1

T
h
e
P
u
b
li
c
R
ec
o
rd
s
(S
co
tl
a
n
d
)
A
ct
2
0
11
(t
h
e
A
ct
)
re
q
u
ir
es
L
o
ca
l
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
es
to
p
re
p
a
re
a
n
d
im
p
le
m
en
t
a
R
e
co
rd
s
M
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
P
la
n
(R
M
P
)
th
a
t
se
ts
o
u
t
p
ro
p
er

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
en
ts
fo
r
th
e
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
o
f
re
co
rd
s.
W
e
is
su
ed
a
re
p
o
rt
to
th
e
A
u
d
it
,
R
is
k
a
n
d
S
cr
u
ti
n
y
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
,
‘C
o
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
P
u
b
li
c
R
ec
o
rd
s
(S
co
tl
a
n
d
)
A
ct

–
P
h
a
se
1’
,
o
n
2
0
th
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
2
0
14
th
a
t
se
t
o
u
t
se
v
er
a
l
re
co
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
s
fo
r
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
to
im
p
le
m
e
n
t
to
en
su
re
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
(t
h
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l)

su
b
m
it
te
d
R
M
P
w
o
u
ld
b
e
in
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
K
ee
p
er
o
f
th
e
R
e
co
rd
s
o
f
S
co
tl
a
n
d
’s
14
el
em
en
t
‘m
o
d
el
p
la
n
’.
T
h
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
su
b
m
it
te
d
it
s
fi
n
a
l
R
M
P
to
th
e
K
ee
p
er

o
n
2
3
J
a
n
u
a
ry
2
0
15
.

1.
0
2

T
h
e
in
it
ia
l
sc
o
p
e
o
f
P
h
a
se
T
w
o
o
f
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
A
ct
w
a
s
to
a
ss
es
s
th
e
d
es
ig
n
o
f
th
e
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
te
st
in
g
to
b
e

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
to
h
el
p
e
n
su
re
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
o
n
-g
o
in
g
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
a
n
d
p
ro
v
id
in
g
re
co
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
w
h
er
e
im
p
ro
v
em
e
n
ts
co
u
ld
b
e
m
a
d
e.
H
o
w
ev
er
,
a
t
th
e
d
a
te

sc
h
ed
u
le
d
fo
r
th
e
fi
el
d
w
o
rk
fo
r
o
u
r
P
h
a
se
T
w
o
re
v
ie
w
in
M
a
rc
h
2
0
15
,
a
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
te
st
in
g
h
a
d
n
o
t
y
et
b
ee
n
co
m
p
le
te
d
o
r
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
,
li
m
it
in
g
o
u
r

a
b
il
it
y
to
p
er
fo
rm
th
e
re
v
ie
w
in
li
n
e
w
it
h
th
e
sc
o
p
e
a
g
re
ed
w
it
h
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
in
J
u
ly
2
0
14
.

1.
0
3

O
u
r
a
p
p
ro
a
ch
fo
r
o
u
r
P
h
a
se
T
w
o
re
v
ie
w
th
er
ef
o
re
,
w
a
s
to
a
ss
es
s
th
e
p
ro
g
re
ss
m
a
d
e
to
d
a
te
o
n
im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
th
e
R
M
P
,
w
h
ic
h
is
b
ei
n
g
a
ch
ie
v
ed
th
ro
u
g
h
a
n

el
em
en
t
o
f
a
w
id
er
im
p
ro
v
em
e
n
t
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
u
n
d
er
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
th
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
S
tr
a
te
g
y
(I
M
S
),
a
n
d
to
h
ig
h
li
g
h
t
a
re
a
s
o
f
w
ea
k
n
es
s.
W
e

C
r

it
ic

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

iu
m

L
o

w
A

d
v

is
o

r
y

C
o
n
tr
o
l
d
es
ig
n

-
-

4
1

1

O
p
er
a
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s

-
-

-
-

-

T
o
ta
l

-
-

4
1

1

Page 187



2

in
te
rv
ie
w
ed
k
ey
m
e
m
b
er
s
o
f
st
a
ff
fr
o
m
th
e
se
v
e
n
d
o
m
a
in
s
o
f
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
o
u
tl
in
es
in
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
IM
S
,
a
n
d
w
e
re
v
ie
w
ed
k
ey
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
th
a
t

ev
id
en
ce
th
e
p
ro
g
re
ss
m
a
d
e
to
d
a
te
in
cl
u
d
in
g
th
e
d
ra
ft
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
S
tr
a
te
g
y
R
is
k
R
e
g
is
te
r.
S
in
ce
o
u
r
P
h
a
se
O
n
e
re
v
ie
w
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
h
a
s
su
b
m
it
te
d
it
s

R
M
P
to
th
e
K
ee
p
er
.
T
h
e
K
ee
p
er
a
ss
es
se
d
12
o
f
th
e
14
el
em
en
ts
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
R
M
P
a
s
‘G
re
en
’,
m
ea
n
in
g
“t
h
e
K
ee
p
er
a
g
re
es
th
is
el
em
e
n
t
o
f
a
n
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
p
la
n
”.

T
h
e
tw
o
re
m
a
in
in
g
el
em
e
n
ts
w
er
e
a
ss
es
se
d
a
s
‘A
m
b
er
’,
m
ea
n
in
g
“t
h
e
K
e
ep
er
a
g
re
e
s
th
is
el
em
en
t
o
f
a
n
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
p
la
n
a
s
a
n
im
p
ro
v
em
e
n
t
m
o
d
el
.
T
h
is
m
ea
n
s
th
a
t

h
e
is
co
n
v
in
ce
d
o
f
th
e
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
co
m
m
it
m
en
t
to
cl
o
si
n
g
a
g
a
p
in
p
ro
v
is
io
n
.
H
e
w
il
l
re
q
u
e
st
th
a
t
h
e
is
u
p
d
a
te
d
a
s
w
o
rk
o
n
th
is
el
em
en
t
p
ro
g
re
ss
es
.”

1.
0
4

W
e
h
a
v
e
n
o
te
d
fo
u
r
m
ed
iu
m
ri
sk
a
n
d
o
n
e
lo
w
ri
sk
fi
n
d
in
g
co
n
ce
rn
in
g
th
e
cu
rr
e
n
t
p
ro
g
re
ss
in
im
p
le
m
en
ti
n
g
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
R
M
P
.
T
h
e
fo
u
r
m
ed
iu
m
ri
sk
fi
n
d
in
g
s
a
re

su
m
m
a
ri
se
d
a
s
fo
ll
o
w
s:

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
st
a
te
d
th
a
t
p
ro
g
re
ss
h
a
s
b
ee
n
d
el
a
y
ed
in
ro
ll
in
g
o
u
t
th
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
R
ec
o
rd
s
L
if
ec
y
cl
e
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
p
ro
je
ct
(w
h
ic
h
w
il
l
im
p
le
m
en
t
th
e

C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
B
u
si
n
es
s
C
la
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
S
ch
e
m
e
a
n
d
R
et
e
n
ti
o
n
S
ch
ed
u
le
),
in
p
a
rt
d
u
e
to
d
if
fi
cu
lt
ie
s
in
re
cr
u
it
in
g
su
it
a
b
le
st
a
ff
to
th
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t

A
d
v
is
er
ro
le
s
re
fe
rr
ed
to
in
th
e
R
M
P
.
T
h
o
se
re
sp
o
n
si
b
le
fo
r
th
e
im
p
le
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
R
M
P
a
ls
o
h
ig
h
li
g
h
te
d
th
e
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t
co
m
p
le
x
it
y
in
v
o
lv
ed
in

m
a
n
a
g
in
g
th
e
w
id
er
IM
S
im
p
ro
v
e
m
en
t
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
a
cr
o
ss
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l.
W
e
fo
u
n
d
th
a
t
th
e
fo
rm
a
l
st
ra
te
g
ic
p
la
n
se
tt
in
g
th
e
d
ir
ec
ti
o
n
,
a
ct
io
n
s
a
n
d

ti
m
es
ca
le
s
fo
r
im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
th
e
w
id
er
IM
S
im
p
ro
v
em
en
t
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
a
cr
o
ss
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
w
a
s
st
il
l
u
n
d
e
r
d
ev
el
o
p
m
e
n
t.
In
re
la
ti
o
n
to
th
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d

R
ec
o
rd
s
L
if
ec
y
cl
e
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
p
ro
je
ct
(w
h
ic
h
w
il
l
im
p
le
m
en
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
B
u
si
n
es
s
C
la
ri
fi
ca
ti
o
n
S
ch
e
m
e
a
n
d
R
et
e
n
ti
o
n
S
ch
ed
u
le
,
a
se
ri
es
o
f
p
il
o
t

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
a
re
b
e
in
g
co
n
si
d
er
ed
a
n
d
cr
it
er
ia
fo
r
se
le
ct
in
g
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
n
ts
is
u
n
d
er
d
ev
el
o
p
m
e
n
t.

‘C
ri
ti
ca
l’
a
n
d
‘k
ey
’i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
sy
st
em
s
h
a
v
e
n
o
t
b
ee
n
co
n
si
st
en
tl
y
d
ef
in
ed
.
H
a
v
in
g
a
cl
ea
r
d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
,
co
n
si
st
e
n
tl
y
a
p
p
li
ed
a
cr
o
ss
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l,

is
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t
to
en
su
ri
n
g
th
a
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
ss
et
s
a
re
p
ro
p
er
ly
m
a
n
a
g
ed
in
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
R
M
P
.

B
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
p
la
n
n
in
g
is
n
o
t
cu
rr
en
tl
y
a
li
g
n
ed
to
th
e
re
q
u
ir
em
en
ts
o
f
th
e
R
M
P
su
b
m
it
te
d
to
th
e
K
ee
p
e
r.
W
e
h
a
v
e
id
e
n
ti
fi
ed
a
re
a
s
fo
r
im
p
ro
v
e
m
en
t

in
h
o
w
B
u
si
n
es
s
Im
p
a
ct
A
n
a
ly
se
s
a
re
p
re
p
a
re
d
b
y
S
er
v
ic
es
a
n
d
a
la
ck
o
f
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
a
n
d
re
p
o
rt
in
g
o
n
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
re
v
ie
w
a
n
d
te
st
sc
h
ed
u
le
s
fo
r
th
e

C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
b
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
p
la
n
s.

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
re
la
te
d
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
d
o
n
o
t
su
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
d
et
a
il
h
o
w
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
en
su
re
s
th
a
t
a
cc
es
s
to
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
d
a
ta
is

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
re
m
o
v
ed
fo
r
th
o
se
em
p
lo
y
ee
s
w
h
o
le
a
v
e
o
r
m
o
v
e
ro
le
s
w
it
h
in
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.
P
h
y
si
ca
l
co
n
tr
o
ls
h
a
v
e
a
ls
o
n
o
t
b
ee
n
im
p
le
m
en
te
d
to
re
st
ri
ct

th
e
a
b
il
it
y
o
f
st
a
ff
to
sa
v
e
d
a
ta
o
u
ts
id
e
o
f
se
cu
re
n
et
w
o
rk
d
ri
v
es
,
fo
r
ex
a
m
p
le
,
p
re
v
en
ti
n
g
st
a
ff
sa
v
in
g
d
a
ta
to
lo
ca
l
h
a
rd
d
ri
v
es
o
r
to
p
o
rt
a
b
le
d
ev
ic
es
su
ch

a
s
m
em
o
ry
st
ic
k
s.

Page 188



3

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts

T
h
is
se
co
n
d
p
h
a
se
o
f
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
fo
r
2
0
14
/2
0
15
h
a
s
p
ro
v
id
ed
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
it
h
th
e
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
S
tr
a
te
g
y
a
n
d

im
p
ro
v
e
m
en
t
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t
u
n
d
er
w
a
y
re
m
a
in
s
a
li
g
n
ed
to
p
ro
v
id
in
g
th
e
fr
a
m
ew
o
rk
fo
r
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
o
f
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
cr
o
ss
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l.
T
h
is

fo
rm
o
f
in
te
rn
a
l
re
v
ie
w
w
il
l
b
e
w
el
co
m
ed
in
th
e
fu
tu
re
to
en
su
re
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
co
n
ti
n
u
e
to
d
ev
el
o
p
a
n
d
im
p
le
m
e
n
t
th
e
re
q
u
ir
e
d
co
n
tr
o
ls
th
a
t
su
p
p
o
rt
a
n
d
in
fo
rm
th
e

C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
u
se
o
f
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
to
d
el
iv
er
st
ra
te
g
ic
o
b
je
ct
iv
es
,
a
n
d
re
a
li
se
b
e
n
ef
it
s
fo
r
im
p
ro
v
in
g
st
a
ff
a
n
d
cu
st
o
m
er
ex
p
er
ie
n
ce
.

Page 189



4

2
.
B
a
ck
g
ro
u
n
d
a
n
d
sc
o
p
e

B
a

c
k

g
r

o
u

n
d

2
.0
1

A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
su
b
m
it
te
d
th
ei
r
fi
n
a
l
R
ec
o
rd
s
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
P
la
n
(R
M
P
)
to
th
e
K
ee
p
er
o
f
th
e
R
ec
o
rd
s
o
f
S
co
tl
a
n
d
o
n
5
th
D
ec
em
b
e
r
2
0
14
.
T
h
e
K
e
ep
er

a
p
p
ro
v
ed
th
e
R
M
P
a
n
d
p
ro
v
id
ed
a
n
A
ss
es
sm
e
n
t
R
e
p
o
rt
o
n
2
3
J
a
n
u
a
ry
2
0
15
.
T
h
e
K
ee
p
er
a
ss
es
se
d
12
o
f
th
e
14
el
em
en
ts
o
f
A
C
C
’s
R
M
P
a
s
‘G
re
en
’,
m
ea
n
in
g
‘T
h
e

K
ee
p
er
a
g
re
es
th
is
el
e
m
en
t
o
f
[t
h
e]
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
p
la
n
’.
It
a
ss
es
se
d
th
e
re
m
a
in
in
g
tw
o
el
em
e
n
ts
a
s
‘A
m
b
er
’,
m
ea
n
in
g
‘T
h
e
K
ee
p
er
a
g
re
es
th
is
el
em
en
t
o
f
[t
h
e]

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
p
la
n
a
s
a
n
im
p
ro
v
em
e
n
t
m
o
d
el
.
T
h
is
m
ea
n
s
th
a
t
h
e
is
co
n
v
in
ce
d
o
f
th
e
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
co
m
m
it
m
e
n
t
to
cl
o
si
n
g
a
g
a
p
in
p
ro
v
is
io
n
.
H
e
w
il
l
re
q
u
es
t
th
a
t
h
e
is

u
p
d
a
te
d
a
s
w
o
rk
o
n
th
is
el
e
m
en
t
p
ro
g
re
ss
es
.’
T
h
es
e
tw
o
el
em
e
n
ts
w
er
e
el
em
en
t
‘4
.
B
u
si
n
es
s
C
la
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
’a
n
d
‘5
.
R
et
en
ti
o
n
S
ch
ed
u
le
’.

2
.0
2

T
h
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
S
tr
a
te
g
y
(I
M
S
)
h
a
s
b
ee
n
d
ev
el
o
p
ed
to
p
ro
v
id
e
th
e
fr
a
m
ew
o
rk
fo
r
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
ce
o
f
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
a
cr
o
ss
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l.

S
u
cc
es
sf
u
l
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
IM
S
is
th
er
ef
o
re
k
ey
to
A
C
C
fu
lf
il
li
n
g
th
e
el
em
e
n
ts
o
f
it
s
R
M
P
in
p
ra
ct
ic
e.
T
h
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
T
ea
m
is
d
e
v
el
o
p
in
g
a
n

IM
S
R
is
k
R
eg
is
te
r,
w
h
ic
h
w
a
s
in
d
ra
ft
fo
rm
a
t
th
e
ti
m
e
o
f
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
.

2
.0
3

T
h
e
IM
S
R
is
k
R
eg
is
te
r
id
e
n
ti
fi
es
ri
sk
s
to
g
o
o
d
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
a
n
d
se
cu
ri
ty
a
n
d
a
li
g
n
s
th
es
e
ri
sk
s
w
it
h
th
e
se
v
en
d
o
m
a
in
s
fo
r
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t

th
a
t
a
re
id
en
ti
fi
ed
in
th
e
st
ra
te
g
y
a
n
d
in
th
e
R
M
P
.
T
h
es
e
a
re
:

B
u
si
n
es
s
C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
&
D
is
a
st
er
P
la
n
n
in
g
;

C
u
lt
u
re
,
T
ra
in
in
g
&
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s;

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
&
R
ec
o
rd
s
L
if
e
cy
cl
e
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t;

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
P
re
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
;

K
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
,
R
eu
se
&
P
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;

R
is
k
&
G
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
;
a
n
d

T
ec
h
n
ic
a
l
&
P
h
y
si
ca
l
S
y
st
em
s
M
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t.

2
.0
4

T
h
e
ri
sk
re
g
is
te
r
a
im
s
w
il
l
b
e
th
e
m
ea
n
s
b
y
w
h
ic
h
th
e
IM
S
im
p
ro
v
e
m
en
t
w
o
rk
a
s
a
w
h
o
le
w
il
l
b
e
d
ri
v
en
a
n
d
w
il
l
b
e
a
ls
o
b
e
u
se
d
to
in
fo
rm
th
e
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
m
ea
su
re
s

to
b
e
d
ev
el
o
p
ed
b
y
ea
ch
d
o
m
a
in
,
w
h
ic
h
w
il
l
fo
rm
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
im
p
ro
v
em
en
t
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
re
q
u
ir
ed
b
y
el
em
en
t
‘1
3
.
A
ss
es
sm
en
t
a
n
d
re
v
ie
w
’
o
f
th
e
R
M
P
.
T
h
e
le
a
d
s
o
f

Page 190



5

ea
ch
d
o
m
a
in
w
il
l
b
e
re
sp
o
n
si
b
le
fo
r
d
e
v
el
o
p
in
g
a
n
d
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
m
ea
su
re
s
fo
r
th
e
ri
sk
s
a
ss
o
ci
a
te
d
w
it
h
th
ei
r
d
o
m
a
in
,
w
it
h
th
e
S
en
io
r
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
R
is
k

O
ff
ic
er
(S
IR
O
)
h
o
ld
in
g
o
v
er
a
ll
a
cc
o
u
n
ta
b
il
it
y
fo
r
th
e
p
ro
g
re
ss
o
f
th
e
im
p
ro
v
em
en
t
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
.

2
.0
5

T
h
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
T
ea
m
is
p
re
p
a
ri
n
g
to
ro
ll
-o
u
t
th
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
R
ec
o
rd
s
L
if
ec
y
cl
e
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
im
p
ro
v
em
e
n
t
p
ro
je
ct
(u
n
d
er
th
e
IM
S

im
p
ro
v
e
m
en
t
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e)
,
in
it
ia
ll
y
to
a
p
il
o
t
o
f
th
re
e
se
rv
ic
es
,
w
h
er
e
th
ey
w
il
l
te
st
a
n
d
re
fi
n
e
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
fo
r
im
p
le
m
en
ti
n
g
th
e
B
u
si
n
e
ss
C
la
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
S
ch
em
e

a
n
d
R
ec
o
rd
s
R
et
en
ti
o
n
a
n
d
D
is
p
o
sa
l
S
ch
ed
u
le
,
th
es
e
b
ei
n
g
th
e
tw
o
el
e
m
en
ts
id
en
ti
fi
ed
b
y
th
e
K
ee
p
er
fo
r
im
p
ro
v
em
e
n
t.
A
b
u
d
g
et
fo
r
th
re
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
A
d
v
is
e
r
p
o
st
s
h
a
s
b
ee
n
a
p
p
ro
v
ed
,
a
n
d
tw
o
o
f
th
es
e
p
o
st
s
h
a
v
e
n
o
w
b
ee
n
re
cr
u
it
ed
to
.
T
h
es
e
ro
le
s
w
il
l
en
ta
il
w
o
rk
in
g
w
it
h
th
e
p
il
o
t
se
rv
ic
es
to
ro
ll
o
u
t

th
e
B
u
si
n
es
s
C
la
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
S
ch
em
e
a
n
d
R
ec
o
rd
s
R
et
en
ti
o
n
S
ch
ed
u
le
b
y
id
en
ti
fy
in
g
th
e
se
rv
ic
e’
s
re
co
rd
s
a
n
d
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
sy
st
em
s,
cr
ea
ti
n
g
a
fi
le
p
la
n
in
li
n
e
w
it
h

B
u
si
n
es
s
C
la
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
S
ch
ed
u
le
,
a
n
d
u
lt
im
a
te
ly
d
ev
el
o
p
in
g
a
n
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
A
ss
et
R
eg
is
te
r
fo
r
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l,
in
li
n
e
w
it
h
th
e
b
ro
a
d
er
a
im
s
o
f
th
e
IM
st
ra
te
g
y
.

S
c

o
p

e
a

n
d

li
m

it
a

ti
o

n
s

o
f

s
c

o
p

e

2
.0
6

T
h
e
d
et
a
il
ed
sc
o
p
e
o
f
th
is
re
v
ie
w
is
se
t
o
u
t
in
A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
in
th
e
T
er
m
s
o
f
R
ef
e
re
n
ce
.
O
u
r
in
it
ia
l
sc
o
p
e
w
a
s
to
‘a
ss
es
s
th
e
d
es
ig
n
o
f
th
e
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls

te
st
in
g
,
p
ro
v
id
in
g
re
co
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
s
w
h
er
e
im
p
ro
v
e
m
en
ts
co
u
ld
b
e
m
a
d
e’
.
H
o
w
ev
e
r,
a
t
th
e
a
g
re
ed
d
a
te
o
f
o
u
r
fi
el
d
w
o
rk
fo
r
P
h
a
se
T
w
o
it
w
a
s
m
a
d
e
cl
ea
r
b
y

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
th
a
t
a
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
te
st
in
g
h
a
d
n
o
t
y
et
b
ee
n
co
m
p
le
te
d
o
r
im
p
le
m
en
te
d
,
li
m
it
in
g
o
u
r
a
b
il
it
y
to
co
m
p
le
te
th
e
w
o
rk
in
li
n
e
w
it
h
th
e
sc
o
p
e

a
g
re
ed
w
it
h
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t.

Page 191



6

3
.
D
et
a
il
ed
fi
n
d
in
g
s
a
n
d
re
co
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
s

3
.0

1
IM

S
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
tr

a
te

g
y

a
n

d
fi

n
a

li
s
a

ti
o

n
o

f
IM

S
R

is
k

R
e

g
is

te
r

–
C

o
n

tr
o

l
D

e
s

ig
n

F
in

d
in

g

IM
S
im
p
le
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
st
ra
te
g
y
:

W
e
h
a
v
e
fo
u
n
d
th
a
t
th
e
fo
rm
a
li
sa
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
st
ra
te
g
y
fo
r
th
e
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
IM
S
im
p
ro
v
em
en
t
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
a
s
a
w
h
o
le
a
cr
o
ss
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
is
st
il
l
o
n
-

g
o
in
g
.
T
h
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
le
fo
r
w
h
ic
h
se
rv
ic
es
a
re
to
b
e
se
le
ct
e
d
fo
r
th
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
R
ec
o
rd
s
L
if
ec
y
cl
e
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
(I
R
L
M
)
p
il
o
t
im
p
le
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
is
a
ls
o
st
il
l

b
ei
n
g
co
n
si
d
er
ed
.
T
h
e
R
ec
o
rd
s
M
a
n
a
g
e
r
is
co
n
si
d
er
in
g
th
e
fi
rs
t
se
rv
ic
es
to
b
e
in
cl
u
d
ed
in
th
e
p
il
o
t
a
s
C
h
il
d
re
n
a
n
d
E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
,
a
n
d
ei
th
er
H
o
u
si
n
g
o
r

P
la
n
n
in
g
,
h
o
w
ev
er
n
o
fi
n
a
l
d
ec
is
io
n
h
a
d
b
ee
n
m
a
d
e
o
n
th
o
se
se
rv
ic
es
th
a
t
w
il
l
b
e
in
cl
u
d
ed
in
th
e
p
il
o
t
a
t
th
e
ti
m
e
o
f
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
.

W
e
re
co
m
m
e
n
d
th
a
t
th
e
d
ec
is
io
n
,
o
n
p
il
o
ts
,
sh
o
u
ld
b
e
ta
k
en
a
t
se
n
io
r
le
v
el
in
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
in
p
u
t
o
f
th
e
le
a
d
s
o
f
ea
ch
se
rv
ic
e,
b
a
se
d
o
n
a

co
n
si
st
en
t
a
n
d
su
p
p
o
rt
ed
ra
ti
o
n
a
le
fo
r
w
h
y
ea
ch
se
rv
ic
e
h
a
s
b
ee
n
se
le
ct
ed
.
W
e
w
o
u
ld
re
co
m
m
en
d
th
e
a
p
p
ro
a
ch
sh
o
u
ld
in
cl
u
d
e
a
t
le
a
st
th
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g

co
n
si
d
er
a
ti
o
n
s:

R
is

k
:
T
o
co
n
si
d
er
th
e
m
a
g
n
it
u
d
e
a
n
d
li
k
el
ih
o
o
d
o
f
se
ri
o
u
s
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
se
cu
ri
ty
b
re
a
ch
es
in
ea
ch
se
rv
ic
e
.

C
o

s
t

a
n

d
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
:
T
o
co
n
si
d
er
th
e
cu
rr
en
t
co
st
o
f
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
to
se
rv
ic
es
;
fo
r
ex
a
m
p
le
,
se
rv
ic
es
w
it
h
la
rg
e
v
o
lu
m
es
o
f
p
a
p
er

re
co
rd
s
w
il
l
in
cu
r
h
ig
h
co
st
s
o
f
st
o
ri
n
g
th
e
ir
re
co
rd
s,
a
n
d
se
rv
ic
es
w
h
ic
h
co
u
ld
b
e
u
si
n
g
m
u
lt
ip
le
IT
sy
st
e
m
s
co
u
ld
fi
n
d
co
st
a
n
d
ef
fi
ci
en
cy
sa
v
in
g
s

if
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
is
b
ei
n
g
u
n
n
ec
es
sa
ri
ly
d
u
p
li
ca
te
d
.

T
h
er
e
m
a
y
b
e
fu
rt
h
er
ef
fi
ci
en
ci
es
to
b
e
fo
u
n
d
w
h
er
e
S
er
v
ic
es
m
a
y
b
e
co
ll
ec
ti
n
g
a
n
d
st
o
ri
n
g
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
th
a
t
is
a
lr
ea
d
y
h
el
d
b
y
o
th
er
S
er
v
ic
es

w
it
h
in
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
n
d
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
sh
a
ri
n
g
p
ro
to
co
ls
a
re
n
o
t
in
p
la
ce
.

U
s

e
r

a
n

d
s

ta
ff

e
x

p
e

r
ie

n
c

e
:
T
o
co
n
si
d
er
in
w
h
ic
h
se
rv
ic
es
b
et
te
r
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
o
u
ld
h
a
v
e
th
e
g
re
a
te
st
im
p
a
ct
o
n
u
se
r
o
r
st
a
ff

ex
p
er
ie
n
ce
o
f
th
a
t
se
rv
ic
e
.

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
S
tr
a
te
g
y
(I
M
S
)
R
is
k
R
eg
is
te
r:

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
h
a
v
e
n
o
t
y
et
fi
n
a
li
se
d
a
n
d
a
p
p
ro
v
ed
th
e
IM
S
R
is
k
R
eg
is
te
r.
T
h
e
IM
S
R
is
k
R
e
g
is
te
r
is
a
k
ey
d
o
cu
m
en
t
in
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
a
n
d
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
ri
sk
a
cr
o
ss
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
,
a
n
d
p
ro
v
id
es
th
e
b
a
si
s
fo
r
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
m
ea
su
re
s
a
n
d
p
ro
g
re
ss
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
so
th
a
t
ri
sk
s
ca
n

co
n
ti
n
u
a
ll
y
b
e
a
d
d
re
ss
ed
,
a
n
d
im
p
ro
v
em
en
t
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
id
en
ti
fi
ed
.
It
w
il
l
a
ls
o
p
ro
v
id
e
a
p
o
in
t
o
f
re
fe
re
n
ce
fo
r
th
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
A
d
v
is
er
s

w
h
en
ro
ll
in
g
o
u
t
th
e
IR
L
M
p
ro
je
ct
p
il
o
t
to
se
rv
ic
es
to
e
n
su
re
a
ll
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
ri
sk
s
fo
r
th
a
t
se
rv
ic
e
a
re
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
a
n
d
th
a
t
th
er
e
is
p
la
n
fo
r
h
o
w
th
es
e
w
il
l
b
e

Page 192



7

a
d
d
re
ss
ed
.

T
h
e
fi
n
a
l
ri
sk
re
g
is
te
r
sh
o
u
ld
a
ls
o
in
co
rp
o
ra
te
a
sy
st
em
o
f
ri
sk
sc
o
re
s,
b
a
se
d
o
n
th
e
m
a
g
n
it
u
d
e
v
er
su
s
li
k
el
ih
o
o
d
o
f
ea
ch
ri
sk
id
e
n
ti
fi
ed
to
en
a
b
le

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
to
p
ri
o
ri
ti
se
a
d
d
re
ss
in
g
ri
sk
s
a
n
d
co
n
si
d
e
ri
n
g
w
h
et
h
er
o
th
er
ri
sk
s
ca
n
b
e
a
cc
e
p
te
d
ra
th
er
th
a
n
m
it
ig
a
te
d
.

R
is

k
s

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
th
e
w
id
er
IM
S
im
p
ro
v
e
m
en
t
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
is
ro
ll
ed
o
u
t
to
se
rv
ic
es
w
it
h
o
u
t
fi
rs
t
id
en
ti
fy
in
g
a
ll
o
f
th
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
ri
sk
s
w
it
h
in

th
a
t
se
rv
ic
e,
re
su
lt
in
g
in
m
is
si
n
g
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
m
ea
su
re
s
to
m
o
n
it
o
r
a
ll
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
ri
sk
s.
T
h
is
w
il
l
in
h
ib
it
th
e
w
id
er
IM
S
im
p
ro
v
em
en
t
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

fr
o
m
a
ch
ie
v
in
g
b
es
t
p
ra
ct
ic
e
a
n
d
ef
fi
ci
e
n
ci
es
in
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
it
h
in
ea
ch
se
rv
ic
e,
a
n
d
in
cr
ea
se
th
e
ri
sk
o
f
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
se
cu
ri
ty

b
re
a
ch
es
o
cc
u
rr
in
g
.

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
w
il
l
m
is
s
th
e
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
to
p
ri
o
ri
ti
se
se
rv
ic
es
w
h
e
re
th
e
ro
ll
-o
u
t
o
f
th
e
w
id
er
IM
S
im
p
ro
v
em
en
t
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
co
u
ld

h
a
v
e
th
e
m
o
st
im
m
ed
ia
te
im
p
a
ct
in
te
rm
s
o
f
m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
th
e
ri
sk
o
f
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
se
cu
ri
ty
b
re
a
ch
es
,
cr
ea
ti
n
g
co
st
a
n
d
e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
sa
v
in
g
s,
a
n
d

im
p
ro
v
in
g
u
se
r
o
r
st
a
ff
ex
p
er
ie
n
ce
.

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
th
e
ro
ll
-o
u
t
o
f
th
e
w
id
er
IM
S
im
p
ro
v
em
e
n
t
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
is
d
el
a
y
ed
,
w
h
ic
h
w
il
l
d
el
a
y
b
en
ef
it
s
b
ei
n
g
a
ch
ie
v
ed
fo
r
se
rv
ic
e
s.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

M
ed
iu
m

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
fi
n
a
li
se
th
e
fo
rm
a
li
sa
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
p
la
n
fo
r
th
e
w
id
er
IM
S
im
p
ro
v
em
en
t

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
,
a
n
d
a
g
re
e
th
e
p
la
n
w
it
h
th
e
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
T
ea
m
.
T
h
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
a
ct
io
n
s
w
il
l

b
e
p
ri
o
ri
ti
se
d
:

F
in
a
li
se
th
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
S
y
st
em
s
R
is
k
R
eg
is
te
r;

F
o
rm
a
ll
y
se
le
ct
th
e
se
rv
ic
es
to
b
e
in
cl
u
d
ed
in
th
e
IR
L
M
p
ro
je
ct
p
il
o
t
im
p
le
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
;
a
n
d

Id
en
ti
fy
th
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
A
ss
et
O
w
n
er
s,
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
A
ss
et
A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
to
rs
a
n
d

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
L
ia
is
o
n
O
ff
ic
er
s
w
it
h
in
a
t
le
a
st
th
e
th
re
e
p
il
o
t

se
rv
ic
es
.

R
ec
o
rd
s
M
a
n
a
g
er

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

3
0
S
ep
te
m
b
er
2
0
15

Page 193



8

3
.0

2
Id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

a
n

d
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

b
u

s
in

e
s

s
c

r
it

ic
a

l
a

n
d

k
e

y
in

fo
r

m
a

ti
o

n
a

s
s

e
ts

–
C

o
n

tr
o

l
D

e
s

ig
n

F
in

d
in

g

W
e
fo
u
n
d
th
a
t
th
er
e
is
a
la
ck
o
f
a
cl
ea
r,
co
n
si
st
en
t
d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
o
f
w
h
a
t
co
n
st
it
u
te
s
‘c
ri
ti
ca
l’
a
n
d
‘k
ey
’a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
.

W
h
il
e
IT
m
a
in
ta
in
a
li
st
o
f
‘c
ri
ti
ca
l’
a
n
d
‘k
ey
’
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s,
it
is
n
o
t
cl
ea
r
th
a
t
co
n
si
st
en
t
a
n
d
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
cr
it
er
ia
h
a
s
b
ee
n
a
p
p
li
ed
in
id
en
ti
fy
in
g
th
es
e

a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s.
T
h
is
is
a
ls
o
n
o
t
jo
in
ed
u
p
w
it
h
b
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
to
en
su
re
co
n
si
st
en
cy
in
w
h
a
t
is
b
ei
n
g
id
e
n
ti
fi
ed
a
s
‘c
ri
ti
ca
l’
ra
th
er
th
a
n
‘k
ey
’
to
ea
ch

se
rv
ic
e
.

T
h
er
e
is
a
ls
o
n
o
fo
rm
a
l
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
a
n
d
en
g
a
g
em
e
n
t
w
it
h
se
rv
ic
es
to
e
n
su
re
th
a
t
th
e
li
st
o
f
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
is
co
m
p
le
te
a
n
d
u
p
to
d
a
te
.

Id
en
ti
fy
in
g
th
e
b
u
si
n
es
s
cr
it
ic
a
l
a
n
d
k
ey
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
sy
st
em
s
(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
b
o
th
el
ec
tr
o
n
ic
a
n
d
h
a
rd
co
p
y
sy
st
em
s)
in
ea
ch
se
rv
ic
e
is
es
se
n
ti
a
l

fo
r
th
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
T
ea
m
a
s
th
ey
w
o
rk
w
it
h
se
rv
ic
es
to
ro
ll
-o
u
t
th
e
B
u
si
n
es
s
C
la
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
S
ch
em
e
a
n
d
in
d
ev
e
lo
p
in
g
a
n
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
A
ss
et

R
eg
is
te
r
fo
r
ea
ch
se
rv
ic
e
.
T
h
is
is
a
ls
o
a
n
es
se
n
ti
a
l
p
a
rt
o
f
d
ev
el
o
p
in
g
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
a
n
d
re
le
v
a
n
t
b
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
p
la
n
s
fo
r
ea
ch
se
rv
ic
e
.

R
is

k
s

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
cr
it
ic
a
l
to
C
o
u
n
ci
l
S
e
rv
ic
es
’o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
s
a
re
n
o
t
id
e
n
ti
fi
ed
a
n
d
cl
a
ss
if
ie
d
a
s
su
ch
,
re
su
lt
in
g
in
a
la
ck
o
f
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

co
n
tr
o
ls
a
ro
u
n
d
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
st
o
re
d
w
it
h
in
th
es
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s,
in
cl
u
d
in
g
b
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
m
ea
su
re
s
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
ls
re
la
ti
n
g
to
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

se
cu
ri
ty
.

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
th
a
t
a
re
n
o
t
in
fa
ct
‘c
ri
ti
ca
l’
a
re
in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
cl
a
ss
if
ie
d
a
s
‘c
ri
ti
ca
l’
,
re
su
lt
in
g
in
in
ef
fi
ci
en
t
u
se
o
f
re
so
u
rc
es
to

d
ev
el
o
p
b
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
p
la
n
s
fo
r
th
es
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s,
w
h
ic
h
a
re
n
o
t
n
ec
es
sa
ry
.

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
w
it
h
o
u
t
a
co
m
p
le
te
li
st
o
f
k
ey
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
u
se
d
a
cr
o
ss
se
rv
ic
e
s,
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
w
il
l
m
is
s
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
to
id
en
ti
fy
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
co
st

a
n
d
ef
fi
ci
en
cy
sa
v
in
g
s
b
y
el
im
in
a
ti
n
g
u
n
n
ec
es
sa
ry
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
u
n
n
ec
es
sa
ry
d
u
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
o
f
d
a
ta
a
cr
o
ss
m
u
lt
ip
le
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s.

Page 194



9

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

M
ed
iu
m

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
d
ev
el
o
p
a
cl
ea
r
d
ef
in
it
io
n
o
f
w
h
a
t
co
n
st
it
u
te
s
‘c
ri
ti
ca
l’
a
n
d
‘k
ey
’
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

a
ss
et
sy
st
em
s
a
n
d
e
n
su
re
th
is
d
ef
in
it
io
n
is
a
p
p
li
ed
co
n
si
st
en
tl
y
a
cr
o
ss
th
e
w
h
o
le
C
o
u
n
ci
l.

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
w
o
rk
w
it
h
th
e
S
er
v
ic
es
to
d
ev
el
o
p
a
n
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
A
ss
et
R
eg
is
te
r
fo
r
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l

th
a
t
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
:

T
h
e
lo
ca
ti
o
n
,
st
a
tu
s
a
n
d
cr
it
ic
a
li
ty
o
f
k
ey
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
sy
st
em
s;
a
n
d

T
h
e
o
w
n
er
s
o
f
k
ey
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
sy
st
em
s.

R
ec
o
rd
s
M
a
n
a
g
er

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

3
0
S
ep
te
m
b
er
2
0
15

Page 195



1
0

3
.0

3
B

u
s

in
e

s
s

c
o

n
ti

n
u

it
y

p
la

n
n

in
g

–
C

o
n

tr
o

l
D

e
s

ig
n

F
in

d
in

g

B
u
si
n
es
s
C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
fo
rm
s
el
em
en
t
10
o
f
th
e
R
M
P
,
re
co
g
n
is
in
g
th
a
t
th
is
is
a
n
in
te
g
ra
l
p
a
rt
o
f
g
o
o
d
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t.

W
e
p
er
fo
rm
ed
a
re
v
ie
w
o
f
B
u
si
n
es
s
C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
–
B
u
si
n
es
s
Im
p
a
ct
A
n
a
ly
si
s
(B
IA
)
A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
en
ts
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
2
0
12
/1
3
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
p
la
n
.
T
h
is
re
su
lt
ed

in
a
h
ig
h
ri
sk
re
p
o
rt
.
A
m
o
n
g
st
o
th
er
is
su
es
,
th
e
re
p
o
rt
n
o
te
d
a
la
ck
o
f
co
n
si
st
en
t
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
it
h
b
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
a
cr
o
ss
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
,
re
su
lt
in
g
in

so
m
e
se
rv
ic
es
h
a
v
in
g
p
o
o
rl
y
d
o
cu
m
en
te
d
o
r
n
o
n
-e
x
is
te
n
t
b
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
p
la
n
s.

S
in
ce
P
h
a
se
O
n
e
o
f
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
C
o
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
P
u
b
li
c
R
ec
o
rd
s
(S
co
tl
a
n
d
)
A
ct
,
w
e
fo
u
n
d
th
e
E
m
er
g
en
cy
P
la
n
n
in
g
T
ea
m
n
o
w
h
a
v
e
te
m
p
la
te
s
fo
r

B
C
P
te
st
ex
er
ci
se
s
th
a
t
it
p
ro
v
id
es
to
se
rv
ic
es
,
a
n
d
m
a
in
ta
in
s
a
re
v
ie
w
a
n
d
te
st
sc
h
ed
u
le
fo
r
ea
ch
se
rv
ic
e
w
it
h
a
B
C
P
.

W
h
il
e
el
em
en
t
10
o
f
th
e
R
M
P
h
a
s
b
ee
n
a
g
re
ed
a
n
d
ra
te
d
‘G
re
e
n
’b
y
th
e
K
ee
p
e
r’
s
a
ss
es
sm
en
t
re
p
o
rt
,
w
e
h
a
v
e
fo
u
n
d
th
a
t
in
p
ra
ct
ic
e
th
er
e
a
re
st
il
l
a
ct
io
n
s
to

b
e
ta
k
e
n
to
a
d
d
re
ss
th
e
w
ea
k
n
es
se
s
p
re
v
io
u
sl
y
id
en
ti
fi
ed
b
y
u
s
in
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
b
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
p
la
n
n
in
g
p
ro
ce
ss
,
a
n
d
to
en
su
re
th
a
t
b
u
si
n
es
s

co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
is
fi
t
fo
r
p
u
rp
o
se
a
cr
o
ss
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
to
a
li
g
n
w
it
h
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e
in
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t.

In
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r
th
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
is
su
es
h
a
v
e
b
ee
n
id
en
ti
fi
ed
fr
o
m
th
e
p
er
sp
ec
ti
v
e
o
f
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t:

C
u
rr
en
t
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
en
ts
re
ly
o
n
ea
ch
se
rv
ic
e
co
m
p
le
ti
n
g
it
s
o
w
n
B
IA
te
m
p
la
te
,
w
h
ic
h
in
cl
u
d
es
id
en
ti
fy
in
g
b
u
si
n
es
s
cr
it
ic
a
l
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
a
n
d
sy
st
em
s.

T
h
e
co
m
p
le
te
d
B
IA
te
m
p
la
te
th
en
fo
rm
s
th
e
b
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
p
la
n
fo
r
a
se
rv
ic
e
,
w
h
er
e
in
st
ea
d
w
e
w
o
u
ld
ex
p
ec
t
th
e
E
m
e
rg
e
n
cy
P
la
n
n
in
g
U
n
it

to
u
se
th
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
p
ro
v
id
ed
in
th
e
te
m
p
la
te
to
p
er
fo
rm
a
ro
b
u
st
ri
sk
b
a
se
d
a
n
a
ly
si
s
to
fo
rm
u
la
te
b
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
st
ra
te
g
ie
s
a
n
d
p
la
n
s
fo
r

th
a
t
se
rv
ic
e.

T
h
er
e
d
o
es
n
o
t
a
p
p
ea
r
to
b
e
a
co
n
si
st
en
t
d
ef
in
it
io
n
o
r
cr
it
er
ia
a
p
p
li
ed
in
id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
‘b
u
si
n
es
s
cr
it
ic
a
l’
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
(s
ee
fi
n
d
in
g

3
.0
2
a
b
o
v
e)
.

T
h
er
e
is
cu
rr
en
tl
y
n
o
fo
rm
a
l
sy
st
em
o
f
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
a
n
d
re
p
o
rt
in
g
o
n
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
ex
is
ti
n
g
B
C
P
s
a
n
d
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
re
v
ie
w
a
n
d
te
st

sc
h
ed
u
le
.

R
is

k
s

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
sy
st
e
m
s
th
a
t
a
re
cr
it
ic
a
l
to
se
rv
ic
es
co
n
ti
n
u
in
g
in
th
e
ev
en
t
o
f
a
d
is
a
st
er
o
r
em
e
rg
en
cy
a
re
n
o
t
id
e
n
ti
fi
ed
d
u
e

to
a
la
ck
o
f
a
cl
ea
r
d
ef
in
it
io
n
o
f
‘b
u
si
n
es
s
cr
it
ic
a
l’
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
sy
st
em
s
a
n
d
a
la
ck
o
f
ro
b
u
st
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
p
ro
v
id
ed
in
th
e
B
IA

te
m
p
la
te
.
T
h
is
co
u
ld
re
su
lt
in
se
rv
ic
es
b
e
in
g
u
n
a
b
le
to
a
cc
e
ss
o
r
re
co
v
er
cr
it
ic
a
l
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
in
su
ch
a
n
e
v
e
n
t
w
h
er
e
p
la
n
s
a
re
n
o
t
su
ff
ic
ie
n
t
to

m
it
ig
a
te
th
e
ri
sk
s.

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
w
h
e
re
th
er
e
a
re
b
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
p
la
n
s
in
p
la
ce
th
es
e
a
re
n
o
t
a
d
eq
u
a
te
o
r
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
a
s
th
es
e
a
re
n
o
t
te
st
ed
a
n
d
u
p
d
a
te
d

o
n
a
p
er
io
d
ic
b
a
si
s.

Page 196



1
1

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

M
ed
iu
m

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
re
-e
v
a
lu
a
te
th
e
ro
le
o
f
th
e
E
m
er
g
en
cy
P
la
n
n
in
g
U
n
it
(E
P
U
)
in
b
u
si
n
es
s

co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
p
la
n
n
in
g
a
n
d
e
n
su
re
th
a
t
fo
r
ea
ch
S
er
v
ic
e,
th
e
E
P
U
p
er
fo
rm
s
a
ro
b
u
st
ri
sk
a
n
a
ly
si
s
o
f

th
e
B
u
si
n
es
s
Im
p
a
ct
A
n
a
ly
si
s
(B
IA
)
to
h
el
p
S
er
v
ic
e
s
d
ev
el
o
p
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
b
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y

p
la
n
s.

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
im
p
le
m
e
n
t
a
fo
rm
a
l
p
ro
ce
ss
fo
r
re
v
ie
w
in
g
a
n
d
te
st
in
g
b
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
p
la
n
s

a
cr
o
ss
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
to
en
su
re
th
ey
co
n
ti
n
u
e
to
ca
p
tu
re
a
ll
cr
it
ic
a
l
b
u
si
n
es
s
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d

sy
st
em
s
a
n
d
th
a
t
th
o
se
re
sp
o
n
si
b
le
fo
r
im
p
le
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
th
es
e
p
la
n
s
a
re
a
w
a
re
o
f
th
ei
r

re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s
in
th
e
e
v
en
t
o
f
a
b
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
in
ci
d
en
t.

E
m
er
g
en
cy
P
la
n
n
in
g
M
a
n
a
g
er

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

3
0
S
ep
te
m
b
er
2
0
15

Page 197



1
2

3
.0

4
In

fo
r

m
a

ti
o

n
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
r

e
la

te
d

p
o

li
c

ie
s

a
n

d
p

r
o

c
e

d
u

r
e

s

F
in

d
in

g

W
e
h
a
v
e
n
o
te
d
th
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
in
re
la
ti
o
n
to
cu
rr
en
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
re
la
te
d
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s:

W
e
h
a
v
e
re
v
ie
w
ed
fi
v
e
se
p
a
ra
te
IT
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
w
h
ic
h
a
re
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
fo
r
st
a
ff
re
g
a
rd
in
g
IT
se
cu
ri
ty
a
n
d
d
a
ta
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t.

M
u
ch
o
f
th
e
g
u
id
a
n
ce
,
fo
r
e
x
a
m
p
le
re
la
ti
n
g
to
p
o
rt
a
b
le
d
ev
ic
es
,
is
re
p
ea
te
d
a
cr
o
ss
a
ll
th
e
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
re
v
ie
w
ed
.

S
o
m
e
o
f
th
es
e
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
h
a
v
e
n
o
t
b
ee
n
re
ce
n
tl
y
u
p
d
a
te
d
,
fo
r
e
x
a
m
p
le
th
e
IC
T
G
o
o
d
P
ra
ct
ic
e
G
u
id
el
in
es
h
a
v
e
n
o
t
b
ee
n
re
v
ie
w
ed
si
n
ce
A
p
ri
l

2
0
13
.

D
u
ri
n
g
o
u
r
in
q
u
ir
ie
s
th
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
S
ec
u
ri
ty
O
ff
ic
er
id
en
ti
fi
ed
th
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
co
n
tr
o
l
g
a
p
s:

-
T
h
er
e
is
n
o
t
a
ro
b
u
st
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
to
en
su
re
le
a
v
er
s
o
r
st
a
ff
w
h
o
ch
a
n
g
e
jo
b
ro
le
s
h
a
v
e
th
ei
r
a
cc
es
s
to
a
ll
sy
st
em
s
a
n
d
n
et
w
o
rk
d
ri
v
es
re
m
o
v
ed

o
r
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
a
m
e
n
d
ed
;
a
n
d

-
T
h
er
e
a
re
n
o
co
n
tr
o
ls
to
p
re
v
en
t
st
a
ff
fr
o
m
sa
v
in
g
el
ec
tr
o
n
ic
d
a
ta
o
n
to
lo
ca
l
d
ri
v
es
ra
th
er
th
a
n
o
n
th
e
n
et
w
o
rk
,
o
r
fr
o
m
sa
v
in
g
d
a
ta
o
n
to

p
o
rt
a
b
le
d
e
v
ic
es
th
a
t
a
re
n
o
t
en
cr
y
p
te
d
,
w
h
ic
h
co
u
ld
in
cl
u
d
e
p
er
so
n
a
l
m
o
b
il
e
d
ev
ic
es
su
ch
a
s
m
o
b
il
e
p
h
o
n
es
a
n
d
ta
b
le
ts
.

R
is

k
s

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
st
a
ff
w
il
l
b
e
u
n
a
b
le
to
fi
n
d
th
e
m
o
st
u
p
to
d
a
te
o
r
re
le
v
a
n
t
g
u
id
a
n
ce
to
fo
ll
o
w
o
n
IT
se
cu
ri
ty
re
su
lt
in
g
in
n
o
n
-c
o
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h

th
o
se
p
o
li
ci
es
.

T
h
er
e
is
a
n
in
cr
ea
se
d
ri
sk
o
f
d
a
ta
b
re
a
ch
es
o
cc
u
rr
in
g
w
h
en
th
er
e
a
re
m
is
si
n
g
co
n
tr
o
ls
.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

M
ed
iu
m

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
re
v
ie
w
th
e
cu
rr
en
t
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
d
o
cu
m
en
ts
fo
r
IT
a
n
d
en
su
re
th
a
t

th
es
e
a
re
u
p
d
a
te
d
to
re
fl
ec
t
th
e
n
e
w
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
st
ra
te
g
y
.

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
re
v
ie
w
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
es
a
n
d
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
in
p
la
ce
fo
r
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
u
se
r
a
cc
es
s
to

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
sy
st
em
s
to
en
su
re
th
es
e
a
re
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
to
m
it
ig
a
te
th
e
ri
sk
s
o
f
u
n
a
u
th
o
ri
se
d
a
cc
es
s

to
d
a
ta
.

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
re
v
ie
w
co
n
tr
o
ls
o
v
er
el
ec
tr
o
n
ic
d
a
ta
to
id
en
ti
fy
a
ct
io
n
s
th
a
t
ca
n
b
e
ta
k
en
to

re
st
ri
ct
th
e
a
b
il
it
y
o
f
u
se
rs
to
b
y
p
a
ss
co
n
tr
o
ls
o
v
er
th
e
st
o
ra
g
e
o
f
C
o
u
n
ci
l
d
a
ta
o
n
n
o
n
-C
o
u
n
ci
l

d
ev
ic
es
.

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
S
ec
u
ri
ty
O
ff
ic
e
r

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

3
0
S
ep
te
m
b
er
2
0
15

Page 198



1
3

3
.0

5
D

a
ta

p
r

o
te

c
ti

o
n

F
in

d
in

g

F
ro
m
re
v
ie
w
in
g
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
cu
rr
en
t
D
a
ta
P
ro
te
ct
io
n
p
o
li
cy
it
w
a
s
n
o
te
d
th
a
t
it
d
o
es
n
o
t
cl
ea
rl
y
co
v
er
in
te
rn
a
l
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
sh
a
ri
n
g
w
it
h
in
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l.

S
u
ch
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
sh
a
ri
n
g
ca
n
so
m
et
im
es
b
e
n
ec
es
sa
ry
o
r
cr
ea
te
ef
fi
ci
en
ci
es
;
h
o
w
ev
er
,
it
co
u
ld
eq
u
a
ll
y
b
e
in
b
re
a
ch
o
f
d
a
ta
p
ro
te
ct
io
n
la
w
s
si
m
il
a
r
to
th
e

sh
a
ri
n
g
o
f
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
ex
te
rn
a
ll
y
.

T
h
e
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
T
ea
m
a
re
a
w
a
re
th
a
t
so
m
e
S
er
v
ic
es
h
a
v
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
sh
a
ri
n
g
p
ro
to
co
ls
w
it
h
ea
ch
o
th
er
;
h
o
w
e
v
er
,
th
is
is
n
o
t
a
lw
a
y
s
th
e

ca
se
a
n
d
co
u
ld
re
su
lt
in
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
b
e
in
g
sh
a
re
d
in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
w
it
h
in
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l,
o
r
re
su
lt
in
m
is
se
d
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
w
h
er
e
it
w
o
u
ld
b
e
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
a
n
d

m
o
re
ef
fi
ci
e
n
t
fo
r
se
rv
ic
es
to
sh
a
re
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
cu
rr
en
t
D
a
ta
P
ro
te
ct
io
n
p
o
li
cy
is
in
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
o
f
b
ei
n
g
u
p
d
a
te
d
,
w
it
h
th
e
a
im
o
f
th
e
n
ew
p
o
li
cy
b
ei
n
g
a
p
p
ro
v
ed
a
t
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
in
M
a
y
o
r

J
u
n
e
2
0
15
.
T
h
e
ex
is
ti
n
g
p
o
li
cy
h
a
d
n
o
t
b
ee
n
u
p
d
a
te
d
si
n
ce
A
p
ri
l
2
0
12
,
a
n
d
w
e
w
el
co
m
e
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
p
ro
-a
ct
iv
e
st
ep
s
to
b
ri
n
g
th
e
p
o
li
cy
in
to
li
n
e
w
it
h

cu
rr
en
t
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e
g
u
id
a
n
ce
a
n
d
th
e
a
im
to
m
a
k
e
a
d
o
cu
m
en
t
th
a
t
is
m
o
re
a
cc
es
si
b
le
fo
r
st
a
ff
.
In
li
n
e
w
it
h
re
fr
es
h
in
g
th
e
p
o
li
cy
a
n
d
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s,
w
e

u
n
d
er
st
a
n
d
th
a
t
a
n
e
w
se
t
o
f
d
a
ta
p
ro
te
ct
io
n
tr
a
in
in
g
is
a
ls
o
b
ei
n
g
d
es
ig
n
ed
.

It
w
a
s
n
o
te
d
in
P
h
a
se
O
n
e
o
f
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
d
o
es
n
o
t
cu
rr
en
tl
y
k
e
ep
a
re
g
is
te
r
o
f
th
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
sh
a
re
d
w
it
h
ex
te
rn
a
l
p
a
rt
ie
s.
W
e

re
co
m
m
e
n
d
th
a
t
su
ch
a
re
g
is
te
r
is
d
ev
el
o
p
ed
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
rl
y
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
.

R
is

k
s

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
fa
il
s
to
fu
ll
y
co
m
p
ly
w
it
h
d
a
ta
p
ro
te
ct
io
n
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
,
a
n
d
is
n
o
t
a
li
g
n
ed
w
it
h
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e
in
th
is
a
re
a
,
if
th
e
d
a
ta

p
ro
te
ct
io
n
p
o
li
cy
is
n
o
t
re
g
u
la
rl
y
re
v
ie
w
ed
a
n
d
u
p
d
a
te
d
.

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
is
b
ei
n
g
sh
a
re
d
in
te
rn
a
ll
y
in
b
re
a
ch
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
d
a
ta
p
ro
te
ct
io
n
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s,
o
r
th
a
t
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
fo
r

ef
fi
ci
e
n
cy
in
th
e
sh
a
ri
n
g
o
f
d
a
ta
in
te
rn
a
ll
y
is
b
e
in
g
m
is
se
d
.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

L
o
w

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
d
ev
el
o
p
a
R
eg
is
te
r
o
f
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
S
h
a
ri
n
g
P
ro
to
co
ls
a
s
a
re
so
u
rc
e
fo
r
st
a
ff
to

co
n
su
lt
fo
r
cl
a
ri
ty
o
n
th
e
ci
rc
u
m
st
a
n
ce
s
a
n
d
ty
p
es
o
f
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
th
a
t
ca
n
a
n
d
ca
n
n
o
t
b
e
sh
a
re
d

in
te
rn
a
ll
y
.

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
fi
n
a
li
se
u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
D
a
ta
P
ro
te
ct
io
n
p
o
li
cy
w
it
h
co
n
si
d
er
a
ti
o
n
g
iv
e
n

to
th
e
p
o
ss
ib
il
it
y
o
f
st
re
a
m
li
n
in
g
th
e
ex
is
ti
n
g
D
a
ta
P
ro
te
ct
io
n
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s.
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l

en
su
re
th
e
n
ew
p
o
li
cy
is
su
b
je
ct
to
re
g
u
la
r,
o
n
g
o
in
g
,
re
v
ie
w
fo
r
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
cu
rr
e
n
t

le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
a
n
d
a
li
g
n
m
en
t
w
it
h
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e.

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
G
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
O
ff
ic
er

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

3
0
S
ep
te
m
b
er
2
0
15

Page 199



1
4

3
.0

6
In

fo
r

m
a

ti
o

n
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
in

s
u

p
p

li
e

r
c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

–
A

d
v

is
o

r
y

F
in

d
in

g

A
s
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
im
p
le
m
en
ts
it
s
n
ew
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
st
ra
te
g
y
it
sh
o
u
ld
co
n
si
d
er
h
o
w
th
is
im
p
a
ct
s
o
n
it
s
re
la
ti
o
n
sh
ip
w
it
h
su
p
p
li
er
s
a
n
d
th
ir
d

p
a
rt
ie
s
w
h
o
h
a
n
d
le
C
o
u
n
ci
l
d
a
ta
.
S
u
p
p
li
er
s
w
h
o
h
a
n
d
le
C
o
u
n
ci
l
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
sh
o
u
ld
b
e
ex
p
ec
te
d
to
m
ee
t
th
e
sa
m
e
st
a
n
d
a
rd
s
o
n
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t

a
s
re
q
u
ir
ed
b
y
th
e
R
M
P
a
n
d
IM
S
tr
a
te
g
y
a
n
d
su
p
p
o
rt
in
g
p
o
li
ci
es
.

It
is
re
co
m
m
en
d
ed
th
a
t
p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t
sh
o
u
ld
re
v
ie
w
ex
is
ti
n
g
p
ro
cu
re
m
e
n
t
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
to
en
su
re
th
es
e
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
re
fe
r
to
th
e
IM
S
tr
a
te
g
y
o
r

a
d
v
is
e
o
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
re
fe
re
n
ce
to
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
st
a
n
d
a
rd
s
to
b
e
in
cl
u
d
ed
in
su
p
p
li
er
co
n
tr
a
ct
s.
A
st
a
n
d
a
rd
w
o
rd
in
g
,
to
b
e
in
cl
u
d
ed
in
a
ll

co
n
tr
a
ct
s,
co
u
ld
b
e
d
ev
el
o
p
ed
a
n
d
in
cl
u
d
ed
w
it
h
in
th
e
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t
P
o
li
cy
.

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
sh
o
u
ld
a
ls
o
co
n
si
d
er
in
g
re
v
ie
w
in
g
ex
is
ti
n
g
co
n
tr
a
ct
s
w
it
h
su
p
p
li
er
s,
a
n
d
u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
w
h
er
e
re
q
u
ir
ed
,
to
e
n
su
re
th
er
e
is
a
d
eq
u
a
te
re
fe
re
n
ce
in

th
es
e
co
n
tr
a
ct
s
o
n
th
e
su
p
p
li
er
’s
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s
w
h
en
h
a
n
d
li
n
g
o
r
a
cc
es
si
n
g
C
o
u
n
ci
l
d
a
ta
,
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
co
n
tr
a
ct
s
w
it
h
in
h
ig
h
er
ri
sk
a
re
a
s
e.
g
.
so
ci
a
l
ca
re
,

ed
u
ca
ti
o
n
,
a
n
d
IT
co
n
tr
a
ct
s
w
h
er
e
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
ie
s
m
a
y
h
a
v
e
a
cc
es
s
to
p
er
so
n
a
l
d
a
ta
o
n
em
p
lo
y
ee
s
a
n
d
se
rv
ic
e
u
se
rs
.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

A
d
v
is
o
ry

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
a
re
a
d
v
is
ed
to
re
v
ie
w
p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
a
n
d
m
o
d
e
co
n
tr
a
ct

la
n
g
u
a
g
e
to
en
su
re
th
a
t
th
o
se
en
g
a
g
in
g
w
it
h
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
re
co
n
tr
a
ct
u
a
ll
y
o
b
li
g
a
te
d
to
co
m
p
ly

w
it
h
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
st
a
n
d
a
rd
s.

H
ea
d
o
f
P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

3
0
S
ep
te
m
b
er
2
0
15

Page 200



1
5

A
p
p
en
d
ix
1
–
B
a
si
s
o
f
o
u
r
cl
a
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l
fi

n
d

in
g

r
a

ti
n

g
s

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

r
a

ti
o

n
a

le

C
ri
ti
ca
l

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

C
r
it
ic
a
l
im
p
a
ct
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

C
r
it
ic
a
l
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

C
r
it
ic
a
l
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
th
a
t
co
u
ld
re
su
lt
in
m
a
te
ri
a
l
fi
n
es
o
r
co
n
se
q
u
en
ce
s;
o
r

C
r
it
ic
a
l
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
r
b
ra
n
d
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
w
h
ic
h
co
u
ld
th
re
a
te
n
it
s
fu
tu
re
v
ia
b
il
it
y
.

H
ig
h

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
im
p
a
ct
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
e
n
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
re
su
lt
in
g
in
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t
fi
n
es
a
n
d
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s
;
o
r

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
r
b
ra
n
d
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

M
ed
iu
m

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
im
p
a
ct
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
re
su
lt
in
g
in
fi
n
es
a
n
d
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s;
o
r

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
r
b
ra
n
d
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

L
o
w

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

M
in
o
r
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
’s
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

M
in
o
r
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

M
in
o
r
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
w
it
h
li
m
it
ed
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s;
o
r

M
in
o
r
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

A
d
v
is
o
ry

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
d
o
es
n
o
t
h
a
v
e
a
ri
sk
im
p
a
ct
b
u
t
h
a
s
b
ee
n
ra
is
e
d
to
h
ig
h
li
g
h
t
a
re
a
s
o
f
in
ef
fi
ci
e
n
ci
es
o
r
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e.

Page 201



1
6

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

s

F
in

d
in

g
s

r
a

ti
n

g
P

o
in

ts

C
ri
ti
ca
l

4
0
p
o
in
ts
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

H
ig
h

10
p
o
in
ts
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

M
ed
iu
m

3
p
o
in
ts
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

L
o
w

1
p
o
in
t
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

P
o

in
ts

L
o
w
ri
sk

6
p
o
in
ts
o
r
le
ss

M
ed
iu
m
ri
sk

7
–
15
p
o
in
ts

H
ig
h
ri
sk

16
–
3
9
p
o
in
ts

C
ri
ti
ca
l
ri
sk

4
0
p
o
in
ts
a
n
d
o
v
er

Page 202



1
7

A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
–
A
g
re
ed
T
er
m
s
o
f
re
fe
re
n
ce

B
a

c
k

g
r

o
u

n
d

T
h
e
P
u
b
li
c
R
ec
o
rd
s
(S
co
tl
a
n
d
)
A
ct
2
0
11
re
q
u
ir
es
L
o
ca
l
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
es
to
p
re
p
a
re
a
n
d
im
p
le
m
en
t
a
re
co
rd
s
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
p
la
n
(R
M
P
)
w
h
ic
h
se
ts
o
u
t
p
ro
p
er

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
en
ts
fo
r
th
e
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
o
f
re
co
rd
s.
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
is
re
q
u
ir
ed
to
su
b
m
it
th
e
p
la
n
to
th
e
K
e
ep
er
o
f
th
e
R
ec
o
rd
s
o
f
S
co
tl
a
n
d
in
N
o
v
e
m
b
er
2
0
14
.

A
m
o
d
el
p
la
n
w
h
ic
h
in
cl
u
d
es
14
el
em
en
ts
h
a
s
b
ee
n
d
ev
el
o
p
ed
b
y
th
e
“K
ee
p
er
”
to
il
lu
st
ra
te
b
es
t
p
ra
ct
ic
e.
T
h
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
is
re
q
u
ir
ed
to
in
cl
u
d
e
a
ll
14
el
em
e
n
ts
w
it
h
in

th
e
su
b
m
is
si
o
n
o
r
co
n
fi
rm
th
a
t
th
e
el
e
m
en
t
is
n
o
t
a
p
p
li
ca
b
le
,
p
ro
v
id
in
g
a
n
ex
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
fo
r
th
e
o
m
is
si
o
n
.
T
h
e
14
el
em
e
n
ts
,
in
cl
u
d
ed
w
it
h
in
th
e
m
o
d
el
p
la
n
,
a
re
a
s

fo
ll
o
w
s:

S
en
io
r
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y

R
ec
o
rd
s
m
a
n
a
g
er
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y

R
ec
o
rd
s
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
p
o
li
cy
st
a
te
m
en
t

B
u
si
n
es
s
cl
a
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n

R
et
en
ti
o
n
sc
h
ed
u
le
s

D
es
tr
u
ct
io
n
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
en
ts

A
rc
h
iv
in
g
a
n
d
tr
a
n
sf
er
a
rr
a
n
g
em
en
ts

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
se
cu
ri
ty

D
a
ta
p
ro
te
ct
io
n

B
u
si
n
es
s
co
n
ti
n
u
it
y
a
n
d
v
it
a
l
re
co
rd
s

A
u
d
it
tr
a
il

C
o
m
p
et
en
cy
fr
a
m
ew
o
rk
fo
r
re
co
rd
s
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
st
a
ff

A
ss
es
sm
en
t
a
n
d
re
v
ie
w

S
h
a
re
d
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

Page 203



1
8

A
s
p
er
th
e
“a
ss
es
sm
en
t
a
n
d
re
v
ie
w
”
el
em
e
n
t
it
is
re
q
u
ir
ed
th
a
t
th
e
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s
o
f
th
e
p
la
n
is
a
ss
es
se
d
a
ft
er
im
p
le
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
.
T
o
en
su
re
th
is
ca
n
b
e

a
ch
ie
v
ed
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
m
u
st
d
ev
el
o
p
a
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
te
st
in
g
.

In
p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
fo
r
co
m
p
le
ti
n
g
o
f
th
e
R
M
P
,
a
b
u
si
n
es
s
p
la
n
h
a
s
b
ee
n
p
ro
d
u
ce
d
b
y
th
e
R
ec
o
rd
s
M
a
n
a
g
er
.

S
c

o
p

e

In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
’s
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
P
u
b
li
c
R
ec
o
rd
s
(S
co
tl
a
n
d
)
A
ct
w
il
l
co
n
si
st
o
f
tw
o
p
h
a
se
s
o
f
fi
el
d
w
o
rk
.
B
o
th
p
h
a
se
s
w
il
l
b
e
re
p
o
rt
ed
to
A
u
d
it
a
n
d
R
is
k
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
in

D
ec
em
b
er
2
0
14
.

P
h

a
s

e
O

b
je

c
ti

v
e

s
P

e
r

io
d

D
a

y
s

a
ll

o
c

a
te

d

I
R
ev
ie
w
th
e
R
M
P
B
u
si
n
es
s
P
la
n
to
en
su
re
:

a
)
“C
o
m
p
le
te
d
”
ta
sk
s
m
ee
t
b
es
t
p
ra
ct
ic
e
(a
s
d
et
a
il
ed

w
it
h
in
th
e
K
ee
p
er
o
f
th
e
R
ec
o
rd
s
o
f
S
co
tl
a
n
d
M
o
d
el

P
la
n
)
a
n
d
th
e
re
is
e
v
id
en
ce
to
su
p
p
o
rt
th
a
t
ta
sk
s

h
a
v
e
b
e
en
co
m
p
le
te
d
a
s
d
es
cr
ib
ed
.

b
)
“U
n
-c
o
m
p
le
te
d
”
ta
sk
s
h
a
v
e
a
n
a
ct
io
n
p
la
n
in
p
la
ce
,

ti
m
es
ca
le
s
a
re
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
a
n
d
th
e
in
te
n
d
ed
a
ct
io
n
s

m
ee
t
b
es
t
p
ra
ct
ic
e
(a
s
d
et
a
il
ed
w
it
h
in
th
e
K
ee
p
er
o
f

th
e
R
ec
o
rd
s
o
f
S
co
tl
a
n
d
M
o
d
el
P
la
n
)

0
5
A
u
g
u
st
–
11
A
u
g
u
st

2
0
14

5

II
A
ss
es
s
th
e
d
es
ig
n
o
f
th
e
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
te
st
in
g
,

p
ro
v
id
in
g
re
co
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
w
h
er
e
im
p
ro
v
e
m
en
ts
co
u
ld

b
e
m
a
d
e.

T
B
C

5

Page 204



1
9

L
im

it
a

ti
o

n
s

o
f

s
c

o
p

e
T
h
e
sc
o
p
e
o
f
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
is
o
u
tl
in
ed
a
b
o
v
e.

In
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l,
n
o
m
a
tt
er
h
o
w
w
el
l
d
es
ig
n
ed
a
n
d
o
p
e
ra
te
d
,
ca
n
p
ro
v
id
e
o
n
ly
re
a
so
n
a
b
le
a
n
d
n
o
t
a
b
so
lu
te
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
re
g
a
rd
in
g
a
ch
ie
v
e
m
en
t
o
f
a
n
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
's

o
b
je
ct
iv
es
.
T
h
e
li
k
el
ih
o
o
d
o
f
a
ch
ie
v
em
e
n
t
is
a
ff
ec
te
d
b
y
li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
in
h
er
en
t
in
a
ll
in
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l
sy
st
em
s.
T
h
es
e
in
cl
u
d
e
th
e
p
o
ss
ib
il
it
y
o
f
p
o
o
r
ju
d
g
m
en
t
in

d
ec
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
,
h
u
m
a
n
er
ro
r,
co
n
tr
o
l
p
ro
ce
ss
es
b
ei
n
g
d
el
ib
er
a
te
ly
ci
rc
u
m
v
en
te
d
b
y
em
p
lo
y
ee
s
a
n
d
o
th
er
s,
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
o
v
er
ri
d
in
g
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
n
d
th
e
o
cc
u
rr
en
ce

o
f
u
n
fo
re
se
ea
b
le
ci
rc
u
m
st
a
n
ce
s.

A
u

d
it

a
p

p
r

o
a

c
h

O
u
r
a
u
d
it
a
p
p
ro
a
ch
is
a
s
fo
ll
o
w
s:

O
b
ta
in
a
n
u
n
d
er
st
a
n
d
in
g
o
f
th
e
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
in
p
la
ce
th
ro
u
g
h
d
is
cu
ss
io
n
w
it
h
k
ey
p
er
so
n
n
el
a
n
d
re
v
ie
w
o
f
d
o
cu
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
.

Id
en
ti
fy
th
e
k
ey
ri
sk
s
in
re
sp
ec
t
o
f
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
P
u
b
li
c
R
ec
o
rd
s
(S
co
tl
a
n
d
)
A
ct
.

R
ev
ie
w
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
R
M
P
B
u
si
n
es
s
P
la
n
a
g
a
in
st
b
es
t
p
ra
ct
ic
e
g
u
id
a
n
ce
(m
o
d
el
p
la
n
).

E
v
a
lu
a
te
th
e
d
es
ig
n
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
p
la
ce
to
a
ss
es
s
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
R
M
P
.

Page 205



2
0

A
p
p
en
d
ix
3
–
L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s

L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
in
h
e
re
n
t
to
th
e
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
r’
s
w
o
rk

W
e
h
a
v
e
u
n
d
er
ta
k
en
a
re
v
ie
w
o
f
C
o
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
P
u
b
li
c
R
ec
o
rd
s

(S
co
tl
a
n
d
)
A
ct
,
su
b
je
ct
to
th
e
li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
o
u
tl
in
ed
b
el
o
w
.

In
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l

In
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l,
n
o
m
a
tt
er
h
o
w
w
el
l
d
es
ig
n
ed
a
n
d
o
p
er
a
te
d
,
ca
n
p
ro
v
id
e
o
n
ly

re
a
so
n
a
b
le
a
n
d
n
o
t
a
b
so
lu
te
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
re
g
a
rd
in
g
a
ch
ie
v
em
e
n
t
o
f
a
n

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
's
o
b
je
ct
iv
es
.
T
h
e
li
k
el
ih
o
o
d
o
f
a
ch
ie
v
em
e
n
t
is
a
ff
ec
te
d
b
y

li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
in
h
er
en
t
in
a
ll
in
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l
sy
st
em
s.
T
h
es
e
in
cl
u
d
e
th
e

p
o
ss
ib
il
it
y
o
f
p
o
o
r
ju
d
g
m
e
n
t
in
d
ec
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
,
h
u
m
a
n
er
ro
r,
co
n
tr
o
l

p
ro
ce
ss
es
b
e
in
g
d
el
ib
er
a
te
ly
ci
rc
u
m
v
e
n
te
d
b
y
em
p
lo
y
e
es
a
n
d
o
th
er
s,

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
o
v
er
ri
d
in
g
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
n
d
th
e
o
cc
u
rr
en
ce
o
f
u
n
fo
re
se
ea
b
le

ci
rc
u
m
st
a
n
ce
s.

F
u
tu
re
p
e
ri
o
d
s

O
u
r
a
ss
es
sm
en
t
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
re
la
ti
n
g
to
C
o
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
P
u
b
li
c
R
ec
o
rd
s

(S
co
tl
a
n
d
)
A
ct
is
a
s
a
t
A
p
ri
l
2
0
15
(P
h
a
se
2
).
H
is
to
ri
c
ev
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
o
f

ef
fe
ct
iv
e
n
es
s
is
n
o
t
re
le
v
a
n
t
to
fu
tu
re
p
er
io
d
s
d
u
e
to
th
e
ri
sk
th
a
t:

th
e
d
es
ig
n
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
m
a
y
b
ec
o
m
e
in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
b
ec
a
u
se
o
f
ch
a
n
g
es
in

o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
en
v
ir
o
n
m
en
t,
la
w
,
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
o
r
o
th
er
;
o
r

T
h
e
d
eg
re
e
o
f
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
m
a
y
d
e
te
ri
o
ra
te
.

R
e
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s
o
f
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
rs

It
is
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t’
s
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y
to
d
ev
el
o
p
a
n
d
m
a
in
ta
in
so
u
n
d
sy
st
em
s
o
f

ri
sk
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t,
in
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l
a
n
d
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
fo
r
th
e
p
re
v
en
ti
o
n

a
n
d
d
et
ec
ti
o
n
o
f
ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ti
es
a
n
d
fr
a
u
d
.
In
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
w
o
rk
sh
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e

se
en
a
s
a
su
b
st
it
u
te
fo
r
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t’
s
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s
fo
r
th
e
d
es
ig
n
a
n
d

o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
o
f
th
es
e
sy
st
em
s.

W
e
en
d
ea
v
o
u
r
to
p
la
n
o
u
r
w
o
rk
so
th
a
t
w
e
h
a
v
e
a
re
a
so
n
a
b
le
ex
p
ec
ta
ti
o
n
o
f

d
et
ec
ti
n
g
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t
co
n
tr
o
l
w
ea
k
n
es
se
s
a
n
d
,
if
d
et
ec
te
d
,
w
e
sh
a
ll
ca
rr
y
o
u
t

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
w
o
rk
d
ir
ec
te
d
to
w
a
rd
s
id
en
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
o
f
co
n
se
q
u
en
t
fr
a
u
d
o
r
o
th
er

ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ti
es
.
H
o
w
e
v
er
,
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
a
lo
n
e,
e
v
en
w
h
e
n
ca
rr
ie
d

o
u
t
w
it
h
d
u
e
p
ro
fe
ss
io
n
a
l
ca
re
,
d
o
n
o
t
g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
th
a
t
fr
a
u
d
w
il
l
b
e
d
et
ec
te
d
.

A
cc
o
rd
in
g
ly
,
o
u
r
e
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
s
a
s
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
rs
sh
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
re
li
ed
u
p
o
n

so
le
ly
to
d
is
cl
o
se
fr
a
u
d
,
d
ef
a
lc
a
ti
o
n
s
o
r
o
th
er
ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ti
es
w
h
ic
h
m
a
y
ex
is
t.

Page 206



In
th
e
ev
en
t
th
a
t,
p
u
rs
u
a
n
t
to
a
re
q
u
es
t
w
h
ic
h
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
h
a
s
re
ce
iv
ed
u
n
d
er
th
e
F
re
e
d
o
m
o
f
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
A
ct
2
0
0
0
o
r
th
e
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
en
ta
l
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
R
eg
u
la
ti
o
n
s
2
0
0
4
(a
s
th
e
sa
m
e
m
a
y
b
e

a
m
en
d
ed
o
r
re
-e
n
a
ct
ed
fr
o
m
ti
m
e
to
ti
m
e)
o
r
a
n
y
su
b
o
rd
in
a
te
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
m
a
d
e
th
er
eu
n
d
er
(c
o
ll
ec
ti
v
el
y
,
th
e
“L
eg
is
la
ti
o
n
”)
,
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
is
re
q
u
ir
ed
to
d
is
cl
o
se
a
n
y
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
co
n
ta
in
ed
in
th
is

d
o
cu
m
en
t,
it
w
il
l
n
o
ti
fy
P
w
C
p
ro
m
p
tl
y
a
n
d
w
il
l
co
n
su
lt
w
it
h
P
w
C
p
ri
o
r
to
d
is
cl
o
si
n
g
su
ch
d
o
cu
m
en
t.
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
g
re
es
to
p
a
y
d
u
e
re
g
a
rd
to
a
n
y
re
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
w
h
ic
h
P
w
C
m
a
y
m
a
k
e
in

co
n
n
ec
ti
o
n
w
it
h
su
ch
d
is
cl
o
su
re
a
n
d
to
a
p
p
ly
a
n
y
re
le
v
a
n
t
ex
em
p
ti
o
n
s
w
h
ic
h
m
a
y
ex
is
t
u
n
d
er
th
e
L
eg
is
la
ti
o
n
.
If
,
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
co
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
P
w
C
,
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
d
is
cl
o
se
s
a
n
y
th
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t
o
r

a
n
y
p
a
rt
th
er
eo
f,
it
sh
a
ll
en
su
re
th
a
t
a
n
y
d
is
cl
a
im
er
w
h
ic
h
P
w
C
h
a
s
in
cl
u
d
ed
o
r
m
a
y
su
b
se
q
u
en
tl
y
w
is
h
to
in
cl
u
d
e
in
th
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
is
re
p
ro
d
u
ce
d
in
fu
ll
in
a
n
y
co
p
ie
s
d
is
cl
o
se
d
.

T
h
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t
h
a
s
b
ee
n
p
re
p
a
re
d
o
n
ly
fo
r
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
n
d
so
le
ly
fo
r
th
e
p
u
rp
o
se
a
n
d
o
n
th
e
te
rm
s
a
g
re
ed
w
it
h
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
in
o
u
r
a
g
re
em
en
t
d
a
te
d
4
O
ct
o
b
er
2
0
10
.
W
e
a
cc
ep
t
n
o

li
a
b
il
it
y
(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
fo
r
n
eg
li
g
en
ce
)
to
a
n
y
o
n
e
el
se
in
co
n
n
ec
ti
o
n
w
it
h
th
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t,
a
n
d
it
m
a
y
n
o
t
b
e
p
ro
v
id
ed
to
a
n
y
o
n
e
el
se
.

©
2
0
15
P
ri
ce
w
a
te
rh
o
u
se
C
o
o
p
er
s
L
L
P
.
A
ll
ri
g
h
ts
re
se
rv
ed
.
In
th
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t,
"P
w
C
"
re
fe
rs
to
P
ri
ce
w
a
te
rh
o
u
se
C
o
o
p
er
s
L
L
P
(a
li
m
it
ed
li
a
b
il
it
y
p
a
rt
n
er
sh
ip
in
th
e
U
n
it
ed
K
in
g
d
o
m
),
w
h
ic
h
is
a
m
em
b
er
fi
rm

o
f
P
ri
ce
w
a
te
rh
o
u
se
C
o
o
p
er
s
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
L
im
it
ed
,
ea
ch
m
em
b
er
fi
rm
o
f
w
h
ic
h
is
a
se
p
a
ra
te
le
g
a
l
en
ti
ty
.

Page 207



Page 208

This page is intentionally left blank



A
b
e
r
d
e
e
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

IC
T
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
P
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
R
ep
o
rt
in
g

In
te

r
n

a
l

A
u

d
it

K
P

Is
T

a
r
g

e
t

D
a

te
s

A
c

tu
a

l
D

a
te

s
R

e
d

/A
m

b
e

r
/G

r
e

e
n

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
r
y

w
h

e
r

e
a

p
p

li
c

a
b

le

T
er
m
s
o
r
re
fe
re
n
ce
a
g
re
ed
4
w
ee
k
s
p
ri
o
r
to
fi
el
d
w
o
rk

2
6
/0
3
/2
0
15

2
0
/0
3
/2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

P
la
n
n
ed
fi
el
d
w
o
rk
st
a
rt
d
a
te

2
3
/0
4
/2
0
15

2
3
/0
4
/2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
co
m
p
le
ti
o
n
d
a
te

0
4
/0
5
/0
2
15

0
4
/0
5
/2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

D
ra
ft
re
p
o
rt
is
su
ed
fo
r
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
co
m
m
en
t

18
/0
5
/2
0
15

0
3
/0
6
/2
0
15

R
e

d
In
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
r
o
n
st
u
d
y
le
a
v
e.

M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
C
o
m
m
en
ts
re
ce
iv
ed

12
/0
6
/2
0
15

11
/0
6
/2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

R
ep
o
rt
fi
n
a
li
se
d

15
/0
6
/2
0
15

11
/0
6
/2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

S
u
b
m
it
te
d
to
A
u
d
it
a
n
d
R
is
k
C
o
m
m
it
te
e

2
5
/0
6
/2
0
15

2
5
/0
6
/2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
R
ep
o
rt

2
0
14
/2
0
15
fo
r
A
b
e
rd
ee
n

C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l

J
u

n
e

2
0

1
5

Agenda Item 6.4

Page 209



T
h
is
re
p
o
rt
h
a
s
b
ee
n
p
re
p
a
re
d
so
le
ly
fo
r
A
b
er
d
e
en
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
in
a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
te
rm
s
a
n
d
co
n
d
it
io
n
s
se
t
o
u
t
in
o
u
r
e
n
g
a
g
em
en
t
le
tt
er
4
O
ct
o
b
er
2
0
10
.
W
e
d
o
n
o
t
a
cc
ep
t
o
r

a
ss
u
m
e
a
n
y
li
a
b
il
it
y
o
r
d
u
ty
o
f
ca
re
fo
r
a
n
y
o
th
er
p
u
rp
o
se
o
r
to
a
n
y
o
th
er
p
a
rt
y
.
T
h
is
re
p
o
rt
sh
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
d
is
cl
o
se
d
to
a
n
y
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
y
,
q
u
o
te
d
o
r
re
fe
rr
ed
to
w
it
h
o
u
t
o
u
r
p
ri
o
r

w
ri
tt
en
co
n
se
n
t.

In
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
w
o
rk
w
il
l
b
e
p
er
fo
rm
ed
in
a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce
w
it
h
P
u
b
li
c
S
ec
to
r
In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s.
A
s
a
re
su
lt
,
o
u
r
w
o
rk
a
n
d
d
el
iv
er
a
b
le
s
a
re
n
o
t
d
e
si
g
n
ed
o
r
in
te
n
d
ed
to
co
m
p
ly
w
it
h

th
e
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
A
u
d
it
in
g
a
n
d
A
ss
u
ra
n
ce
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
B
o
a
rd
(I
A
A
S
B
),
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
F
ra
m
ew
o
rk
fo
r
A
ss
u
ra
n
ce
E
n
g
a
g
em
en
ts
(I
F
A
E
)
a
n
d
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
o
n
A
ss
u
ra
n
ce

E
n
g
a
g
em
en
ts
(I
S
A
E
)
3
0
0
0
.

In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
re
p
o
rt
fo
r
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l

P
w
C

C
o
n
te
n
ts

C
o
n
te
n
ts

S
e

c
ti

o
n

P
a

g
e

1.
E
x
e
cu
ti
v
e
su
m
m
a
ry

1

2
.
B
a
ck
g
ro
u
n
d
a
n
d
sc
o
p
e

3

3
.
D
et
a
il
ed
fi
n
d
in
g
s
a
n
d
re
co
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
s

5

A
p
p
en
d
ix
1
–
B
a
si
s
o
f
o
u
r
cl
a
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

9

A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
–
A
g
re
e
d
T
er
m
s
o
f
re
fe
re
n
ce

11

A
p
p
en
d
ix
3
–
L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s

13

Page 210



1

1.
E
x
ec
u
ti
v
e
su
m
m
a
ry

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

L
o
w
R
is
k

T
o

ta
l

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

fi
n

d
in

g
s

S
ec
ti
o
n
3

S
u

m
m

a
r

y
o

f
fi

n
d

in
g

s

1.
0
1

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
re
p
o
rt
in
g
is
cr
it
ic
a
l
in
fa
ci
li
ta
ti
n
g
ro
b
u
st
a
n
d
w
el
l-
in
fo
rm
ed
d
ec
is
io
n
m
a
k
in
g
.
T
h
is
is
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t
w
it
h
in
IC
T
si
n
ce
,
a
s
a

se
rv
ic
e
,
it
su
p
p
o
rt
s
m
a
n
y
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
a
ct
iv
it
ie
s
a
n
d
w
il
l
h
a
v
e
a
d
ir
ec
t
o
r
in
d
ir
e
ct
ef
fe
ct
o
n
m
a
n
y
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
’s
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
o
b
je
ct
iv
es
.
In
li
g
h
t
o
f
th
e
re
ce
n
t

re
st
ru
ct
u
ri
n
g
o
f
th
e
IC
T
d
e
p
a
rt
m
en
t
a
t
A
b
er
d
e
en
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
w
e
h
a
v
e
re
v
ie
w
ed
th
e
cu
rr
en
t
p
ro
ce
ss
es
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
p
la
ce
to
en
su
re
re
le
v
a
n
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
is

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
to
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
in
o
rd
er
to
e
v
a
lu
a
te
th
e
su
cc
e
ss
o
f
it
s
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
a
n
d
th
e
u
lt
im
a
te
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
en
d
-c
u
st
o
m
e
r’
s
n
ee
d
s.
T
h
e
o
v
er
a
ll
o
b
je
ct
iv
e
o
f
th
e

re
v
ie
w
w
a
s
to
ex
a
m
in
e
th
e
ex
is
ti
n
g
IC
T
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
re
q
u
ir
em
e
n
ts
,
th
e
sy
st
em
s’
ca
p
a
b
il
it
ie
s
to
co
ll
ec
t
a
n
d
a
n
a
ly
se
re
le
v
a
n
t
d
a
ta
,
a
n
d
re
v
ie
w
th
e

d
es
ig
n
a
n
d
o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
p
la
ce
to
e
n
su
re
th
e
in
te
g
ri
ty
o
f
th
a
t
d
a
ta
.

1.
0
2

In
th
e
co
u
rs
e
o
f
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
w
e
h
a
v
e
m
a
d
e
o
n
e
m
ed
iu
m
ri
sk
fi
n
d
in
g
:

IT
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
re
p
o
rt
in
g
is
fo
cu
se
d
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
m
et
ri
cs
b
u
t
th
es
e
d
o
n
o
t
a
rt
ic
u
la
te
fu
ll
y
h
o
w
w
el
l
th
e
IT
d
ep
a
rt
m
en
t
is
p
er
fo
rm
in
g
,
o
r
h
o
w
ef
fi
ci
en
t

a
n
d
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
IC
T
is
in
su
p
p
o
rt
in
g
th
e
S
er
v
ic
es
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
to
a
ch
ie
v
e
th
ei
r
st
ra
te
g
ic
o
b
je
ct
iv
es
.
T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
th
er
ef
o
re
d
o
es
n
o
t
h
a
v
e

o
v
er
si
g
h
t
o
f
h
o
w
a
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t
fa
il
u
re
in
it
s
IT
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
in
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
w
o
u
ld
im
p
a
ct
o
n
it
s
a
b
il
it
y
to
su
p
p
o
rt
k
ey
a
re
a
s
o
f
se
rv
ic
e
d
el
iv
er
y
.

1.
0
3

W
e
h
a
v
e
a
ls
o
m
a
d
e
tw
o
fu
rt
h
er
lo
w
ri
sk
fi
n
d
in
g
s:

R
ep
o
rt
in
g
li
n
es
w
it
h
in
IT
a
re
in
fo
rm
a
l
a
n
d
u
n
cl
ea
r,
a
n
d
it
w
a
s
id
e
n
ti
fi
ed
th
a
t
th
er
e
w
a
s
a
n
ee
d
fo
r
a
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
co
m
m
it
te
e
w
it
h
in
IC
T
re
sp
o
n
si
b
le
fo
r

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
a
n
d
re
le
v
a
n
t
K
P
Is
.

T
h
e
d
a
ta
co
ll
ec
te
d
fo
r
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
re
p
o
rt
in
g
re
li
es
o
n
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t
m
a
n
u
a
l
in
te
rv
en
ti
o
n
a
n
d
th
er
e
is
a
la
ck
o
f
co
n
tr
o
l
a
ro
u
n
d
h
o
w
th
e
a
cc
u
ra
cy
a
n
d

co
m
p
le
te
n
es
s
o
f
th
a
t
d
a
ta
is
en
su
re
d
.
It
w
a
s
n
o
te
d
th
ro
u
g
h
co
n
v
er
sa
ti
o
n
s
th
a
t
th
is
o
cc
u
rs
th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
n
d
is
n
o
t
o
n
ly
li
m
it
ed
to
IC
T
.
T
h
e

C
r

it
ic

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

iu
m

L
o

w
A

d
v

is
o

r
y

C
o
n
tr
o
l
d
es
ig
n

-
-

1
2

-

O
p
er
a
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s

-
-

-
-

-

T
o

ta
l

-
-

1
2

-

Page 211



2

a
b
il
it
y
to
en
su
re
th
e
d
a
ta
u
se
d
in
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
is
co
m
p
le
te
a
n
d
a
cc
u
ra
te
is
a
g
ro
w
in
g
ri
sk
th
a
t
is
b
ei
n
g
co
n
si
d
er
ed
b
y
o
th
er
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d

im
p
ro
v
in
g
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
th
is
a
re
a
w
o
u
ld
a
li
g
n
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
w
it
h
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e
in
th
is
a
re
a
.

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

IT
a
n
d
T
ra
n
sf
o
rm
a
ti
o
n
h
a
v
e
em
b
a
rk
ed
o
n
a
n
IT
S
er
v
ic
e
Im
p
ro
v
em
en
t
p
la
n
w
h
ic
h
w
il
l
u
se
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
m
ea
su
re
m
en
t
a
n
d
re
p
o
rt
in
g
to
m
ea
su
re
im
p
ro
v
em
e
n
ts
in

it
s
d
el
iv
er
y
o
f
th
e
IT
S
er
v
ic
e
to
it
s
cu
st
o
m
er
s.
F
ee
d
b
a
ck
fr
o
m
th
is
In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
re
v
ie
w
,
a
n
d
it
s
su
g
g
es
te
d
m
ea
su
re
s
w
il
l
b
e
u
se
d
to
h
el
p
sh
a
p
e
th
e
im
p
ro
v
e
m
en
t

p
la
n
.

Page 212



3

2
.
B
a
ck
g
ro
u
n
d
a
n
d
sc
o
p
e

B
a

c
k

g
r

o
u

n
d

2
.0
1

IC
T
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
h
a
v
e
id
e
n
ti
fi
ed
th
e
n
e
ed
to
b
et
te
r
u
n
d
er
st
a
n
d
th
e
cu
rr
en
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
w
it
h
in
th
e
se
rv
ic
e
to
en
a
b
le
b
et
te
r
d
ec
is
io
n
m
a
k
in
g

a
n
d
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
a
g
a
in
st
st
ra
te
g
ic
ta
rg
et
s.
H
ig
h
q
u
a
li
ty
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
is
cr
it
ic
a
l
to
en
a
b
li
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
d
ec
is
io
n
m
a
k
in
g
a
t
a
se
n
io
r
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
le
v
el
a
n
d

to
fa
ci
li
ta
te
a
st
ro
n
g
sy
st
e
m
o
f
co
rp
o
ra
te
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
.
T
h
er
ef
o
re
h
a
v
in
g
st
ro
n
g
co
n
tr
o
ls
o
v
er
th
e
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
re
p
o
rt
in
g
p
ro
ce
ss
is
v
it
a
l
if

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
a
re
to
b
e
a
b
le
to
re
ly
o
n
th
e
co
m
p
le
te
n
es
s,
a
cc
u
ra
cy
a
n
d
re
le
v
a
n
ce
o
f
th
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
to
th
em
w
h
e
n
m
a
k
in
g
d
ec
is
io
n
s.

2
.0
2

T
h
e
m
a
in
IT
re
p
o
rt
in
g
re
q
u
ir
em
en
ts
ca
n
b
e
sp
li
t
in
to
tw
o
b
ro
a
d
ca
te
g
o
ri
es
:
C
u
st
o
m
er
S
u
p
p
o
rt
a
n
d
In
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
.

C
u

s
to

m
e

r
S

u
p

p
o

r
t

2
.0
3

T
h
e
cu
st
o
m
er
fa
ci
n
g
ro
le
o
f
th
e
IC
T
d
ep
a
rt
m
en
t
is
fa
ci
li
ta
te
d
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
IC
T
se
rv
ic
e
d
es
k
.
T
h
is
is
m
a
n
a
g
ed
b
y
th
e
S
er
v
ic
e
D
e
sk
C
o
-O
rd
in
a
to
r
a
lo
n
g
si
d
e
th
e

A
cc
o
u
n
t
M
a
n
a
g
er
s.
T
h
e
A
cc
o
u
n
t
M
a
n
a
g
er
s
a
re
re
sp
o
n
si
b
le
fo
r
b
ei
n
g
th
e
li
n
k
b
et
w
e
en
IC
T
a
n
d
th
e
C
u
st
o
m
er
d
ep
a
rt
m
en
ts
to
w
h
ic
h
IC
T
d
e
li
v
er
a
se
rv
ic
e.

2
.0
4

W
h
en
cu
st
o
m
er
s
re
q
u
ir
e
su
p
p
o
rt
fr
o
m
IC
T
(e
.g
.
to
re
so
lv
e
a
te
ch
n
ic
a
l
p
ro
b
le
m
o
r
to
a
cq
u
ir
e
n
e
w
IC
T
a
ss
et
s)
th
e
ir
fi
rs
t
p
o
in
t
o
f
co
n
ta
ct
is
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
IC
T

h
el
p
d
es
k
.
C
a
ll
s
a
re
ra
is
ed
e
it
h
er
v
ia
th
e
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
o
r
e
le
ct
ro
n
ic
a
ll
y
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
h
el
p
d
es
k
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
(Z
ea
co
m
).
T
h
e
ca
ll
s
a
re
ro
u
te
d
to
th
e
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
fi
rs
t
li
n
e

a
n
a
ly
st
w
h
o
w
il
l
a
tt
em
p
t
to
re
so
lv
e
th
e
ir
q
u
er
y
im
m
ed
ia
te
ly
o
r
lo
g
a
re
q
u
es
t
w
it
h
th
e
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
te
ch
n
ic
a
l
te
a
m
.
T
h
e
IC
T
se
rv
ic
e
d
es
k
a
tt
em
p
t
to
re
so
lv
e
a
ll
ca
ll
s

in
li
n
e
w
it
h
th
e
d
ef
in
ed
p
ri
o
r
le
v
el
s
a
n
d
ta
rg
et
s
o
u
tl
in
ed
in
th
e
se
rv
ic
e
le
v
el
a
g
re
em
en
ts
(S
L
A
’s
).

2
.0
5

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
a
re
a
b
le
to
tr
a
ck
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
o
f
th
e
se
rv
ic
e
d
es
k
u
si
n
g
th
e
Q
S
M
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
w
h
ic
h
fa
ci
li
ta
te
s
re
a
l-
ti
m
e
d
a
ta
a
n
a
ly
si
s.
T
h
is
ca
n
b
e
u
se
d
to
p
ro
v
id
e
a

h
ig
h
-l
e
v
el
o
v
er
v
ie
w
o
f
o
v
er
a
ll
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
a
t
a
n
y
g
iv
e
n
p
o
in
t
in
ti
m
e
,
o
r
fa
ci
li
ta
te
m
o
re
d
et
a
il
ed
a
n
a
ly
si
s,
fo
r
in
st
a
n
ce
to
d
et
er
m
in
e
tr
en
d
s
a
n
d
id
en
ti
fy
so
u
rc
es
o
f

d
el
a
y
s
in
se
rv
ic
e
d
e
sk
d
el
iv
er
y
.

2
.0
6

It
w
a
s
n
o
te
d
th
a
t
th
er
e
a
re
w
ee
k
ly
IT
m
a
n
a
g
er
m
ee
ti
n
g
s
th
a
t
in
cl
u
d
e
a
d
is
cu
ss
io
n
o
f
th
e
IC
T
se
rv
ic
e
d
es
k
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
.
T
h
e
se
rv
ic
e
d
es
k
co
-o
rd
in
a
to
r
re
p
o
rt
s
o
n

th
e
o
v
er
a
ll
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
ce
o
f
th
e
h
el
p
d
es
k
in
re
sp
ec
t
to
th
e
n
u
m
b
er
o
f
re
q
u
es
ts
cu
rr
en
tl
y
o
p
en
a
n
d
th
e
n
u
m
b
er
o
f
re
q
u
es
ts
fi
x
ed
d
u
ri
n
g
th
e
p
er
io
d
.
H
o
w
e
v
er
,
it
w
a
s

n
o
te
d
th
a
t
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
m
et
ri
cs
ca
n
b
e
re
p
o
rt
ed
o
n
a
n
a
d
-h
o
c
b
a
si
s
in
o
rd
e
r
to
fa
ci
li
ta
te
fu
rt
h
e
r
p
ro
b
le
m
re
so
lu
ti
o
n
.
In
re
sp
o
n
se
to
th
is
m
ee
ti
n
g
,
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
ca
n
b
e

a
ss
ig
n
ed
a
ct
io
n
p
o
in
ts
to
in
v
es
ti
g
a
te
a
n
d
re
so
lv
e.

In
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

r
e

2
.0
7

T
h
e
IC
T
d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t
fo
ll
o
w
a
n
IC
T
A
ss
et
P
la
n
w
h
ic
h
w
a
s
la
st
u
p
d
a
te
d
in
2
0
13
;
th
is
is
cu
rr
en
tl
y
in
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
o
f
b
e
in
g
u
p
d
a
te
d
a
n
d
is
d
u
e
to
b
e
p
u
b
li
sh
ed
in

S
ep
te
m
b
er
2
0
15
.
T
h
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
cu
rr
en
tl
y
o
u
ts
o
u
rc
e
th
ei
r
d
a
ta
ce
n
tr
e
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
to
a
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
y
su
p
p
li
er
,
A
T
O
S
.
It
w
a
s
n
o
te
d
th
a
t
th
is
a
rr
a
n
g
em
en
t
is
d
u
e
to

te
rm
in
a
te
a
t
th
e
e
n
d
o
f
2
0
15
;
th
er
ef
o
re
p
la
n
s
a
re
b
ei
n
g
d
ra
w
n
u
p
to
b
ri
n
g
th
e
d
a
ta
ce
n
tr
e
fa
ci
li
ty
b
a
ck
in
-h
o
u
se
u
n
d
er
a
p
a
rt
n
er
sh
ip
a
g
re
em
en
t
w
it
h

Page 213



4

A
b
er
d
ee
n
sh
ir
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l.
C
u
rr
en
tl
y
th
e
IC
T
te
a
m
re
ce
iv
e
m
o
n
th
ly
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
ce
re
p
o
rt
s
fr
o
m
A
T
O
S
a
n
d
a
tt
en
d
m
o
n
th
ly
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
m
ee
ti
n
g
s
to
d
is
cu
ss

p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
.
T
h
ro
u
g
h
a
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
m
o
n
th
ly
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
re
p
o
rt
it
w
a
s
n
o
te
d
th
a
t
th
e
k
ey
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
ce
in
d
ic
to
rs
re
p
o
rt
ed
in
cl
u
d
e
m
et
ri
cs
o
n
A
T
O
S
se
rv
ic
e

p
u
n
ct
u
a
li
ty
,
se
rv
ic
e
u
sa
g
e
,
se
rv
er
a
v
a
il
a
b
il
it
y
a
n
d
se
cu
ri
ty
re
la
te
d
in
ci
d
en
ts
.

2
.0
8

It
w
a
s
fo
u
n
d
th
a
t
A
C
C
’s
IC
T
d
e
p
a
rt
m
en
t
p
ro
a
ct
iv
el
y
m
o
n
it
o
rs
se
rv
er
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
in
-h
o
u
se
,
w
h
ic
h
d
e
m
o
n
st
ra
te
s
ev
id
en
ce
o
f
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e
a
n
d
li
m
it
s
th
e

d
ep
en
d
e
n
ce
o
n
A
T
O
S
to
id
e
n
ti
fy
th
e
ri
sk
o
f
b
u
si
n
es
s
d
is
ru
p
ti
o
n
d
u
e
to
p
o
o
r
se
rv
e
r
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
.
T
h
is
is
fa
ci
li
ta
te
d
th
ro
u
g
h
a
n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
to
o
ls
in
cl
u
d
in
g

S
ta
ts
ee
k
er
w
h
ic
h
is
u
se
d
to
m
o
n
it
o
r
th
e
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
S
er
v
er
s.
T
h
is
co
n
ti
n
u
a
ll
y
m
o
n
it
o
rs
th
e
se
rv
er
u
p
ti
m
e
a
n
d
ca
p
a
ci
ty
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
.

W
h
er
e
in
ci
d
en
ts
a
re
lo
g
g
ed
a
n
a
u
to
m
a
te
d
em
a
il
is
se
n
t
to
th
e
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
w
it
h
in
th
e
IC
T
d
e
p
a
rt
m
en
t
to
in
it
ia
te
re
sp
o
n
si
v
e
a
ct
io
n
.

C
o

r
p

o
r

a
te

R
e

p
o

r
ti

n
g

–
P

e
r

fo
r

m
a

n
c

e
D

a
s

h
b

o
a

r
d

2
.0
9

A
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
G
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
re
p
o
rt
in
g
m
ea
su
re
s,
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
m
a
in
ta
in
a
P
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
D
a
sh
b
o
a
rd
w
h
ic
h
is
a
cc
es
si
b
le
b
y
a
ll
C
o
u
n
ci
l
st
a
ff
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
st
a
ff

in
tr
a
n
et
.
In
re
sp
ec
t
to
IC
T
it
w
a
s
n
o
te
d
th
a
t
fo
u
r
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
m
ea
su
re
s
a
re
re
p
o
rt
ed
o
n
a
m
o
n
th
ly
b
a
si
s,
th
is
in
cl
u
d
es
;
h
el
p
d
es
k
ca
ll
re
so
lu
ti
o
n
a
g
a
in
st
S
L
A

p
ri
o
ri
ty
le
v
el
s;
n
u
m
b
er
o
f
h
el
p
d
es
k
ca
ll
s
re
so
lv
ed
;
co
st
p
er
w
o
rk
st
a
ti
o
n
;
a
n
d
se
rv
er
u
p
ti
m
e
a
n
a
ly
si
s.
C
a
ll
re
so
lu
ti
o
n
b
y
S
L
A
p
ri
o
ri
ty
ty
p
e
is
in
cl
u
d
ed
in
th
e

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
ce
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
ce
R
ep
o
rt
in
g
p
re
se
n
te
d
to
th
e
F
in
a
n
ce
,
P
o
li
cy
a
n
d
R
es
o
u
rc
es
C
o
m
m
it
te
e.

S
c

o
p

e
&

L
im

it
a

ti
o

n
o

f
S

c
o

p
e

2
.1
0

T
h
e
a
g
re
ed
sc
o
p
e
h
a
s
b
ee
n
a
g
re
ed
in
th
e
T
e
rm
s
o
f
R
ef
e
re
n
ce
a
tt
a
ch
ed
in
A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
.
T
h
e
a
g
re
ed
sc
o
p
e
in
cl
u
d
es
th
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
:

A
n
a
ss
es
sm
en
t
o
f
th
e
k
ey
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
re
q
u
ir
ed
fo
r
th
e
IC
T
d
ec
is
io
n
m
a
k
in
g
p
ro
ce
ss
w
h
ic
h
en
a
b
le
s
th
e
IC
T
se
rv
ic
e
to
m
ee
t
it
s
st
ra
te
g
ic

ta
rg
et
s;

A
h
ig
h
le
v
el
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
cu
rr
en
t
sy
st
em
ca
p
a
b
il
it
y
,
ex
is
ti
n
g
to
o
ls
a
n
d
m
ec
h
a
n
is
m
s
to
u
n
d
er
st
a
n
d
w
h
et
h
e
r
th
e
k
ey
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
ca
n
b
e

d
el
iv
er
ed
in
a
ti
m
el
y
m
a
n
n
e
r,
to
th
e
q
u
a
li
ty
re
q
u
ir
ed
;
a
n
d

A
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
d
es
ig
n
a
n
d
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
n
es
s
o
f
th
e
k
ey
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
p
la
ce
to
en
su
re
th
a
t
h
ig
h
q
u
a
li
ty
,
re
li
a
b
le
a
n
d
st
a
n
d
a
rd
is
e
d
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
is

p
ro
v
id
ed
to
IC
T
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.

2
.1
1

W
e
h
a
v
e
u
n
d
er
ta
k
en
a
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
d
es
ig
n
a
n
d
o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
th
e
a
re
a
s
co
n
ta
in
ed
w
it
h
in
th
is
T
e
rm
s
o
f
R
ef
e
re
n
ce
.
O
u
r
w
o
rk

w
a
s
u
n
d
er
ta
k
en
u
si
n
g
a
sa
m
p
le
b
a
se
d
a
p
p
ro
a
ch
.

2
.1
2

T
h
e
li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
o
f
sc
o
p
e
a
re
o
u
tl
in
ed
w
it
h
in
th
e
T
er
m
s
o
f
R
ef
er
en
ce
a
tt
a
ch
ed
in
A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
.

Page 214



5

3
.
D
et
a
il
ed
fi
n
d
in
g
s
a
n
d
re
co
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
s

3
.0

1
IT

p
e

r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e

r
e

p
o

r
ti

n
g

–
c

o
n

tr
o

l
d

e
s

ig
n

F
in

d
in

g
s

C
u
rr
en
t
IT
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
re
p
o
rt
in
g
is
n
o
t
se
rv
ic
e
d
el
iv
e
ry
fo
cu
se
d
a
n
d
h
a
s
n
o
t
b
e
e
n
m
a
p
p
ed
to
th
e
k
ey
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
se
rv
e
rs
th
a
t
su
p
p
o
rt
C
o
u
n
ci
l
se
rv
ic
es
.

A
s
a
re
su
lt
th
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
b
ei
n
g
re
p
o
rt
ed
m
a
y
n
o
t
b
e
re
le
v
a
n
t
to
th
e
a
ct
u
a
l
n
ee
d
s
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
o
r
ta
il
o
re
d
to
id
en
ti
fy
w
h
er
e
IC
T
is
u
n
d
er
p
er
fo
rm
in
g

in
it
s
se
rv
ic
e
d
el
iv
e
ry
.
A
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
v
a
ri
o
u
s
se
rv
ic
es
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
n
d
a
m
a
p
p
in
g
b
et
w
ee
n
th
e
IC
T
se
rv
ic
es
th
a
t
su
p
p
o
rt
ea
ch
o
f
th
e
se
se
rv
ic
es
w
o
u
ld
b
e

b
en
e
fi
ci
a
l.
T
h
is
w
o
u
ld
a
li
g
n
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s,
se
rv
er
s
a
n
d
o
th
er
re
so
u
rc
es
u
se
d
to
su
p
p
o
rt
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
se
rv
ic
e
s.

T
h
e
cu
rr
en
t
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
ce
re
p
o
rt
in
g
in
IC
T
is
fo
cu
se
d
p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
m
et
ri
cs
a
n
d
d
o
es
n
o
t
ca
p
tu
re
a
ll
o
f
th
e
k
ey
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
(K
P
Is
)
w
e

w
o
u
ld
ex
p
ec
t
to
se
e
w
it
h
in
th
e
d
ep
a
rt
m
e
n
t.
W
h
il
e
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
m
et
ri
cs
a
re
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t
to
k
n
o
w
,
th
ey
d
o
n
o
t
a
rt
ic
u
la
te
h
o
w
w
el
l
th
e
IC
T
d
ep
a
rt
m
en
t
is
a
ct
u
a
ll
y

p
er
fo
rm
in
g
in
su
p
p
o
rt
in
g
th
e
v
a
ri
o
u
s
S
er
v
ic
es
w
it
h
in
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l.
E
ff
ec
ti
v
e
K
P
Is
sh
o
u
ld
p
ro
v
id
e
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
w
it
h
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
th
a
t
p
ro
v
id
es
th
e
b
a
si
s
fo
r

m
a
k
in
g
d
ec
is
io
n
s,
fo
r
ex
a
m
p
le
:
w
h
a
t
is
IT
’s
ef
fi
ci
en
cy
a
n
d
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s
ra
te
fo
r
p
ro
ce
ss
in
g
IT
ch
a
n
g
es
?
O
r
w
h
a
t
is
th
e
la
b
o
u
r
u
ti
li
sa
ti
o
n
in
cu
rr
ed
fo
r
re
a
ct
in
g

to
in
ci
d
en
ts
a
n
d
p
ro
b
le
m
s?

A
t
p
re
se
n
t
th
er
e
is
n
o
fo
rm
a
l
re
p
o
rt
in
g
o
f
a
g
e
n
t
u
ti
li
sa
ti
o
n
ra
te
;
th
er
ef
o
re
it
w
o
u
ld
b
e
d
if
fi
cu
lt
fo
r
th
e
IC
T
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
to
ju
st
if
y
a
n
in
cr
ea
se
in
th
e
le
v
el
o
f

st
a
ff
in
g
re
so
u
rc
es
in
re
sp
o
n
se
to
ch
a
n
g
in
g
d
e
m
a
n
d
fo
r
IC
T
su
p
p
o
rt
se
rv
ic
es
.
It
w
a
s
a
ls
o
fo
u
n
d
th
a
t
th
er
e
h
a
s
b
ee
n
n
o
cu
st
o
m
er
sa
ti
sf
a
ct
io
n
su
rv
ey
o
r
fo
rm
a
l

fe
ed
b
a
ck
co
ll
ec
te
d
fr
o
m
cu
st
o
m
er
s.
T
h
is
h
a
s
b
ee
n
a
tt
ri
b
u
te
d
to
la
ck
o
f
re
so
u
rc
es
to
fa
ci
li
ta
te
th
is
k
ey
ta
sk
.
A
t
p
re
se
n
t,
th
e
m
a
in
li
n
k
b
et
w
ee
n
th
e
cu
st
o
m
er
s

a
n
d
th
e
IC
T
d
ep
a
rt
m
en
t
is
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
A
cc
o
u
n
t
M
a
n
a
g
er
s
w
h
o
g
a
th
er
a
n
d
re
p
o
rt
b
a
ck
a
n
ec
d
o
ta
l
fe
ed
b
a
ck
.
It
is
re
co
g
n
is
ed
th
a
t
th
e
IC
T
d
ep
a
rt
m
e
n
t
is
in
th
e

p
ro
g
re
ss
o
f
p
il
o
ti
n
g
a
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
fe
ed
b
a
ck
p
ro
ce
ss
.
A
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
o
p
ti
o
n
to
ex
p
lo
re
w
o
u
ld
to
b
e
to
im
p
le
m
en
t
a
n
a
u
to
m
a
te
d
el
ec
tr
o
n
ic
cu
st
o
m
er
fe
ed
b
a
ck
su
rv
ey

w
h
ic
h
is
sy
st
e
m
g
en
er
a
te
d
o
n
ce
a
n
IT
h
el
p
d
es
k
ca
ll
is
cl
o
se
d
.

W
e
h
a
v
e
n
o
te
d
th
a
t
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
ch
a
n
g
es
to
th
e
se
rv
ic
e
d
es
k
su
p
p
o
rt
fu
n
ct
io
n
h
a
v
e
a
tt
em
p
te
d
to
se
ek
cl
o
su
re
o
f
a
g
re
a
te
r
n
u
m
b
er
o
f
ca
ll
s
o
n
in
it
ia
l
co
n
ta
ct

w
it
h
th
e
fi
rs
t
le
v
el
a
n
a
ly
st
s.
P
re
v
io
u
sl
y
,
th
ei
r
p
ri
m
a
ry
ro
le
w
a
s
to
lo
g
ca
ll
s
a
n
d
es
ca
la
te
to
th
e
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
h
a
n
d
le
r
fo
r
re
so
lu
ti
o
n
.
F
ir
st
ti
m
e
re
so
lu
ti
o
n
b
y
fi
rs
t

le
v
el
a
n
a
ly
st
s
sh
o
u
ld
re
su
lt
in
g
re
a
te
r
co
st
ef
fi
ci
e
n
ci
es
;
h
o
w
ev
er
,
th
is
m
a
y
b
e
o
ff
se
t
b
y
lo
n
g
er
ca
ll
ti
m
es
a
n
d
w
a
it
in
g
ti
m
es
b
ef
o
re
ca
ll
s
a
re
a
n
sw
er
ed
.
It
w
a
s

n
o
te
d
th
a
t
th
es
e
m
et
ri
cs
a
re
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
a
n
d
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
o
n
a
n
a
d
-h
o
c
b
a
si
s
b
y
th
e
se
rv
ic
e
d
es
k
co
-o
rd
in
a
to
r.
W
h
il
st
th
es
e
a
re
co
n
si
d
er
ed
to
b
e
k
ey
m
et
ri
cs
th
a
t

a
re
re
p
o
rt
ed
to
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t,
th
er
e
w
o
u
ld
b
e
b
en
ef
it
co
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
n
g
a
si
m
p
li
fi
ed
m
et
ri
c
to
sh
o
w
o
v
e
ra
ll
se
rv
ic
e
d
es
k
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
o
v
er
ti
m
e.

In
re
fe
re
n
ce
to
th
e
sc
o
p
e
o
f
th
is
re
v
ie
w
,
p
ro
v
id
ed
b
el
o
w
a
re
so
m
e
ex
a
m
p
le
s
o
f
K
P
Is
w
e
h
a
v
e
o
b
se
rv
ed
a
t
o
th
er
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s:

C
h
a
n
g
e
ef
fi
ci
en
cy
ra
te
–
h
o
w
ef
fi
ci
en
t
a
re
w
e
a
t
h
a
n
d
li
n
g
ch
a
n
g
es
?

C
h
a
n
g
e
la
b
o
u
r
w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
u
ti
li
sa
ti
o
n
–
h
o
w
m
u
ch
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
la
b
o
u
r
ca
p
a
ci
ty
w
a
s
u
se
d
to
h
a
n
d
le
a
n
d
co
o
rd
in
a
te
ch
a
n
g
es
?

R
eq
u
es
t
fu
lf
il
m
e
n
t
o
n
-t
im
e
d
el
iv
er
y
ra
te
–
h
o
w
su
cc
es
sf
u
l
a
re
w
e
a
t
fu
lf
il
li
n
g
re
q
u
e
st
s
o
n
ti
m
e?

R
eq
u
es
t
fu
lf
il
m
e
n
t
fi
rs
t
ca
ll
ra
te
–
h
o
w
su
cc
es
sf
u
l
a
re
w
e
a
t
fu
lf
il
li
n
g
re
q
u
es
ts
o
n
ti
m
e?

Page 215



6

In
ci
d
en
t
cu
st
o
m
e
r
im
p
a
ct
ra
ti
o
–
h
o
w
m
a
n
y
in
ci
d
en
ts
d
o
w
e
re
so
lv
e
b
ef
o
re
th
ey
im
p
a
ct
cu
st
o
m
er
s?

S
ec
u
ri
ty
a
cc
es
s
in
ci
d
e
n
t
ra
te
–
h
o
w
m
a
n
y
se
cu
ri
ty
in
ci
d
en
ts
d
id
w
e
ex
p
er
ie
n
ce
w
it
h
in
o
u
r
in
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
?

O
v
er
a
ll
cu
st
o
m
er
sa
ti
sf
a
ct
io
n
ra
te
–
h
o
w
d
o
cu
st
o
m
e
rs
p
er
ce
iv
e
th
e
q
u
a
li
ty
o
f
th
e
se
rv
ic
e
w
e
a
re
d
el
iv
er
in
g
?

S
L
A
co
v
er
a
g
e
ra
ti
o
–
w
h
a
t
p
er
ce
n
t
o
f
th
e
se
rv
ic
es
w
e
d
el
iv
er
h
a
v
e
fo
rm
a
ll
y
b
ee
n
a
g
re
ed
to
?

A
v
a
il
a
b
il
it
y
re
si
li
en
ce
in
d
e
x
–
h
o
w
re
si
li
en
t
is
o
u
r
in
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
to
w
a
rd
s
p
ro
te
ct
in
g
se
rv
ic
es
?

C
a
ll
a
g
en
t
u
ti
li
sa
ti
o
n
–
d
o
w
e
h
a
v
e
e
n
o
u
g
h
R
es
o
u
rc
es
to
h
a
n
d
le
ca
ll
s?

T
h
es
e
K
P
Is
a
re
p
ro
v
id
ed
a
s
ju
st
so
m
e
ex
a
m
p
le
s
o
f
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e
w
e
h
a
v
e
o
b
se
rv
e
d
a
t
o
th
er
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
fo
r
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
IT
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
.
In
d
ev
el
o
p
in
g
a
n
y

su
it
e
o
f
K
P
Is
,
IC
T
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
sh
o
u
ld
w
o
rk
w
it
h
st
a
k
eh
o
ld
er
s
a
cr
o
ss
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
to
d
et
er
m
in
e
th
o
se
K
P
Is
m
o
st
re
le
v
a
n
t
to
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
it
s

o
b
je
ct
iv
es
.

R
is

k
s

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
a
re
n
o
t
u
ti
li
si
n
g
th
e
m
o
st
re
le
v
a
n
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
to
fa
ci
li
ta
te
st
ra
te
g
ic
d
ec
is
io
n
m
a
k
in
g
.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

M
ed
iu
m

IC
T
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
en
g
a
g
e
w
it
h
st
a
k
e
h
o
ld
er
s
a
cr
o
ss
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
to
id
en
ti
fy
th
e
k
ey

a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
se
rv
er
s
th
a
t
su
p
p
o
rt
C
o
u
n
ci
l
se
rv
ic
es
.

W
o
rk
in
g
w
it
h
st
a
k
e
h
o
ld
er
s
IC
T
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
d
ev
el
o
p
a
su
it
e
o
f
k
ey
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce

in
d
ic
a
to
rs
(K
P
Is
)
d
es
ig
n
ed
to
p
ro
v
id
e
re
le
v
a
n
t
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
th
a
t
is
ta
il
o
re
d
to

th
e
n
ee
d
s
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l.
T
h
es
e
m
et
ri
cs
w
il
l
b
e
fo
cu
se
d
o
n
ev
a
lu
a
ti
n
g
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
a
n
d

a
li
g
n
ed
to
th
e
st
ra
te
g
ic
o
b
je
ct
iv
es
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

H
ea
d
o
f
IT
a
n
d
T
ra
n
sf
o
rm
a
ti
o
n

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

M
a
rc
h
2
0
16

Page 216



7

3
.0

2
D

a
ta

q
u

a
li

ty
a

n
d

u
ti

li
s

a
ti

o
n

–
c

o
n

tr
o

l
d

e
s

ig
n

F
in

d
in

g

T
h
e
k
ey
re
p
o
rt
in
g
m
ec
h
a
n
is
m
fo
r
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
G
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
st
ra
te
g
ic
le
v
el
d
ec
is
io
n
m
a
k
in
g
is
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
P
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
D
a
sh
b
o
a
rd
,
w
h
ic
h
is
p
re
se
n
te
d
to

th
e
F
in
a
n
ce
,
P
o
li
cy
a
n
d
R
es
o
u
rc
es
C
o
m
m
it
te
e.
T
h
is
is
th
e
m
a
in
so
u
rc
e
o
f
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
,
w
h
ic
h
is
re
v
ie
w
ed
b
y
se
n
io
r
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t,
in
cl
u
d
in
g
th
e

C
h
ie
f
E
x
ec
u
ti
v
e
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l.

T
h
e
d
a
ta
is
cu
rr
e
n
tl
y
co
ll
a
te
d
in
to
th
e
C
o
v
a
le
n
t
to
o
l
th
ro
u
g
h
a
m
a
n
u
a
l
p
ro
ce
ss
.
W
it
h
a
n
y
m
a
n
u
a
l
p
ro
ce
ss
th
e
re
is
a
g
re
a
te
r
ri
sk
o
f
in
co
m
p
le
te
o
r
in
a
cc
u
ra
te

d
a
ta
b
ei
n
g
in
p
u
t
a
n
d
a
s
a
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
b
e
in
g
re
li
ed
u
p
o
n
fo
r
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
d
ec
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
p
u
rp
o
se
s.
W
e
h
a
v
e
id
en
ti
fi
e
d
th
a
t
th
e
re
is
a
la
ck

o
f
co
n
tr
o
l
a
ro
u
n
d
h
o
w
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
g
et
co
m
fo
rt
th
a
t
th
e
d
a
ta
b
ei
n
g
in
p
u
t
in
to
C
o
v
a
le
n
t
is
co
m
p
le
te
a
n
d
a
cc
u
ra
te
.
It
w
a
s
id
en
ti
fi
ed
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
d
o
es
n
o
t

m
a
in
ta
in
a
d
a
ta
d
ic
ti
o
n
a
ry
o
r
co
d
e
b
o
o
k
,
th
e
re
fo
re
th
e
re
is
a
la
ck
o
f
a
b
il
it
y
to
id
e
n
ti
fy
g
a
p
s
in
th
e
d
a
ta
co
ll
ec
te
d
,
o
r
to
co
n
v
er
se
ly
d
et
er
m
in
e
w
h
et
h
er
d
a
ta

b
ei
n
g
st
o
re
d
is
re
q
u
ir
ed
.

It
h
a
s
b
e
en
a
ck
n
o
w
le
d
g
ed
th
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
h
a
s
re
ce
n
tl
y
ex
p
lo
re
d
th
e
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
o
f
cr
ea
ti
n
g
a
ce
n
tr
a
li
se
d
d
a
ta
w
a
re
h
o
u
se
,
w
h
ic
h
co
u
ld
b
e
u
se
d
a
lo
n
g
si
d
e
a
d
a
ta

a
n
a
ly
si
s
a
n
d
re
p
o
rt
in
g
to
o
l
su
ch
a
s
S
h
a
re
P
o
in
t
to
a
u
to
m
a
te
th
e
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
re
p
o
rt
in
g
p
ro
ce
ss
.
T
h
is
w
il
l
re
m
o
v
e
th
e
n
ee
d
to
m
a
n
u
a
ll
y
tr
a
n
sp
o
se
d
a
ta
in
to

th
e
re
p
o
rt
in
g
to
o
l
a
n
d
p
ro
v
id
e
a
g
re
a
te
r
le
v
el
o
f
d
a
ta
in
si
g
h
t
w
h
ic
h
ca
n
b
e
re
p
o
rt
ed
in
a
u
se
r-
fr
ie
n
d
ly
m
a
n
n
er
.

R
is

k
s

T
h
er
e
is
a
h
ei
g
h
te
n
ed
ri
sk
th
a
t
d
a
ta
u
se
d
fo
r
IC
T
co
rp
o
ra
te
re
p
o
rt
in
g
p
u
rp
o
se
s
is
in
co
m
p
le
te
a
n
d
/o
r
in
a
cc
u
ra
te
d
u
e
to
th
e
m
a
n
u
a
l
n
a
tu
re
o
f
re
p
o
rt
in
g
a
n
d

la
ck
o
f
co
n
tr
o
l.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

L
o
w

A
M
a
st
er
D
a
ta
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
st
ra
te
g
y
w
il
l
b
e
d
ev
el
o
p
ed
o
n
b
eh
a
lf
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
w
h
ic
h

in
co
rp
o
ra
te
s
a
ll
a
sp
ec
ts
o
f
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e
in
d
a
ta
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t.

H
ea
d
o
f
IT
a
n
d
T
ra
n
sf
o
rm
a
ti
o
n

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

M
a
rc
h
2
0
16

Page 217



8

3
.0

3
C

r
e

a
ti

o
n

o
f

a
IC

T
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
g

r
o

u
p

–
c

o
n

tr
o

l
d

e
s

ig
n

F
in

d
in

g

D
u
ri
n
g
th
e
co
u
rs
e
o
f
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
it
w
a
s
fo
u
n
d
th
a
t
th
er
e
w
er
e
n
u
m
e
ro
u
s
IC
T
g
ro
u
p
m
ee
ti
n
g
s
th
a
t
co
ll
ec
te
d
a
n
d
a
n
a
ly
se
d
v
a
ri
o
u
s
d
et
a
il
ed
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce

m
ea
su
re
s
sp
ec
if
ic
to
th
e
ir
a
re
a
o
f
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y
.
N
e
v
er
th
el
es
s,
it
w
a
s
co
n
si
d
er
ed
th
a
t
re
p
o
rt
in
g
u
p
w
a
rd
s
th
ro
u
g
h
li
n
es
o
f
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
a
s
o
ft
en
o
n
a
n
a
d
-

h
o
c
b
a
si
s
la
ck
in
g
th
e
fo
rm
a
li
ty
re
q
u
ir
ed
to
p
ro
v
id
e
a
h
ig
h
er
-l
ev
el
p
ic
tu
re
o
f
th
e
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
o
f
th
e
IC
T
d
ep
a
rt
m
en
t
o
v
e
r
ti
m
e.

E
st
a
b
li
sh
in
g
a
n
IC
T
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
g
ro
u
p
w
it
h
o
v
er
a
ll
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y
fo
r
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
K
P
Is
re
le
v
a
n
t
to
th
e
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
o
f
IC
T
(s
ee
fi
n
d
in
g
3
.0
1)
w
o
u
ld
a
li
g
n

A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
w
it
h
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e
in
o
th
er
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s.

R
is

k
s

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
re
p
o
rt
ed
to
se
n
io
r
m
a
n
a
g
er
d
o
es
n
o
t
p
ro
v
id
e
a
tr
u
e
re
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
IC
T
d
ep
a
rt
m
e
n
t’
s
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

L
o
w

A
n
IC
T
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
g
ro
u
p
w
il
l
b
e
es
ta
b
li
sh
ed
le
d
b
y
th
e
H
ea
d
o
f
IT
a
n
d
T
ra
n
sf
o
rm
a
ti
o
n
.
T
h
e

g
ro
u
p
w
il
l
b
e
re
sp
o
n
si
b
le
fo
r
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
K
P
Is
es
ta
b
li
sh
ed
fo
r
m
ea
su
ri
n
g
th
e
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
ce
o
f

IC
T
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l.

H
ea
d
o
f
IT
a
n
d
T
ra
n
sf
o
rm
a
ti
o
n

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

J
u
n
e
2
0
15

Page 218



9

A
p
p
en
d
ix
1
–
B
a
si
s
o
f
o
u
r
cl
a
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l
fi

n
d

in
g

r
a

ti
n

g
s

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

r
a

ti
o

n
a

le

C
ri
ti
ca
l

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

C
r
it
ic
a
l
im
p
a
ct
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

C
r
it
ic
a
l
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

C
r
it
ic
a
l
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
th
a
t
co
u
ld
re
su
lt
in
m
a
te
ri
a
l
fi
n
es
o
r
co
n
se
q
u
en
ce
s;
o
r

C
r
it
ic
a
l
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
r
b
ra
n
d
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
w
h
ic
h
co
u
ld
th
re
a
te
n
it
s
fu
tu
re
v
ia
b
il
it
y
.

H
ig
h

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
im
p
a
ct
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
e
n
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
re
su
lt
in
g
in
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t
fi
n
es
a
n
d
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s
;
o
r

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
r
b
ra
n
d
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

M
ed
iu
m

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
im
p
a
ct
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
re
su
lt
in
g
in
fi
n
es
a
n
d
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s;
o
r

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
r
b
ra
n
d
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

L
o
w

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

M
in
o
r
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
’s
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

M
in
o
r
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

M
in
o
r
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
w
it
h
li
m
it
ed
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s;
o
r

M
in
o
r
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

A
d
v
is
o
ry

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
d
o
es
n
o
t
h
a
v
e
a
ri
sk
im
p
a
ct
b
u
t
h
a
s
b
ee
n
ra
is
e
d
to
h
ig
h
li
g
h
t
a
re
a
s
o
f
in
ef
fi
ci
e
n
ci
es
o
r
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e.

Page 219



1
0

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

s

F
in

d
in

g
s

r
a

ti
n

g
P

o
in

ts

C
ri
ti
ca
l

4
0
p
o
in
ts
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

H
ig
h

10
p
o
in
ts
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

M
ed
iu
m

3
p
o
in
ts
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

L
o
w

1
p
o
in
t
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

P
o

in
ts

L
o
w
ri
sk

6
p
o
in
ts
o
r
le
ss

M
ed
iu
m
ri
sk

7
–
15
p
o
in
ts

H
ig
h
ri
sk

16
–
3
9
p
o
in
ts

C
ri
ti
ca
l
ri
sk

4
0
p
o
in
ts
a
n
d
o
v
er

Page 220



1
1

A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
–
A
g
re
ed
T
er
m
s
o
f
re
fe
re
n
ce

B
a

c
k

g
r

o
u

n
d

IC
T
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
h
a
v
e
id
e
n
ti
fi
ed
th
e
n
e
ed
to
b
et
te
r
u
n
d
er
st
a
n
d
th
e
cu
rr
en
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
w
it
h
in
th
e
se
rv
ic
e
to
en
a
b
le
b
et
te
r
d
ec
is
io
n
m
a
k
in
g

a
n
d
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
a
g
a
in
st
st
ra
te
g
ic
ta
rg
et
s.

H
ig
h
q
u
a
li
ty
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
is
cr
it
ic
a
l
to
en
a
b
li
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
d
ec
is
io
n
m
a
k
in
g
a
t
a
se
n
io
r
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
le
v
el
.
T
h
er
ef
o
re
h
a
v
in
g
st
ro
n
g
co
n
tr
o
ls
o
v
er
th
e

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
p
ro
ce
ss
is
v
it
a
l
if
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
a
re
to
b
e
a
b
le
to
re
ly
o
n
th
e
co
m
p
le
te
n
es
s,
a
cc
u
ra
cy
a
n
d
re
le
v
a
n
ce
o
f
th
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
to
th
em

w
h
en
m
a
k
in
g
d
ec
is
io
n
s.

S
c

o
p

e
T
h
e
sc
o
p
e
o
f
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
w
il
l
b
e
to
o
b
ta
in
a
n
u
n
d
er
st
a
n
d
in
g
o
f
w
h
a
t
g
a
p
s
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
b
el
ie
v
e
ex
is
t
b
et
w
e
e
n
th
e
ex
is
ti
n
g
re
p
o
rt
in
g
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
a
n
d
th
e
re
p
o
rt
in
g

re
q
u
ir
ed
fo
r
d
ec
is
io
n
m
a
k
in
g
in
IC
T
.
W
e
w
il
l
w
o
rk
w
it
h
IC
T
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
to
:

A
g
re
e
th
e
k
ey
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
th
a
t
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
b
el
ie
v
e
a
re
n
ec
es
sa
ry
to
a
id
d
ec
is
io
n
m
a
k
in
g
a
n
d
d
ri
v
e
th
e
IC
T
se
rv
ic
e
to
m
ee
t
it
s
st
ra
te
g
ic

ta
rg
et
s;

P
er
fo
rm
a
h
ig
h
le
v
el
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
cu
rr
en
t
sy
st
e
m
ca
p
a
b
il
it
y
,
ex
is
ti
n
g
to
o
ls
a
n
d
m
e
ch
a
n
is
m
to
u
n
d
er
st
a
n
d
w
h
et
h
er
th
ey
k
ey
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
ca
n

b
e
d
el
iv
er
ed
in
a
ti
m
el
y
m
a
n
n
er
,
to
th
e
q
u
a
li
ty
re
q
u
ir
e
d
a
n
d

R
ev
ie
w
th
e
d
es
ig
n
a
n
d
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
n
es
s
o
f
th
e
k
e
y
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
p
la
ce
to
en
su
re
th
a
t
q
u
a
li
ty
,
re
li
a
b
le
a
n
d
st
a
n
d
a
rd
is
ed
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
is
p
ro
v
id
ed
to
IC
T

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t.

L
im

it
a

ti
o

n
s

o
f

s
c

o
p

e

T
h
e
sc
o
p
e
o
f
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
is
o
u
tl
in
ed
a
b
o
v
e
.
T
h
is
w
il
l
b
e
u
n
d
er
ta
k
e
n
o
n
a
sa
m
p
le
b
a
si
s.
It
sh
o
u
ld
b
e
n
o
te
d
th
a
t
w
h
il
st
o
u
r
w
o
rk
w
il
l
co
n
si
d
er
th
e
a
rr
a
n
g
em
e
n
ts

A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
h
a
s
in
p
la
ce
;
it
d
o
es
n
o
t
co
n
st
it
u
te
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
a
ro
u
n
d
th
e
a
cc
u
ra
cy
o
f
a
n
y
d
a
ta
w
it
h
in
th
e
sy
st
em
s.

In
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l,
n
o
m
a
tt
er
h
o
w
w
el
l
d
es
ig
n
ed
a
n
d
o
p
e
ra
te
d
,
ca
n
p
ro
v
id
e
o
n
ly
re
a
so
n
a
b
le
a
n
d
n
o
t
a
b
so
lu
te
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
re
g
a
rd
in
g
a
ch
ie
v
e
m
en
t
o
f
a
n
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
's

o
b
je
ct
iv
es
.
T
h
e
li
k
el
ih
o
o
d
o
f
a
ch
ie
v
em
e
n
t
is
a
ff
ec
te
d
b
y
li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
in
h
er
en
t
in
a
ll
in
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l
sy
st
em
s.
T
h
es
e
in
cl
u
d
e
th
e
p
o
ss
ib
il
it
y
o
f
p
o
o
r
ju
d
g
m
en
t
in

d
ec
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
,
h
u
m
a
n
er
ro
r,
co
n
tr
o
l
p
ro
ce
ss
es
b
ei
n
g
d
el
ib
er
a
te
ly
ci
rc
u
m
v
en
te
d
b
y
em
p
lo
y
ee
s
a
n
d
o
th
er
s,
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
o
v
er
ri
d
in
g
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
n
d
th
e
o
cc
u
rr
en
ce

o
f
u
n
fo
re
se
ea
b
le
ci
rc
u
m
st
a
n
ce
s.

A
u

d
it

a
p

p
r

o
a

c
h

O
u
r
a
u
d
it
a
p
p
ro
a
ch
is
a
s
fo
ll
o
w
s:

Page 221



1
2

O
b
ta
in
a
n
u
n
d
er
st
a
n
d
in
g
o
f
th
e
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
in
p
la
ce
th
ro
u
g
h
d
is
cu
ss
io
n
w
it
h
k
ey
p
er
so
n
n
el
,
re
v
ie
w
o
f
d
o
cu
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
a
n
d
w
a
lk
th
ro
u
g
h
te
st
s
w
h
er
e

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
.

Id
en
ti
fy
th
e
k
ey
ri
sk
s
in
re
sp
ec
t
o
f
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
re
p
o
rt
in
g

E
v
a
lu
a
te
th
e
d
es
ig
n
o
f
th
e
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
p
la
ce
to
a
d
d
re
ss
th
e
k
e
y
ri
sk
s.

T
es
t
th
e
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
n
es
s
o
f
th
e
k
ey
co
n
tr
o
ls
o
n
a
sa
m
p
le
b
a
si
s.

Page 222



1
3

A
p
p
en
d
ix
3
–
L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s

L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
in
h
e
re
n
t
to
th
e
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
r’
s
w
o
rk

W
e
h
a
v
e
u
n
d
er
ta
k
en
a
re
v
ie
w
o
f
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
P
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce

R
ep
o
rt
in
g
,
su
b
je
ct
to
th
e
li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
o
u
tl
in
ed
b
el
o
w
.

In
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l

In
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l,
n
o
m
a
tt
er
h
o
w
w
el
l
d
es
ig
n
ed
a
n
d
o
p
er
a
te
d
,
ca
n
p
ro
v
id
e
o
n
ly

re
a
so
n
a
b
le
a
n
d
n
o
t
a
b
so
lu
te
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
re
g
a
rd
in
g
a
ch
ie
v
em
e
n
t
o
f
a
n

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
's
o
b
je
ct
iv
es
.
T
h
e
li
k
el
ih
o
o
d
o
f
a
ch
ie
v
em
e
n
t
is
a
ff
ec
te
d
b
y

li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
in
h
er
en
t
in
a
ll
in
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l
sy
st
em
s.
T
h
es
e
in
cl
u
d
e
th
e

p
o
ss
ib
il
it
y
o
f
p
o
o
r
ju
d
g
m
e
n
t
in
d
ec
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
,
h
u
m
a
n
er
ro
r,
co
n
tr
o
l

p
ro
ce
ss
es
b
e
in
g
d
el
ib
er
a
te
ly
ci
rc
u
m
v
e
n
te
d
b
y
em
p
lo
y
e
es
a
n
d
o
th
er
s,

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
o
v
er
ri
d
in
g
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
n
d
th
e
o
cc
u
rr
en
ce
o
f
u
n
fo
re
se
ea
b
le

ci
rc
u
m
st
a
n
ce
s.

F
u
tu
re
p
e
ri
o
d
s

O
u
r
a
ss
es
sm
en
t
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
re
la
ti
n
g
to
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d

P
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
R
e
p
o
rt
in
g
is
a
s
a
t
3
1
M
a
rc
h
2
0
15
.
H
is
to
ri
c
ev
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
o
f

ef
fe
ct
iv
e
n
es
s
is
n
o
t
re
le
v
a
n
t
to
fu
tu
re
p
er
io
d
s
d
u
e
to
th
e
ri
sk
th
a
t:

T
h
e
d
es
ig
n
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
m
a
y
b
ec
o
m
e
in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
b
ec
a
u
se
o
f
ch
a
n
g
es
in

o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
en
v
ir
o
n
m
en
t,
la
w
,
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
o
r
o
th
er
;
o
r

T
h
e
d
eg
re
e
o
f
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
m
a
y
d
e
te
ri
o
ra
te
.

R
e
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s
o
f
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
rs

It
is
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t’
s
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y
to
d
ev
el
o
p
a
n
d
m
a
in
ta
in
so
u
n
d
sy
st
em
s
o
f

ri
sk
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t,
in
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l
a
n
d
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
fo
r
th
e
p
re
v
en
ti
o
n

a
n
d
d
et
ec
ti
o
n
o
f
ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ti
es
a
n
d
fr
a
u
d
.
In
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
w
o
rk
sh
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e

se
en
a
s
a
su
b
st
it
u
te
fo
r
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t’
s
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s
fo
r
th
e
d
es
ig
n
a
n
d

o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
o
f
th
es
e
sy
st
em
s.

W
e
en
d
ea
v
o
u
r
to
p
la
n
o
u
r
w
o
rk
so
th
a
t
w
e
h
a
v
e
a
re
a
so
n
a
b
le
ex
p
ec
ta
ti
o
n
o
f

d
et
ec
ti
n
g
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t
co
n
tr
o
l
w
ea
k
n
es
se
s
a
n
d
,
if
d
et
ec
te
d
,
w
e
sh
a
ll
ca
rr
y
o
u
t

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
w
o
rk
d
ir
ec
te
d
to
w
a
rd
s
id
en
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
o
f
co
n
se
q
u
en
t
fr
a
u
d
o
r
o
th
er

ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ti
es
.
H
o
w
e
v
er
,
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
a
lo
n
e,
e
v
en
w
h
e
n
ca
rr
ie
d

o
u
t
w
it
h
d
u
e
p
ro
fe
ss
io
n
a
l
ca
re
,
d
o
n
o
t
g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
th
a
t
fr
a
u
d
w
il
l
b
e
d
et
ec
te
d
.

A
cc
o
rd
in
g
ly
,
o
u
r
e
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
s
a
s
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
rs
sh
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
re
li
ed
u
p
o
n

so
le
ly
to
d
is
cl
o
se
fr
a
u
d
,
d
ef
a
lc
a
ti
o
n
s
o
r
o
th
er
ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ti
es
w
h
ic
h
m
a
y
ex
is
t.

Page 223



In
th
e
ev
en
t
th
a
t,
p
u
rs
u
a
n
t
to
a
re
q
u
es
t
w
h
ic
h
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
h
a
s
re
ce
iv
ed
u
n
d
er
th
e
F
re
e
d
o
m
o
f
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
(S
co
tl
a
n
d
)
A
ct
2
0
0
2
o
r
th
e
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
en
ta
l
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
R
eg
u
la
ti
o
n
s
2
0
0
4
(a
s
th
e

sa
m
e
m
a
y
b
e
a
m
en
d
ed
o
r
re
-e
n
a
ct
ed
fr
o
m
ti
m
e
to
ti
m
e)
o
r
a
n
y
su
b
o
rd
in
a
te
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
m
a
d
e
th
er
eu
n
d
er
(c
o
ll
ec
ti
v
el
y
,
th
e
“L
eg
is
la
ti
o
n
”)
,
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
is
re
q
u
ir
ed
to
d
is
cl
o
se
a
n
y
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

co
n
ta
in
ed
in
th
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t,
it
w
il
l
n
o
ti
fy
P
w
C
p
ro
m
p
tl
y
a
n
d
w
il
l
co
n
su
lt
w
it
h
P
w
C
p
ri
o
r
to
d
is
cl
o
si
n
g
su
ch
d
o
cu
m
en
t.
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
g
re
es
to
p
a
y
d
u
e
re
g
a
rd
to
a
n
y
re
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
w
h
ic
h
P
w
C

m
a
y
m
a
k
e
in
co
n
n
ec
ti
o
n
w
it
h
su
ch
d
is
cl
o
su
re
a
n
d
to
a
p
p
ly
a
n
y
re
le
v
a
n
t
ex
em
p
ti
o
n
s
w
h
ic
h
m
a
y
ex
is
t
u
n
d
er
th
e
L
eg
is
la
ti
o
n
.
If
,
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
co
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
P
w
C
,
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
d
is
cl
o
se
s
a
n
y
th
is

d
o
cu
m
en
t
o
r
a
n
y
p
a
rt
th
er
eo
f,
it
sh
a
ll
en
su
re
th
a
t
a
n
y
d
is
cl
a
im
er
w
h
ic
h
P
w
C
h
a
s
in
cl
u
d
ed
o
r
m
a
y
su
b
se
q
u
en
tl
y
w
is
h
to
in
cl
u
d
e
in
th
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
is
re
p
ro
d
u
ce
d
in
fu
ll
in
a
n
y
co
p
ie
s
d
is
cl
o
se
d
.

T
h
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t
h
a
s
b
ee
n
p
re
p
a
re
d
o
n
ly
fo
r
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
n
d
so
le
ly
fo
r
th
e
p
u
rp
o
se
a
n
d
o
n
th
e
te
rm
s
a
g
re
ed
w
it
h
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
in
o
u
r
a
g
re
em
en
t
d
a
te
d
4
O
ct
o
b
er
2
0
10
.
W
e
a
cc
ep
t
n
o

li
a
b
il
it
y
(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
fo
r
n
eg
li
g
en
ce
)
to
a
n
y
o
n
e
el
se
in
co
n
n
ec
ti
o
n
w
it
h
th
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t,
a
n
d
it
m
a
y
n
o
t
b
e
p
ro
v
id
ed
to
a
n
y
o
n
e
el
se
.

©
2
0
15
P
ri
ce
w
a
te
rh
o
u
se
C
o
o
p
er
s
L
L
P
.
A
ll
ri
g
h
ts
re
se
rv
ed
.
In
th
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t,
"P
w
C
"
re
fe
rs
to
P
ri
ce
w
a
te
rh
o
u
se
C
o
o
p
er
s
L
L
P
(a
li
m
it
ed
li
a
b
il
it
y
p
a
rt
n
er
sh
ip
in
th
e
U
n
it
ed
K
in
g
d
o
m
),
w
h
ic
h
is
a
m
em
b
er
fi
rm

o
f
P
ri
ce
w
a
te
rh
o
u
se
C
o
o
p
er
s
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
L
im
it
ed
,
ea
ch
m
em
b
er
fi
rm
o
f
w
h
ic
h
is
a
se
p
a
ra
te
le
g
a
l
en
ti
ty
.

Page 224



A
b
e
r
d
e
e
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

R
o
a
d
s
C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
C
o
n
se
n
t

In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
R
ep
o
rt
–

F
in
a
l

2
0
14
/2
0
15
fo
r
A
b
e
rd
ee
n

C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l

M
a

y
2

0
1
5

In
te

r
n

a
l

A
u

d
it

K
P

I
T

a
r

g
e

ts
T

a
r
g

e
t

d
a

te
s

A
c

tu
a

l
d

a
te

s
R

e
d

/A
m

b
e

r
/

G
r

e
e

n

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
r
y

w
h

e
r

e

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

T
er
m
s
o
r
re
fe
re
n
ce
a
g
re
ed
4
w
ee
k
s

p
ri
o
r
to
fi
el
d
w
o
rk

16
F
eb
ru
a
ry
2
0
15

12
M
a
rc
h
2
0
15

R
e

d
D
el
a
y
in
a
g
re
ei
n
g
o
n
sc
o
p
e

P
la
n
n
ed
fi
el
d
w
o
rk
st
a
rt
d
a
te

16
M
a
rc
h
2
0
15

16
M
a
rc
h
2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

F
ie
ld
w
o
rk
co
m
p
le
ti
o
n
d
a
te

2
7
M
a
rc
h
2
0
15

2
7
M
a
rc
h
2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

Is
su
in
g
d
ra
ft
re
p
o
rt
s
fo
r

m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
co
m
m
en
ts

17
A
p
ri
l
2
0
15

17
A
p
ri
l
2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n
T
a
rg
et
d
a
te
a
d
ju
st
ed
b
y
o
n
e

w
ee
k
fo
r
C
IA
a
n
n
u
a
l
le
a
v
e

R
ec
ei
v
in
g
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
co
m
m
en
ts

1
M
a
y
2
0
15

3
0
A
p
ri
l
2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

Is
su
in
g
fi
n
a
li
se
d
re
p
o
rt
s

8
M
a
y
2
0
15

8
M
a
y
2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

F
in
a
l
re
p
o
rt
s
p
re
se
n
te
d
to
th
e
A
u
d
it
,

R
is
k
a
n
d
S
cr
u
ti
n
y
C
o
m
m
it
te
e

2
5
J
u
n
e
2
0
15

2
5
J
u
n
e
2
0
15

G
r

e
e

n

Agenda Item 6.5

Page 225



T
h
is
re
p
o
rt
h
a
s
b
ee
n
p
re
p
a
re
d
so
le
ly
fo
r
A
b
er
d
e
en
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
in
a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
te
rm
s
a
n
d
co
n
d
it
io
n
s
se
t
o
u
t
in
o
u
r
e
n
g
a
g
em
en
t
le
tt
er
4
th
O
ct
o
b
er
2
0
10
.
W
e
d
o
n
o
t
a
cc
ep
t
o
r

a
ss
u
m
e
a
n
y
li
a
b
il
it
y
o
r
d
u
ty
o
f
ca
re
fo
r
a
n
y
o
th
er
p
u
rp
o
se
o
r
to
a
n
y
o
th
er
p
a
rt
y
.
T
h
is
re
p
o
rt
sh
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
d
is
cl
o
se
d
to
a
n
y
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
y
,
q
u
o
te
d
o
r
re
fe
rr
ed
to
w
it
h
o
u
t
o
u
r
p
ri
o
r

w
ri
tt
en
co
n
se
n
t.

In
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
w
o
rk
w
il
l
b
e
p
er
fo
rm
ed
in
a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce
w
it
h
P
u
b
li
c
S
ec
to
r
In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
(P
S
IA
S
).
A
s
a
re
su
lt
,
o
u
r
w
o
rk
a
n
d
d
e
li
v
er
a
b
le
s
a
re
n
o
t
d
es
ig
n
e
d
o
r
in
te
n
d
ed
to

co
m
p
ly
w
it
h
th
e
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
A
u
d
it
in
g
a
n
d
A
ss
u
ra
n
ce
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
B
o
a
rd
(I
A
A
S
B
),
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
F
ra
m
ew
o
rk
fo
r
A
ss
u
ra
n
ce
E
n
g
a
g
em
e
n
ts
(I
F
A
E
)
a
n
d
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
o
n

A
ss
u
ra
n
ce
E
n
g
a
g
em
en
ts
(I
S
A
E
)
3
0
0
0
.

In
te

r
n

a
l

A
u

d
it

r
e

p
o

r
t

fo
r
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l

P
w
C

C
o
n
te
n
ts

C
o
n
te
n
ts

S
e

c
ti

o
n

P
a

g
e

1.
E
x
e
cu
ti
v
e
S
u
m
m
a
ry

1

2
.
B
a
ck
g
ro
u
n
d
a
n
d
sc
o
p
e

3

3
.
D
et
a
il
ed
fi
n
d
in
g
s
a
n
d
re
co
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
s

5

A
p
p
en
d
ix
1
–
B
a
si
s
o
f
o
u
r
cl
a
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

11

A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
–
T
er
m
s
o
f
re
fe
re
n
ce

13

A
p
p
en
d
ix
3
–
L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s

15

Page 226



1

1.
E
x
ec
u
ti
v
e
S
u
m
m
a
ry

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

L
o
w

T
o

ta
l

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

fi
n

d
in

g
s

S
ec
ti
o
n
3

S
u

m
m

a
r

y
o

f
fi

n
d

in
g

s

1.
0
1
S
ec
ti
o
n
2
1
o
f
th
e
R
o
a
d
s
(S
co
tl
a
n
d
)
A
ct
19
8
4
re
q
u
ir
es
th
e
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
o
f
a
ll
n
e
w
ro
a
d
s,
fo
o
tw
a
y
s
a
n
d
si
m
il
a
r
to
b
e
a
u
th
o
ri
se
d
b
y
th
e
lo
ca
l
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
.
S
ec
ti
o
n
5
6
o
f
th
e

A
ct
re
q
u
ir
es
th
a
t
a
n
y
w
o
rk
s
ex
ec
u
te
d
in
,
o
r
u
n
d
er
,
a
p
u
b
li
c
ro
a
d
re
q
u
ir
e
th
e
lo
ca
l
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
co
n
se
n
t
in
w
ri
ti
n
g
.
B
o
th
p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
a
re
re
fe
rr
ed
to
a
s
R
o
a
d
C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n

C
o
n
se
n
t
(R
C
C
).
T
h
e
R
C
C
te
a
m
a
t
A
b
er
d
e
en
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
is
re
sp
o
n
si
b
le
fo
r
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
o
f
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
a
n
d
a
u
th
o
ri
si
n
g
th
es
e
R
C
C
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
to
en
su
re
th
ey
a
re

co
m
p
li
a
n
t
w
it
h
th
e
R
o
a
d
s
(S
co
tl
a
n
d
)
A
ct
19
8
4
.
In
N
o
v
em
b
er
2
0
14
,
th
e
R
C
C
te
a
m
re
v
is
ed
th
e
re
q
u
ir
e
m
en
ts
fo
r
R
C
C
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
in
o
rd
er
to
h
el
p
im
p
ro
v
e
p
ro
ce
ss
es

in
te
rn
a
ll
y
a
n
d
d
ri
v
e
ef
fi
ci
e
n
cy
in
h
o
w
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
w
e
re
m
a
n
a
g
ed
.
W
e
h
a
v
e
b
ee
n
a
sk
ed
b
y
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
to
ev
a
lu
a
te
th
e
n
ew
p
ro
ce
ss
a
n
d
a
ss
es
s
w
h
et
h
er
th
e
co
n
tr
o
ls

in
p
la
ce
h
el
p
th
e
R
C
C
te
a
m
to
a
ch
ie
v
e
it
s
o
b
je
ct
iv
es
.

1.
0
2
In
g
e
n
er
a
l
w
e
fo
u
n
d
th
a
t
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
es
in
p
la
ce
,
a
n
d
th
o
se
b
ei
n
g
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
,
w
e
re
d
es
ig
n
ed
to
a
ch
ie
v
e
th
e
o
b
je
ct
iv
e
s
o
f
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
a
n
d
th
e
R
C
C
te
a
m
.
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,

w
e
h
a
v
e
id
en
ti
fi
ed
so
m
e
a
re
a
s
fo
r
im
p
ro
v
e
m
en
t
in
th
e
co
n
tr
o
ls
im
p
le
m
en
te
d
b
y
th
e
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
R
o
a
d
s
D
ep
a
rt
m
en
t
a
n
d
h
a
v
e
m
a
d
e
th
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
fo
u
r
lo
w

ri
sk
fi
n
d
in
g
s:

T
o
en
su
re
th
a
t
in
te
rn
a
l
p
ro
ce
ss
es
a
re
d
es
ig
n
ed
,
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
a
n
d
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
fo
r
co
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
a
p
p
li
ca
n
ts
,
a
sp
re
a
d
sh
ee
t
is
m
a
in
ta
in
ed
a
n
d
u
p
d
a
te
d
b
y
th
e

R
C
C
te
a
m
to
re
co
rd
co
m
p
le
ti
o
n
o
f
ce
rt
a
in
ch
ec
k
p
o
in
ts
in
th
e
R
C
C
p
ro
ce
ss
.
W
h
il
st
th
is
is
a
g
o
o
d
co
n
tr
o
l
w
e
fo
u
n
d
th
a
t
in
p
ra
ct
ic
e
it
w
a
s
n
o
t
k
e
p
t
u
p
to
d
a
te
,
a
n
d

th
a
t
th
er
e
w
er
e
so
m
e
in
st
a
n
ce
s
w
h
e
re
fu
rt
h
er
co
rr
es
p
o
n
d
en
ce
w
a
s
m
a
d
e
th
a
t
w
a
s
n
o
t
re
fl
ec
te
d
o
n
th
e
sp
re
a
d
sh
ee
t.

T
h
er
e
is
cu
rr
e
n
tl
y
a
ch
ec
k
li
st
d
ev
is
ed
a
n
d
u
se
d
to
en
su
re
th
a
t
R
C
C
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
re
p
ro
p
er
ly
re
v
ie
w
ed
fo
r
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
.
H
o
w
ev
er
,
th
is
is
u
se
d
in
fo
rm
a
ll
y
a
n
d
is

n
o
t
u
p
lo
a
d
ed
o
n
to
th
e
d
ri
v
e
to
sh
o
w
ev
id
en
ce
o
f
th
e
ch
ec
k
li
st
b
ei
n
g
co
m
p
le
te
d
b
y
a
re
le
v
a
n
t
te
a
m
m
em
b
er
.
T
h
is
in
tu
rn
p
ro
v
id
es
n
o
e
v
id
en
ce
th
a
t
th
e
b
a
si
c

ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
re
q
u
ir
e
m
en
ts
se
t
b
y
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
h
a
v
e
b
ee
n
m
et
b
ef
o
re
re
fe
rr
in
g
to
sp
ec
ia
li
st
s.

C
u
rr
en
tl
y
th
er
e
is
n
o
p
ro
ce
ss
in
p
la
ce
to
re
sp
o
n
d
to
p
er
io
d
s
o
f
h
ig
h
d
em
a
n
d
.
In
p
er
io
d
s
o
f
h
ig
h
d
em
a
n
d
,
R
C
C
te
a
m
re
so
u
rc
es
m
a
y
n
o
t
b
e
a
b
le
to
ef
fi
ci
en
tl
y

m
a
n
a
g
e
th
e
w
o
rk
lo
a
d
o
f
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
re
su
lt
in
g
in
d
el
a
y
s
to
th
e
R
C
C
p
ro
ce
ss
.C

r
it

ic
a

l
H

ig
h

M
e

d
iu

m
L

o
w

A
d

v
is

o
r

y

C
o
n
tr
o
l
d
es
ig
n

-
-

-
2

2

O
p
er
a
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s

-
-

-
2

-

T
o
ta
l

-
-

-
4

2

Page 227



2

T
im
el
in
es
fo
r
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
in
g
o
f
R
C
C
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
h
a
v
e
n
o
t
b
ee
n
a
g
re
ed
in
te
rn
a
ll
y
o
r
w
it
h
ex
te
rn
a
l
st
a
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
.
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
h
a
v
e
in
d
ic
a
te
d
th
ei
r
d
es
ir
e
is
to

se
t
a
n
a
g
re
ed
ti
m
el
in
e
fo
r
p
ro
ce
ss
in
g
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
in
o
rd
er
to
fo
st
er
tr
a
n
sp
a
re
n
cy
a
n
d
to
en
su
re
ef
fi
ci
e
n
ci
es
in
te
rn
a
ll
y
.

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
el
co
m
e
th
e
in
p
u
t
fr
o
m
a
n
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
p
er
sp
ec
ti
v
e
fo
r
th
is
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r
se
rv
ic
e
a
re
a
.
T
h
e
g
ra
n
ti
n
g
o
f
co
n
se
n
t
ca
n
b
e
se
en
b
y
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
o
u
ts
id
e
th
e

co
u
n
ci
l
a
s
b
e
in
g
a
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
d
el
a
y
to
st
a
rt
in
g
w
o
rk
s
o
n
si
te
fo
r
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
o
f
d
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t
a
n
d
w
h
il
e
it
is
a
cc
ep
te
d
th
a
t
p
ro
ce
ss
es
a
n
d
co
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h

d
ev
el
o
p
e
rs
ca
n
im
p
ro
v
e
a
n
d
b
e
m
o
re
ef
fi
ci
e
n
t,
th
e
a
u
d
it
h
ig
h
li
g
h
ts
a
n
u
m
b
er
o
f
p
o
si
ti
v
e
st
e
p
s
th
e
se
rv
ic
e
ca
n
ta
k
e
to
im
p
ro
v
e
it
s
co
n
tr
o
l
o
f
m
a
tt
er
s.

Page 228



3

2
.
B
a
ck
g
ro
u
n
d
a
n
d
sc
o
p
e

B
a

c
k

g
r

o
u

n
d

A
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
s

2
.0
3

W
e
re
v
ie
w
ed
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
to
en
su
re
g
u
id
a
n
ce
is
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
a
n
d
a
cc
es
si
b
le
fo
r
d
ev
e
lo
p
er
s,
o
r
th
ei
r
a
p
p
o
in
te
d
co
n
su
lt
a
n
ts
,
o
n
th
e
re
q
u
ir
e
m
en
ts
fo
r
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
fo
r

ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t.
F
o
r
a
ll
n
ew
a
p
p
li
ca
n
ts
th
a
t
h
a
v
e
n
o
t
p
re
v
io
u
sl
y
su
b
m
it
te
d
fo
r
co
n
se
n
t,
a
le
tt
er
is
se
n
t
o
u
t
w
it
h
g
u
id
a
n
ce
o
n
su
b
m
is
si
o
n
re
q
u
ir
e
m
en
ts
fo
r

b
o
th
S
ta
g
e
1
a
n
d
S
ta
g
e
2
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
(R
C
C
)
o
n
th
e
ir
fi
rs
t
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
.
T
h
is
le
tt
er
d
et
a
il
s
g
u
id
a
n
ce
fo
r
su
b
m
is
si
o
n
re
q
u
ir
em
en
ts
fo
r
b
o
th
S
ta
g
e
1
a
n
d

S
ta
g
e
2
R
C
C
if
re
q
u
ir
ed
.

2
.0
4

T
h
e
A
b
e
rd
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
R
C
C
te
a
m
re
v
ie
w
a
ll
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
o
n
re
ce
ip
t,
w
it
h
a
n
a
ck
n
o
w
le
d
g
em
en
t
le
tt
er
se
n
t
o
u
t
to
n
o
ti
fy
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
n
t.
W
e
re
v
ie
w
ed
th
e
co
n
tr
o
ls

in
p
la
ce
to
en
su
re
a
ll
a
p
p
li
ca
n
ts
re
ce
iv
e
a
n
a
ck
n
o
w
le
d
g
em
en
t
le
tt
er
,
th
a
t
ev
er
y
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
is
p
ro
v
id
ed
a
u
n
iq
u
e
re
fe
re
n
ce
n
u
m
b
e
r
a
n
d
th
a
t
o
n
ce
re
v
ie
w
ed
,

co
rr
es
p
o
n
d
e
n
ce
is
se
n
t
b
a
ck
to
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
n
t
w
it
h
co
m
m
en
ts
re
g
a
rd
in
g
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
.

2
.0
5

W
e
re
v
ie
w
ed
th
e
in
te
rn
a
l
p
ro
ce
ss
es
to
en
su
re
th
ey
w
er
e
d
es
ig
n
ed
,
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
a
n
d
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
fo
r
co
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
a
p
p
li
ca
n
ts
.
A
m
a
n
u
a
l
sp
re
a
d
sh
ee
t
is

m
a
in
ta
in
ed
th
a
t
d
et
a
il
s
v
a
ri
o
u
s
ch
ec
k
p
o
in
ts
re
g
a
rd
in
g
st
a
g
es
o
f
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
p
ro
ce
ss
a
n
d
th
e
co
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
th
a
t
h
a
s
b
ee
n
m
a
d
e
.

P
r

o
c

e
s

s
in

g

2
.0
6

W
e
re
v
ie
w
ed
in
te
rn
a
l
p
ro
ce
ss
es
to
id
en
ti
fy
co
n
tr
o
ls
th
a
t
ex
is
t
to
en
su
re
R
C
C
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
re
p
ro
p
e
rl
y
re
v
ie
w
ed
fo
r
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
re
le
v
a
n
t
st
a
n
d
a
rd
s
a
n
d

te
ch
n
ic
a
l
re
q
u
ir
e
m
en
ts
.
A
ch
ec
k
li
st
is
in
p
la
ce
fo
r
in
te
rn
a
l
re
fe
re
n
ce
to
en
su
re
th
a
t
R
C
C
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
re
p
ro
p
er
ly
re
v
ie
w
ed
fo
r
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
re
le
v
a
n
t
st
a
n
d
a
rd
s

a
n
d
te
ch
n
ic
a
l
re
q
u
ir
em
en
ts
.

2
.0
7

O
n
ce
a
re
v
is
ed
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
is
re
ce
iv
ed
fr
o
m
th
e
co
n
su
lt
a
n
ts
,
if
sa
ti
sf
ie
d
th
a
t
th
e
g
e
o
m
et
ry
re
q
u
ir
e
m
en
ts
a
re
m
et
,
th
e
re
le
v
a
n
t
te
a
m
m
em
b
er
w
il
l
re
v
ie
w
a
n
d
a
p
p
ro
v
e

th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
v
ia
th
e
ch
ec
k
li
st
,
w
h
ic
h
ca
n
th
en
b
e
p
a
ss
ed
o
n
to
v
a
ri
o
u
s
sp
ec
ia
li
st
s
w
it
h
in
A
C
C
to
in
p
u
t
to
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
.
S
p
ec
ia
li
st
s
in
cl
u
d
e
a
ll
te
a
m
s
th
a
t
co
n
tr
ib
u
te

to
a
sp
ec
if
ic
a
re
a
in
th
e
R
C
C
p
ro
ce
ss
a
n
d
in
cl
u
d
e
st
re
e
t
li
g
h
ti
n
g
,
si
g
n
a
ls
,
st
ru
ct
u
re
s,
fl
o
o
d
in
g
,
st
re
et
o
cc
u
p
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
th
e
tr
a
ff
ic
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
te
a
m
.

2
.0
8

A
n
em
a
il
tr
a
il
is
re
ta
in
ed
o
f
co
rr
es
p
o
n
d
en
ce
w
it
h
sp
ec
ia
li
st
s
w
h
o
w
il
l
re
tu
rn
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
to
th
e
R
C
C
te
a
m
w
it
h
co
m
m
en
ts
a
tt
a
ch
ed
.
T
h
es
e
co
m
m
en
ts
a
re
se
n
t

o
n
to
th
e
co
n
su
lt
a
n
ts
b
y
th
e
R
C
C
te
a
m
w
it
h
th
e
co
m
m
en
ts
fo
r
th
e
m
to
a
m
en
d
.
A
t
ti
m
es
,
m
ee
ti
n
g
s
a
re
h
el
d
w
it
h
co
n
su
lt
a
n
ts
o
r
d
e
v
el
o
p
er
s
in
o
rd
er
to
g
o
o
v
er
th
e

d
es
ig
n
s
a
n
d
m
a
k
e
su
g
g
es
te
d
a
m
en
d
m
e
n
ts
th
a
t
a
re
th
e
n
si
g
n
ed
o
ff
b
y
th
e
co
n
su
lt
a
n
ts
o
r
d
ev
el
o
p
er
s.

2
.0
9

C
u
rr
en
tl
y
th
er
e
is
n
o
in
te
rn
a
l
p
ro
ce
ss
in
p
la
ce
to
re
sp
o
n
d
to
p
er
io
d
s
o
f
h
ig
h
d
em
a
n
d
in
R
C
C
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s.

Page 229



4

A
p

p
r

o
v

a
l

2
.1
0

W
e
re
v
ie
w
ed
th
e
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l
p
ro
ce
ss
to
en
su
re
a
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ti
m
es
ca
le
fo
r
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l
o
f
R
C
C
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
h
a
s
b
ee
n
co
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
to
d
ev
el
o
p
er
s
a
n
d
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
ce
in

a
ch
ie
v
in
g
th
a
t
ti
m
es
ca
le
is
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
in
te
rn
a
ll
y
.
A
n
el
ec
tr
o
n
ic
d
a
ta
b
a
se
is
m
a
in
ta
in
ed
th
a
t
ca
n
d
is
p
la
y
w
h
e
n
a
n
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
is
re
ce
iv
e
d
to
w
h
en
a
n
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
is

a
p
p
ro
v
ed
.

2
.1
1

P
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
b
e
n
ch
m
a
rk
in
g
to
o
th
er
co
m
p
a
ra
b
le
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
es
is
cu
rr
en
tl
y
in
it
s
ea
rl
y
st
a
g
es
,
a
n
d
a
s
su
ch
th
er
e
is
n
o
fo
rm
a
l
p
ro
ce
ss
b
en
ch
m
a
rk
in
g
is
in
p
la
ce
.

S
c

o
p

e
a

n
d

li
m

it
a

ti
o

n
s

o
f

s
c

o
p

e

2
.1
2

T
h
e
d
et
a
il
ed
sc
o
p
e
o
f
th
is
re
v
ie
w
is
se
t
o
u
t
in
th
e
T
er
m
s
o
f
R
ef
er
en
ce
(w
it
h
in
A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
).

Page 230



5

3
.
D
et
a
il
ed
fi
n
d
in
g
s
a
n
d
re
co
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
s

3
.0

1
W

o
r

k
fl

o
w

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

–
c

o
n

tr
o

l
o

p
e

r
a

ti
o

n

F
in

d
in

g

C
h
ec
k
p
o
in
t
d
a
te
s
th
a
t
tr
a
ck
w
h
en
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
re
re
ce
iv
ed
,
re
v
ie
w
ed
,
re
tu
rn
ed
to
a
p
p
li
ca
n
t
et
c.
a
re
m
a
in
ta
in
ed
a
n
d
lo
g
g
ed
o
n
to
a
st
a
n
d
a
rd
M
ic
ro
so
ft

E
x
ce
l
sp
re
a
d
sh
ee
t.
T
h
is
re
li
es
o
n
m
a
n
u
a
l
in
p
u
t
to
m
a
in
ta
in
th
e
sp
re
a
d
sh
ee
t,
w
h
ic
h
le
a
v
es
th
e
d
a
ta
su
b
je
ct
to
h
u
m
a
n
er
ro
r.
In
p
ra
ct
ic
e
w
e
fo
u
n
d
th
a
t
th
e

sp
re
a
d
sh
ee
t
is
n
o
t
k
e
p
t
u
p
to
d
a
te
w
it
h
co
rr
es
p
o
n
d
e
n
ce
to
a
n
d
fr
o
m
a
p
p
li
ca
n
ts
.
F
o
r
th
re
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
th
a
t
w
e
te
st
ed
w
e
fo
u
n
d
in
st
a
n
ce
s
w
h
e
re
th
e

a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
w
a
s
a
t
a
fu
rt
h
er
st
a
g
e
th
a
n
w
a
s
re
fl
ec
te
d
o
n
th
e
sp
re
a
d
sh
e
et
.
F
u
rt
h
er
m
o
re
,
th
er
e
w
a
s
a
ca
se
w
h
er
e
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
w
a
s
re
ce
iv
ed
,
a
n
d

a
ck
n
o
w
le
d
g
em
en
t
le
tt
er
se
n
t
to
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
n
t,
w
h
ic
h
w
a
s
n
o
t
lo
g
g
ed
o
n
to
th
e
sp
re
a
d
sh
ee
t.
T
h
is
ca
n
le
a
d
to
co
n
fu
si
o
n
a
s
to
w
h
a
t
st
a
g
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
re

cu
rr
en
tl
y
a
t,
a
s
th
e
o
n
ly
w
a
y
to
fi
n
d
o
u
t
w
o
u
ld
b
e
to
re
v
ie
w
th
e
co
rr
es
p
o
n
d
en
ce
w
it
h
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
n
ts
,
w
h
ic
h
a
ls
o
re
li
es
o
n
th
e
u
se
r
to
p
h
y
si
ca
ll
y
sa
v
e
th
e

em
a
il
s
o
n
to
th
e
R
C
C
te
a
m
h
a
rd
d
ri
v
e.

R
is

k
s

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
d
a
ta
m
a
y
b
e
in
co
m
p
le
te
o
r
in
a
cc
u
ra
te
im
p
a
ct
in
g
th
e
a
b
il
it
y
to
m
o
n
it
o
r
th
e
p
ro
g
re
ss
o
f
R
C
C
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
w
h
o
is

cu
rr
en
tl
y
re
v
ie
w
in
g
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s.
T
h
is
in
cr
ea
se
s
th
e
ri
sk
o
f
m
is
si
n
g
o
r
d
el
a
y
ed
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
ca
n
le
a
d
to
in
te
rn
a
l
in
ef
fi
ci
en
ci
es
in
h
o
w
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s

a
re
p
ro
g
re
ss
ed
a
n
d
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

L
o
w

T
h
e
R
o
a
d
C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
C
o
n
se
n
t
te
a
m
w
il
l
im
p
le
m
en
t
a
sy
st
em
th
a
t
m
a
n
a
g
es
w
o
rk
fl
o
w
fo
r

ro
a
d
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s.

T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
er

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

3
0
S
ep
te
m
b
er
2
0
15

Page 231



6

3
.0

2
C

h
e

c
k

li
s

t
n

o
t

r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
a

n
d

a
p

p
r

o
v

e
d

–
c

o
n

tr
o

l
o

p
e

r
a

ti
o

n

F
in

d
in

g

T
h
er
e
is
a
ch
ec
k
li
st
th
a
t
sh
o
u
ld
b
e
u
se
d
to
en
su
re
th
a
t
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
re
p
ro
p
er
ly
re
v
ie
w
ed
fo
r
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
.
H
o
w
ev
e
r,
th
is
is
u
se
d

in
fo
rm
a
ll
y
a
n
d
is
n
o
t
b
ei
n
g
u
p
lo
a
d
ed
o
n
to
th
e
d
ri
v
e
to
sh
o
w
ev
id
en
ce
o
f
th
e
ch
e
ck
li
st
b
e
in
g
co
m
p
le
te
d
.
F
u
rt
h
er
m
o
re
,
th
e
re
is
n
o
e
v
id
e
n
ce
o
f
a
re
le
v
a
n
t

te
a
m
m
em
b
er
re
v
ie
w
in
g
a
n
d
si
g
n
in
g
th
es
e
ch
ec
k
li
st
s,
w
h
ic
h
in
tu
rn
p
ro
v
id
es
n
o
in
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
th
a
t
th
e
b
a
si
c
re
q
u
ir
em
e
n
ts
h
a
v
e
b
ee
n
m
et
b
ef
o
re
re
fe
rr
in
g
to

sp
ec
ia
li
st
s.

R
is

k
s

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
re
ce
iv
ed
m
a
y
n
o
t
h
a
v
e
m
et
a
ll
cr
it
er
ia
,
a
n
d
th
a
t
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
is
g
iv
en
to
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
w
it
h
o
u
t
p
ro
p
er

ch
ec
k
s
b
e
in
g
co
m
p
le
te
d
.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

L
o
w

A
ch
ec
k
li
st
w
il
l
b
e
u
se
d
fo
rm
a
ll
y
to
ev
id
en
ce
th
a
t
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
re

in
li
n
e
w
it
h
re
le
v
a
n
t
st
a
n
d
a
rd
s
a
n
d
te
ch
n
ic
a
l
re
q
u
ir
e
m
en
ts
.
T
h
e
ch
ec
k
li
st
w
il
l
a
ls
o
b
e
u
se
d
to

re
co
rd
th
e
re
v
ie
w
a
n
d
co
m
m
en
ts
o
f
th
e
re
le
v
a
n
t
te
a
m
m
em
b
er
,
a
n
d
w
h
er
e
n
ec
es
sa
ry
g
iv
en
th
e

sc
a
le
a
n
d
co
m
p
le
x
it
y
o
f
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
,
ev
id
e
n
ce
o
f
ch
e
ck
in
g
b
y
a
su
it
a
b
le
q
u
a
li
fi
ed
co
ll
ea
g
u
e.

T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
er

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

3
0
J
u
n
e
2
0
15

Page 232



7

3
.0

3
N

o
p

r
o

c
e

s
s

to
r

e
s

p
o

n
d

to
p

e
r

io
d

s
o

f
h

ig
h

d
e

m
a

n
d

–
c

o
n

tr
o

l
d

e
s

ig
n

F
in

d
in

g

T
h
er
e
is
n
o
p
ro
ce
ss
in
p
la
ce
to
re
sp
o
n
d
to
p
er
io
d
s
o
f
h
ig
h
d
e
m
a
n
d
.
In
p
er
io
d
s
o
f
h
ig
h
d
e
m
a
n
d
,
st
a
ff
in
th
e
R
C
C
te
a
m
h
a
v
e
m
o
re
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
to
d
ea
l
w
it
h
,

w
h
ic
h
re
su
lt
s
in
a
h
ig
h
er
li
k
el
ih
o
o
d
o
f
d
el
a
y
s
in
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
.
F
u
rt
h
e
rm
o
re
,
in
cr
e
a
se
d
p
re
ss
u
re
w
o
u
ld
b
e
p
la
ce
d
o
n
th
e
R
C
C
te
a
m
fr
o
m
th
e
d
ev
el
o
p
e
rs
to

a
p
p
ro
v
e
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
s
so
o
n
a
s
p
o
ss
ib
le
,
w
h
ic
h
w
o
u
ld
re
su
lt
in
th
e
n
e
ed
to
re
v
ie
w
m
o
re
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
in
a
sh
o
rt
sp
a
ce
o
f
ti
m
e.
W
e
a
ck
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
th
a
t
a

re
so
u
rc
e
a
n
a
ly
si
s
h
a
s
b
ee
n
p
er
fo
rm
ed
a
n
d
it
w
a
s
id
e
n
ti
fi
ed
th
a
t
m
o
re
st
a
ff
w
o
u
ld
b
e
n
ee
d
ed
to
b
e
b
ro
u
g
h
t
in
to
a
ll
ev
ia
te
th
e
w
o
rk
lo
a
d
is
su
es
.

R
is

k
s

R
o
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
re
d
el
a
y
ed
d
a
m
a
g
in
g
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
re
la
ti
o
n
sh
ip
w
it
h
ex
te
rn
a
l
st
a
k
eh
o
ld
er
s
in
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
.

In
te
rn
a
ll
y
,
st
a
ff
m
a
y
fe
el
u
n
d
er
p
re
ss
u
re
to
d
el
iv
er
to
ti
m
el
in
es
a
n
d
th
er
ef
o
re
m
a
y
n
o
t
fo
ll
o
w
p
ro
p
er
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
a
n
d
p
ro
ce
ss
es
in
a
p
p
ro
v
in
g
ro
a
d
s

co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

L
o
w

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
im
p
le
m
e
n
t
m
o
n
th
ly
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
o
f
K
P
Is
to
h
el
p
id
en
ti
fy
p
e
ri
o
d
s
o
f
h
ig
h

d
em
a
n
d
in
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s.
W
h
er
e
p
e
ri
o
d
s
o
f
h
ig
h
d
e
m
a
n
d
b
ec
o
m
e

a
p
p
a
re
n
t,
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
w
il
l
en
su
re
th
a
t
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
co
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
is
m
a
in
ta
in
ed
w
it
h

ex
te
rn
a
l
st
a
k
eh
o
ld
er
s
a
s
to
th
e
im
p
a
ct
o
n
ti
m
el
in
es
,
a
n
d
a
ct
io
n
w
il
l
b
e
ta
k
en
in
te
rn
a
ll
y
to

en
su
re
th
a
t
p
ro
ce
ss
es
a
re
m
a
in
ta
in
ed
d
es
p
it
e
th
e
in
cr
ea
se
w
o
rk
lo
a
d
.

T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
er

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

3
1
J
u
ly
2
0
15

Page 233



8

3
.0

4
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

w
it

h
d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

r
s

o
n

c
o

n
s
e

n
t

a
p

p
r

o
v

a
l

ti
m

e
s

c
a

le
s

–
c

o
n

tr
o

l
d

e
s

ig
n

F
in

d
in

g

T
im
el
in
es
fo
r
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
in
g
o
f
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
(R
C
C
)
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
h
a
v
e
n
o
t
b
e
en
a
g
re
ed
in
te
rn
a
ll
y
o
r
w
it
h
e
x
te
rn
a
l
st
a
k
eh
o
ld
er
s.
T
h
is
ca
n
le
a
d

to
a
la
ck
o
f
tr
a
n
sp
a
re
n
cy
a
s
to
w
h
a
t
th
e
ex
p
ec
ta
ti
o
n
is
in
te
rm
s
o
f
d
ea
d
li
n
es
fo
r
re
ce
iv
in
g
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l
fo
r
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t.

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
h
a
v
e
a
ls
o
d
is
cu
ss
ed
w
h
et
h
er
it
m
a
y
b
e
b
en
ef
ic
ia
l
to
h
a
v
e
a
sy
st
e
m
th
a
t
w
o
u
ld
a
ct
a
s
a
n
in
te
rf
a
ce
b
et
w
ee
n
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l,
d
e
v
el
o
p
er
s
a
n
d
th
e
ir

co
n
su
lt
a
n
ts
,
w
h
ic
h
w
o
u
ld
a
ct
a
s
a
ce
n
tr
a
li
se
d
re
la
ti
o
n
sh
ip
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
sy
st
em
fo
r
R
C
C
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s.
T
h
is
w
o
u
ld
p
ro
m
o
te
tr
a
n
sp
a
re
n
cy
a
n
d
a
ll
o
w
a
ll

p
a
rt
ie
s
to
ea
si
ly
o
b
se
rv
e
w
h
a
t
st
a
g
e
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
is
a
t,
a
n
d
w
h
ic
h
p
a
rt
y
is
cu
rr
en
tl
y
re
q
u
ir
ed
to
p
ro
v
id
e
m
o
re
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
in
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
.

R
is

k
s

R
o
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
re
d
el
a
y
ed
d
a
m
a
g
in
g
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
re
la
ti
o
n
sh
ip
w
it
h
ex
te
rn
a
l
st
a
k
e
h
o
ld
er
s
in
th
e
p
ro
ce
ss
.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

L
o
w

O
n
in
it
ia
l
a
ck
n
o
w
le
d
g
em
e
n
t
o
f
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
,
if
a
fu
ll
a
n
d
co
m
p
le
te
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n

co
n
se
n
t
su
b
m
is
si
o
n
is
re
ce
iv
ed
fr
o
m
th
e
co
n
su
lt
a
n
t
o
r
d
ev
el
o
p
e
r,
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
h
a
v
e
in
d
ic
a
te
d

th
a
t
th
ey
w
il
l
co
m
m
it
to
p
ro
v
id
in
g
a
re
sp
o
n
se
to
th
e
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
w
it
h
in
fo
u
r
w
ee
k
s.

In
d
el
iv
e
ri
n
g
a
ct
io
n
3
.0
1,
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
w
il
l
lo
o
k
to
li
n
k
th
e
sy
st
em
fo
r
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n

co
n
se
n
t
to
th
e
e-
p
la
n
n
in
g
sy
st
em
cu
rr
en
tl
y
u
se
d
fo
r
p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
b
y
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l.

T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
er

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

3
1
J
u
ly
2
0
15

Page 234



9

3
.0

5
G

u
id

a
n

c
e

o
n

r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

n
o

t
o

n
A

b
e

r
d

e
e

n
C

it
y

C
o

u
n

c
il

w
e

b
s

it
e

–
c

o
n

tr
o

l
d

e
s

ig
n

F
in

d
in

g

In
a
ll
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
w
e
in
sp
e
ct
ed
,
w
e
fo
u
n
d
,
si
n
ce
th
e
n
ew
g
u
id
a
n
ce
re
q
u
ir
e
m
en
ts
w
er
e
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
,
th
a
t
fi
rs
t
ti
m
e
a
p
p
li
ca
n
ts
w
er
e
se
n
t
o
v
er
g
u
id
a
n
ce
o
n

su
b
m
is
si
o
n
re
q
u
ir
em
e
n
ts
fo
r
b
o
th
S
ta
g
e
1
a
n
d
S
ta
g
e
2
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
(R
C
C
).
H
o
w
e
v
er
,
to
o
b
ta
in
th
e
g
u
id
a
n
ce
th
e
d
ev
el
o
p
er
o
r
co
n
su
lt
a
n
t

m
u
st
h
a
v
e
fi
rs
t
su
b
m
it
te
d
a
q
u
er
y
to
th
e
R
C
C
te
a
m
.
T
h
e
p
ro
ce
ss
co
u
ld
b
e
m
a
d
e
m
o
re
ef
fi
ci
e
n
t
b
y
m
a
k
in
g
th
e
R
C
C
su
b
m
is
si
o
n
g
u
id
a
n
ce
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
o
n

A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
w
eb
si
te
.
T
h
is
m
ig
h
t
h
el
p
to
re
d
u
ce
th
e
n
ee
d
fo
r
th
e
R
C
C
te
a
m
to
se
n
d
o
u
t
th
e
g
u
id
a
n
ce
p
a
ck
s
th
e
m
se
lv
es
,
a
n
d
g
iv
e
g
re
a
te
r

tr
a
n
sp
a
re
n
cy
fo
r
a
p
p
li
ca
n
ts
o
n
th
e
su
b
m
is
si
o
n
re
q
u
ir
e
m
en
ts
a
n
d
th
e
R
C
C
p
ro
ce
ss
.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

A
d
v
is
o
ry

W
e
re
co
m
m
e
n
d
th
a
t
g
u
id
a
n
ce
o
n
su
b
m
is
si
o
n
re
q
u
ir
em
en
ts
fo
r
b
o
th
st
a
g
e
1
a
n
d
2
ro
a
d
s

co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
b
e
m
a
d
e
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
o
n
th
e
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
w
e
b
si
te
fo
r
d
ev
el
o
p
er
s

o
r
co
n
su
lt
a
n
ts
.

T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
er

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

3
0
J
u
n
e
2
0
15

Page 235



1
0

3
.0

6
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

r
k

in
g

–
c

o
n

tr
o

l
d

e
s

ig
n

F
in

d
in

g

P
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
b
en
ch
m
a
rk
in
g
o
f
th
e
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
(R
C
C
)
p
ro
ce
ss
to
o
th
er
co
m
p
a
ra
b
le
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
es
is
st
il
l
in
ea
rl
y
st
a
g
es
.
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
h
a
v
e

in
d
ic
a
te
d
it
is
th
ei
r
in
te
n
ti
o
n
to
,
b
i-
a
n
n
u
a
ll
y
,
d
is
tr
ib
u
te
a
su
rv
e
y
to
d
ev
el
o
p
e
rs
a
n
d
co
n
su
lt
a
n
ts
to
g
a
u
g
e
h
o
w
th
ey
v
ie
w
th
e
R
C
C
p
ro
ce
ss
a
t
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y

C
o
u
n
ci
l
co
m
p
a
re
d
w
it
h
o
th
er
lo
ca
l
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
es
.
F
ro
m
th
e
re
sp
o
n
se
s
re
ce
iv
ed
a
n
a
n
n
u
a
l
m
ee
ti
n
g
w
il
l
th
en
b
e
h
el
d
w
it
h
a
p
ee
r
n
e
tw
o
rk
(c
o
n
si
st
in
g
o
f

re
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
v
es
fr
o
m
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
n
d
o
th
er
co
m
p
a
ra
b
le
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
es
)
to
d
is
cu
ss
th
e
fi
n
d
in
g
s
o
f
th
e
su
rv
ey
a
n
d
to
sh
a
re
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e
ex
a
m
p
le
s
in
R
C
C

p
ro
ce
ss
in
g
.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

A
d
v
is
o
ry

W
e
re
co
m
m
en
d
th
a
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
co
n
si
d
er
h
o
w
b
es
t
to
im
p
le
m
e
n
t
b
e
n
ch
m
a
rk
in
g
a
g
a
in
st

o
th
er
lo
ca
l
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
es
in
a
co
st
-e
ff
ec
ti
v
e
m
a
n
n
er
to
h
el
p
id
e
n
ti
fy
w
a
y
s
to
im
p
ro
v
e
th
e
ro
a
d
s

co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
p
ro
ce
ss
.
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
sh
o
u
ld
a
ls
o
en
g
a
g
e
w
it
h
o
th
er
lo
ca
l
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
es
to

sh
a
re
ex
a
m
p
le
s
o
f
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e.

T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
a
ti
o
n
M
a
n
a
g
er

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

3
0
J
u
n
e
2
0
15

Page 236



1
1

A
p
p
en
d
ix
1
–
B
a
si
s
o
f
o
u
r
cl
a
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l
fi

n
d

in
g

r
a

ti
n

g
s

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

r
a

ti
o

n
a

le

C
ri
ti
ca
l

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

C
r
it
ic
a
l
im
p
a
ct
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

C
r
it
ic
a
l
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

C
r
it
ic
a
l
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
th
a
t
co
u
ld
re
su
lt
in
m
a
te
ri
a
l
fi
n
es
o
r
co
n
se
q
u
en
ce
s;
o
r

C
r
it
ic
a
l
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
r
b
ra
n
d
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
w
h
ic
h
co
u
ld
th
re
a
te
n
it
s
fu
tu
re
v
ia
b
il
it
y
.

H
ig
h

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
im
p
a
ct
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
e
n
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
re
su
lt
in
g
in
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t
fi
n
es
a
n
d
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s
;
o
r

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
r
b
ra
n
d
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

M
ed
iu
m

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
im
p
a
ct
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
re
su
lt
in
g
in
fi
n
es
a
n
d
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s;
o
r

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
r
b
ra
n
d
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

L
o
w

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

M
in
o
r
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
’s
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

M
in
o
r
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

M
in
o
r
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
w
it
h
li
m
it
ed
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s;
o
r

M
in
o
r
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

A
d
v
is
o
ry

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
d
o
es
n
o
t
h
a
v
e
a
ri
sk
im
p
a
ct
b
u
t
h
a
s
b
ee
n
ra
is
e
d
to
h
ig
h
li
g
h
t
a
re
a
s
o
f
in
ef
fi
ci
e
n
ci
es
o
r
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e.

Page 237



1
2

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

s

F
in

d
in

g
s

r
a

ti
n

g
P

o
in

ts

C
ri
ti
ca
l

4
0
p
o
in
ts
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

H
ig
h

10
p
o
in
ts
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

M
ed
iu
m

3
p
o
in
ts
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

L
o
w

1
p
o
in
t
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

P
o

in
ts

L
o
w
ri
sk

6
p
o
in
ts
o
r
le
ss

M
ed
iu
m
ri
sk

7
–
15
p
o
in
ts

H
ig
h
ri
sk

16
–
3
9
p
o
in
ts

C
ri
ti
ca
l
ri
sk

4
0
p
o
in
ts
a
n
d
o
v
er

Page 238



1
3

A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
–
T
er
m
s
o
f
re
fe
re
n
ce

B
a

c
k

g
r

o
u

n
d

S
ec
ti
o
n
2
1
o
f
th
e
R
o
a
d
s
(S
co
tl
a
n
d
)
A
ct
19
8
4
re
q
u
ir
es
th
e
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
o
f
a
ll
n
ew
ro
a
d
s,
fo
o
tw
a
y
s
a
n
d
si
m
il
a
r
to
b
e
a
u
th
o
ri
se
d
b
y
th
e
lo
ca
l
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
.
S
ec
ti
o
n
5
6
o
f

th
e
A
ct
re
q
u
ir
es
th
a
t
a
n
y
w
o
rk
s
ex
ec
u
te
d
in
o
r
u
n
d
er
a
p
u
b
li
c
ro
a
d
re
q
u
ir
e
th
e
lo
ca
l
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
co
n
se
n
t
in
w
ri
ti
n
g
a
n
d
in
a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce
w
it
h
a
n
y
re
a
so
n
a
b
le
co
n
d
it
io
n
s

w
h
ic
h
th
e
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
th
in
k
fi
t
to
a
tt
a
ch
to
th
e
co
n
se
n
t.
B
o
th
p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
w
it
h
in
th
e
A
ct
a
re
re
fe
rr
ed
to
a
s
R
o
a
d
C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
C
o
n
se
n
t
(R
C
C
).
A
b
er
d
e
en
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
is

th
er
ef
o
re
re
sp
o
n
si
b
le
fo
r
en
su
ri
n
g
th
a
t
a
p
ro
ce
ss
ex
is
ts
th
ro
u
g
h
w
h
ic
h
R
C
C
ca
n
b
e
a
p
p
li
ed
fo
r
a
n
d
a
u
th
o
ri
se
d
b
y
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l.

S
c

o
p

e

W
e
w
il
l
re
v
ie
w
th
e
d
es
ig
n
a
n
d
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
e
ff
ec
ti
v
en
es
s
o
f
th
e
k
ey
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
p
la
ce
o
v
er
R
o
a
d
s
C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
C
o
n
se
n
t.
T
h
e
su
b
-p
ro
ce
ss
es
in
cl
u
d
ed
in
th
is
re
v
ie
w
a
re
:

S
u

b
-p

ro
ce

ss
C

o
n

tr
o

l
O

b
je

ct
iv

e
A
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s

G
u
id
a
n
ce
is
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
a
n
d
a
cc
es
si
b
le
fo
r
d
ev
el
o
p
er
s
o
r
th
ei
r
a
p
p
o
in
te
d
co
n
su
lt
a
n
ts
o
n
th
e
re
q
u
ir
em
e
n
ts
fo
r

a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
fo
r
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t.

A
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
re
re
v
ie
w
ed
o
n
re
ce
ip
t
a
n
d
in
co
m
p
le
te
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
re
tu
rn
ed
o
r
p
u
t
o
n
h
o
ld
w
h
il
e
a
w
a
it
in
g

fu
rt
h
er
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
.

In
te
rn
a
l
p
ro
ce
ss
es
a
re
d
es
ig
n
ed
,
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
a
n
d
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
fo
r
co
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
a
p
p
li
ca
n
ts
.

P
ro
ce
ss
in
g

In
te
rn
a
l
p
ro
ce
ss
es
ex
is
t
to
e
n
su
re
th
a
t
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
a
re
p
ro
p
er
ly
re
v
ie
w
ed
fo
r

co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
re
le
v
a
n
t
st
a
n
d
a
rd
s
a
n
d
te
ch
n
ic
a
l
re
q
u
ir
em
en
ts
.

R
es
o
u
rc
es
a
re
a
ll
o
ca
te
d
ef
fi
ci
en
tl
y
to
en
su
re
th
a
t
st
a
ff
w
it
h
sp
ec
ia
li
st
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
a
re
co
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
to
th
e
co
n
se
n
t

p
ro
ce
ss
a
t
th
e
ri
g
h
t
ti
m
e.

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
is
m
a
d
e
in
a
ti
m
el
y
m
a
n
n
er
to
d
e
v
el
o
p
er
s
o
r
th
e
ir
a
p
p
o
in
te
d
co
n
su
lt
a
n
ts
w
h
en
co
n
ce
rn
s
o
r

is
su
es
a
ri
se
re
g
a
rd
in
g
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s.

In
te
rn
a
l
p
ro
ce
ss
es
a
re
d
es
ig
n
ed
to
re
sp
o
n
d
to
p
er
io
d
s
o
f
h
ig
h
d
e
m
a
n
d
in
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t

a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s.

A
p
p
ro
v
a
l

A
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ti
m
es
ca
le
fo
r
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l
o
f
ro
a
d
s
co
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
co
n
se
n
t
a
p
p
li
ca
ti
o
n
s
h
a
s
b
ee
n
co
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
to

d
ev
el
o
p
e
rs
a
n
d
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
in
a
ch
ie
v
in
g
th
a
t
ti
m
es
ca
le
is
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
in
te
rn
a
ll
y
.

B
en
ch
m
a
rk
in
g
is
u
n
d
er
ta
k
e
n
w
it
h
co
m
p
a
ra
b
le
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
es
o
n
p
ro
ce
ss
es
a
n
d
ti
m
es
ca
le
s
fo
r
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l
o
f

co
n
se
n
ts

Page 239



1
4

L
im

it
a

ti
o

n
s

o
f

s
c

o
p

e

T
h
e
sc
o
p
e
o
f
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
is
o
u
tl
in
ed
a
b
o
v
e.
T
h
is
w
il
l
b
e
u
n
d
er
ta
k
en
o
n
a
sa
m
p
le
b
a
si
s.

In
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l,
n
o
m
a
tt
er
h
o
w
w
el
l
d
es
ig
n
ed
a
n
d
o
p
er
a
te
d
,
ca
n
p
ro
v
id
e
o
n
ly
re
a
so
n
a
b
le
a
n
d
n
o
t
a
b
so
lu
te
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
re
g
a
rd
in
g
a
ch
ie
v
e
m
en
t
o
f
a
n
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
's

o
b
je
ct
iv
es
.
T
h
e
li
k
el
ih
o
o
d
o
f
a
ch
ie
v
em
en
t
is
a
ff
ec
te
d
b
y
li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
in
h
er
e
n
t
in
a
ll
in
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l
sy
st
em
s.
T
h
es
e
in
cl
u
d
e
th
e
p
o
ss
ib
il
it
y
o
f
p
o
o
r
ju
d
g
m
en
t
in

d
ec
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
,
h
u
m
a
n
er
ro
r,
co
n
tr
o
l
p
ro
ce
ss
es
b
ei
n
g
d
el
ib
e
ra
te
ly
ci
rc
u
m
v
en
te
d
b
y
em
p
lo
y
ee
s
a
n
d
o
th
er
s,
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
o
v
e
rr
id
in
g
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
n
d
th
e
o
cc
u
rr
en
ce
o
f

u
n
fo
re
se
ea
b
le
ci
rc
u
m
st
a
n
ce
s.

A
u

d
it

A
p

p
r

o
a

c
h

O
u
r
a
u
d
it
a
p
p
ro
a
ch
is
a
s
fo
ll
o
w
s:

O
b
ta
in
a
n
u
n
d
er
st
a
n
d
in
g
o
f
th
e
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
in
p
la
ce
th
ro
u
g
h
d
is
cu
ss
io
n
w
it
h
k
ey
p
er
so
n
n
el
,
re
v
ie
w
o
f
d
o
cu
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
a
n
d
w
a
lk
th
ro
u
g
h
te
st
s
w
h
er
e

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
.

Id
en
ti
fy
th
e
k
ey
ri
sk
s
in
re
sp
ec
t
o
f
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s

E
v
a
lu
a
te
th
e
d
es
ig
n
o
f
th
e
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
p
la
ce
to
a
d
d
re
ss
th
e
k
e
y
ri
sk
s.

T
es
t
th
e
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
n
es
s
o
f
th
e
k
ey
co
n
tr
o
ls
o
n
a
sa
m
p
le
b
a
si
s.

Page 240



1
5

A
p
p
en
d
ix
3
–
L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s

L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
in
h
e
re
n
t
to
th
e
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
r’
s
w
o
rk

W
e
h
a
v
e
u
n
d
er
ta
k
en
a
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
R
o
a
d
s
C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
C
o
n
se
n
t
p
ro
ce
ss
,

su
b
je
ct
to
th
e
li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
o
u
tl
in
ed
b
el
o
w
.

In
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l

In
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l,
n
o
m
a
tt
er
h
o
w
w
el
l
d
es
ig
n
ed
a
n
d
o
p
er
a
te
d
,
ca
n
p
ro
v
id
e
o
n
ly

re
a
so
n
a
b
le
a
n
d
n
o
t
a
b
so
lu
te
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
re
g
a
rd
in
g
a
ch
ie
v
em
e
n
t
o
f
a
n

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
's
o
b
je
ct
iv
es
.
T
h
e
li
k
el
ih
o
o
d
o
f
a
ch
ie
v
em
e
n
t
is
a
ff
ec
te
d
b
y

li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
in
h
er
en
t
in
a
ll
in
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l
sy
st
em
s.
T
h
es
e
in
cl
u
d
e
th
e

p
o
ss
ib
il
it
y
o
f
p
o
o
r
ju
d
g
m
e
n
t
in
d
ec
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
,
h
u
m
a
n
er
ro
r,
co
n
tr
o
l

p
ro
ce
ss
es
b
e
in
g
d
el
ib
er
a
te
ly
ci
rc
u
m
v
e
n
te
d
b
y
em
p
lo
y
e
es
a
n
d
o
th
er
s,

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
o
v
er
ri
d
in
g
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
n
d
th
e
o
cc
u
rr
en
ce
o
f
u
n
fo
re
se
ea
b
le

ci
rc
u
m
st
a
n
ce
s.

F
u
tu
re
p
e
ri
o
d
s

O
u
r
a
ss
es
sm
en
t
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
re
la
ti
n
g
to
R
o
a
d
s
C
o
n
st
ru
ct
io
n
C
o
n
se
n
t
is
a
s
a
t
2
7

M
a
rc
h
2
0
15
.
H
is
to
ri
c
ev
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
o
f
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s
is
n
o
t
re
le
v
a
n
t
to
fu
tu
re

p
er
io
d
s
d
u
e
to
th
e
ri
sk
th
a
t:

T
h
e
d
es
ig
n
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
m
a
y
b
ec
o
m
e
in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
b
ec
a
u
se
o
f
ch
a
n
g
es
in

o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
en
v
ir
o
n
m
en
t,
la
w
,
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
o
r
o
th
er
;
o
r

T
h
e
d
eg
re
e
o
f
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
m
a
y
d
e
te
ri
o
ra
te
.

R
e
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s
o
f
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
rs

It
is
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t’
s
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y
to
d
ev
el
o
p
a
n
d
m
a
in
ta
in
so
u
n
d
sy
st
em
s
o
f

ri
sk
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t,
in
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l
a
n
d
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
fo
r
th
e
p
re
v
en
ti
o
n

a
n
d
d
et
ec
ti
o
n
o
f
ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ti
es
a
n
d
fr
a
u
d
.
In
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
w
o
rk
sh
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e

se
en
a
s
a
su
b
st
it
u
te
fo
r
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t’
s
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s
fo
r
th
e
d
es
ig
n
a
n
d

o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
o
f
th
es
e
sy
st
em
s.

W
e
en
d
ea
v
o
u
r
to
p
la
n
o
u
r
w
o
rk
so
th
a
t
w
e
h
a
v
e
a
re
a
so
n
a
b
le
ex
p
ec
ta
ti
o
n
o
f

d
et
ec
ti
n
g
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t
co
n
tr
o
l
w
ea
k
n
es
se
s
a
n
d
,
if
d
et
ec
te
d
,
w
e
sh
a
ll
ca
rr
y
o
u
t

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
w
o
rk
d
ir
ec
te
d
to
w
a
rd
s
id
en
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
o
f
co
n
se
q
u
en
t
fr
a
u
d
o
r
o
th
er

ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ti
es
.
H
o
w
e
v
er
,
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
a
lo
n
e,
e
v
en
w
h
e
n
ca
rr
ie
d

o
u
t
w
it
h
d
u
e
p
ro
fe
ss
io
n
a
l
ca
re
,
d
o
n
o
t
g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
th
a
t
fr
a
u
d
w
il
l
b
e
d
et
ec
te
d
.

A
cc
o
rd
in
g
ly
,
o
u
r
e
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
s
a
s
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
rs
sh
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
re
li
ed
u
p
o
n

so
le
ly
to
d
is
cl
o
se
fr
a
u
d
,
d
ef
a
lc
a
ti
o
n
s
o
r
o
th
er
ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ti
es
w
h
ic
h
m
a
y
ex
is
t.

Page 241



In
th
e
ev
en
t
th
a
t,
p
u
rs
u
a
n
t
to
a
re
q
u
es
t
w
h
ic
h
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
h
a
s
re
ce
iv
ed
u
n
d
er
th
e
F
re
e
d
o
m
o
f
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
A
ct
2
0
0
0
o
r
th
e
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
en
ta
l
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
R
eg
u
la
ti
o
n
s
2
0
0
4
(a
s
th
e
sa
m
e
m
a
y
b
e

a
m
en
d
ed
o
r
re
-e
n
a
ct
ed
fr
o
m
ti
m
e
to
ti
m
e)
o
r
a
n
y
su
b
o
rd
in
a
te
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
m
a
d
e
th
er
eu
n
d
er
(c
o
ll
ec
ti
v
el
y
,
th
e
“L
eg
is
la
ti
o
n
”)
,
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
is
re
q
u
ir
ed
to
d
is
cl
o
se
a
n
y
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
co
n
ta
in
ed
in
th
is

d
o
cu
m
en
t,
it
w
il
l
n
o
ti
fy
P
w
C
p
ro
m
p
tl
y
a
n
d
w
il
l
co
n
su
lt
w
it
h
P
w
C
p
ri
o
r
to
d
is
cl
o
si
n
g
su
ch
d
o
cu
m
en
t.
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
g
re
es
to
p
a
y
d
u
e
re
g
a
rd
to
a
n
y
re
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
w
h
ic
h
P
w
C
m
a
y
m
a
k
e
in

co
n
n
ec
ti
o
n
w
it
h
su
ch
d
is
cl
o
su
re
a
n
d
to
a
p
p
ly
a
n
y
re
le
v
a
n
t
ex
em
p
ti
o
n
s
w
h
ic
h
m
a
y
ex
is
t
u
n
d
er
th
e
L
eg
is
la
ti
o
n
.
If
,
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
co
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
P
w
C
,
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
d
is
cl
o
se
s
a
n
y
th
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t
o
r

a
n
y
p
a
rt
th
er
eo
f,
it
sh
a
ll
en
su
re
th
a
t
a
n
y
d
is
cl
a
im
er
w
h
ic
h
P
w
C
h
a
s
in
cl
u
d
ed
o
r
m
a
y
su
b
se
q
u
en
tl
y
w
is
h
to
in
cl
u
d
e
in
th
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
is
re
p
ro
d
u
ce
d
in
fu
ll
in
a
n
y
co
p
ie
s
d
is
cl
o
se
d
.

T
h
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t
h
a
s
b
ee
n
p
re
p
a
re
d
o
n
ly
fo
r
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
n
d
so
le
ly
fo
r
th
e
p
u
rp
o
se
a
n
d
o
n
th
e
te
rm
s
a
g
re
ed
w
it
h
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
in
o
u
r
a
g
re
em
en
t
d
a
te
d
4
O
ct
o
b
er
2
0
10
.
W
e
a
cc
ep
t
n
o

li
a
b
il
it
y
(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
fo
r
n
eg
li
g
en
ce
)
to
a
n
y
o
n
e
el
se
in
co
n
n
ec
ti
o
n
w
it
h
th
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t,
a
n
d
it
m
a
y
n
o
t
b
e
p
ro
v
id
ed
to
a
n
y
o
n
e
el
se
.

©
2
0
15
P
ri
ce
w
a
te
rh
o
u
se
C
o
o
p
er
s
L
L
P
.
A
ll
ri
g
h
ts
re
se
rv
ed
.
In
th
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t,
"P
w
C
"
re
fe
rs
to
P
ri
ce
w
a
te
rh
o
u
se
C
o
o
p
er
s
L
L
P
(a
li
m
it
ed
li
a
b
il
it
y
p
a
rt
n
er
sh
ip
in
th
e
U
n
it
ed
K
in
g
d
o
m
),
w
h
ic
h
is
a
m
em
b
er
fi
rm

o
f
P
ri
ce
w
a
te
rh
o
u
se
C
o
o
p
er
s
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
L
im
it
ed
,
ea
ch
m
em
b
er
fi
rm
o
f
w
h
ic
h
is
a
se
p
a
ra
te
le
g
a
l
en
ti
ty
.

Page 242



 

 

 

Aberdeen City
Council

ICT service review

2014/15 Audit

 

 

 

  

Aberdeen City 
Council 

ICT service review 

Audit 

Prepared for Prepared for Aberdeen City Council 

June 2015 

Agenda Item 7.1

Page 243



 

 

 

 

 
Audit Scotland is a statutory body set up in April 2000 under the Public Finance and Accountability 

(Scotland) Act 2000. We help the Auditor General for Scotland and the Accounts Commission 

check that organisations spending public money use it properly, efficiently and effectively. 

Page 244



 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 3 

 

Contents 

Summary ....................................................................................................................................... 4 

Introduction and audit approach ........................................................................................ 4 

Key findings....................................................................................................................... 4 

Risk exposure and planned management action ............................................................... 5 

Acknowledgements ........................................................................................................... 5 

Main Findings ................................................................................................................................ 6 

Introduction ....................................................................................................................... 6 

Strategy ............................................................................................................................. 6 

Organisation ...................................................................................................................... 7 

Service delivery ................................................................................................................. 7 

Asset protection ................................................................................................................ 9 

Business continuity.......................................................................................................... 11 

Appendix A .................................................................................................................................. 12 

Risk identification and action plan ................................................................................... 12 

 

Page 245



Summary 

 

 

Page 4 Aberdeen City Council 

 

Summary 
Introduction and audit approach 

1. In our 2014/15 Annual Audit Plan, we acknowledged that the ICT function was currently being 

restructured as part of the ICT Improvement Plan.  We noted that the council's external 

contract for hosting servers is due to end in around 6 months and that options for future 

delivery of many ICT services such as a shared service desk and data centre are currently 

being developed.   We therefore included a review of ICT arrangements as part of our routine 

work for the 2014/15 audit.     

2. The Head of Service for ICT, Customer Service and Performance left the council in December 

2014 and the chief executive with the Acting Director for Corporate Governance was prompt in 

taking the opportunity to review service roles in Corporate Governance and establishing 

interim arrangements.  A new post of Head of Information Technology and Transformation 

was approved and subsequently filled with effect from May 2015. 

3. The audit work took place during the interim period and was based on an established 

computer services review methodology developed by Audit Scotland.  It provides a high-level 

risk based assessment of the management of ICT services in five key areas as outlined 

below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4. Our audit was completed in consultation with ICT management and from supporting 

documentation, as appropriate.   

Key findings 

5. Overall, the council has sound controls over the delivery of its ICT services.  Governance and 

organisational arrangements underpin a service that is configured to support business needs.  

6. This year brings a number of challenges and opportunities: 

• appointment of a new Head of Information Technology and Transformation 

• re-organisation of ICT teams into new structures, intended to improve service delivery 

• changes to the arrangements for hosting the council's central computers 

Business 

continuity Asset protection 

Strategy 

 

Service delivery 
Organisation 

 

Page 246



Summary 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 5 

 

• the development of a new ICT strategy 

• ICT service support required to deliver a portfolio of change and development projects 

across the council.   

Risk exposure and planned management action 

7. This report summarises the findings from our review and identifies areas where the council 

may be exposed to significant risk.  Although this report identifies certain risk areas, it is the 

responsibility of management to decide the extent of the internal control system appropriate to 

the council.  We would stress, however, that an effective control system is an essential part of 

the efficient management of any organisation.  Also, it should be noted that risk areas 

highlighted in this report are only those that have come to our attention during our normal 

audit work in accordance with our Code of Audit Practice and therefore are not necessarily all 

of the risk areas that may exist. 

8. The action plan included as Appendix A of this report details the areas where continued risk 

exposure exists.  Officers have considered the issues and are taking the specific steps in the 

column headed 'management action'.  The Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee should ensure 

it is satisfied with the proposed management action and that there is a mechanism in place to 

monitor progress.    

Acknowledgements 

9. The contents of this report have been agreed with senior officers within the ICT service to 

confirm factual accuracy.  The assistance and co-operation we received during the course of 

our audit is gratefully acknowledged. 
 

Page 247



Main Findings 

 

 

Page 6 Aberdeen City Council 

 

Main Findings 
Introduction 

10. In 2013, the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) published a new Local 

Government ICT strategy which aims to increase access to digital services, reduce costs and 

enable public sector reform through the use of IT.  The Scottish Government has also 

developed a strategy for data hosting and data centre management for the public sector.  This 

strategy promotes different ways of working to achieve efficiencies with a focus on the use of 

cloud computing, virtualisation and co-location. 

11. Aberdeen's ICT service is responsible for advising on investment decisions as well as 

delivering stable and secure computer systems within the council.  

12. Over the last couple of years, the council's internal auditor has undertaken a number of 

reviews across the IT service which, on the whole, have produced positive findings.  We have 

considered the outcome of these audits as part of our review. 

Strategy 

13. A strategy document or service plan for ICT is commonly used to give an ICT service and its 

governing committee an agreed direction of travel and objectives for a specified period of time. 

It should also outline corporate policy and preference in relation to procurement, service 

delivery and new technology in order to inform future decision making. The most recent ICT 

strategy for Aberdeen City Council covered 2010 to 2015 and with the main objectives now 

implemented, the strategy is coming to an end.  In particular, the strategy enabled flexible 

working following the council's relocation of its headquarters to Marischal College and at other 

sites.  It also underpinned the council's growing capability to deliver services on-line.   

14. There has been significant change within public sector IT over this period and Aberdeen in 

particular has been progressing a change programme over the last couple of years.  The 

impact of these changes will need to be reflected in any new strategy.  More detail on recent 

changes in the service is reflected throughout this report.  

15. With the recent appointment of a new head of service,  it is appropriate that he has the 

opportunity to influence and communicate to the vision and plans for setting a revised strategy 

for the council.  In addition, the council has approved the development of tender exercises to 

take forward future hosting arrangements for a data centre and a model for IT service desk 

management.  These initiatives will contribute in shaping the future delivery of Aberdeen's IT 

services.  In the interim, the IT service continues to manage the following priorities: 

• existing contracts 

• a range of priority IT projects 

• contributing to the digital service projects which form part of the council's strategic 

infrastructure plan.  
  

Page 248



Main Findings 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 7 

 

16. The governing committee for ICT is the Finance, Policy and Resources Committee.  Progress 

with strategic projects is reported to the Corporate Management Team in the first instance and 

subsequently to committee.  The council has a strategic infrastructure plan (SIP) which sets 

out a number of infrastructure projects for the city and this includes several projects under the 

banner of Digital Aberdeen.  IT staff contribute to the delivery of these projects which are 

formally monitored through the SIP performance dashboard.  There are also a range of other 

capital and service related projects which require IT input that are monitored as part of the 

council's overall programme management arrangements.  The SIP was approved by the 

council in 2012 and while the programme management office (PMO) has existed for several 

years, it is only recently that all projects have come within the PMO arrangements.  We would 

suggest that the new ICT strategy also forms part of these arrangements in order that plans 

are monitored as part of the existing governance arrangements rather than becoming a 

separate process.   

Refer risk no. 1 

Organisation 

17. Until December 2014, ICT was within the remit of the Head of ICT, Customer Service and 

Performance.  With his departure in December 2014, the chief executive took the opportunity 

to review service roles in Corporate Governance.  A revised head of service role covering 

Information Technology and Transformation was approved and subsequently filled with effect 

from May 2015.  The customer service aspects which had been included in the former role 

were transferred into the renamed Human Resources, Organisational Development and 

Customer Services team. Interim arrangements were promptly put in place and reflected the 

intention to reorganise services as different managers were given interim responsibilities for 

ICT and Customer Services. 

18. Around a year ago, the chief executive in her former role as Director of Corporate Governance 

initiated a structure review of the ICT team through a series of workshops.  Job roles are now 

more closely aligned with service delivery arrangements so that responsibilities for key 

controls are clearly held by different teams and staff.  The new structure should help the 

council to strengthen change management arrangements so that less time is spent on 

reactive work, and more resources are available for transformation projects. 

Service delivery 

Installation management 

19. Significant elements of installation management are currently outsourced to the provider of the 

council's data-centre.  The council is still responsible for physical access to its premises and 

networks and for logical access to its computer systems.  

20. Physical access security to council premises was reviewed in 2013 by the Information 

Commissioner's Office and various improvements were made.  Internal audit included network 

and perimeter security in their 2014/15 plan and identified three risks which have been 

addressed. The council has a policy of requiring users of computer systems to have 

Page 249



Main Findings 

 

 

Page 8 Aberdeen City Council 

 

passwords and be individually identifiable, and although there are generic accounts, their use 

is restricted. 

21. The contract for providing data centre services reaches the end of its initial term in January 

2016 and the council began planning for the future arrangement in 2013.   

22. The national ICT strategy for Local Government and Scottish Government digital policy 

promotes shared hosting arrangements for data centres.  An efficient data centre is at the 

heart of the council's ability to deliver services and outsourcing gives access to scale and 

facilities which the council would be unable to achieve on its own. Data centres are often a 

significant contributor to carbon footprint and this can be reduced by the use of modern 

facilities and the ability to access storage on demand.  With that context, a range of options 

were considered and working closely with Aberdeenshire Council, the council agreed in April 

2015 to enter into a joint procurement arrangement for the provision of data centre services 

from a third party. Although the time-scale for moving to the new arrangements is challenging, 

the risk is reduced by the option to extend the existing contract by one year to January 2017.   

23. While the joint procurement potentially increases the council's buying power and the control it 

has over its infrastructure, it is also complex to deliver, with dependencies on third parties, 

including Aberdeenshire Council and Scottish Government agencies. 

Refer risk no. 2 

Service monitoring 

24. Significant elements of service monitoring are outsourced to the data-centre provider and 

subject to monthly reporting.  This includes the number of service desk incidents referred to 

the data-centre and the time to resolve.  Over the last year, these were well within the 

contractual service level. 

25. Operation level agreements between ICT and user services are used to define the service 

expected from ICT and how it is to be charged.  The structure gives clarity over who is 

responsible for back-ups, capacity management, security and recovery.  

26. The use of performance information is an indicator of the maturity of ICT operations, and 

provides management with a tool to keep service delivery efficient and responsive. 

Performance and operational statistics are gathered from various sources, including helpdesk 

and security management software.  Summaries are produced and reported as appropriate to 

the IT management team.     

27. Table 1 shows that the council currently has around 60 ICT projects that are monitored and 

supported by the ICT service.  Most of these are run within service groups, with input from ICT 

staff as required.   Nearly half of the projects have a high priority rating of which two thirds are 

at the implementation stage 
  

Page 250



Main Findings 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 9 

 

 

Table 1 - Analysis of priority projects   total number Number to be 

implemented 

 

Infrastructure - capital project 

(e.g. museums collection, city digital) 

11 6 

Operations - capital project 2 - 

Operations - service project 

(e.g. library management system, multi-function 

devices) 

5 4 

Operations - In a programme 9 9 

 27 19 

 

28. With an expanded team of seven specialists, including the new post of Projects Coordinator, 

the council is better placed to manage the competing demands of services and internal 

projects.  In setting the new strategy, there is scope for the service to more clearly set out its 

priorities against available resources to ensure that it has sufficient capacity to deliver agreed 

projects within the necessary timescales. 

Refer risk no. 3 

29. In our 2013/14 audit, we reviewed the council's project management arrangements for capital 

projects and highlighted that the council had recently revised its project management 

processes.  We therefore delayed any detailed coverage of specific projects until the new 

arrangements settled in.  We intend to review the application of these arrangements as part of 

our 2015/16 audit and will include a sample of IT projects at that time.       

Asset protection 

30. Information management is a significant issue for all public authorities.  There are many 

regulatory requirements, as well as a level of continuous challenge from malicious parties that 

seek to exploit the council's systems and information assets.  Information management is 

resourced separately from ICT within Corporate Governance.  We consider that the separation 

of duty helps to ensure that asset protection arrangements within ICT are independently 

evaluated and challenged. 
  

Page 251



Main Findings 

 

 

Page 10 Aberdeen City Council 

 

31. The council recently received the agreement of the Keeper of the Records of Scotland to its 

Records Management Plan. Preparation of the plan involved the update of security policies as 

well as the development of a suite of new information management policies and a clear 

structure of responsibilities. Recognising the importance of this new legislation, the council 

agreed with internal audit that two compliance audits would be undertaken as part of the 

2014/15 internal audit plan.  The first was reported to the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee 

in November 2014 and the second is due to be reported in June 2015.  The first compared the 

proposed Records Management Plan against guidance and offered some improvements prior 

to its submission to the Keeper.  The second report will monitor the policies and procedures in 

place and seek assurance that the plan is embedded across the council.   

32. The Keeper noted two areas as being under improvement, and these were the business 

classification and the retention schedule.  Both of these are dependent on the roll-out of 

records management to the council's service areas. 

Refer risk no. 4 

33. The council's arrangements for information security recognise that the human element is at 

least as important as the technical one. The supporting role of the ICT security team ensures 

that changes to the council's systems are subject to security risk assessment and mitigation 

and that the council's systems are actively monitored and protected.  The council has an 

Information Management Governance Group which meets every two months and includes 

officers from each directorate as well as subject experts from Corporate Services.  There are 

nominated Information Management Liaison Officers in each directorate. 

34. A recent security incident involving an email-borne virus was quickly dealt with. It is a long-

standing problem of IT security that it is difficult to configure technical measures to protect 

against threats that have not been seen before and the virus that was at the heart of the 

incident caused similar problems at other organisations around the same time.  Email and 

web-site borne incidents highlight the importance of effective refresher training to maintain 

levels of electronic security awareness in all staff.  

Refer risk no. 5 

35. Over the past year, the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee began to receive a regular report 

on data protection activity.  For example, this includes subject access requests, data breaches 

and near misses, training and general updates.    

36. In common with other public authorities, the council is accredited to be part of the UK  Public 

Services Network, which underpins the secure transfer of data between parts of government.  

Recent years have brought more stringent requirements and a resulting need to upgrade 

protection systems. Accreditation is due in August each year and involves both internal and 

external assessments of security. It is monitored within the IT project portfolio and re-

accreditation is expected. 

  

Page 252



Main Findings 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 11 

 

Business continuity 

37. Aberdeen City Council recognises that planning for emergencies and service interruptions is 

an integral part of good business practice.  For the ICT service, the term disaster recovery is 

used to refer to the ability to resume essential information technology services (data 

networking, key application systems and email) in the event of a significant outage. 

38. We found that the council uses business continuity planning (BCP) and disaster recovery (DR) 

planning for its information technology services.  Plans and policies have existed for a number 

of years and are updated periodically.  There is also a track record of recovery testing at the 

data centre at least once a year, and this has led to better knowledge and documentation of 

the council's ICT infrastructure.  When the current data centre arrangements end, and during 

any transitional period, there will be a need to consider carefully the disaster recovery 

implications and ensure that a regular testing regime is maintained. 

Refer risk no. 6 

 
 

Page 253



Appendix A 

 

 

Page 12 Aberdeen City Council 

 

Appendix A 
Risk identification and action plan 

Action 

point 

Refer 

para 

no 

Risk identified Planned 

management 

action 

Responsible 

officer 

Target 

date 

1 16 A new ICT service 

strategy needs to be 

developed and 

implemented.  In due 

course, delivery should 

be monitored within the 

council's PMO 

arrangements. 

Risk: until a new 

strategy is published, 

a perception could 

develop that the 

council is not taking 

a long-term approach 

to ICT services.   

Following 

appointment of new 

Head of Service, IT 

and Transformation 

Service in May, a 

broader review of all 

relevant strategies 

has commenced 

with revision over 

the next 3-6 months.  

Thereafter, actions 

arising from the 

strategy will be 

monitored through 

appropriate 

governance 

arrangements.  

Head of Service 

(IT and 

Transformation) 

 

March 2016 

2 23 The council has opted 

to enter a joint 

procurement exercise 

with Aberdeenshire 

Council for the 

provision of data centre 

services by a third 

party.  

Risk: delivery of this 

solution is likely to be 

complex, with 

dependency on third 

parties.  This may 

give rise to delay and 

the need for an 

interim data centre 

and increased costs.    

Transition of Data 

Centre Services 

from existing 

contractual 

arrangements to 

new operating 

model underway to 

meet end of 

contractual 

arrangements in 

January 2016, with 

transitional activities 

running until the new 

service has been 

operating for a full 3 

month period. 

IT and 

Technology 

Services 

Manager 

July 2016 

Page 254



Appendix A 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 13 

 

Action 

point 

Refer 

para 

no 

Risk identified Planned 

management 

action 

Responsible 

officer 

Target 

date 

3 28 There is a large 

portfolio of priority 

projects which places 

significant demands on 

the ICT projects team. 

Risk: projects could 

be delayed due to ICT 

staffing constraints 

and competing 

priorities. 

The portfolio of 

projects will be 

expanded to 

incorporate resource 

demands for wider 

IT and 

Transformation 

resources and we 

will continue to 

develop our 

systems, processes 

and procedures to 

capture and report 

on resource 

demands and 

capacity. 

Head of Service 

(IT and 

Transformation) 

 

March 2016 

4 32 Two areas of the 

council's Records 

Management Plan are 

under improvement; 

business classification 

and the retention 

schedule. Both of these 

depend on local 

adoption by the 

council's service areas.  

Risk: as with any 

change process, it 

may take time to 

become embedded. 

This theme will be 

addressed through 

the "Information and 

Records Lifecycle" 

domain of our 

Information 

Management 

Strategy.    A pilot is 

underway with 

Education and 

Children's Services, 

from which lessons 

learned will be used 

to develop a plan for 

other areas across 

the council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Records 

Manager 

For initial 

pilot work: 

March 

2016. 

Resources 

and 

timescales 

for full roll-

out will be 

calculated 

on 

completion 

of pilot.  

Page 255



Appendix A 

 

 

Page 14 Aberdeen City Council 

 

Action 

point 

Refer 

para 

no 

Risk identified Planned 

management 

action 

Responsible 

officer 

Target 

date 

5 34 Email and internet 

borne security  

incidents highlight the 

importance of effective 

refresher training to 

maintain levels of 

electronic security 

awareness in all staff. 

Risk: as people grow 

increasingly trustful 

of the performance 

and convenience of 

new technology, they 

may become less 

cautious in using 

their electronic 

equipment. 

This theme will be 

addressed through 

the "Culture, 

Training & 

Communications"  

domain of our 

Information 

Management 

Strategy, which will 

develop and roll out 

appropriate 

information security 

refresher training as 

part of a wider 

information 

management  

culture, training and 

communications 

programme 

Records 

Manager 

March 2016 

6 38 When the current data 

centre arrangements 

end, and during any 

transitional period, 

there will be a need to 

consider carefully the 

disaster recovery 

implications and 

ensure that a regular 

testing regime is 

maintained.  

Risk: during the 

transitional period 

between data-

centres, there may be 

a loss of knowledge 

about configuration 

and recovery.  

Disaster Recovery is 

being considered 

within transition 

activities, both to 

minimise disruption 

during transition 

activities and to 

ensure that end 

solution is robust 

and tested at regular 

intervals after 

transition.  

IT Technology 

Services 

Manager 

July  2016 

 

Page 256



1 
 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Audit, Risk & Scrutiny 
 
DATE  25th June 2015 
 
DIRECTOR  Angela Scott  
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Outstanding Internal Audit Recommendations 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To update Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee Members on the 
progress on implementing Internal Audit recommendations included 
within reports previously approved by the Committee. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 
Members are asked to consider this report and request actions or 
explanations as appropriate. 
 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no financial implications other than those associated with the 
implementation of the recommendations which will be undertaken and 
financed by the Services. 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
This report does not have any direct links with the following: legal, 
resource, personnel, property, equipment, sustainability and 
environmental, health and safety and/or policy implications and other 
risks. 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
See Appendix A for summary of overdue internal audit 
recommendations and explanations for progress and revised timescale 
for implementation. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 257



2 
 

 
 
6. IMPACT 

 
 Corporate – Internal Audit supports the Local Outcome, set in both the 

Single Outcome Agreement and the Interim Business Plan, that “Our 
public services are high quality, continually improving, efficient and 
responsive to local people’s needs.” 

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

There are no identified material risks which would result from the 
approval of the recommendations in this report.  The actions and 
recommendations contained in the report are a response to identified 
risks and are designed to mitigate these. 
  

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 None 

  
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Martin Murchie 
mmurchie@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
(01224) 522008 

 

Page 258



3 
 

Summary Findings - recommendations from Internal Audit 
 
The table below summarises the internal audit reports where 
recommendations were due for implementation prior to 15th June 2015. 
 
The total due at 15th June 2015 includes those recommendations that were 
open as of our last report at 28th February 2015 and those due to be 
implemented in the period between the 28th February 2015 and 15th June 
2015. 
 
The ‘open’ recommendations are all those recommendations with an original 
target implementation date prior to 15th June 2015. This includes those 
recommendations where a revised target date for implementation has been 
communicated to Committee. Please refer to Appendix A for a detailed listing 
of all open recommendations. 
 

 Date 
Issued 

Total Due Closed Open 

AIYF Feb 15 4 4 0 

ICT Governance May 14 1 0 1 

Community Centres* Apr 14 2 2 0 

Complaints Handling Sept 14 1 0 1 

Compliance With Laws & Regs Nov 14 1 0 1 

Fraud Governance Nov 14 1 1 0 

ICT Disaster Recovery Feb 15 2 1 1 

ICT Asset Management Feb 15 6 6 0 

Care First Budget Control Feb 15 4 2 2 

Total 22 16 6 

Percentage   73% 27% 

 
*In relation to the conduct of PVG checks, the Committee is invited to consider whether the 
position reported below satisfies the recommendation.   

Page 259



4 
 

Recommended for Removal 
 

Report 
Title 

Date 
Issued 

Finding Title Recommendation Update Responsible 
Officer 

Original 
Due Date  

Revised date Risk 
Rating 

Community 
Centres 

  Protecting 
Vulnerable 
Groups (PVG) - 
control operating 
weakness 

The Council should make a choice as 
to whether they take on responsibility 
for carrying out PVG checks and 
appropriate resource should be 
allocated to do this. Alternatively, if the 
Council decides to allow management 
committees to process PVG checks 
through an external organisation, 
appropriate governance arrangements 
should be put in place to give the 
Council assurance that all necessary 
PVG checks have been carried out. 
The agreed upon process should be 
clarified and clearly communicated to 
all management committees of leased 
community centres. 

The Council is not 
carrying out all PVG 
checks and could not 
insist on doing so 
without changing 
contracts. 

 

The Council does 
require Community 
Centres to describe 
and evidence the 
process they 
undertake for 
undertaking PVGs. 
 
This position will be 
revisited when SLAs 
are reviewed in future. 

Head of 
Human 

Resources 
and 

Organisational 
Development, 

Legal 
Manager, and 

Service 
Manager 
Sport & 

Communities 

31-Mar-
15 

The committee is 
invited to 

consider whether 
this reported 

position satisfies 
the 

recommendation.  

High 

P
a
g

e
 2

6
0



5 
 

Outstanding Internal Audit Recommendations          Appendix A 
 

Report 
Title 

Date 
Issued 

Finding Title Recommendation Update Responsible 
Officer 

Original 
Due Date  

Revised date Risk 
Rating 

CareFirst Feb-15 Monitoring and 
forecasting - 
operating 
effectiveness 

Management will ensure that going 
forward the commitment reports are 
being appropriately distributed to 
the relevant budget holders on a 
monthly basis. 

Steps will be put in 
place to ensure that 
this happens  

Paul Dixon 
(Finance 
Partner) 

31/05/2015  Medium 

CareFirst Feb-15 Authorisation 
rights 

1. Authorisation rights across the 
department should be reviewed and 
assessed for appropriateness. A 
central register should be 
maintained to ensure there is on-
going clarity over authorisation 
rights. 

Authorisation rights 
are currently under 
review.  Final 
decisions are pending 
developments in the 
integration of Health & 
Social Care. 

Trevor 
Gillespie 
(Team 

Manager – 
Performance 
Management) 

Service 
Managers 

31-Mar-15  Low 

ICT 
Governance 

May-15 Develop a 
comprehensive 
ICT strategy - 
control design 
deficiency 

The strategy will include the 
commitment to implementing an 
Enterprise Architecture governance 
framework and have the support of 
the corporate management team. 
Including this commitment in the 
ICT strategy would reduce this risk 
to a low rating. 

Following the 
appointment of new 
Head of Service, IT 
and Transformation 
Service in May, a 
broader review of all 
relevant strategies has 
commenced with 
revision over the next 
3-6 months. Revised 
date of March 2016 to 
allow time for all 
relevant stage 
approvals. 

Head of 
Customer 

Service and 
Performance 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 Medium 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

6
1



6 
 

ICT 
Disaster 
Recovery 

Feb-15 Getronics DR 
responsibilities 
need to be more 
actively 
controlled 

Telephony DR processes will be 
updated and tested, with the support 
of Getronics, as per their contractual 
arrangements 

Contractual 
arrangements for DR 
ended March 2015 
and tender for new 
arrangements is due 
to end July 2015.   
This will be done with 
the winning supplier. 

Sandra 
Massey, IT 
Manager 

31-May-15 31-Dec-15 Low 

Complaints 
Handling 

Sep-14 Lessons learned 
- control 
effectiveness 

Officers responsible for investigating 
and responding to complaints should 
be provided with access to Covalent. 
Procedures should be updated to 
emphasise the importance of lessons 
learned and confirm that officers 
responsible for investigating and 
responding to complaints are 
required to complete this field. 
Training should reinforce these 
points. 
Exception reports highlighting all 
upheld or partially upheld complaints 
without lessons learned should be 
produced and sent to Heads of 
Service on a monthly basis. Heads of 
Service should be assigned 
responsibility for chasing the 
completion of this field where 
appropriate 

This recommendation 
has been implemented 
with the exception of 
the inclusion of 
"Lessons Learned" 
exception reports for 
Heads of Service, for 
which a procedure has 
now been identified.  
This will be fully 
implemented in July 
2015.   

Lucy 
McKenzie 

Project 
Executive 

31-Dec-14 31-Jul-15 Medium 

 

P
a
g

e
 2

6
2



7 
 

Compliance 
with Laws 

and 
Regulations 

Nov-14 Training for staff 
– Control design 
deficiency 

· Legal Services will, in conjunction 
with Human Resources (HR) and the 
Services, perform a risk assessment 
to identify those laws and regulations 
for which breaches would have a 
significant impact on the Council.  
· HR, in conjunction with Legal 
Services and the Services, will 
compile a list of all training which 
addresses the laws and regulations 
identified in the risk assessment. 
Where gaps in available training 
materials exist, additional training will 
be developed.  
· HR, in conjunction with Legal 
Services and the Services, will 
assess the level of training required 
for each role. This exercise is already 
underway by HR but will now include 
any additional training identified in the 
risk assessment.  
· The output of the risk assessment 
and newly created training material 
will be used by the Services to update 
job profiles, ensuring staff have an 
understanding of the mandatory 
training required.                                                  
· Completion of mandatory training for 
staff will be monitored and an 
appropriate process implemented for 
escalating issues with non-
completion. Consideration should be 
given to including an annual sign off 
on the Your HR system which would 
be approved by line management 
during the performances 
management process.  

This is a substantial 
area of work.  The task 
is currently being 
scoped and 
consideration of a 
revised timescale is 
dependent upon this. 

a) Head of 
Legal 
Service                    
b) Jeff 
Capstick, HR 
Manager                                 
c) Members 
of Corporate 
Management 
Team   

31-Mar-
15 

tbc Medium 

P
a
g
e
 2

6
3



8 
 

 

P
a
g

e
 2

6
4



A
b
e
r
d
e
e
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

F
le
et
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
G
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce

In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
R
ep
o
rt

2
0
14
/2
0
15
fo
r
A
b
e
rd
ee
n

C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l

J
u

n
e

2
0

1
5

Agenda Item 8.2

Page 265



T
h
is
re
p
o
rt
h
a
s
b
ee
n
p
re
p
a
re
d
so
le
ly
fo
r
A
b
er
d
e
en
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
in
a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce
w
it
h
th
e
te
rm
s
a
n
d
co
n
d
it
io
n
s
se
t
o
u
t
in
o
u
r
e
n
g
a
g
em
en
t
le
tt
er
4
O
ct
o
b
er
2
0
10
.
W
e
d
o
n
o
t
a
cc
ep
t
o
r

a
ss
u
m
e
a
n
y
li
a
b
il
it
y
o
r
d
u
ty
o
f
ca
re
fo
r
a
n
y
o
th
er
p
u
rp
o
se
o
r
to
a
n
y
o
th
er
p
a
rt
y
.
T
h
is
re
p
o
rt
sh
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
d
is
cl
o
se
d
to
a
n
y
th
ir
d
p
a
rt
y
,
q
u
o
te
d
o
r
re
fe
rr
ed
to
w
it
h
o
u
t
o
u
r
p
ri
o
r

w
ri
tt
en
co
n
se
n
t.

In
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
w
o
rk
w
il
l
b
e
p
er
fo
rm
ed
in
a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce
w
it
h
P
u
b
li
c
S
ec
to
r
In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s.
A
s
a
re
su
lt
,
o
u
r
w
o
rk
a
n
d
d
el
iv
er
a
b
le
s
a
re
n
o
t
d
e
si
g
n
ed
o
r
in
te
n
d
ed
to
co
m
p
ly
w
it
h

th
e
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
A
u
d
it
in
g
a
n
d
A
ss
u
ra
n
ce
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
B
o
a
rd
(I
A
A
S
B
),
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
F
ra
m
ew
o
rk
fo
r
A
ss
u
ra
n
ce
E
n
g
a
g
em
en
ts
(I
F
A
E
)
a
n
d
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
o
n
A
ss
u
ra
n
ce

E
n
g
a
g
em
en
ts
(I
S
A
E
)
3
0
0
0
.

In
te

r
n

a
l

A
u

d
it

r
e

p
o

r
t

fo
r
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l

P
w
C

C
o
n
te
n
ts

C
o
n
te
n
ts

S
e

c
ti

o
n

P
a

g
e

1.
E
x
e
cu
ti
v
e
S
u
m
m
a
ry

1

2
.
B
a
ck
g
ro
u
n
d
a
n
d
sc
o
p
e

3

3
.
D
et
a
il
ed
fi
n
d
in
g
s
a
n
d
re
co
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
s

5

A
p
p
en
d
ix
1
–
B
a
si
s
o
f
o
u
r
cl
a
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

8

A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
–
A
g
re
e
d
T
er
m
s
o
f
re
fe
re
n
ce

10

A
p
p
en
d
ix
3
–
L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s

12

Page 266



1

1.
E
x
ec
u
ti
v
e
S
u
m
m
a
ry

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

M
ed
iu
m
ri
sk

T
o

ta
l

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

fi
n

d
in

g
s

S
ec
ti
o
n
3

B
a

c
k

g
r

o
u

n
d

a
n

d
s

u
m

m
a

r
y

o
f

fi
n

d
in

g
s

1.
0
1

F
o
ll
o
w
in
g
th
e
o
u
tc
o
m
e
o
f
a
T
ra
ff
ic
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
er
p
u
b
li
c
in
q
u
ir
y
in
S
ep
te
m
b
e
r
2
0
14
,
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
a
t
A
b
er
d
e
en
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
(‘
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
)
h
a
v
e
a
ct
ed
to

im
p
le
m
e
n
t
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t
ch
a
n
g
e
in
fl
e
et
se
rv
ic
es
to
a
d
d
re
ss
th
e
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
l
fa
il
u
re
s
id
en
ti
fi
ed
in
th
e
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
e
r’
s
re
p
o
rt
.
A
s
a
re
su
lt
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t

re
q
u
es
te
d
th
a
t
w
e
co
n
d
u
ct
a
n
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
es
e
p
ro
p
o
se
d
ch
a
n
g
es
to
ev
a
lu
a
te
th
e
d
es
ig
n
a
n
d
a
d
eq
u
a
cy
o
f
th
e
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
l
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
en
ts

b
ei
n
g
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
.

1.
0
2

It
is
o
u
r
v
ie
w
th
a
t
th
e
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
ce
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
l
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
en
ts
b
ei
n
g
im
p
le
m
en
te
d
su
b
st
a
n
ti
v
el
y
a
d
d
re
ss
th
e
co
n
tr
o
l
o
b
je
ct
iv
es
se
t
b
y
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t.
O
u
r
in
te
rv
ie
w
s

w
it
h
k
ey
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
a
n
d
th
o
se
ch
a
rg
ed
w
it
h
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
o
f
fl
e
et
se
rv
ic
es
ev
id
en
ce
d
th
a
t
p
re
v
io
u
s
fa
il
in
g
s
in
co
n
tr
o
ls
,
a
n
d
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s,
h
a
d
b
ee
n

id
en
ti
fi
ed
a
n
d
th
a
t
a
ct
io
n
s
w
er
e
b
ei
n
g
ta
k
en
.
H
o
w
e
v
er
,
w
e
h
a
v
e
id
en
ti
fi
ed
tw
o
a
re
a
s
w
h
er
e
w
e
b
el
ie
v
e
fu
rt
h
er
a
ct
io
n
is
re
q
u
ir
ed
a
n
d
w
h
er
e
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
sh
o
u
ld

co
n
si
d
er
th
e
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
l
a
rr
a
n
g
em
en
ts
in
p
la
ce
.

1.
0
3

O
u
r
p
ri
m
a
ry
fi
n
d
in
g
is
co
n
si
d
er
ed
to
b
e
h
ig
h
ri
sk
a
n
d
co
n
ce
rn
s
h
o
w
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
m
a
n
a
g
es
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
ls
it
s
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
so
ft
w
a
re
,
T
ra
n
m
a
n
.
In
a
re
p
o
rt
to
th
e

A
u
d
it
,
R
is
k
a
n
d
S
cr
u
ti
n
y
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
o
n
11
M
a
y
2
0
15
w
e
re
p
o
rt
ed
th
e
re
su
lt
s
o
f
o
u
r
fl
ee
t
a
ss
et
v
er
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
ex
er
ci
se
,
in
th
is
w
e
id
e
n
ti
fi
ed
a
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t
n
u
m
b
er
o
f

a
ss
et
s
th
a
t
w
er
e
re
co
rd
ed
o
n
T
ra
n
m
a
n
b
u
t
w
h
ic
h
co
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
p
h
y
si
ca
ll
y
v
er
if
ie
d
.
T
h
e
ro
o
t
ca
u
se
o
f
th
is
is
su
e
is
a
la
ck
o
f
p
ro
p
er
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
ro
u
n
d

h
o
w
T
ra
n
m
a
n
is
u
p
d
a
te
d
a
n
d
m
a
in
ta
in
ed
.
T
h
e
re
su
lt
is
th
a
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
d
o
n
o
t
h
a
v
e
a
co
m
p
le
te
a
n
d
a
cc
u
ra
te
p
ic
tu
re
o
f
a
ll
th
e
fl
e
et
a
ss
et
s,
a
n
d
th
e
ir
cu
rr
en
t

co
n
d
it
io
n
,
h
el
d
b
y
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l.

1.
0
4

W
e
h
a
v
e
a
ls
o
id
en
ti
fi
ed
th
a
t
E
le
ct
ed
M
em
b
er
s
d
o
n
o
t
h
a
v
e
cl
ea
r
o
v
er
si
g
h
t
o
v
er
fl
ee
t
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
,
a
s
a
t
p
re
se
n
t
fl
ee
t
se
rv
ic
es
a
n
d
se
rv
ic
e
s
w
h
ic
h
u
se
fl
ee
t
a
ss
et
s
d
o

n
o
t
re
p
o
rt
to
a
n
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
o
n
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
.
T
h
is
re
p
re
se
n
ts
a
g
a
p
in
th
e
cu
rr
en
t
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
p
ro
ce
ss
a
n
d
co
n
si
d
er
a
ti
o
n
sh
o
u
ld
b
e
g
iv
e
n
to
en
su
ri
n
g
fl
ee
t

co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
is
re
p
o
rt
ed
to
a
n
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
co
m
m
it
te
e
.

C
r

it
ic

a
l

H
ig

h
M

e
d

iu
m

L
o

w
A

d
v

is
o

r
y

C
o
n
tr
o
l
d
es
ig
n

-
1

1
-

-

O
p
er
a
ti
n
g
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s

-
-

-
-

-

T
o
ta
l

-
1

1
-

-

Page 267



2

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

c
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
o
ll
o
w
in
g
th
e
P
W
C
re
p
o
rt
a
b
o
u
t
th
e
fl
e
et
a
ss
et
v
er
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
ex
er
ci
se
,
to
th
e
A
u
d
it
,
R
is
k
a
n
d
S
cr
u
ti
n
y
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
o
n
11
M
a
y
2
0
15
,
a
re
co
n
ci
li
a
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
a
ss
et
s
th
a
t

w
er
e
n
o
t
p
h
y
si
ca
ll
y
v
er
if
ie
d
b
y
P
W
C
is
cu
rr
en
tl
y
b
e
in
g
ca
rr
ie
d
o
u
t.
T
h
e
is
su
e
o
f
la
ck
o
f
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
ro
u
n
d
h
o
w
T
ra
n
m
a
n
is
u
p
d
a
te
d
a
n
d
m
a
in
ta
in
ed

is
to
b
e
a
d
d
re
ss
ed
th
ro
u
g
h
a
p
ro
ce
ss
w
h
ic
h
co
n
si
d
e
rs
h
o
w
th
e
co
u
n
ci
l
p
ro
cu
re
s
n
e
w
v
e
h
ic
le
,
p
la
n
t
a
n
d
eq
u
ip
m
en
t
a
ss
et
s
th
a
t
a
re
m
a
in
ta
in
ed
b
y
F
le
et
se
rv
ic
es
b
u
t

a
re
m
a
n
a
g
ed
b
y
o
th
er
co
u
n
ci
l
se
rv
ic
es
.
T
h
is
p
ro
ce
ss
w
il
l
b
e
in
cl
u
d
ed
in
th
e
IS
O
9
0
0
1:
2
0
0
8
d
o
cu
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
a
n
d
w
il
l
fo
rm
a
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
F
le
et
S
er
v
ic
es
q
u
a
li
ty

a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l
p
ra
ct
ic
es
.
T
h
es
e
p
ro
ce
ss
es
w
il
l
fo
rm
th
e
fu
tu
re
“g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e”
fo
r
th
e
co
u
n
ci
l
a
n
d
w
il
l
b
e
a
u
d
it
a
b
le
.

It
is
in
te
n
d
ed
E
le
ct
ed
M
em
b
er
s
w
il
l
h
a
v
e
cl
ea
r
o
v
er
si
g
h
t
o
v
e
r
co
rp
o
ra
te
fl
ee
t
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
o
f
F
le
et
a
n
d
a
ll
a
ss
o
ci
a
te
d
se
rv
ic
es
th
ro
u
g
h
a
re
p
o
rt
in
g
m
ec
h
a
n
is
m
a
n
d
a

su
it
e
o
f
P
I’
s.
T
h
e
P
I’
s
a
re
b
e
in
g
d
e
v
el
o
p
ed
a
n
d
it
is
in
te
n
d
ed
to
re
p
o
rt
to
ea
ch
H
ea
lt
h
a
n
d
S
a
fe
ty
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
th
e
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
o
f
th
e
fl
ee
t
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t

in
th
e
co
u
n
ci
l.
It
is
in
te
n
d
e
d
th
a
t
re
p
o
rt
s
d
et
a
il
in
g
th
e
d
a
y
to
d
a
y
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
a
ss
o
ci
a
te
d
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
re
q
u
ir
em
en
ts
o
f
th
e
F
le
et
S
er
v
ic
e
w
il
l
b
e
re
p
o
rt
ed
to
th
e

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
se
rv
ic
e
co
m
m
it
te
e;
w
h
ic
h
is
cu
rr
en
tl
y
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s,
H
o
u
si
n
g
a
n
d
In
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
.

Page 268



3

2
.
B
a
ck
g
ro
u
n
d
a
n
d
sc
o
p
e

B
a

c
k

g
r

o
u

n
d

2
.0
1

In
re
sp
o
n
se
to
a
T
ra
ff
ic
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
er
(‘
th
e
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
er
’)
p
u
b
li
c
in
q
u
ir
y
in
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
2
0
14
,
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
a
t
A
b
er
d
e
en
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
(‘
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
)
h
a
v
e
so
u
g
h
t

to
a
d
d
re
ss
th
e
co
n
ce
rn
s
ra
is
ed
a
ro
u
n
d
cu
rr
en
t
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
ls
o
v
er
fl
ee
t
se
rv
ic
es
.
W
e
h
a
v
e
co
n
d
u
ct
ed
a
re
v
ie
w
in
to
th
e
ef
fo
rt
s
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
to
re
ct
if
y
th
e

fa
il
in
g
s
w
it
h
in
th
e
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
rr
a
n
g
em
en
ts
,
a
n
d
h
a
v
e
en
d
ea
v
o
u
re
d
to
p
ro
v
id
e
fu
rt
h
er
re
co
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
s
o
n
w
h
er
e
im
p
ro
v
em
e
n
ts
sh
o
u
ld
b
e
m
a
d
e
.

2
.0
2

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
h
a
v
e
en
g
a
g
e
d
w
it
h
tw
o
ex
-V
O
S
A
co
n
su
lt
a
n
ts
to
h
el
p
o
v
er
h
a
u
l
th
e
fl
e
et
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
ce
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l.
T
h
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g

su
m
m
a
ri
se
s
th
e
k
ey
a
ct
io
n
s
b
ei
n
g
ta
k
en
to
a
d
d
re
ss
th
e
co
n
ce
rn
s
ra
is
ed
in
th
e
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
er
’s
re
p
o
rt
:

A
cl
ea
r
u
n
d
er
st
a
n
d
in
g
o
f
th
e
im
p
o
rt
a
n
ce
o
f
a
cl
ea
n
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
p
ro
ce
ss
h
a
s
b
ee
n
co
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t,
fr
o
m
m
ec
h
a
n
ic
s
a
n
d
d
ri
v
er
s,
to
li
n
e

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
a
n
d
fo
re
m
en
.
H
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
s
a
re
b
ei
n
g
d
e
v
el
o
p
e
d
fo
r
ea
ch
li
n
e
o
f
se
rv
ic
e
fo
r
em
p
lo
y
e
e
re
fe
re
n
ce
;

K
P
Is
su
ch
a
s
te
st
h
is
to
ry
,
p
ro
h
ib
it
io
n
h
is
to
ry
,
M
O
T
fa
il
u
re
s
a
n
d
o
v
er
d
u
e
se
rv
ic
e
s
w
il
l
b
e
im
p
le
m
en
te
d
.
T
ra
n
m
a
n
h
a
s
th
es
e
re
p
o
rt
in
g
re
q
u
ir
em
en
ts
a
n
d

w
il
l
b
e
u
ti
li
se
d
(n
o
te
th
a
t
th
e
co
n
tr
o
ls
o
v
er
T
ra
n
m
a
n
n
e
ed
to
b
e
m
a
d
e
m
o
re
ro
b
u
st
–
S
ec
ti
o
n
3
p
ro
v
id
es
m
o
re
d
et
a
il
);

T
ra
in
in
g
fo
r
T
ra
n
m
a
n
is
b
ei
n
g
ro
ll
ed
o
u
t
to
en
su
re
th
a
t
C
o
u
n
ci
l
st
a
ff
a
re
a
w
a
re
o
f
w
h
a
t
th
ey
n
ee
d
to
en
te
r
in
to
th
e
sy
st
e
m
a
n
d
w
h
a
t
ta
sk
s
th
e
o
ff
ic
e
te
a
m
a
t

M
a
ri
sc
h
a
l
C
o
ll
eg
e
w
il
l
n
o
w
p
er
fo
rm
;

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
ti
m
es
fo
r
ea
ch
se
rv
ic
e
w
il
l
b
e
a
g
re
ed
fo
r
st
a
n
d
a
rd
jo
b
s
su
ch
a
s
M
O
T
s,
a
n
d
th
es
e
w
il
l
b
e
b
u
il
t
in
to
K
P
I
re
p
o
rt
in
g
;

R
is
k
a
ss
es
sm
en
ts
w
il
l
b
e
ca
rr
ie
d
o
u
t
re
g
u
la
rl
y
w
h
il
st
th
e
im
p
ro
v
e
m
en
ts
to
th
e
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
p
ro
ce
ss
a
re
b
ei
n
g
im
p
le
m
en
te
d
.
T
h
es
e
w
il
l
b
e
u
p
d
a
te
d

a
n
n
u
a
ll
y
o
n
ce
co
n
ce
rn
s
o
v
e
r
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
a
re
co
n
si
d
er
ed
to
h
a
v
e
b
ee
n
su
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
re
d
u
ce
d
;

A
n
ex
p
er
ie
n
ce
d
ex
te
rn
a
l
p
a
rt
y
h
a
s
b
ee
n
co
n
d
u
ct
in
g
v
eh
ic
le
a
n
d
d
ri
v
er
a
u
d
it
s,
su
ch
a
s
g
a
te
ch
ec
k
s,
e
.g
.
a
ss
es
si
n
g
th
e
d
ri
v
er
’s
co
m
p
et
e
n
ce
a
t
th
ei
r
d
a
il
y

v
eh
ic
le
in
sp
ec
ti
o
n
;

H
ea
lt
h
a
n
d
S
a
fe
ty
w
il
l
ta
k
e
p
ro
m
in
en
ce
o
v
er
cu
st
o
m
er
se
rv
ic
e;

A
tr
a
in
in
g
m
a
tr
ix
ex
is
ts
a
n
d
w
il
l
b
e
u
p
d
a
te
d
re
g
u
la
rl
y
to
en
su
re
d
ri
v
er
s
a
re
fu
ll
y
a
w
a
re
o
f
th
ei
r
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y
re
g
a
rd
in
g
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
to
ry

re
q
u
ir
em
en
ts
,
a
n
d
to
id
en
ti
fy
tr
a
in
in
g
n
ee
d
s;

A
p
p
re
n
ti
ce
s
w
il
l
g
o
o
n
sh
if
ts
to
p
ro
v
id
e
th
em
w
it
h
m
o
re
ex
p
er
ie
n
ce
a
n
d
cl
o
se
r
w
o
rk
in
g
w
it
h
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t,
so
th
a
t
th
ey
a
re
a
w
a
re
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
p
o
li
ci
e
s

a
n
d
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
st
ru
ct
u
re
;

R
ec
ru
it
m
en
t
o
f
a
g
en
cy
fo
re
m
en
a
n
d
m
ec
h
a
n
ic
s
is
b
e
in
g
co
n
si
d
er
ed
to
a
ll
o
w
fo
r
u
n
b
ia
se
d
re
p
o
rt
in
g
o
f
fl
ee
t
fa
il
u
re
s;

B
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
s
a
n
d
d
e
fe
ct
s
ca
ll
s
w
il
l
g
o
d
ir
ec
tl
y
to
th
e
w
o
rk
sh
o
p
so
th
a
t
th
e
v
e
h
ic
le
co
n
d
it
io
n
ca
n
b
e
im
m
ed
ia
te
ly
a
ss
es
se
d
b
y
a
tr
a
in
ed
m
ec
h
a
n
ic
;

T
ra
n
m
a
n
w
il
l
b
e
ch
ec
k
ed
re
g
u
la
rl
y
o
n
a
10
%
sa
m
p
le
b
a
si
s,
a
n
d
v
eh
ic
le
s
a
ls
o
sa
m
p
le
d
o
n
a
10
%
b
a
si
s
to
en
su
re
u
p
to
d
a
te
in
sp
ec
ti
o
n
re
co
rd
s
ex
is
t;

D
ri
v
er
s’
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
w
il
l
b
e
sp
o
t
ch
ec
k
ed
o
n
a
ra
n
d
o
m
b
a
si
s,
to
en
su
re
o
v
er
a
ll
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
,
a
n
d
n
o
t
ju
st
v
eh
ic
le
s;
a
n
d

A
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
o
ff
ic
er
fo
r
fl
e
et
w
il
l
b
e
n
o
m
in
a
te
d
in
e
v
er
y
li
n
e
o
f
se
rv
ic
e.

Page 269



4

2
.0
3

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
co
n
si
d
er
th
a
t
b
y
im
p
le
m
en
ti
n
g
th
es
e
a
ct
io
n
s
th
ey
w
il
l
en
su
re
a
so
u
n
d
sy
st
em
o
f
p
ro
ce
ss
es
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
ls
th
a
t
a
d
d
re
ss
th
e
co
n
ce
rn
s
ra
is
ed
in
th
e

C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
er
’s
re
p
o
rt
.
O
u
r
re
v
ie
w
,
a
n
d
th
e
co
n
cl
u
si
o
n
s
w
e
h
a
v
e
re
a
ch
ed
in
th
is
re
p
o
rt
,
a
re
b
a
se
d
o
n
th
e
a
ss
u
m
p
ti
o
n
th
a
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
w
il
l
im
p
le
m
e
n
t
th
e
a
b
o
v
e

a
ct
io
n
s
to
im
p
ro
v
e
th
e
cu
rr
en
t
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
ce
co
n
tr
o
l
a
rr
a
n
g
em
en
ts
in
fl
ee
t
se
rv
ic
es
.

S
c

o
p

e
a

n
d

li
m

it
a

ti
o

n
s

o
f

s
c

o
p

e

2
.0
4

T
h
e
d
et
a
il
ed
sc
o
p
e
o
f
th
is
re
v
ie
w
is
se
t
o
u
t
in
th
e
a
g
re
e
d
te
rm
s
o
f
re
fe
re
n
ce
in
A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
.

Page 270



5

3
.
D
et
a
il
ed
fi
n
d
in
g
s
a
n
d
re
co
m
m
en
d
a
ti
o
n
s

3
.0

1
G

o
v

e
r

n
a

n
c

e
o

f
T

r
a

n
m

a
n

–
c

o
n

tr
o

l
d

e
s

ig
n

e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
n

e
s

s

F
in

d
in

g

T
ra
n
m
a
n
is
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
so
ft
w
a
re
,
u
se
d
to
m
a
n
a
g
e
a
n
d
tr
a
ck
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
fl
e
et
a
ss
et
s.
T
o
en
su
re
p
ro
p
er
o
v
er
si
g
h
t
o
f
fl
ee
t
a
ss
et
s,
it
is

cr
it
ic
a
l
th
a
t
T
ra
n
m
a
n
is
co
m
p
le
te
a
n
d
a
cc
u
ra
te
to
en
su
re
th
a
t
a
ll
it
em
s
o
f
fl
ee
t
a
re
a
cc
o
u
n
te
d
fo
r
a
n
d
th
a
t
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
ca
n
d
is
ch
a
rg
e
it
s
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y
to

en
su
re
a
ss
et
s
a
re
b
ei
n
g
m
a
in
ta
in
ed
to
a
sa
fe
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
st
a
n
d
a
rd
.

In
o
u
r
re
p
o
rt
o
n
‘F
le
et
A
ss
et
V
er
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
’
to
th
e
A
u
d
it
,
R
is
k
a
n
d
S
cr
u
ti
n
y
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
o
n
11
M
a
y
2
0
15
w
e
h
ig
h
li
g
h
te
d
2
2
9
a
ss
et
s
th
a
t
w
er
e
re
co
rd
ed
o
n

T
ra
n
m
a
n
b
u
t
w
h
ic
h
w
e
co
u
ld
n
o
t
p
h
y
si
ca
ll
y
v
er
if
y
.
O
u
r
in
q
u
ir
ie
s
w
it
h
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
h
a
v
e
id
en
ti
fi
ed
th
a
t
th
e
ro
o
t
ca
u
se
o
f
th
es
e
is
su
e
s
is
a
la
ck
o
f
p
ro
p
er

g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
l
o
v
e
r
h
o
w
T
ra
n
m
a
n
is
m
a
in
ta
in
ed
a
n
d
u
p
d
a
te
d
.
A
s
T
ra
n
m
a
n
d
o
es
n
o
t
in
te
rf
a
ce
w
it
h
th
e
p
ro
cu
re
m
en
t
sy
st
e
m
s
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l,
m
a
n
u
a
l

in
te
rv
en
ti
o
n
is
re
q
u
ir
ed
to
en
su
re
T
ra
n
m
a
n
is
u
p
d
a
te
d
w
h
en
n
e
w
fl
ee
t
a
ss
et
s
a
re
p
u
rc
h
a
se
d
o
r
d
is
p
o
se
d
o
f
b
y
se
rv
ic
es
.
H
o
w
ev
er
,
it
w
a
s
id
en
ti
fi
ed
th
a
t
th
er
e

is
a
la
ck
o
f
o
w
n
er
sh
ip
a
s
to
w
h
o
is
re
sp
o
n
si
b
le
fo
r
m
a
in
ta
in
in
g
th
e
re
co
rd
s
o
n
T
ra
n
m
a
n
,
w
it
h
k
ey
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
ro
u
n
d
p
u
rc
h
a
se
s
a
n
d
d
is
p
o
sa
ls
n
o
t
o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
.

T
h
is
h
a
s
le
d
to
th
e
sy
st
em
n
o
t
b
ei
n
g
p
ro
p
er
ly
u
p
d
a
te
d
w
h
en
a
ss
et
s
a
re
p
u
rc
h
a
se
d
a
n
d
d
is
p
o
se
d
o
f
b
y
se
rv
ic
es
.

T
h
e
T
ra
n
m
a
n
sy
st
em
is
a
ls
o
n
o
t
cu
rr
en
tl
y
b
ei
n
g
fu
ll
y
u
ti
li
se
d
to
h
el
p
re
co
rd
th
e
co
n
d
it
io
n
o
f
fl
ee
t
a
ss
et
s.
T
h
e
sy
st
em
is
n
o
t
co
n
fi
g
u
re
d
to
re
q
u
ir
e
m
a
n
d
a
to
ry

fi
el
d
s
to
b
e
co
m
p
le
te
d
w
it
h
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
o
n
a
ss
et
co
n
d
it
io
n
o
r
se
rv
ic
e
h
is
to
ry
,
fo
r
ex
a
m
p
le
.
T
h
is
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
h
o
w
e
v
er
is
cr
it
ic
a
l
to
h
el
p
in
g
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l

d
is
ch
a
rg
e
it
s
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
a
n
d
st
a
tu
to
ry
o
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
fo
r
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t.
Im
p
ro
v
in
g
th
e
q
u
a
li
ty
o
f
d
a
ta
re
co
rd
ed
o
n
T
ra
n
m
a
n
a
n
d
en
fo
rc
in
g
th
e
u
se
o
f

m
a
n
d
a
to
ry
fi
el
d
s
to
re
co
rd
th
is
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
w
o
u
ld
en
a
b
le
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
to
p
ro
d
u
ce
b
et
te
r
q
u
a
li
ty
re
p
o
rt
in
g
o
n
fl
ee
t
re
le
v
a
n
t
to
th
e
ir
re
q
u
ir
em
en
ts
.
F
o
r

ex
a
m
p
le
,
fl
e
et
re
co
rd
s
co
u
ld
b
e
in
te
rr
o
g
a
te
d
to
id
en
ti
fy
fl
ee
t
a
ss
et
s
re
q
u
ir
in
g
se
rv
ic
e
o
r
to
id
en
ti
fy
n
u
m
b
er
s
o
f
fl
ee
t
a
ss
et
s
th
a
t
a
re
o
u
t
o
f
se
rv
ic
e
.

E
n
su
ri
n
g
T
ra
n
m
a
n
is
p
ro
p
e
rl
y
m
a
in
ta
in
ed
a
n
d
fu
ll
y
u
ti
li
se
d
is
v
it
a
l
to
a
n
y
re
d
es
ig
n
o
f
p
ro
ce
ss
es
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
ls
in
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t.

R
is

k

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
is
u
n
a
b
le
to
v
e
ri
fy
th
e
co
m
p
le
te
n
es
s
a
n
d
a
cc
u
ra
cy
o
f
it
s
fl
ee
t
a
ss
et
s
li
st
in
g
s
a
n
d
is
th
er
ef
o
re
ex
p
o
se
d
to
th
e
ri
sk
o
f
n
o
n
-c
o
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
st
a
tu
to
ry

o
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
fo
r
fl
ee
t
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
h
ea
lt
h
a
n
d
sa
fe
ty
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s;
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
ri
sk
s
a
ro
u
n
d
p
ro
p
er
re
co
rd
in
g
o
f
a
ss
et
s;
a
n
d
th
e
ri
sk
to
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l

p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
o
f
n
o
t
b
e
in
g
to
lo
ca
te
fl
ee
t
a
ss
et
s.

Page 271



6

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

H
ig
h

P
ro
cu
re
m
en
t
a
n
d
d
is
p
o
sa
l
o
f
fl
ee
t
a
ss
et
s
w
il
l
b
e
ce
n
tr
a
li
se
d
a
n
d
m
a
n
a
g
ed
th
ro
u
g
h
fl
ee
t

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
to
en
su
re
sc
ra
p
p
ed
,
so
ld
o
r
p
u
rc
h
a
se
d
a
ss
et
s
a
re
co
m
p
le
te
ly
a
n
d
a
cc
u
ra
te
ly

re
co
rd
ed
o
n
T
ra
n
m
a
n
.
S
e
rv
ic
e
m
a
n
a
g
er
s
w
il
l
b
e
m
a
d
e
a
w
a
re
o
f
th
ei
r
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s
fo
r

en
su
ri
n
g
th
a
t
fl
ee
t
a
ss
et
re
co
rd
s
o
n
T
ra
n
m
a
n
a
re
co
m
p
le
te
a
n
d
a
cc
u
ra
te
a
n
d
th
e
im
p
o
rt
a
n
ce
o
f

fo
ll
o
w
in
g
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
ro
u
n
d
th
e
p
u
rc
h
a
se
a
n
d
d
is
p
o
sa
l
o
f

a
ss
et
s.

T
ra
n
m
a
n
w
il
l
b
e
co
n
fi
g
u
re
d
to
re
q
u
ir
e
th
e
re
co
rd
in
g
o
f
ce
rt
a
in
m
a
n
d
a
to
ry
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n

re
le
v
a
n
t
to
th
e
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
o
f
fl
ee
t
a
ss
et
s.
T
h
is
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
w
il
l
b
e
u
se
d
fo
r
re
p
o
rt
in
g
to

m
o
n
it
o
r
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
a
n
d
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
st
a
tu
to
ry
o
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s.

H
ea
d
o
f
P
u
b
li
c
In
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
a
n
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

3
0
J
u
n
e
2
0
15

Page 272



7

3
.0

2
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
R

e
p

o
r

ti
n

g
–

c
o

n
tr

o
l

d
e

s
ig

n

F
in

d
in

g

T
h
e
cu
rr
en
t
fr
a
m
ew
o
rk
o
f
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
re
p
o
rt
in
g
fo
r
fl
ee
t
se
rv
ic
es
d
o
es
n
o
t
p
ro
v
id
e
a
n
a
d
eq
u
a
te
p
ro
ce
ss
fo
r
es
ca
la
ti
o
n
o
f
is
su
es
id
en
ti
fi
ed
in
th
e
se
rv
ic
e

th
ro
u
g
h
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
.
A
s
id
en
ti
fi
ed
in
fi
n
d
in
g
3
.0
1,
T
ra
n
m
a
n
is
n
o
t
cu
rr
en
tl
y
b
e
in
g
o
p
ti
m
is
ed
to
p
ro
d
u
ce
re
le
v
a
n
t
a
n
d
ti
m
el
y
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
to
a
id
w
it
h
id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
se
rv
ic
e
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
is
su
es
.
A
s
a
re
su
lt
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
a
t
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
d
o
n
o
t
h
a
v
e
o
v
er
si
g
h
t
o
v
er
th
e
a
ct
iv
it
ie
s
o
f
th
e
se
rv
ic
e

a
n
d
a
n
y
d
e
v
el
o
p
in
g
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
is
su
es
th
ro
u
g
h
ev
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
o
f
re
le
v
a
n
t
k
ey
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
.
T
h
e
fa
il
u
re
to
p
ro
p
e
rl
y
id
e
n
ti
fy
is
su
e
s,
a
n
d
th
en
es
ca
la
te

th
es
e
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
to
se
n
io
r
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t,
w
a
s
id
en
ti
fi
ed
a
s
a
ro
o
t
ca
u
se
o
f
th
e
fa
il
in
g
s
in
th
e
S
er
v
ic
e
th
a
t
le
d
to
th
e
T
ra
ff
ic
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
er
in
q
u
ir
y
.

F
u
rt
h
er
m
o
re
,
fl
ee
t
se
rv
ic
es
a
n
d
se
rv
ic
es
th
a
t
u
se
fl
ee
t
a
ss
et
s
d
o
n
o
t
cu
rr
en
tl
y
re
p
o
rt
to
E
le
ct
ed
M
em
b
er
s
o
n
a
n
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
C
o
m
m
it
te
e.
T
h
er
e
w
a
s
a
co
n
se
n
su
s

w
it
h
in
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
th
a
t
re
p
o
rt
in
g
sh
o
u
ld
ex
is
t
a
n
d
th
a
t
th
is
co
u
ld
b
e
m
a
d
e
th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
H
ea
lt
h
a
n
d
S
a
fe
ty
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
to
en
su
re
th
a
t
th
er
e
is
a
n

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
fo
cu
s
o
n
th
e
se
rv
ic
e’
s
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
st
a
tu
to
ry
o
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
to
en
su
re
fl
ee
t
is
p
ro
p
er
ly
m
a
in
ta
in
ed
.

R
is

k

T
h
er
e
is
a
ri
sk
th
a
t
se
ri
o
u
s
is
su
es
o
f
n
o
n
-c
o
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
st
a
tu
to
ry
o
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
in
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
a
n
d
o
th
er
se
rv
ic
es
a
re
n
o
t
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
es
ca
la
te
d
fo
r

th
e
a
tt
en
ti
o
n
o
f
se
n
io
r
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
a
n
d
E
le
ct
ed
M
e
m
b
e
rs
ex
p
o
si
n
g
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
to
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l,
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
a
l
a
n
d
le
g
a
l
ri
sk
s
w
h
e
re
th
es
e
is
su
es
a
re
n
o
t

a
d
d
re
ss
ed
.

A
c

ti
o

n
p

la
n

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
g

r
e

e
d

a
c

ti
o

n
R

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

p
e

r
s

o
n

/
ti

tl
e

M
ed
iu
m

F
le
et
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
se
rv
ic
es
w
il
l
d
ev
el
o
p
ed
a
su
it
e
o
f
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
re
p
o
rt
in
g
b
a
se
d
a
ro
u
n
d

th
e
k
ey
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
(K
P
Is
)
cu
rr
en
tl
y
b
ei
n
g
d
ev
el
o
p
ed
w
it
h
in
T
ra
n
m
a
n
.
T
h
es
e

w
il
l
b
e
re
p
o
rt
ed
to
th
e
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
te
a
m
w
it
h
in
th
e
In
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
a
n
d
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

S
er
v
ic
e
a
n
d
to
th
e
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
T
ea
m
.
T
h
e
K
P
Is
w
il
l
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
to
a
ct
iv
el
y

id
en
ti
fy
d
e
v
el
o
p
in
g
is
su
es
,
fo
r
ex
a
m
p
le
w
h
er
e
th
e
n
u
m
b
er
o
f
M
O
T
fa
il
u
re
s
ex
ce
ed
s

a
cc
ep
te
d
to
le
ra
n
ce
le
v
el
s.

F
le
et
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
se
rv
ic
es
a
n
d
se
rv
ic
es
th
a
t
u
se
fl
ee
t
a
ss
et
s
w
il
l
a
ls
o
re
p
o
rt
to
th
e
H
ea
lt
h

a
n
d
S
a
fe
ty
co
m
m
it
te
e
o
n
a
d
ef
in
ed
se
t
o
f
K
P
Is
.
T
h
e
se
K
P
Is
w
il
l
fo
cu
s
o
n
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s

co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
re
le
v
a
n
t
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
th
a
t
im
p
a
ct
fl
ee
t
se
rv
ic
es
to
en
su
re
p
ro
p
er

sc
ru
ti
n
y
o
f
th
e
S
er
v
ic
e’
s
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
in
a
ch
ie
v
in
g
a
g
re
ed
ta
rg
et
s.

H
ea
d
o
f
In
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
a
n
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

T
a

r
g

e
t

d
a

te
:

3
0
J
u
n
e
2
0
15

Page 273



8

A
p
p
en
d
ix
1
–
B
a
si
s
o
f
o
u
r
cl
a
ss
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l
fi

n
d

in
g

r
a

ti
n

g
s

F
in

d
in

g
r

a
ti

n
g

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

r
a

ti
o

n
a

le

C
ri
ti
ca
l

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

C
r
it
ic
a
l
im
p
a
ct
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

C
r
it
ic
a
l
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

C
r
it
ic
a
l
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
th
a
t
co
u
ld
re
su
lt
in
m
a
te
ri
a
l
fi
n
es
o
r
co
n
se
q
u
en
ce
s;

o
r

C
r
it
ic
a
l
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
r
b
ra
n
d
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
w
h
ic
h
co
u
ld
th
re
a
te
n
it
s
fu
tu
re
v
ia
b
il
it
y
.

H
ig
h

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
im
p
a
ct
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
e
n
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
re
su
lt
in
g
in
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t
fi
n
es
a
n
d
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s
;

o
r

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
r
b
ra
n
d
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

M
ed
iu
m

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
im
p
a
ct
o
n
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
re
su
lt
in
g
in
fi
n
es
a
n
d
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s;
o
r

M
o
d
e
r
a
te
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
r
b
ra
n
d
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

L
o
w

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
co
u
ld
h
a
v
e
a
:

M
in
o
r
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
’s
o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
a
l
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
;
o
r

M
in
o
r
m
o
n
et
a
ry
o
r
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l
st
a
te
m
en
t
im
p
a
ct
;
o
r

M
in
o
r
b
re
a
ch
in
la
w
s
a
n
d
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
w
it
h
li
m
it
ed
co
n
se
q
u
e
n
ce
s;
o
r

M
in
o
r
im
p
a
ct
o
n
th
e
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
.

A
d
v
is
o
ry

A
fi
n
d
in
g
th
a
t
d
o
es
n
o
t
h
a
v
e
a
ri
sk
im
p
a
ct
b
u
t
h
a
s
b
ee
n
ra
is
e
d
to
h
ig
h
li
g
h
t
a
re
a
s
o
f
in
ef
fi
ci
e
n
ci
es
o
r
g
o
o
d
p
ra
ct
ic
e.

Page 274



9

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

s

F
in

d
in

g
s

r
a

ti
n

g
P

o
in

ts

C
ri
ti
ca
l

4
0
p
o
in
ts
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

H
ig
h

10
p
o
in
ts
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

M
ed
iu
m

3
p
o
in
ts
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

L
o
w

1
p
o
in
t
p
er
fi
n
d
in
g

R
e

p
o

r
t

c
la

s
s

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

P
o

in
ts

L
o
w
ri
sk

6
p
o
in
ts
o
r
le
ss

M
ed
iu
m
ri
sk

7
–
15
p
o
in
ts

H
ig
h
ri
sk

16
–
3
9
p
o
in
ts

C
ri
ti
ca
l
ri
sk

4
0
p
o
in
ts
a
n
d
o
v
er

Page 275



1
0

A
p
p
en
d
ix
2
–
A
g
re
ed
T
er
m
s
o
f
re
fe
re
n
ce

T
h
is
re
v
ie
w
is
b
e
in
g
u
n
d
er
ta
k
en
a
t
th
e
re
q
u
es
t
o
f
th
e
H
ea
d
o
f
P
u
b
li
c
In
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
a
n
d
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
en
t
a
n
d
th
e
C
h
ie
f
E
x
ec
u
ti
v
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
a
n
u
m
b
er
o
f
co
n
tr
o
l

fa
il
u
re
s
id
e
n
ti
fi
ed
w
it
h
in
th
e
F
le
et
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
S
er
v
ic
e.

B
a
c
k
g
r
o
u
n
d

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
fl
e
et
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
a
rr
a
n
g
em
en
ts
w
er
e
su
b
je
ct
to
a
T
ra
ff
ic
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
er
s
p
u
b
li
c
in
q
u
ir
y
in
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
2
0
14
,
re
fl
ec
ti
n
g
a
n
o
v
er
a
ll
fa
il
in
g
fl
e
et
se
rv
ic
e.

T
h
e
T
ra
ff
ic
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
er
ra
is
ed
a
n
u
m
b
er
o
f
co
n
ce
rn
s
in
re
sp
ec
t
o
f
fl
e
et
in
cl
u
d
in
g
:
d
is
cr
ep
a
n
ci
es
in
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
re
co
rd
s;
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
ce
co
n
tr
a
ct
s
w
it
h
3
rd

p
a
rt
ie
s;
d
o
cu
m
en
ta
ti
o
n
a
ro
u
n
d
o
w
n
er
sh
ip
o
f
a
ss
et
s;
a
d
eq
u
a
te
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
ce
in
cl
u
d
in
g
P
M
I
re
co
rd
s
a
n
d
in
te
rv
a
l
ch
ec
k
in
g
.
F
o
ll
o
w
in
g
th
e
in
q
u
ir
y
,
C
o
u
n
ci
l
O
ff
ic
er
s

h
a
v
e
fu
rt
h
er
in
v
es
ti
g
a
te
d
th
e
a
ri
si
n
g
is
su
es
a
n
d
h
a
v
e
d
e
te
rm
in
ed
th
e
n
ee
d
fo
r
a
co
m
p
le
te
o
v
er
h
a
u
l
o
f
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
a
rr
a
n
g
em
en
ts
.

A
n
u
m
b
er
o
f
o
n
g
o
in
g
a
ct
io
n
s
a
re
in
p
la
ce
in
re
sp
ec
t
o
f
th
e
fl
ee
t
se
rv
ic
e
.
In
te
rn
a
l
A
u
d
it
h
a
s
sp
ec
if
ic
a
ll
y
b
ee
n
a
sk
ed
to
co
n
si
d
er
th
e
a
ss
et
v
e
ri
fi
ca
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
fl
e
et
a
n
d

p
la
n
t
a
n
d
e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t
to
co
n
fi
rm
e
x
is
te
n
ce
.
T
h
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
h
o
ld
s
ci
rc
a
2
0
0
0
it
e
m
s
o
f
fl
ee
t
a
n
d
p
la
n
t
a
n
d
eq
u
ip
m
e
n
t,
a
cr
o
ss
a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
16
to
2
0
lo
ca
ti
o
n
s
in

A
b
er
d
ee
n
,
in
cl
u
d
in
g
th
re
e
ro
a
d
s
d
ep
o
ts
a
n
d
o
n
e
w
a
st
e
d
ep
o
t.
A
ll
S
er
v
ic
e
M
a
n
a
g
er
s
h
a
v
e
re
v
ie
w
ed
re
co
rd
s
o
f
th
e
re
le
v
a
n
t
a
ss
et
s
w
it
h
in
th
ei
r
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y
a
n
d

h
a
v
e
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ll
y
co
n
fi
rm
e
d
:
th
e
ex
is
te
n
ce
o
f
th
e
a
ss
et
s;
id
en
ti
fy
in
g
w
h
er
e
a
ss
et
s
a
re
h
el
d
in
a
d
if
fe
re
n
t
lo
ca
ti
o
n
(o
n
th
e
b
a
si
s
th
ey
a
p
p
ea
r
o
n
a
n
o
th
er
S
er
v
ic
e

M
a
n
a
g
er
s
li
st
);
a
ss
et
s
n
o
lo
n
g
er
h
el
d
;
o
r
h
el
d
b
u
t
n
o
t
d
es
cr
ib
ed
/r
ec
o
rd
ed
a
cc
u
ra
te
ly
.

In
a
d
d
it
io
n
,
th
e
H
ea
d
o
f
P
u
b
li
c
In
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
a
n
d
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
en
t
w
o
u
ld
li
k
e
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
to
co
n
si
d
er
th
e
cu
rr
e
n
t
re
p
o
rt
in
g
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
en
ts
fo
r
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t.

In
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r
h
o
w
is
su
es
a
ri
si
n
g
,
st
a
te
o
f
th
e
fl
ee
t,
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
is
e
sc
a
la
te
d
a
n
d
re
p
o
rt
ed
w
it
h
in
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
st
ru
ct
u
re
.

S
c
o
p
e

O
u
r
w
o
rk
a
ro
u
n
d
re
p
o
rt
in
g
w
il
l
co
n
si
d
er
:

S
u

b
-p

r
o

c
e

s
s

C
o

n
tr

o
l

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e

F
le
et
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
G
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
re
p
o
rt
in
g

A
n
es
ca
la
ti
o
n
p
ro
ce
ss
is
in
p
la
ce
to
h
ig
h
li
g
h
t
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
is
su
es
a
t
a
C
o
u
n
ci
l
O
ff
ic
er
,

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
M
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
T
e
a
m
a
n
d
to
E
le
ct
ed
M
em
b
er
s
v
ia
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
co
m
m
it
te
e

g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
st
ru
ct
u
re
s;

F
le
et
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
en
ts
fo
r
ex
a
m
p
le
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
p
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce
,

co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
H
ea
lt
h
a
n
d
S
a
fe
ty
a
n
d
le
g
is
la
ti
v
e
re
q
u
ir
em
e
n
ts
a
re
g
iv
en
su
ff
ic
ie
n
t

p
ro
m
in
en
ce
w
it
h
in
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l;

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
li
n
es
o
f
d
ef
en
ce
a
re
in
p
la
ce
in
re
sp
ec
t
o
f
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t
(1
st
/2

n
d
a
n
d
3
rd

li
n
es
)
a
n
d
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
re
p
o
rt
in
g
is
co
n
si
st
en
t;

A
s
a
C
o
u
n
ci
l
it
is
cl
ea
r
h
o
w
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l
fu
ll
y
d
is
ch
a
rg
es
it
s
le
g
a
l
o
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
in
re
sp
ec
t
o
f

fl
ee
t
a
n
d
ro
le
s
a
re
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s
a
re
se
t
o
u
t
a
n
d
u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
;
a
n
d

Page 276



1
1

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
re
p
o
rt
in
g
is
a
li
g
n
ed
w
it
h
th
e
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
en
ts
fo
r
fl
ee
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t.

A
s
p
a
rt
o
f
o
u
r
w
o
rk
o
n
re
p
o
rt
in
g
w
e
w
il
l
co
n
si
d
er
w
h
a
t
o
th
er
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
fl
ee
t
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
co
m
m
it
te
e
re
p
o
rt
in
g
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
en
ts
co
u
ld
b
e
es
ta
b
li
sh
ed
,
w
h
et
h
er
th
is
is

th
ro
u
g
h
th
e
es
ta
b
li
sh
m
en
t
o
f
a
n
ew
/a
m
en
d
ed
co
m
m
it
te
e
o
r
co
u
ld
b
e
co
n
si
d
er
ed
w
it
h
in
th
e
sc
o
p
e
o
f
a
cu
rr
e
n
t
co
m
m
it
te
e
fo
r
e
x
a
m
p
le
:
th
e
H
ea
lt
h
a
n
d
S
a
fe
ty

C
o
m
m
it
te
e.

L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
o
f
s
c
o
p
e

T
h
e
sc
o
p
e
o
f
o
u
r
re
v
ie
w
a
n
d
li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
a
re
o
u
tl
in
ed
a
b
o
v
e
.

In
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l,
n
o
m
a
tt
er
h
o
w
w
el
l
d
es
ig
n
ed
a
n
d
o
p
er
a
te
d
,
ca
n
p
ro
v
id
e
o
n
ly
re
a
so
n
a
b
le
a
n
d
n
o
t
a
b
so
lu
te
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
re
g
a
rd
in
g
a
ch
ie
v
e
m
en
t
o
f
a
n
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
's

o
b
je
ct
iv
es
.
T
h
e
li
k
el
ih
o
o
d
o
f
a
ch
ie
v
em
en
t
is
a
ff
ec
te
d
b
y
li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
in
h
er
e
n
t
in
a
ll
in
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l
sy
st
em
s.
T
h
es
e
in
cl
u
d
e
th
e
p
o
ss
ib
il
it
y
o
f
p
o
o
r
ju
d
g
m
en
t
in

d
ec
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
,
h
u
m
a
n
er
ro
r,
co
n
tr
o
l
p
ro
ce
ss
es
b
ei
n
g
d
el
ib
e
ra
te
ly
ci
rc
u
m
v
en
te
d
b
y
em
p
lo
y
ee
s
a
n
d
o
th
er
s,
m
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
o
v
e
rr
id
in
g
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
n
d
th
e
o
cc
u
rr
en
ce

o
f
u
n
fo
re
se
ea
b
le
ci
rc
u
m
st
a
n
ce
s.

A
u
d
it
a
p
p
r
o
a
c
h

O
u
r
a
u
d
it
a
p
p
ro
a
ch
fo
r
fl
ee
t
a
n
d
p
la
n
t
a
n
d
e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t
a
ss
et
v
er
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
is
a
s
se
t
o
u
t
in
th
e
sc
o
p
e.

Page 277



1
2

A
p
p
en
d
ix
3
–
L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s

L
im
it
a
ti
o
n
s
in
h
e
re
n
t
to
th
e
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
r’
s
w
o
rk

W
e
h
a
v
e
u
n
d
er
ta
k
en
a
re
v
ie
w
o
f
th
e
C
o
u
n
ci
l’
s
F
le
et
M
a
n
a
g
em
en
t
G
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce

co
n
tr
o
ls
,
su
b
je
ct
to
th
e
li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
o
u
tl
in
ed
b
el
o
w
.

In
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l

In
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l,
n
o
m
a
tt
er
h
o
w
w
el
l
d
es
ig
n
ed
a
n
d
o
p
er
a
te
d
,
ca
n
p
ro
v
id
e
o
n
ly

re
a
so
n
a
b
le
a
n
d
n
o
t
a
b
so
lu
te
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
re
g
a
rd
in
g
a
ch
ie
v
em
e
n
t
o
f
a
n

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
's
o
b
je
ct
iv
es
.
T
h
e
li
k
el
ih
o
o
d
o
f
a
ch
ie
v
em
e
n
t
is
a
ff
ec
te
d
b
y

li
m
it
a
ti
o
n
s
in
h
er
en
t
in
a
ll
in
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l
sy
st
em
s.
T
h
es
e
in
cl
u
d
e
th
e

p
o
ss
ib
il
it
y
o
f
p
o
o
r
ju
d
g
m
e
n
t
in
d
ec
is
io
n
-m
a
k
in
g
,
h
u
m
a
n
er
ro
r,
co
n
tr
o
l

p
ro
ce
ss
es
b
e
in
g
d
el
ib
er
a
te
ly
ci
rc
u
m
v
e
n
te
d
b
y
em
p
lo
y
e
es
a
n
d
o
th
er
s,

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t
o
v
er
ri
d
in
g
co
n
tr
o
ls
a
n
d
th
e
o
cc
u
rr
en
ce
o
f
u
n
fo
re
se
ea
b
le

ci
rc
u
m
st
a
n
ce
s.

F
u
tu
re
p
e
ri
o
d
s

O
u
r
a
ss
es
sm
en
t
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
re
la
ti
n
g
to
F
le
et
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
G
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce

co
n
tr
o
ls
is
a
s
a
t
3
1
M
a
rc
h
2
0
15
.
H
is
to
ri
c
e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
o
f
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
n
es
s
is
n
o
t

re
le
v
a
n
t
to
fu
tu
re
p
er
io
d
s
d
u
e
to
th
e
ri
sk
th
a
t:

th
e
d
es
ig
n
o
f
co
n
tr
o
ls
m
a
y
b
ec
o
m
e
in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
b
ec
a
u
se
o
f
ch
a
n
g
es
in

o
p
er
a
ti
n
g
en
v
ir
o
n
m
en
t,
la
w
,
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
o
r
o
th
er
;
o
r

T
h
e
d
eg
re
e
o
f
co
m
p
li
a
n
ce
w
it
h
p
o
li
ci
es
a
n
d
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
m
a
y
d
e
te
ri
o
ra
te
.

R
e
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s
o
f
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
rs

It
is
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
en
t’
s
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
y
to
d
ev
el
o
p
a
n
d
m
a
in
ta
in
so
u
n
d
sy
st
em
s
o
f

ri
sk
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t,
in
te
rn
a
l
co
n
tr
o
l
a
n
d
g
o
v
er
n
a
n
ce
a
n
d
fo
r
th
e
p
re
v
en
ti
o
n

a
n
d
d
et
ec
ti
o
n
o
f
ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ti
es
a
n
d
fr
a
u
d
.
In
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
w
o
rk
sh
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e

se
en
a
s
a
su
b
st
it
u
te
fo
r
m
a
n
a
g
em
e
n
t’
s
re
sp
o
n
si
b
il
it
ie
s
fo
r
th
e
d
es
ig
n
a
n
d

o
p
er
a
ti
o
n
o
f
th
es
e
sy
st
em
s.

W
e
en
d
ea
v
o
u
r
to
p
la
n
o
u
r
w
o
rk
so
th
a
t
w
e
h
a
v
e
a
re
a
so
n
a
b
le
ex
p
ec
ta
ti
o
n
o
f

d
et
ec
ti
n
g
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t
co
n
tr
o
l
w
ea
k
n
es
se
s
a
n
d
,
if
d
et
ec
te
d
,
w
e
sh
a
ll
ca
rr
y
o
u
t

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
w
o
rk
d
ir
ec
te
d
to
w
a
rd
s
id
en
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
o
f
co
n
se
q
u
en
t
fr
a
u
d
o
r
o
th
er

ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ti
es
.
H
o
w
e
v
er
,
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s
a
lo
n
e,
e
v
en
w
h
e
n
ca
rr
ie
d

o
u
t
w
it
h
d
u
e
p
ro
fe
ss
io
n
a
l
ca
re
,
d
o
n
o
t
g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
th
a
t
fr
a
u
d
w
il
l
b
e
d
et
ec
te
d
.

A
cc
o
rd
in
g
ly
,
o
u
r
e
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
s
a
s
in
te
rn
a
l
a
u
d
it
o
rs
sh
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
re
li
ed
u
p
o
n

so
le
ly
to
d
is
cl
o
se
fr
a
u
d
,
d
ef
a
lc
a
ti
o
n
s
o
r
o
th
er
ir
re
g
u
la
ri
ti
es
w
h
ic
h
m
a
y
ex
is
t.

Page 278



In
th
e
ev
en
t
th
a
t,
p
u
rs
u
a
n
t
to
a
re
q
u
es
t
w
h
ic
h
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
h
a
s
re
ce
iv
ed
u
n
d
er
th
e
F
re
e
d
o
m
o
f
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
A
ct
2
0
0
0
o
r
th
e
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
en
ta
l
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
R
eg
u
la
ti
o
n
s
2
0
0
4
(a
s
th
e
sa
m
e
m
a
y
b
e

a
m
en
d
ed
o
r
re
-e
n
a
ct
ed
fr
o
m
ti
m
e
to
ti
m
e)
o
r
a
n
y
su
b
o
rd
in
a
te
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
m
a
d
e
th
er
eu
n
d
er
(c
o
ll
ec
ti
v
el
y
,
th
e
“L
eg
is
la
ti
o
n
”)
,
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
is
re
q
u
ir
ed
to
d
is
cl
o
se
a
n
y
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
co
n
ta
in
ed
in
th
is

d
o
cu
m
en
t,
it
w
il
l
n
o
ti
fy
P
w
C
p
ro
m
p
tl
y
a
n
d
w
il
l
co
n
su
lt
w
it
h
P
w
C
p
ri
o
r
to
d
is
cl
o
si
n
g
su
ch
d
o
cu
m
en
t.
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
g
re
es
to
p
a
y
d
u
e
re
g
a
rd
to
a
n
y
re
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
w
h
ic
h
P
w
C
m
a
y
m
a
k
e
in

co
n
n
ec
ti
o
n
w
it
h
su
ch
d
is
cl
o
su
re
a
n
d
to
a
p
p
ly
a
n
y
re
le
v
a
n
t
ex
em
p
ti
o
n
s
w
h
ic
h
m
a
y
ex
is
t
u
n
d
er
th
e
L
eg
is
la
ti
o
n
.
If
,
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
co
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
P
w
C
,
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
d
is
cl
o
se
s
a
n
y
th
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t
o
r

a
n
y
p
a
rt
th
er
eo
f,
it
sh
a
ll
en
su
re
th
a
t
a
n
y
d
is
cl
a
im
er
w
h
ic
h
P
w
C
h
a
s
in
cl
u
d
ed
o
r
m
a
y
su
b
se
q
u
en
tl
y
w
is
h
to
in
cl
u
d
e
in
th
e
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
is
re
p
ro
d
u
ce
d
in
fu
ll
in
a
n
y
co
p
ie
s
d
is
cl
o
se
d
.

T
h
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t
h
a
s
b
ee
n
p
re
p
a
re
d
o
n
ly
fo
r
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
a
n
d
so
le
ly
fo
r
th
e
p
u
rp
o
se
a
n
d
o
n
th
e
te
rm
s
a
g
re
ed
w
it
h
A
b
er
d
ee
n
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
ci
l
in
o
u
r
a
g
re
em
en
t
d
a
te
d
4
O
ct
o
b
er
2
0
10
.
W
e
a
cc
ep
t
n
o

li
a
b
il
it
y
(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
fo
r
n
eg
li
g
en
ce
)
to
a
n
y
o
n
e
el
se
in
co
n
n
ec
ti
o
n
w
it
h
th
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t,
a
n
d
it
m
a
y
n
o
t
b
e
p
ro
v
id
ed
to
a
n
y
o
n
e
el
se
.

©
2
0
15
P
ri
ce
w
a
te
rh
o
u
se
C
o
o
p
er
s
L
L
P
.
A
ll
ri
g
h
ts
re
se
rv
ed
.
In
th
is
d
o
cu
m
en
t,
"P
w
C
"
re
fe
rs
to
P
ri
ce
w
a
te
rh
o
u
se
C
o
o
p
er
s
L
L
P
(a
li
m
it
ed
li
a
b
il
it
y
p
a
rt
n
er
sh
ip
in
th
e
U
n
it
ed
K
in
g
d
o
m
),
w
h
ic
h
is
a
m
em
b
er
fi
rm

o
f
P
ri
ce
w
a
te
rh
o
u
se
C
o
o
p
er
s
In
te
rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l
L
im
it
ed
,
ea
ch
m
em
b
er
fi
rm
o
f
w
h
ic
h
is
a
se
p
a
ra
te
le
g
a
l
en
ti
ty
.

Page 279



Page 280

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Audit, Risk and Scrutiny 
 
DATE  25th June, 2015 
 
DIRECTOR  Corporate Governance 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  ALEO Governance – Outstanding issues 
 
REPORT NUMBER CG/15/85 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED Yes 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To address outstanding audit recommendations in relation to Arms’ 
Length External Organisations (ALEOs) and an outstanding remit to 
review Service Level Agreements (SLAs) with tier 2 ALEOs. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
It is recommended that the Committee – 
(1) Agrees that arrangements have been put in place to meet the two 

outstanding audit recommendations in relation to scrutiny of ALEO 
performance and risk management; and 

(2) Notes the ongoing work in relation to the review of SLAs with tier 2              
ALEOs and that a further report will be submitted to the next 
meeting. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no additional financial implications from undertaking the 
procedures identified in this report. 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no other implications of significance arising from this report, 
although the procedures will provide added security and assurance to 
the Councils’ scrutiny of ALEOs as well as added transparency to their 
operation. 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
(1) The Audit and Risk Committee of 16 April 2013 (article 7 of the 

minute of meeting refers) approved a number of recommendations 
in relation to the governance of ALEOs, two of which have remained 
on the list of outstanding recommendations.  These required the 

Agenda Item 8.3

Page 281



2 
 

Council (a) to put in place consistent reporting arrangements for the 
scrutiny of ALEOs and (b) to ensure that ALEOs established risk 
management processes and frameworks and establish its own risk 
register to identify, assess and manage the key risks associated 
with funding individual ALEOs and the services they provide. 

 
(2) The Committee at its meeting of 26 February 2015 (Article 19 of the 

minute of meeting refers) considered an audit report on tier 2 
ALEOs and instructed a report back in two cycles on the review of 
Service Level Agreements with each tier 2 ALEO. 

 
 

(3) In respect of the recommendation that consistent reporting 
arrangements be put in place for the scrutiny of ALEOs, members 
will be aware that a governance hub was established with the 
intention of applying similar scrutiny criteria to each ALEO. Whilst it 
did meet, its performance was not consistent and some ALEO 
reporting took place outwith the process. As reported to the 
previous meeting by update, a full review of the scrutiny of tier 1 
ALEOs was undertaken earlier this year.  As agreed at the previous 
meeting, this was circulated to members, but is appended to this 
report for ease of reference. 
  

(4) Officers of the governance hub have prepared data sets which will 
allow scrutiny of the performance of ALEOs in a consistent manner. 
The first meetings with the four main ALEOs will be held on 15 and 
17 June, with minutes being submitted to this meeting to provide the 
necessary assurance on each ALEO’s system of risk management, 
the extent to which it meets both its own strategic objectives and 
those of the Single Outcome Agreement, and the extent and 
effectiveness of its risk management framework and financial 
monitoring arrangements, etc. Any requirement to review and revise 
each operating agreement will therefore be identified during this 
scrutiny process. 

 
(5) Steps are being taken to ensure that each ALEO is subject to a risk 

assessment and recorded in the relevant service risk register.  Part 
of this process will require an evaluation of the current strength of 
controls and mitigation in respect of the Council’s risk exposure, 
which each ALEO poses.  The range of potential risk factors include 
health and safety, financial stewardship, equalities and the 
protection of assets.  Evaluation of controls will cover SLAs, leases, 
audit arrangements and legislative compliance. 

 
(6)  In respect of the review of SLAs for tier 2 ALEOs, a schedule is 

being prepared which details each ALEO, its tier and the current 
status of the SLA e.g. is an SLA in place, how current is it, does it 
require to be updated.  The Schedule will be submitted to the next 
Committee meeting, along with proposed timescales for the 
reviews.  Due to the number of organisations involved, this will 

Page 282



3 
 

represent a considerable amount of work and the timescales will be 
prioritised.  In the meantime, officers have commenced reviews of 
the two ALEOs specifically requested by Committee at its meeting 
in February, namely Aberdeen Performing Arts and Aberdeen 
International Youth Festival. 

 
 

6. IMPACT 
 
Corporate – By putting in place arrangements to scrutinise ALEOs 
which will allow the consideration of standardised data sets, the 
performance of those bodies can be more readily understood and their 
performance against the relevant strands of the Single Outcome 
Agreement and the Council’s own strategic objectives measured more 
easily. This is in line with the aspirational elements of Aberdeen – the 
Smarter City. 
Control of risk will provide assurance to both the ALEO itself and to the 
Council that mitigation measures are in place, and the governance 
elements of funding will be strengthened. 
 
Public – There is general public interest in the services delivered by 
ALEOs to the customer in particular and open and transparent scrutiny 
of performance will provide reassurance that the requirements of each 
Service Level Agreement are being met. 
 

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

This report is essentially about the management of risk associated with 
ALEOS (both to themselves and to the Council), recommendations 
made by Internal Audit to address these and the measures put in place 
to provide the necessary assurance. 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

           None 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
           Roderick MacBeath 
           Senior Democratic Services Manager 
           Legal and Democratic Services 
           rmacbeath@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
           01224 523054 
 
 

Page 283



Page 284

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Aberdeen City
Council

Interim Report

2014/15 Audit 

 

 

  

Aberdeen City 
Council 

Interim Report 

Audit  

Prepared for Prepared for Aberdeen City Council 

June 2015 

Agenda Item 9.1

Page 285



 

 

 

 

 
Audit Scotland is a statutory body set up in April 2000 under the Public Finance and Accountability 

(Scotland) Act 2000. It provides services to the Auditor General for Scotland and the Accounts 

Commission. Together they ensure that the Scottish Government and public sector bodies in 

Scotland are held to account for the proper, efficient and effective use of public funds. 

Page 286



 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 3 

 

Contents 

Key messages ............................................................................................................................... 4 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................... 5 

Governance ................................................................................................................................... 6 

Corporate Governance ...................................................................................................... 6 

National Fraud Initiative ..................................................................................................... 6 

Follow up of Prior Year Risks ............................................................................................ 7 

Internal Financial Controls ......................................................................................................... 10 

Follow Up of Prior Year Risks .......................................................................................... 12 

Appendix A: Action Plan ............................................................................................................ 13 

 

Page 287



Key messages 

 

 

Page 4 Aberdeen City Council 

 

Key messages 
This report is the summary of our findings arising from routine audit work around governance 

and internal controls carried out in the period to May 2015 as part of the 2014/15 audit of 

Aberdeen City Council. 

We also followed up the risks highlighted in our 2013/14 Interim Report which was presented 

to the Audit and Risk Committee in June 2014. In 2012/13, we recommended low risk actions 

to tighten up the council's anti-fraud policies and reporting arrangements.  These actions have 

not yet been addressed.   

We reviewed the council's internal audit function and concluded that we could place reliance 

on their work.  This enabled us to agree a strategy with internal audit for 2014/15 which 

minimised the duplication of audit resources and ensured audit coverage of all key financial 

control systems. With regard to the key financial controls which we tested during the year, we 

were generally satisfied with their operation during the 2014/15 financial year. 

In 2013/14, we commented on the inconsistencies in  performance information reported to 

committees both in terms of the frequency and currency of reporting and the comparative 

information used. A new committee structure was implemented in 2014/15 and work has 

started to produce performance information which will reflect these new roles and 

responsibilities.  Longer term, plans are at an early stage to develop performance dashboards 

to support the new management structure. We will revisit this area as part of the 2015/16 

audit.       

 

 

 

  

Page 288



Introduction 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 5 

 

Introduction 
1. This report is a summary of our findings from routine audit work carried out in the period to 

May 2015 as part of the 2014/15 audit of Aberdeen City Council. The nature and scope of the 

audit were outlined in our Annual Audit Plan presented to the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny 

Committee (ARSC) in February 2015 and follows the requirements of Audit Scotland's Code 

of Audit Practice which was published in May 2011. 

2. Our work covered the following areas: 

• governance arrangements 

the operation of financial controls in key financial system. 

3. Appendix A is an action plan setting out our recommendations from the audit. Officers have 

considered the issues and are taking the specific steps in the column headed “management 

action".  The ARSC should ensure that they are satisfied with the proposed management 

action and that there is a mechanism in place to monitor progress.  

4. Weaknesses or risks identified by auditors are only those which have come to their attention 

during their normal audit work, and may not be all that exist. Communication by auditors of 

matters arising from the audit, or of risks or weaknesses, does not absolve management from 

its responsibility to address the issues raised and to maintain an adequate system of control.  

5. The co-operation and assistance given to us by officers and staff is gratefully acknowledged. 
  

Page 289



Governance 

 

 

Page 6 Aberdeen City Council 

 

Governance  
6. Through its chief executive, a council is responsible for establishing arrangements for 

ensuring the proper conduct of its affairs including the legality of activities and transactions, 

and for monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. Audited bodies 

usually involve those charged with governance (including audit committees or similar groups) 

in monitoring these arrangements. 

7. Consistent with the wider scope of public audit, auditors have a responsibility to review and 

report on audited bodies’ corporate governance arrangements as they relate to:  

• corporate governance and systems of internal control  

• the prevention and detection of fraud and irregularity  

• standards of conduct and arrangements for the prevention and detection of corruption.  

8. In this part of the report we comment on aspects of governance routinely covered within the 

annual audit.   

Corporate Governance 

9. Proposals to revise the structure of the corporate management team were approved by the 

council in May 2014.  The number, roles and remits of directors were reviewed resulting in a 

'3+1' model where the 'plus one' is a joint role with NHS Grampian to take forward the health 

and social care integration agenda. In August 2014, the council agreed a revised committee 

structure to reflect the new service structure. We confirmed that the council has updated its 

Standing Orders, Scheme of Delegation and Financial Regulations to take account of the 

changes to committee structure. 

10. A revised Risk Management Strategy was approved by the ARSC in February 2015. The 

strategy covers key areas such as roles and responsibilities, risk appetite and monitoring and 

reporting risks.  In addition, an update on progress with the overall system of risk management 

was presented to the committee in February. 

National Fraud Initiative 

11. Audit Scotland routinely coordinates a major counter-fraud exercise working together with a 

range of Scottish public bodies, external auditors and the Audit Commission to identify fraud 

and error. These exercises, known as the National Fraud Initiative in Scotland (NFI), are 

undertaken every two years as part of the statutory audits of the participating bodies. The 

2012/13 exercise identified outcomes totalling £10m across Scotland.  The 2014/15 exercise 

commenced in October 2014 and councils received matches for review in early 2015. The 

national timetable anticipates that match investigation work should be largely completed by 

the end of September 2015. 

Page 290



Governance 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 7 

 

12. We were required to review the council's arrangements for responding to NFI, particularly with 

regard to the council's approach to dealing with data matches in a timely fashion. In February 

2015, the council changed its key contact for NFI to the Investigations Manager.  This officer 

was however, involved in the transfer of benefit fraud cases to the Single Fraud Investigation 

Service with effect from 1 April 2015 and consequently, limited progress was made in 

following up matches, particularly high risk matches. 

Refer Action Plan No. 1 

Council Tax Single Person Discount to Electoral Register Matching 

13. In addition to the 2014/15 exercise, councils were also expected to complete a data matching 

exercise comparing Council Tax Single Person Discount to the Electoral Register. The 

information for this exercise was expected to be submitted by councils in March 2014.  

14. The relevant information for Aberdeen City Council was extracted in March 2014 but due to 

difficulties in formatting this extract so that it could be accepted by the online NFI database, it 

was not submitted until August 2014. In late October 2014, the council was contacted to say 

no data had been received. The council had initially understood that the Assessor’s office 

would submit the Electoral Roll extract but after seeking clarification from NFI,  the council 

submitted both the Council Tax Extract and the Electoral Roll Extract on 30 October 2014. 

15. We reviewed the NFI database in April 2015 and found no evidence that matches had been 

followed up. The council has since informed us that they decided not to pursue investigation of 

the matches from the exercise due to the source data now being out date.  The council is 

exploring the possibility of obtaining a new set of matches based on current data extracts. 

Refer Action Plan No. 1 

Follow up of Prior Year Risks 

16. Our 2013/14 Interim Report identified a number of risks of which several had been carried 

forward from 2012/13 as they had not been implemented. Table 1 shows the current status:  

Table 1: Follow up of Prior Year Risks - Governance and Accountability 

Risk Management Action/ 

Responsible Officer/ Agreed 

Date 

Update/ Current Status 

1. The procedures for responding 

to NFI matches should be 

updated prior to the start of the 

next exercise to ensure that all 

high risk data matches are 

followed up promptly. 

High priority cases for Revenues 

and Benefits will be dealt with as 

a priority, including any follow up 

action with external bodies as 

required. 

Revenues & Benefits Manager 

Next NFI matching exercise - 

Autumn 2015 

This action was not 

progressed and is 

superseded by the findings 

set out in paragraphs 11 to 

15 earlier regarding the 

2014/15 NFI exercise. 

Refer Action Plan No. 1 

Page 291



Governance 

 

 

Page 8 Aberdeen City Council 

 

Risk Management Action/ 

Responsible Officer/ Agreed 

Date 

Update/ Current Status 

2. Although a central register of 

fraud or suspected fraud cases, 

whistleblowing cases or breaches 

of the Bribery Act framework has 

been established, the Audit and 

Risk Committee has not yet 

received a report summarising 

activity. 

This will be added to the Matters 

under Investigation report as 

necessary and reported at least 

annually. 

Head of Legal & Democratic 

Services 

30 September 2014 

Planned follow up action 

was reported to ARSC 

during the year but so far 

the action has not been 

implemented.      

OUTSTANDING - Refer 

Action Plan No. 2 

3. The Fraud and Corruption 

Strategy should be refreshed and 

promoted to staff on a regular 

basis. 

A revised policy is currently in 

draft form and requires further 

work to ensure it links cohesively 

with a number of other policies 

e.g. the financial regulations and 

managing performance.  The 

intention is to include this policy 

with a suite of revised documents 

following the current restructure. 

Corporate Accounting Manager 

31 October 2014 

A revised Fraud and 

Corruption Strategy has 

been circulated to Senior 

Managers but is not yet 

approved.   

OUTSTANDING - Refer 

Action Plan No. 2 

4. There was no follow up by the 

Policy and Performance Section 

to ensure that the council's policy 

and procedures in relation to the 

Bribery Act have been properly 

implemented. 

Completed risk assessments 

obtained for Corporate 

Governance. Other services are 

being worked on.  

Head of Legal & Democratic 

Services 

30 September 2014 

 

Risk assessments are now 

substantially complete but 

we are unclear if the 

outcome of the 

assessments has 

highlighted areas which 

need to be addressed. 

OUTSTANDING - Refer 

Action Plan No. 3 

5. In line with the Employee Code 

of Conduct, staff are responsible 

for declaring gifts or hospitality 

received. There may be merit in 

reviewing declaration processes 

within services including staff 

reminder systems. 

Individual reminders given to 

Directors at 1-2-1 discussions.  

This will be highlighted as part of 

the launch of the new suite of 

policy documents. 

Head of Legal & Democratic 

Services 

31 October 2014 

Gifts and hospitality 

declarations form part of the 

Financial Regulations which 

were refreshed and re-

issued through the Zone 

(intranet) in Autumn 2014.  

Budgetholders are 

expected to cascade 

information to their teams.    

Action Completed 

Page 292



 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 9 

 

Risk Management Action/ 

Responsible Officer/ Agreed 

Date 

Update/ Current Status 

6. Performance reports, both 

council wide and at service level, 

should be presented timeously 

and  with comparable information 

to improve overall scrutiny. 

Performance reporting to 

individual committees has 

developed differently, in some 

cases to suit the needs of 

particular committees.  The 

Corporate Performance 

Management Group will review 

ongoing reporting and make 

recommendations  as required. 

Community Planning & Corporate 

Performance Manager 

December 2014  

Performance reports have 

been revised to reflect the 

remits for the new 

committee structure.   

The format of reports 

including the number of 

indicators provided continue 

to vary significantly across 

services. For example, 

comparison against target 

is used but trend 

information is not 

consistently used.  

OUTSTANDING - Refer 

Action Plan No. 4 

7. "Aberdeen Performs" and the 

community planning website 

should be updated to provide 

users with information to assess 

how the council, its partners and 

services are performing. 

The design of the community 

planning website is ongoing and 

will be populated with SOA 

performance data  when this is 

complete.  Aberdeen Performs is 

regularly updated, but it is noted 

that many indicators at this level 

are only available on an annual 

basis.  The Corporate 

Performance Management Group 

is currently reviewing all public 

performance reporting. 

Community Planning & Corporate 

Performance Manager 

December 2014  

Limited update in 2014/15. 

SPI data was up-to-date but 

benchmarking information 

was only available for the 

2012/13 financial year. 

OUTSTANDING - Refer 

Action Plan No. 4 

 

  

Page 293



Internal Financial Controls 

 

 

Page 10 Aberdeen City Council 

 

Internal Financial Controls 
17. International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) require evaluation of critical financial systems on 

an annual basis.  

18. In order to gather assurances to support our opinion on the council's financial statements, we 

identified 10 key internal financial control systems which are listed in Table 2. 

19. Our approach requires us to annually assess the key systems of internal control and how risks 

in these systems could impact on the financial statements.  For each system identified, we 

undertake a short preliminary evaluation to obtain a general background of the system and to 

ascertain the key controls in operation.  Where no significant change to a key internal financial 

control system has been identified, our approach allows us to rely on the results of any testing 

carried out in the previous 2 years. Where reliance is taken from previous testing, we are still 

however required to undertake a brief walkthrough of controls to confirm the operation of 

controls was as expected. 

20. ISA 610, using the work of internal auditors, states that the external auditor shall determine 

whether the work of the internal auditors is likely to be adequate for the purposes of the audit 

and, if so, the planned effect of the work of internal auditors on the nature, timing or extent of 

the external auditor’s procedures. Therefore we seek to rely on the work of internal audit 

wherever possible, to assist us in obtaining the assurances we require to support the financial 

statements. 

21. Internal audit for the council is provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers. In respect of 2014/15, 

having concluded that reliance could be placed on their work, we agreed a strategy with 

internal audit which ensured sharing of the work between internal and external audit to avoid 

wherever possible duplication of audit resources and minimise the impact on officers. 

22. Table 2 lists the internal financial control systems and summarises our testing work alongside 

where we agreed to take reliance from the work of Internal Audit in respect of 2014/15 

continuous controls testing work.  As reported to the ARSC, this has been split over 2 

reporting periods, each covering 6 months of the financial year.  The first report was 

considered by the committee in February 2015 and we anticipate that the findings for the 

second half of the financial year will be reported to the committee in June 2015.  This will 

provide sufficient time for us to consider their findings before forming our opinion on the 

2014/15 financial statements.  
 
  

Page 294



Internal Financial Controls 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 11 

 

Table 2: Numbers of Key Controls Reviewed and Weaknesses Identified 

Financial Control 

System 

Controls 

Reviewed 

Reliance on 

Prior Years 

Control 

Weaknesses 

Identified 

Reliance to be 

placed on Internal 

Audit? 

General Ledger 7 0 0 Not Applicable 

Payroll 3 0 0 � 

Accounts Payable 0 3 0 � 

Accounts Receivable 1 0 0 � 

Cash & Bank 1 0 0 � 

Treasury 

Management 

1 0 0 � 

Fixed Assets 3 0 0 � 

Council Tax 1 2 1 � 

Non Domestic Rates 5 0 0 � 

Housing Rents 7 1 1 Not Applicable 

 

23. The control weaknesses arising from our reviews were as follows: 

Council Tax 

• An annual property reconciliation is carried out between the Council Tax system and 

Assessors system. We confirmed that this reconciliation was carried out in October 2014 

and that there was evidence that identified differences had been followed up. However, 

we found that there was no review of the reconciliation by senior management. A lack of 

management review increases the risk that reconciliations are not carried out or that any 

issues identified are not timeously followed up. 

Refer Action Plan No. 5 

Housing Rents 

• Weekly checks are carried out between the housing rents system and the totals posted to 

the general ledger. These feed into a cumulative monthly reconciliation which provides a 

clearer picture of any differences between the systems and the stand alone weekly 

checks. However, we noted that there was no evidence that differences in the monthly 

reconciliations had been investigated. There is consequently a risk that significant 

differences between the system and ledger may not be picked up at an early stage.  

• During the period since our audit fieldwork, monthly reconciliations have been reviewed 

and differences addressed as appropriate.  We understand that this practice will now be 

carried out on a regular basis and consequently, the action we would have proposed has 

already been taken by the Finance Partner (Communities, Housing and Infrastructure). 

Page 295



Appendix A: Action Plan 

 

 

Page 12 Aberdeen City Council 

 

Follow Up of Prior Year Risks 

24. Our 2013/14 Interim Report highlighted a number of risks within the council's key financial 

control systems. Table 3 shows the current status of the action taken to address these risks.    

Table 3: Follow Up of Prior Year Risks 

Risk Management Action/ 

Responsible Officer/ Agreed 

Date 

Update/ Current Status 

1. There is no standard 

procedure to check and 

confirm the legitimacy of 

requests to change supplier 

bank details. 

A weekly report is run which 

details all changes made to 

suppliers including set up and by 

whom, which can be used to 

check and confirm changes. 

Financial Services Manager 

31 July 2014 

Internal Audit review of this control 

for first 6 months of the 2014/15 

financial year was concluded 

satisfactorily. 

Action Completed 

2. The reconciliation 

between the cash receipting 

system and the ledger for 

housing rents has not been 

carried out on a regular 

basis. 

A number of reconciliations, 

including this one are currently 

being transferred to Accounting 

and this will be addressed within 

that process.  

Services Accounting Manager 

31 October 2014 

Our review confirmed the 

reconciliation had been carried out 

to the proscribed frequency. 

Action Completed 

3. The monthly cumulative 

reconciliations between the 

Housing Rents system and 

the financial ledger have not 

been carried out on a 

regular basis. 

This will be incorporated into the 

current process. 

Finance Partner (Housing & 

Environment) 

31 August 2014 

Our review confirmed the 

reconciliation had been carried out 

to the proscribed frequency. 

Action Completed 

 

4. Period end management 

reports in respect of the 

general ledger were not 

signed off to evidence that 

relevant matters had been 

addressed. 

This will be considered and 

incorporated into the current 

process as appropriate. 

Finance Manager (Systems) 

30 June 2014 

We reviewed period end 

management reports but did not 

identify evidence that these were 

being signed off to confirm relevant 

matters had been addressed. 

Since April 2015, reports are 

reviewed and signed off 

electronically.  An email trail is 

retained to evidence the sign off 

process. 

Action Completed 

Page 296



Appendix A: Action Plan 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 13 

 

Appendix A: Action Plan 
Action 

Point 

Refer 

Para 

No. 

Recommendation  Management Action Responsible 

Officer 

Target date 

1 12, 15 

and 16 

In order to benefit more 

from the NFI data 

matching exercise, the 

council should put plans 

in place to follow up 

high  risk matches 

promptly.  

The council recognises 

that the matches have 

not been reviewed as 

quickly as they should 

have been.  The 

Corporate Fraud Team 

Manager became 

responsible for NFI in 

January.  Work is 

underway with services 

to put new procedures 

in place to ensure the 

outstanding matches 

are reviewed as quickly 

as possible. 

Revenues and 

Benefits Manager 

31 October 

2015 

2 16 The Fraud and 

Corruption Strategy 

should be refreshed and 

promoted to staff on a 

regular basis. 

 

As part of the refresh, 

arrangements should be 

put in place to provide 

the ARSC with an 

annual activity report 

summarising 

fraud/suspected fraud 

cases, whistleblowing 

cases and breaches of 

the Bribery Act. This 

report should also 

include any lessons 

learnt and action taken.  

 

Strategy to be 

approved and 

promoted. 

 

 

 

Report to be prepared 

for the ARSC  

 

Head of Finance  

 

 

 

 

 

Head of Legal & 

Democratic 

Services  

30 

September 

2015 

 

 

 

31 March 

2016 

Page 297



Appendix A: Action Plan 

 

 

Page 14 Aberdeen City Council 

 

Action 

Point 

Refer 

Para 

No. 

Recommendation  Management Action Responsible 

Officer 

Target date 

3 16 Risk assessments 

undertaken in response 

to the requirements of 

the Bribery Act should 

be evaluated and 

addressed as 

appropriate.   

Risk assessments to be 

evaluated and any 

issues highlighted to be 

addressed as 

appropriate. 

Head of Legal & 

Democratic 

Services 

31 

December 

2015 

4 16 Plans should be 

formalised for the 

development of a 

consistent approach for 

reporting performance 

information to elected 

members and 

arrangements for the 

refresh of 'Aberdeen 

Performs'.    

Proposals for 

implementing a 

consistent approach will 

be developed and 

presented to elected 

members for approval. 

 

'Aberdeen Performs' is 

updated when 

performance data 

becomes available.  A 

refresh is scheduled for 

2015/16 to reappraise 

the method in which 

performance 

information is 

communicated to the 

public in light of 

developing corporate 

priorities. 

Head of IT and 

Transformation 

 

 

 

 

 

Head of 

Communications 

and Promotion  

31 March 

2016 

 

 

 

 

 

31 March 

2016 

5 23 Property reconciliations 

between council tax 

records and Assessors 

records should be 

evidenced that they 

have been reviewed by 

a second officer. 

Property reconciliations 

to be timetabled (6 

months) for August and 

February.  Sign off on 

exceptions to be 

undertaken by senior 

management. 

Revenues & 

Benefits Manager 

30 

September 

2015 

 

Page 298



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\0\6\AI00031608\$vhobru5c.docx  

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE:   Audit, Risk & Scrutiny 
 
DATE:   25 June 2015 
 
INTERIM DIRECTOR: Angela Scott 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Unaudited Annual Accounts 2014/15 
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG/15/83 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED     Yes 

 
1.  PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Elected Members with an overview of the 

Council’s 2014/15 unaudited Annual Accounts. 
 
1.2 To enable scrutiny of and approval by the Committee on the content of the 

Annual Governance Statement.  The statement has been included in the 
2014/15 unaudited Annual Accounts subject to this approval. 

 
4.3 The report also provides the unaudited Annual Accounts for those registered 

charities where the Council is the sole trustee and is subject to statutory 
requirements for separate accounts and audit opinions.   
 

2.  RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 
 
a) approve the Annual Governance Statement as included in the Council’s 

unaudited Annual Accounts for the financial year 2014/15; 
b) consider the Council’s unaudited Annual Accounts 2014/15, paying particular 

attention to the sections highlighted in paragraph 5.4; 
c) consider the unaudited Annual Accounts 2014/15 of the Council’s registered 

charities; 
d) note that following this meeting the Council’s and the registered charities 

unaudited Annual Accounts will be finalised, signed and submitted to Audit 
Scotland by 30 June 2015; 

e) note that as now required by statute, the Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee on 29 
September 2015 will receive the Council’s audited Annual Accounts for 
consideration and approval prior to their signature by the Head of Finance, Chief 
Executive and Council Leader;  
  

Agenda Item 9.2

Page 299



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\0\6\AI00031608\$vhobru5c.docx  

f) note that the Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee of 29 September 2015 will also 
receive the external auditor’s “Combined Annual Report and Report to Those 
Charged with Governance on the 2014/15 audit” for debate and consideration 
and that this report will set out the auditor’s finding and conclusions from all audit 
activity undertaken during the year, highlight the significant issues arising from 
the audit of the annual accounts and inform Elected Members of the proposed 
audit opinion in advance of the accounts being certified; and 

f) note that the Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee on 29 September 2015 will also 
receive the audited Annual Accounts for the registered charities for consideration 
and approval prior to their signature along with the associated external auditor’s 
report.  

 
3.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  
 
3.2 The overall financial position of the Council was reported to and considered by 

the Finance, Policy & Resources Committee on 9 June 2015 and is available via:   
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/documents/s47474/FPR%20Year%20End
%20Report%20FINAL%20ISSUED.pdf 

 
4.  OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The preparation of the Annual Governance Statement is a part of the Council’s 

compliance with the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance on ‘Delivering Good Governance 
in Local Government’. 
 

4.2 There is a statutory requirement for the Council to produce both unaudited and 
audited Annual Accounts within certain timescales and to a high standard.  This 
is a major task which requires co-operation and input from a large number of 
people across all services of the Council.  It is only with the commitment of all 
staff that these high standards and deadlines can be met. 

 
5.  REPORT 
 
5.1 Annual Governance Statement 

 
5.1.1 The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014 specify that the 

Annual Accounts must include an Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 
 

5.1.2 The AGS should be produced in accordance with proper accounting practices 
and the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework: Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government. 

 

5.1.3 The Council has developed its approach to the annual governance review 
process and in 2014/15 has again undertaken a self-evaluation of the 
effectiveness of the Local Code of Corporate Governance. 

Page 300



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\0\6\AI00031608\$vhobru5c.docx  

5.1.4 There are different layers of assurance that have been considered and used in 
determining the content of the AGS.  These include management assurance, the 
internal audit assurance framework, and the consideration of external audit and 
external scrutiny. 
 

5.1.5 Management assurance includes the certification of internal controls and 
assurance by all Heads of Service, along with an assurance statement having 
been received by, or on behalf of, the Chief Executive of the group entities.   

 
5.1.6 Further confidence is based on the operational structure and legislative 

framework that exists for the Council, including the continuity that has been 
maintained in relation to statutory posts throughout the year. 
 

5.1.7 The Standing Orders, Terms of Reference and Scheme of Delegation define the 
roles and responsibilities for officers and Elected Members.   

 
5.1.8 Development of the system of risk management has continued throughout the 

year and the Committee has received a range of reports on progress in this 
respect. 
 

5.1.9 The accounting team work closely with budget holders to ensure that a positive 
relationship exists and there is openness and transparency about decision 
making and the financial implications.   
 

5.1.10 Management assurance has also been used in considering the progress that has 
been made around the nine significant issues identified in last years’ statement.  
During 2014/15, sufficient progress has been made in addressing six issues 
such that they have been removed.  For the remaining three, whilst progress has 
been made management feel they have not yet been fully completed and 
therefore require to be kept on the AGS for 2014/15.  These are described below 
in paragraphs 5.1.11 – 5.1.13. 
 

5.1.11 Significant progress in setting up the framework for scrutiny of arm’s length 
external organisation has been made with some reporting to the Shareholder 
Scrutiny Group in relation to Bon Accord Care.  In addition, formal governance 
hubs have been established which will meet twice yearly and report thereafter to 
committee.  This is a substantial step forward which will see the first of these 
hubs meeting in June 2015.  As work is also ongoing in relation to the 
identification and consideration of the risks to the Council from its relationship 
with such organisations, officers believe this issue should remain on the AGS. 
 

5.1.12 Contract management practices in Social Care & Wellbeing were identified as 
requiring improvement to address gaps in information and performance 
management data.  Whilst procedures have been implemented to address the 
recommendations of the audit with significant progress having been made 
towards having contracts in place for all services, this will continue during 
2015/16 and thus remains on the AGS. 

Page 301



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\0\6\AI00031608\$vhobru5c.docx  

5.1.13 A national investigation in relation to allegations made regarding baby and adult 
cremations including those at Hazlehead Crematorium is being undertaken.  The 
outcome and recommendations arising from this investigation will be reported in 
due course and meantime this issue remains on the AGS. 
 

5.1.14 In undertaking a self-evaluation of the Council’s effectiveness of its governance 
framework a number of officers have reviewed the Local Code using the 
CIPFA/SOLACE checklists and drawn judgements on the extent to which the 
Council is effectively complying with the code. 
 

5.1.15 The results of this were positive as each question on the checklist was able to be 
evaluated as being compliant with the local code requirements. 
 

5.1.16 Independent scrutiny is undertaken by the Internal Audit function, which was 
carried out by Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP.  They have consistently provided 
management and the Committee with recommendations on improvements that 
can be implemented for the benefit, amongst other things, of the control 
environment. 
 

5.1.17 The annual report from the Head of Internal Audit on the work that they’ve 
carried out in 2014/15 is also being considered by this Committee.  The content 
of this has supported the preparation of the AGS. 
 

5.1.18 Two of the five audits that are highlighted in that report have been included in the 
AGS, whilst a third in relation to arm’s length organisations has been 
amalgamated with the existing item on this subject.  The remaining two, Car 
Parking and Bus Lane Enforcement and Compliance with Laws and Regulations, 
have not been included as the actions recommended were implemented during 
the year. 

  
5.1.19 External scrutiny is required by legislation and the Council’s external auditor, 

Audit Scotland, reports on a variety of areas, not simply the financial statements 
and financial control environment.  These reports have been considered in 
preparing the AGS for 2014/15 with organisational and committee restructure, 
group governance and the health and social care integration agenda being 
highlighted as governance issues.  These have been included in the AGS. 

 
5.1.21 In considering the Assurance and Improvement Plan (AIP) for the period 2014-

17, the Local Area Network through a shared risk assessment (SRA) concluded 
that a Best Value audit follow up would be appropriate to consider improvement 
since 2009 and, in particular, to determine whether performance has been 
managed and sustained against a backdrop of significant changes in leadership.  
The audit was undertaken in early 2015 with the final report due to be published 
on 2nd July 2015.    

Page 302



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\0\6\AI00031608\$vhobru5c.docx  

5.1.22 The preparation of the AGS also featured a review of other external scrutiny, 
including the Public Inquiry ordered by the Traffic Commissioner in relation to the 
Council’s Goods Vehicles Operator’s Licence and the Care Inspectorate led 
inspection of integrated children’s services. 
 

5.1.23 In conclusion and in examining the evidence, the 2014/15 AGS has been 
prepared with an approach of openness and accountability that recognises the 
positive framework that the Council has and the effectiveness of it during the 
financial year.  It should be noted that the Statement has been produced by 
management and is not an independent expression of audit opinion. 
 

5.1.24 The Annual Governance Statement is signed on behalf of Aberdeen City Council 
by the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council.  It is recommended for 
approval prior to being signed off. 
 

5.2 Unaudited Annual Accounts 
 
5.2.1 On 26 February 2015 this committee received and noted the contents of a 

report, “Annual Accounts 2014/15 – Action Plan” which provided high level 
information and key dates in relation to the production of the 2014/15 Annual 
Accounts. 

 
5.2.2 The key dates contained within the above report were:- 

31 March 2015  End of financial year 2014/15 
March–Sept 2015 Information from Group Entities (including ALEO’s) 
17 June 2015 Public notice for Annual Accounts inspection period to be 

issued 
25 June 2015 Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee to consider Draft Annual 

Accounts 
30 June 2015 Statutory deadline for Proper Officer to sign Draft Annual  

Accounts, submit to the Auditor and publish on the website 
1 – 21 July 2015 Public inspection period for Annual Accounts 
30 July 2015 Deadline for submission of the Whole of Government 

Accounts (WGA) to the Scottish Government 
29 Sept 2015 Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee to consider and aim to 

approve audited Annual Accounts for signature 
29/30 Sept 2015 Signing of audited Annual Accounts by Proper Officer, 

Chief Executive and Council Leader 
30 Sept 2015 Deadline for submission of audited Annual Accounts to the 

Auditor 
Early Oct 2015 Deadline for submission of the Audited WGA to the 

Scottish Government (date to be confirmed) 
31 Oct 2015 Statutory deadline for publication on website of signed 

Annual Accounts & Audit Certificate, related Auditor report 
and accounts of all subsidiary bodies 

18 Dec 2015 Deadline for submission of Audited Trust Accounts to 
OSCR 

Page 303



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\0\6\AI00031608\$vhobru5c.docx  

5.2.3 There is a statutory requirement that Annual Accounts for each financial year be 
submitted for audit to the external auditor no later than 30 June in the next 
financial year. 

 
5.2.4 This means that the unaudited Annual Accounts for 2014/15, prepared in 

accordance with the relevant Accounting Codes of Practice, require to be 
submitted by 30 June 2015 to Audit Scotland.   

 

5.2.5 There is also a requirement that the unaudited Annual Accounts be provided to 
and considered by a committee whose remit includes audit or governance.  In 
recent years this committee has received the accounts prior to submission to the 
auditor and this is seen as good practice.  As the body charged with governance 
it allows the committee the opportunity to take ownership of the accounts, to 
review them such as to be satisfied with their completeness before they are 
submitted for audit.  

 
5.3 Inspection and Audit of the Accounts 
 
5.3.1 The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014 defines the notice 

period, the inspection period, the deadline for submission of an objection to the 
accounts and the information which must be made available for inspection. At 
least 14 days’ public notice must be given prior to the commencement of the 
inspection period.  The latest date by which the public inspection can start is 1 
July 2015 and therefore the latest date for issuing this public notice is 17 June 
2015.  The inspection must last 15 working days and will therefore end on 21 
July 2015. 

 
5.3.2 The Regulations also require publication of the unaudited Annual Accounts, as 

submitted to the Auditor, on the Council’s website until the audited accounts can 
replace them.  This not only provides a means by which the public can access 
the accounts during the inspection period but also ensures the Council is open 
and transparent in its reporting.  

 
5.3.3 On completion of the audit process, the external auditor’s will present their report 

“Combined Annual Report and Report to Those Charged with Governance on 
the 2014/15 audit” to the meeting of this committee on 29 September 2015.  This 
report will highlight any significant issues arising from the audit and inform 
Elected Members of the proposed audit opinion in advance of the final accounts 
being certified. 

 
5.3.4 The audited Annual Accounts will also be presented to this meeting for 

consideration and approval for signature.  Thereafter, the accounts will be 
signed by the Head of Finance, Chief Executive and Council Leader.  The 
signed accounts must be submitted to and signed by Audit Scotland no later 
than 30 September 2015. 

  

Page 304



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\0\6\AI00031608\$vhobru5c.docx  

5.4 Financial Performance and Review of the Accounts 
 
5.4.1 It should be noted that the unaudited Annual Accounts are prepared according to 

the requirements of the IFRS based Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting (the Code) and as a result are more complex and detailed than the 
information included in the monitoring reports provided to Committee throughout 
the year.  

 

5.4.2 A report detailing the financial position of the Council was considered by the 
Finance, Policy and Resources committee on 9 June 2015.  This report covered 
the Council’s revenue and capital accounts for General Fund, Housing Revenue 
and Common Good and the reserves and balances of the Council as at 31 
March 2015.  

 
5.4.3 The following paragraphs highlight a number of the key sections of the Annual 

Accounts. 
 
5.4.4 Management Commentary – focuses on the financial performance of the Council 

and its group as well as highlighting significant past and future events and 
comments on the economic climate within which the Council operates.   

 
5.4.5 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (CIES) - reflects the income 

and expenditure of the Council based on the requirements of accounting 
standards and is therefore somewhat different to the figures reflected in the 
management commentary.  However, the two can be reconciled through Note 17 
to the accounts. 

 
5.4.6 Balance Sheet – provides information on the assets and liabilities of the Council 

together with its usable and unusable reserves.  Net assets (i.e. assets less 
liabilities) have increased by £35 million from March 2014 to a total of £1,200 
billion at March 2015.  The corresponding increase in reserves reflects a £19 
million and £16 million rise in usable reserves and unusable reserves 
respectively. 

 
5.4.7 Common Good and Trusts – the Common Good CIES and Balance Sheet reflect 

an increase in the value of its assets which has resulted in its value increasing 
by £6.4 million to £105.7 million at March 2015.  The financial statements of the 
Trusts now clearly reflect the split between charitable and non charitable trusts.  
This will aid the separate audit of charitable trusts, which is an OSCR (Office of 
the Scottish Charity Regulator) requirement and will be carried out by the 
Council’s external auditors. 
  

Page 305



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\0\6\AI00031608\$vhobru5c.docx  

5.4.8 Group Accounts – these include the Council, its subsidiaries, associate and joint 
venture companies and reflects all the significant entities the Council has a 
controlling interest in.  The group balance sheet shows net assets and reserves 
of £1,301 billion.  A few smaller organisations have been excluded from the 
financial statements due to their relative size on the grounds of materiality and 
as such their performance is disclosed simply in the notes to the group accounts.  

 
5.5 Registered Charities 
 
5.5.1 This encompasses those trusts, registered with OSCR, for which the Council (all 

43 Councillors) is the sole trustee.  There are eight separately registered 
charities which for reporting purposes can be grouped together into a single 
Annual Report and Accounts.  The consolidated balance sheet shows a value of 
£7.6 million, after the elimination of intra trust balances i.e. the investment in the 
Lands of Skene by the Guildry and Bridge of Don trusts. 

 
5.5.2 These accounts are subject to the same audit process as the Council with the 

audited accounts and related auditor’s report being reported back to this 
committee on 29 September 2015 for approval prior to signature by the relevant 
officers and the Council Leader. 

 
5.5.3 Thereafter, they will be submitted to OSCR, no later than 18 December 2015. 
 
6.  IMPACT 
 
6.1 The publication of the Annual Accounts demonstrates the Council’s proper 

stewardship and accountability of the public funds with which it is entrusted. 
 
6.2 The approval and inclusion of the Annual Governance Statement in the Annual 

Accounts ensures that the Council uses an approach which is recognised as 
best practice. 

 
7.  MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 
7.1 The robust process of closing the accounts at the financial year-end means that 

all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure that they are reflective of the 
financial circumstances of the Council during 2014/15 and as at 31 March 2015.  
A risk remains that the external audit process reveals potential errors or 
adjustments and these will be discussed by officers and the external auditor 
throughout the process, before the audited Annual Accounts and the auditor’s 
report and opinion is presented to the Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee in 
September 2015. 

  

Page 306



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\0\6\AI00031608\$vhobru5c.docx  

8.  REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 

Sandra Buthlay 
Accounting Manager 
sbuthlay@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 522565  

 
9.  BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government, Framework’ CIPFA & SOLACE, 
2007; 
‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government, Guidance Note for Scottish 
Local Authorities’ CIPFA & SOLACE, 2008; 
Unaudited Annual Accounts 2014/15 

Page 307



Page 308

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Aberdeen City Council 
Charitable Trusts 

 
Annual Report and Financial Statements 

 
For the year ended 

31 March 2015 
 
 

Registered Numbers:  
 

Guildry - SC011857 
Bridge of Don Fund - SC018551 

Alexander MacDonald’s Bequest - SC018568 
Bridge of Dee Fund - SC021297 

Aberdeen Art Gallery Trusts - SC018575 
Lands of Skene – SC018533 
Lands of Torry – SC021299 

Education Endowment Investment Funds (EEIF) – SC025063 
 
 
 

Page 309



 

1 
 

 
Aberdeen City Council Charitable Trusts 
Trustees Annual Report 2014/15  
 
Aberdeen City Council acts as sole trustees for the charities in this report. 
 
Aberdeen City Council administers the Charitable Trusts and separately accounts 
for them. They do not form part of the Council’s single entity balance sheet, 
although under s222 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, the property 
of the Charitable Trusts “vest(s) in” the relevant local authority. However they are 
included in the Annual Accounts of the Council and its group. 
 
Reference and administration details 
 
At the end of the year the Council acts as sole trustee for 8 trusts which have 
charitable status and are registered with the Office of the Scottish Charity 
Regulator (OSCR). The charity names, charity numbers, purposes of the 
charities, and where available details of governing document for the charities 
covered by this report are given in Appendix 1 of this document. 
 
Principal Address 
 
Aberdeen City Council, 
Marischal College, 
Broad Street, 
Aberdeen  
AB10 1AB 
 
Auditor 
 
Stephen Boyle,  
Assistant Director,  
Audit Scotland,  
4th Floor South Suite, 
8 Nelson Mandela Place,  
Glasgow  
G2 1BT 
 
Secretary  
Jane MacEachran (resigned April 2015),  
Craig Innes (appointed April 2015, resigned August 2015), 
Fraser Bell (appointed August 2015) 
Head of Legal & Democratic Services, 
Aberdeen City Council  
 
Treasurer  
Steven Whyte, CPFA 
Head of Finance, 
Aberdeen City Council. 

Page 310



 

2 
 

Trustees 
 
As per guidance provided by OSCR, “Trustees” of the Charitable Trusts are those 
who have “general control and management” of the charity. Decisions regarding 
the general control and management of the Charitable Trusts are made by the 
Full Council. For the purposes of this report it is our interpretation of the 
aforementioned that all elected members are Charity Trustees. 
 
The Trustees are the Councillors of Aberdeen City Council, and are as follows:- 
 
Lord Provost George Adam 
(Chairperson) 
Councillor Yvonne Allan 
Councillor Kirsty Blackman 
Councillor Marie Boulton 
Councillor David Cameron  
Councillor Scott Carle 
Councillor Neil Cooney 
Councillor John Corall 
Councillor Bill Cormie 
Councillor Barney Crockett 
Councillor Steve Delaney  
Councillor Graham Dickson  
Councillor Alan Donnelly 
Councillor Jackie Dunbar 
Councillor Lesley Dunbar  
Councillor Andrew Finlayson  
Councillor Fraser Forsyth  
Councillor Gordon Graham 
Councillor Ross Grant  
Councillor Martin Greig 
Councillor Len Ironside CBE 
 

Councillor Muriel Jaffrey 
Councillor James Kiddie 
Councillor Jenny Laing  
Councillor Graeme Lawrence  
Councillor Neil MacGregor  
Councillor M. Tauqeer Malik  
Councillor Aileen Malone 
Councillor Andrew May 
Councillor Callum McCaig 
Councillor Ramsay Milne  
Councillor Jean Morrison MBE  
Councillor Nathan Morrison  
Councillor Jim Noble 
Councillor John Reynolds 
Councillor Gill Samarai  
Councillor Jennifer Stewart 
Councillor Sandy Stuart 
Councillor Angela Taylor  
Councillor Ross Thomson  
Councillor Gordon Townson  
Councillor Willie Young 
Councillor Ian Yuill 
 

All Trustees have served for the whole of the financial year to 31 March 2015. 
 
All of the Trustees are normally elected or re-elected at local government 
elections. By-elections are held on the occasion of elected members vacating 
their positions to elect new members, who automatically become Trustees. New 
members are supplied with training as part of their induction process. 
 
It should be noted that Councillors Kirsty Blackman and Callum McCaig resigned 
as local Councillors in May 2015. 

Page 311



 

3 
 

Structure, governance and management 
 
The Charitable Trusts are constituted in a variety of ways. The type of governing 
document is shown at Appendix 1 where they are available. Information regarding 
many of the trusts is not available owing to their antiquity and the fact that they 
will have been administered by a number of government bodies since coming into 
public control. 
 
The positions of Secretary and Treasurer are filled by professionally qualified 
officers of Aberdeen City Council.  
 
Risk 
 
The trustees have overall responsibility for the Charitable Trusts system of 
internal control, including financial reporting and compliance with laws and 
regulations. The trustees acknowledge that such a system is designed to manage 
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can 
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material 
misstatement or loss. 
 
Objectives and activities 
 
Information on the purpose and nature of the trusts is given below.  
 
Bridge of Don Fund 
 
The Fund, more properly known as the Brig O’ Balgownie Trust Fund, was set up 
in 1605 and its original purpose was for the “repair and upholding of the Brig O’ 
Balgownie”. The most recent counsel opinion obtained in 1970 stated that the 
Council must, in the first instance, retain sufficient funds to discharge the primary 
objects of the trust, that is the repair and maintenance of the bridge itself, but 
thereafter they would be free to apply any surplus monies for certain other 
purposes. 
 
The Bridge of Don Fund has a 30% interest in the Lands of Skene with the 
remainder of its funds being invested in the Aberdeen City Council Loans Fund. 
 
Bridge of Dee Fund 
 
This fund was established in the 16th Century for the support, maintenance, 
reparation and when it is necessary the re-building of the new stone bridge over 
the River Dee. 
 
Trust funds are invested in the Aberdeen City Council Loans Fund. 
 

Page 312



 

4 
 

Alexander MacDonald’s Bequest 
 
This fund was established in 1884 for the purchase of works of art for the 
Aberdeen Art Gallery and Museum collection following the death of Mr 
MacDonald. 
 

Trust funds are invested in the Aberdeen City Council Loans Fund. 
 
Aberdeen Art Gallery Trusts 
 
This trust was reorganised in March 2014 by the adoption of a new trust deed and 
funds are used for the advancement of the arts by providing for the purchase of 
works of art for the collection of Aberdeen Art Gallery & Museum. 
 

Trust funds are invested in the Aberdeen City Council Loans Fund. 
 
Guildry 
 
The Guildry was formed 800 years ago, giving merchants of Aberdeen 
considerable powers within the town of Aberdeen. Over time that power has 
diminished and the membership is no longer restricted to merchants. Today the 
Guildry exists for the promotion of the City of Aberdeen. The governance of the 
Guildry was last updated by a Court of Session decision in 1996 and the Guildry 
is currently working on drafting a revised constitution to enable participation in a 
wider range of charitable activities. 
 
Trust assets are a 40% share in the Lands of Skene and investments in the 
Aberdeen City Council Loans Fund. 
 
Lands of Skene 
 
The Lands of Skene goes back to 1710 when the east half of the Lands of Skene 
was purchased on behalf of certain accounts. This was followed in 1712 by the 
purchase of the west half. Two feuing schemes were carried out in 1789 and 
1816 and the land now remaining is known as the Lands of Easter Carnie. 
 
The free revenue from the Lands of Skene is split between the following: 
Guildry Funds – 40% 
Bridge of Don Trust – 30% 
Common Good Fund – 30% 
 
This is believed to represent the share of investment in the original purchase of 
the lands. 
 

Page 313



 

5 
 

Lands of Torry 
 
The Lands of Torry goes back to at least 1704 when they were purchased on 
behalf of certain accounts. 
 
The free revenue from the Lands of Torry is split between the following: 
Duncan Liddel’s Mortification – Professor of Mathematics – 25% 
Duncan Liddel’s Mortification – Library of College – 2% 
James Cargill’s Mortification – Bursary Fund – 10% 
Patrick Copland’s Mortification – Professor of Divinity – 12% 
Common Good Fund – 51% 
 
Education Endowment Investment Funds (EEIF) 
 
The EEIF comprises of over 60 smaller trusts, bequests and legacies split over 3 
general areas. 
 

· Education – primarily concerned with prizes or awards at schools 

· Social Work – largely to provide comforts at residential homes 

· John Murdoch Henderson Bequest – to be used for the purchase of music of 
intrinsically Scottish interest for the Central Library, Aberdeen. 

 
In general the charities activities are limited to the accrual of income from 
investments for use as appropriate given the purposes of the charity.  
 
While reviewing records as part of the Council’s reorganisation of charitable 
trusts, OSCR advised that only a small number of trusts previously reported as 
part of the EEIF were actually registered as charities.  Only accounts in relation 
to these registered charities are contained in this document.  A review will take 
place of all trusts that were previously reported as part of the EEIF to consider a 
reorganisation in consultation with OSCR.  
 
The charitable trust now comprises of the trusts listed in appendix 2, sixteen of 
these trusts relate to prizes or awards at school while the other trust is for the 
purchase of music of an intrinsically Scottish interest. 
 
 

Page 314



 

6 
 

Future plans 
 
A revised constitution for the Guildry is currently being drafted to enable the trust 
funds to be used for a wider range of charitable purposes. The EEIF is currently 
being reviewed in anticipation of a reorganisation by the adoption of a revised 
constitution which will enable trust funds to be used for a wider range of purposes 
than currently allowed by existing governance documentation. A request to 
reorganise the John Murdoch Henderson Bequest by the adoption of a revised 
constitution has been approved by OSCR in April 2015 and approved by Trustees 
in a Full Council meeting on 13th May 2015. OSCR has expressed concern on 
whether the Bridge of Don and the Bridge of Dee trusts meet the current charity 
tests and expert legal advice has been commissioned on this matter. Depending 
on the outcome of this advice, these trusts may have to be reorganised. 
  
Financial Review 
 
The following financial statements for all of the Charitable Trusts have been 
prepared using the connected charities provision. 
 
They show the income and expenditure for the individual charities along with the 
surplus or deficit for the year.  None of the individual charities are carrying 
forward a deficit on their reserves. 
 
Where Governance Costs are allocated to charities these are in proportion to the 
value of the sums invested with the Council and are based on time spent by 
officers of Aberdeen City Council providing financial and other support to the 
organisations. 
 
The investment policy of the Trust is to invest any surplus monies in the 
Aberdeen City Council Loans Fund. 
 
Reserves Policy 
  
The Charitable Trusts have no explicit reserves policy, but as a general principle 
the “capital” of the funds is held effectively as a permanent endowment with only 
the annual income available for disbursement in the year. 
 

Page 315



 

7 
 

STATEMENT OF THE TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE 

ACCOUNTS 
 

The Trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ report and accounts in 
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (UK GAAP). 
 
Law applicable to charities in Scotland requires the Trustees to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the Trust’s 
financial activities during the year and of its financial position at the end of the 
year.  In preparing financial statements, giving a true and fair view, the Trustees 
are required to: 
 

· select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently; 
 

· make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 

· state whether applicable accounting standards and statements of 
recommended practice have been followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 

 

· prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is 
inappropriate to presume that the Trust will continue in operation. 

 
The Trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which 
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Trust 
and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the 
Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, the Charity Accounts 
(Scotland) Regulations 2006 and the provisions of the Trust Deed.  The Trustees 
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for 
taking reasonable steps for the prevention or detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 
 
Signed by the Treasurer on behalf of the trustees on 26th June 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………  
Steven Whyte, CPFA 
Treasurer 
 

Page 316



8 

Appendix 1 

Charity Name, Number and Purpose

Charity Name Charity Number Purpose Governing Document

Guildry SC011857 Support the Historic Guildry Activities Court of Session Decision 1996

Bridge of Don Fund SC018551 Upkeep of Bridge Unavailable

Alexander MacDonald's Bequest SC018568 Purchase of Works of Art for Aberdeen Art Gallery Trust Deed 11 December 1882

Aberdeen Art Gallery Trusts SC018575 Purchase of Works of Art for Aberdeen Art Gallery Trust Deed March 2014

Bridge of Dee Fund SC021297 Upkeep of Bridge Unavailable

Lands of Skene SC018533 Unavailable

Lands of Torry SC021299 The advancement of Education Unavailable

Education Endowment Investment Funds SC025063 The advancement of Education and the 

advancement of the Arts, Heritage, Culture and 

Science

Unavailable except for John 

Murdoch Henderson Trust Deed 

of May 2015.

 

P
a
g
e
 3

1
7



9 

APPENDIX 2 

EEIF Charitable Trusts 

EEIF charitable Trusts

D M Andrew Bequest For Prizes in Classics at Aberdeen Grammar School

Miss Elizabeth H Bain Bequest For music tuition and for instruments to pupils in city schools

Mrs Athol Benzie Prize Fund For best all round pupil in fifth year at Aberdeen Academy

Edith and David R Bishop Prize Fund For prizes to pupils at Aberdeen Grammar School selected by the rector

Mrs Mina Brooks Memorial Prize For prizes for children’s theatre

Miss Lucy Cruickshank Prize Fund For prize to best pupil or pupils in French or German at High School for Girls

Jessie Durno Prize Fund For Prize in Mathematics at Aberdeen Academy

Mary Durno Prize Fund For Prize in English at Aberdeen Academy

Margaret Duthie Memorial Prize Fund For pupil showing the greatest endeavour at Dyce School

Miss Margaret C Harper Prize Fund For best pupil in German at Aberdeen Academy

Miss Bessie Heriot Prize Fund For prize to best girl at Kaimhill Secondary School

John M Robertson Memorial Prize Fund For prize to best pupil in commercial subjects at Aberdeen Grammar School

Kenneth MacIntosh Bequest For paying or supplementing the expenses of pupils at Aberdeen Grammar School 

who might otherwise not be able to afford the cost of school trips 

Dr Charles McLeod Trust For purchase of books on Physical Science or Astronomy at Aberdeen Grammar 

School

William Meston Bursary Fund For bursary to pupil of merit at Culter School taking a secondary course

Dr George MacKenzie Prize Fund For prize to best pupil in German in Aberdeen Academy

John M Henderson Bequest To purchase music of intrinsically Scottish interest for the Central Library, Aberdeen

 

P
a
g

e
 3

1
8



 

10 
 

Aberdeen City Council Charitable Trusts 
Statement of Financial Activities 
For the year ended 31 March 2015 
 
 

Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total

Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds

2014/15 2014/15 2014/15 2014/15 2013/14

Note £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

Incoming resources

Incoming resources from generated funds

   Voluntary income 2 135                  -                     -                       135         50           

   Investment Income 3 28                    -                     -                       28           22           

Rent from Land & Buildings 4 164                  -                     -                       164         153         

Total incoming resources 327                  -                     -                       327         224         

Resources expended

Charitable activities 5 137 -                     -                       137 140

Governance costs 6 50 -                     -                       50 29

Property Costs 5 20 -                     -                       20 9

Total resources expended 207 -                     -                       207 177

Net incoming/(outgoing) resources before

    other recognised gains and losses 121                  -                     -                       121         47           

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Gains/(losses) on investment assets 54                    -                     10                    64           1,005      

Net movement in funds 175                  -                     10                    185         1,052      

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 7,288               -                     108                  7,396      6,344      

Total funds carried forward 7,463               -                     118                  7,581      7,396      

 
 

Page 319



 

11 
 

Aberdeen City Council Charitable Trusts 
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015 
 

2015 2014

Note £'000s £'000s

Fixed assets

Gilts 5             5             

Equities 115         106         

Tangible Assets 7 4,617      4,563      

Total fixed assets 4,737      4,674      

Current assets

Stocks and work-in-progress 1             1             

Debtors 8 52           54           

Investments - City of Aberdeen Loans Fund 9 2,439      2,291      

Cash at bank - Guildry Investment Account 400         400         

Total current assets 2,892      2,747      

Liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 10 (48)          (25)          

Net current assets/(liabilities) 2,844      2,722      

Net asset/(liabilities ) 7,581      7,396      

The funds of the charity

Endowment funds 118         108         

Unrestricted income funds:

Designated Funds:

Common Good Fund 2,253      2,230      

Dr Duncan Liddel's Mortification - Professor of Mathematics 520         511         

Dr Duncan Liddel's Mortification - Library of College 26           26           

James Cargill Mortification - Bursary Fund 212         208         

Patrick Copland's Mortification - Professor of Divinity 254         250         

   Unrestricted funds 4,197      4,063      

Total unrestricted funds 7,463      7,288      

Total charity funds 7,581      7,396      

 
These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting 
Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008). 
 
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the 
Treasurer on behalf of the trustees on 26th June 2015: 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………  
Steven Whyte, CPFA 
Treasurer 
 
 

Page 320



 

12 
 

Aberdeen City Council Charitable Trusts 
Notes to the Accounts 
For the year ended 31 March 2015 
 
1 - Accounting policies  
 
Accounting convention  
 
The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention, and include the 
results of the Trusts’ operations, all of which are continuing.   
 
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting 
standards, the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting and Reporting 
by Charities (SORP 2005) issued in March 2005, and comply with the Charities 
and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts 
(Scotland) Regulations 2006. 
 
In line with Regulation 7 of the 2006 Regulations, these financial statements have 
been prepared on the basis that the Trust funds for which Aberdeen City Council 
acts as sole Trustee are connected charities. As such, the accounts for the 
statements contain all relevant information that the individual accounts would 
have contained if they had been prepared on an individual basis. 
 
Going concern 
 
The accounts have been prepared under the going concern concept on the basis 
that Trustees have considered it and are satisfied that the going concern concept 
is appropriate.  
 
Recognition of revenue and expenditure  
 
All income and expenditure due to be paid or received in respect of the year 
ended 31 March 2015 has been provided for within these accounts.  
 
Incoming resources  
 
Incoming resources are included in the Statement of Financial Activities when the 
charity is legally entitled to the income and the amount can be quantified with 
reasonable accuracy. All incoming resources are in relation to unrestricted funds. 
 
Income from investments is included in the Statement of Financial Activities in 
the year in which it is receivable. 
 

Page 321



 

13 
 

Aberdeen City Council Charitable Trusts 
Notes to the Accounts 
For the year ended 31 March 2015 
 
1 - Accounting policies (continued) 
 
Resources expended  
 
Liabilities are recognised when the charity has an obligation to make payment to 
a third party. 
 
Resources expended are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on an 
accruals basis inclusive of any irrecoverable VAT. 
 
Expenditure is directly attributed to the relevant category in the Statement of 
Financial Activities where practical. Other expenditure is allocated on a pro-rata 
basis on the basis of the size of the fund. 
 
Governance costs include those costs incurred in the governance of the charity 
and its assets, and are primarily associated with constitutional and statutory 
requirements. 
 
Funds 
 
Unrestricted funds include incoming resources receivable or generated for the 
objectives of the charity without specified purpose and are available as general 
funds. These funds can be used in accordance with the charitable objects at the 
discretion of the trustees. 
 
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accordance with specific 
restrictions imposed by donors or which have been raised by the charity for 
particular purposes. The cost of raising and administering such funds are 
charged against the specific fund. The aim and use of each restricted fund is set 
out in the Trustees Annual Report. 
 
Endowment funds represent those Assets which must be held permanently by 
the charity. Income arising on the endowment funds can be used in accordance 
with the objectives of the charity and is included as unrestricted income. Any 
capital gains or losses arising on the investments form part of the fund. These 
funds are to be used in accordance with the specific restrictions imposed by 
donors. 
 
Taxation 
 
The Trusts are recognised by HM Revenue and Customs as charities and as a 
consequence of the tax reliefs available, income is not liable to taxation. 

Page 322



 

14 
 

Aberdeen City Council Charitable Trusts 
Notes to the Accounts 
For the year ended 31 March 2015 
 
1 - Accounting policies (continued) 
 
Investments 
 
Investments are stated at market value at the balance sheet date. The Statement 
of Financial Activities includes the net gains and losses arising on revaluation 
and disposals throughout the year. 
 
Trustee Remuneration and Staff Costs 
 
The Trusts have no employees. None of the Trustees received any remuneration 
for their services, nor were they reimbursed for any expenses during the year. 
 
Interest & Management Charges 
 
Interest & Management Charges are not treated as Debtors/Creditors but are 
treated as adjustments within the balances held by the Aberdeen City Council 
Loans Fund. 
 
Interest is applied to the charity accounts gross of income tax based on an 
annual interest rate received from banks on funds invested by Aberdeen City 
Council on behalf of the charities during the year. 
 
Management charges are 1% of the loans fund held at the start of the year where 
the balance is over £500. 
 
Stock Policy 
 
Stock consists of goods purchased for distribution to new members on their entry 
to the Guildry. Stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. 
 

 

 

Page 323



 

15 
 

Aberdeen City Council Charitable Trusts 
Notes to the Accounts 
For the year ended 31 March 2015 
 

2015 2014

£'000s £'000s

2 VOLUNTARY INCOME

Donations and gifts 135         50           

3 INVESTMENT INCOME

Interest receivable 28           22           

4 INCOMING RESOURCES FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Rent from Land and Buildings 164         153         

5 CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Donations and expenditures 6             9             

Payments to Beneficiaries:

Common Good Fund 69           69           

Dr Duncan Liddel's Mortification - Professor of Mathematics 32           32           

Dr Duncan Liddel's Mortification - Library of College 2             2             

James Cargill Mortification - Bursary Fund 13           13           

Patrick Copland's Mortification - Professor of Divinity 16           16           

Property costs 20           9             

157         148         

6 GOVERNANCE COSTS

Administration costs 40           23           

Audit Fee 10           6             

50           29           

 
 
 

Page 324



 

16 
 

Aberdeen City Council Charitable Trusts 
Notes to the Accounts 
For the year ended 31 March 2015 
 

2015 2014

£'000s £'000s

7 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Market Value at 1 April 4,563      4,321      

Net investment gains 54           241         

Market Value at 31 March 4,617 4,563

8 DEBTORS

Prepayments & accrued income 51           54           

9 INVESTMENTS HELD AS CURRENT ASSETS

Aberdeen City Council Loan Funds 2,439      2,291      

10 CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year

Accruals and deferred income 36 13

Short Term Loan - Aberdeen City Council 12 11

48           25           

11 ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS IN FUNDS Tangible Net assets/ Total Total

fixed assets (liabilities) 2015 2014

£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s

Unrestricted funds 4,737            2,844              7,581      7,396      

12 CONTROLLING INTEREST

Each charity is under the control of its trustees.

2015 2014

£'000s £'000s

13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

29           19           

The trusts also have funds deposited with Aberdeen City Council Loans Fund as detailed in note 9.

 
 

Page 325



 

17 
 

Aberdeen City Council Charitable Trusts 
Notes to the Accounts 
For the year ended 31 March 2015 
 
 
14 Analysis of Charitable Trusts

Charity 

Number

Balance 

as at 1 

April 

2014

Transfer 

between 

Funds

Revaluation 

of 

Investments Income Expenditure

Balance 

as at 31 

March 

2015

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

EEIF SC025063 (163) -              (10) (3) 1 (175)

Guildry SC011857 (2,535) (8) (149) 22 (2,670)

Bridge of Don SC018551 (1,360) -              (6) (5) 12 (1,359)

Bridge of Dee SC021297 (35) -              -                     -           1 (34)

Alexander MacDonald Bequest SC018568 (32) -              -                     -           1 (31)

Aberdeen Art Gallery Trust SC018575 (46) -              -                     -           1 (45)

Lands of Skene SC018533 (3,986) -              (19) (50) 50 (4,005)

Lands of Torry SC021299 (2,029) -              (35) (128) 128 (2,064)

Total - Charitable Trusts (10,186) -              (78) (335) 215 (10,384)

Charity 

Number

Balance 

as at 1 

April 

2014

Transfer 

between 

Funds

Revaluation 

of 

Investments Income Expenditure

Balance 

as at 31 

March 

2015

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

EEIF SC025063 (163) -              (10) (3) 1 (175)

Guildry SC011857 (941) (144) 22 (1,063)

Bridge of Don SC018551 (164) -              (2) 12 (154)

Bridge of Dee SC021297 (35) -              -                     -           1 (34)

Alexander MacDonald Bequest SC018568 (32) -              -                     -           1 (31)

Aberdeen Art Gallery Trust SC018575 (46) -              -                     -           1 (45)

Lands of Skene SC018533 (3,986) -              (19) (50) 41 (4,014)

Lands of Torry SC021299 (2,029) -              (35) (128) 128 (2,064)

Total - Charitable Trusts (7,396) -              (64) (327) 207 (7,580)

Individual Trust Balances

Individual Trust Balances after adjusting for intra trust transactions

The above table shows the balances of the individual trust fund before the removal of intra trust transactions as both the 

Guildry (40%)  and the Bridge of Don Trust (30%) are invested in Lands of Skene. The table below shows the individual 

balances after the removal of these transactions.

 
 

Page 326



Aberdeen City 
Council
Local Scrutiny Plan 

2015/16

March 2015

 

Agenda Item 10.1

Page 327



Aberdeen City Council

Page 1

Aberdeen City Council

Local Scrutiny Plan 2015/16

Introduction

1. This local scrutiny plan sets out the planned scrutiny activity in Aberdeen City Council 

during 2015/16. The plan is based on a shared risk assessment undertaken by a local 

area network (LAN), comprising representatives of all the scrutiny bodies who engage 

with the council. The shared risk assessment process draws on a range of evidence

with the aim of determining any scrutiny activity required and focusing this in the most 

proportionate way.

2. This plan does not identify or address all risks in the council. It covers only those risk 

areas that the LAN has identified as requiring scrutiny, or where scrutiny is planned as 

part of a national programme. Planned scrutiny activity across all councils in Scotland

informs the National Scrutiny Plan for 2015/16, which is available on the Audit Scotland 

website. 

Scrutiny risks

3. In preparing the 2014-2017 Assurance and Improvement Plan (AIP), the LAN 

concluded that Best Value follow up activity would be appropriate in Winter 2014/15. 

This would focus on leadership and governance in light of the significant changes in 

leadership over the previous 18 months. Fieldwork for the Best Value audit took place in 

January 2015, and the report is scheduled for publication in June 2015.

4. The LAN did not identify any new areas which require scrutiny; however there are areas 

where ongoing oversight and monitoring is required. For example, a key challenge for 

the council remains the need to raise the standards of educational attainment and 

achievement for all. Although the council has increased the proportion of young people 

achieving Scottish Credit and Qualifications Framework (SCQF) levels 3, 4, 5 and 6, the 

pace of improvement has not matched that of either the comparator or national average 

and relative performance has declined. Strategies implemented by the council to 

improve performance in this area are monitored on a regular basis by Education 

Scotland’s Area Lead Officer who meets regularly with the council. 

5. A Joint Inspection of Children’s Services was carried out by the Care Inspectorate and 

Education Scotland in winter 2014/15. After publication of the report in March 2015, the 

council will have six weeks to develop an action plan to respond to the findings of the 

inspection. No significant risks were identified which require additional scrutiny beyond 

the conclusion of an action plan with the council.  

Page 328



Aberdeen City Council

Page 2

6. The Care Inspectorate’s initial scrutiny level assessment (ISLA) scrutiny report was 

published in December 2012. In response, the council finalised an action plan in April 

2013. Overall the evidence of progress on the post ISLA scrutiny action plan suggests 

important improvements have been made in response to the recommendations. For 

example, significant work has gone into increasing the consistency of care management 

across adult services. Two recommendations have not yet been fully met: developing 

joint commissioning strategies across all care groups and preparing joint strategies for 

carers and advocacy services. As the ISLA process is now complete, these 

recommendations will be considered in due course in the context of health and social 

care integration.

7. The Care Inspectorate will provide support for improvement through the identified link 

strategic inspector and the contact managers (one for adults and one for children’s 

services). The link inspector is currently working with criminal justice services on the 

action plan following the LS/CMI supported self-evaluation and on improving the 

reviews of serious incidents. 

8. The 2014-17 AIP identified that HMICS would be inspecting local policing across 

Scotland over the next three years. This would provide a consistent means of assessing 

the quality of local policing across Scotland and enable HMICS to report publicly on how 

Police Scotland is delivering against local priorities and keeping people safe. The 

inspection of Aberdeen City Division was carried out in early 2015 and the report is 

expected to be published around May 2015.  

9. HM Fire Services Inspectorate will also be inspecting fire and rescue services across 

Scotland over the next five years. Service provision within the local authority area of 

Aberdeen City was inspected in the first quarter of 2015. The focus of the inspection 

activity was, amongst other things, partnership working and local scrutiny and 

engagement between Scottish Fire and Rescue Services and the council.  This report is 

also expected in Summer 2015. 

10. A number of aspects of Housing and Homelessness services have been highlighted by 

the Scottish Housing Regulator (SHR). At this stage, these matters will be covered 

through the SHR’s ongoing monitoring. No additional scrutiny work is planned at the 

council beyond its programme of thematic inquiries. The issues highlighted by SHR 

include: 

rental income maximisation – the council is amongst the poorest performing 

councils for rent loss through voids and average times to re-let houses, and is the 

worst performing council for rent collected as a percentage of net rent due  

gas safety – at the time of completing its Annual Return on the Charter in April 

2014, the council had breached its statutory duty on gas safety due to difficulties 

with the council’s gas safety contractor. Remedial action was taken so that all its 

properties held a valid  gas safety certificate in November 2014

Page 329



Aberdeen City Council

Page 3

intentionally homeless decisions – the level of intentionally homeless decisions has 

increased in the year and is nearly three times the national average.

Planned scrutiny activity

11. As shown in Appendix 1, the council will be subject to a range of risk-based and

nationally driven scrutiny activity during 2015/16. For some of their scrutiny activity in 

2015/16, scrutiny bodies are still to determine their work programmes and which 

specific council areas they will cover. Where a council is to be involved, the relevant 

scrutiny body will confirm this with the council and the appropriate LAN lead.

12. In addition to specific work shown in Appendix 1, routine, scheduled audit and 

inspection work will take place through the annual audit process and the ongoing 

inspection of school and care establishments by Education Scotland and the Care 

Inspectorate respectively. Audit Scotland will carry out a programme of performance 

audits during 2015/16 and individual audit and inspection agencies will continue to 

monitor developments in key areas of council activity and will provide support and

challenge as appropriate. This will help to inform future assessment of scrutiny risk.

March 2015

Page 330



Aberdeen City Council

Page 4

Appendix 1: Scrutiny plan

Scrutiny body Scrutiny activity Date

Audit Scotland Audit Scotland has three planned performance audits 

covering local government during 2015/16.  It will be 

working jointly with the Care Inspectorate looking at social 

care and jointly with both the Care Inspectorate and 

Health Improvement Scotland (HIS) on a Health and 

Social care integration position statement. It will also carry 

out a follow-up audit on roads maintenance. Any 

engagement with councils is still to be determined. 

Publication of these reports is scheduled for between 

October 2015 and February 2016.

To be confirmed during 

2015/16

Audit Scotland will continue to carry out a programme of 

housing benefit risk assessments across councils in 

2015/16.

June 2015/16

Aberdeen is one of eight areas where an audit of the 

Community Planning Partnership (CPP) has been carried 

out. Audit Scotland will carry out follow-up work across all 

eight areas during 2015/16 to assess what progress the 

CPP has made in addressing outstanding improvement 

areas.  This work will be carried out as part of the annual 

external audit process.

September 2015

Care Inspectorate and 

Healthcare Improvement 

Scotland

The Care Inspectorate and Healthcare Improvement 

Scotland will be carrying out joint inspections of services 

for adults during 2015-16. Inspections will initially focus on 

services for older people then, at the latter part of the 

year, these will encompass other adults' services, firstly 

learning disability services then alcohol and drug services. 

This is part of a wider national planned programme of 

scrutiny work being undertaken by the Care Inspectorate 

and Healthcare Improvement Scotland.

December 2015 -

January 2016

Care Inspectorate and 

Her Majesty’s 

Inspectorate of 

Constabulary (HMICS)

The Care Inspectorate and HMICS will be undertaking a

joint thematic review of multi-agency public protection 

arrangements (MAPPA) in Scotland during 2015. This 

forms part of the Care Inspectorate’s wider programme of 

national inspection, and is not a result of the LAN shared 

risk assessment. The purpose of the review will be to 

June 2015

Page 331



Aberdeen City Council

Page 5

 

 

 

assess the state, efficiency and effectiveness of the 

MAPPA in Scotland, in terms of keeping people safe and 

reducing the potential risk of serious harm by registered 

sex offenders in our communities. It will cover all 32 local 

authorities and involve local authorities, Police Scotland, 

NHS Boards and the Scottish Prison Service. 

Education Scotland Education Scotland will be working in partnership with 

councils to carry out Validated Self-Evaluation (VSE) of 

educational psychology services across all councils over a 

two-year period beginning in 2015/16. Education Scotland 

will notify councils of its VSE plans each academic term.

Date to be determined

Scottish Housing 

Regulator (SHR)

The Scottish Housing Regulator (SHR) has a planned 

programme of thematic inquiries into housing services 

which will be carried out largely in the first quarter of 2015-

16, with publication of inquiry reports in the first and 

second quarters of the year. The thematic inquiries will 

cover a range of housing services including: 

Gypsy/Travellers; factoring services; gas safety; 

complaints handling; customer service standards; repairs; 

rent consultation; equalities; and openness and 

accessibility. Some of the thematic inquiries will not 

involve any on-site work at all and no local authority will be 

selected for on-site work in more than one thematic. The 

SHR will contact individual landlords with details about 

their potential inclusion. 

During the first and second quarters of the year, the SHR 

will review the Charter data submitted by social landlords 

in May 2015 and identify topics for a further programme of 

thematic inquiries to be taken forward in the second and 

third quarters of the year.

To be determined.

Page 332



National scrutiny 
plan 2015/16
A summary of local government  

strategic scrutiny activity 

Prepared on behalf of the Strategic Scrutiny Group

March 2015

Page 333



Audit Scotland is a statutory body set up in April 2000 under the Public 

Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000. We help the Auditor General 

for Scotland and the Accounts Commission check that organisations 

spending public money use it properly, efficiently and effectively.

Page 334



National scrutiny plan 2015/16  | 3

Contents

Background 4

Part 1. Shared Risk Assessment developments for 2015/16 5

Part 2. Scrutiny activity 7

Part 3. Strategic scrutiny group development and improvement  

priorities 10

Appendix 1. The Local Government Scrutiny Coordination  

Strategic Group members 12

Appendix 2. Glossary 13

Page 335



4 |

Background

1. The National Scrutiny Plan for local government has been jointly prepared by 
members of the Strategic Scrutiny Group (SSG). This group comprises Scotland's 
main public sector scrutiny bodies – the Accounts Commission, Audit Scotland, 
Education Scotland, the Care Inspectorate, Healthcare Improvement Scotland, 
Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary in Scotland, Her Majesty’s Fire 
Service Inspectorate, Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Prisons for Scotland and the 
Scottish Housing Regulator. Details of each body can be found in Appendix 1. In 
this report, they are collectively referred to as scrutiny bodies. 

2. The SSG was established In February 2008 following publication of the Crerar 
Report, when the Scottish Government asked the Accounts Commission to 
take on a gatekeeping role in respect of the scrutiny of local government to 
support the delivery of better coordinated more proportionate and risk-based local 
government scrutiny.

3. Since 2008, all the main scrutiny bodies for local government have worked 
together through Local Area Networks (LANs) to share intelligence and agree 
the key scrutiny risks in each of Scotland's 32 councils. Annually, each LAN has 
prepared an Assurance and Improvement Plan (AIP) (now known as a Local 
Scrutiny Plan), setting out the planned scrutiny activity for the council to respond 
to those specific risks. This approach, called Shared Risk Assessment (SRA), is 
designed to ensure proportionate and risk-based scrutiny.

4. This 2015/16 National Scrutiny Plan for local government is one of the key 
outputs from the SRA process. It is the sixth such plan and summarises the 
strategic scrutiny work1 from April 2015 to March 2016 in each of Scotland's  
32 councils. The plan includes all strategic scrutiny activity of which we are 
currently aware. This is a combination of risk-based scrutiny identified locally by 
LANs and scrutiny that is planned as part of national inspection programmes, 
such as the Care Inspectorate's joint inspections of services for children, young 
people and families and strategic inspections of adult services. It also includes 
assisted self-evaluation work requested by councils that is designed to build self- 
evaluation capacity and support improvement. 

5. A separate table showing planned scrutiny activity is available on the  
Audit Scotland website [PDF] .

1 Strategic scrutiny work does not include scrutiny activity carried out at service unit or 
institution level, such as inspections of individual schools or care homes, or the annual 
financial audit of public bodies.

Page 336



Part 1. Shared Risk Assessment developments for 2015/16  | 5

Part 1
Shared Risk Assessment 

developments for 2015/16

6. As part of our commitment to continuous improvement, we review the 
SRA process each year. Our review process involves feedback from staff who 
are involved in the process; consultation with relevant stakeholders (such as 
local authority chief executives); and consideration of changes to the scrutiny 
and public policy landscape. Each year recommendations for change and 
improvement are considered by the Strategic Scrutiny Group (SSG). 

7. The key findings from the review activity that took place in the summer of 2014 
(which informed the current SRA cycle) were that there is a general consensus 
among councils and scrutiny bodies that the SRA process is beneficial, and 
that if it did not already exist a similar set of arrangements to coordinate local 
government scrutiny activity and provide a framework for ensuring effective 
liaison between scrutiny bodies and local authorities would need to be introduced. 
However, there was a widespread view that over time the process had become 
too resource intensive and time-consuming for scrutiny bodies. Inconsistent 
engagement and communication between LAN and councils also emerged as 
another significant theme, as did the need to improve the links between the SRA 
and some national scrutiny programmes. 

8. In response to those findings, we introduced a number of developments in the 
SRA process for 2015/16. These included:

• enhancing the central planning and scheduling of national scrutiny activity 
across scrutiny bodies through more regular ongoing dialogue among 
senior officers

• improving the way LANs operate and making their interaction with councils 
more consistent and more regular

• refocusing the scrutiny risk assessment framework to align it more closely 
with the core statutory roles and responsibilities of the scrutiny bodies that 
are involved in the process

• streamlining SRA documentation.

9. A key development for 205/16 has been to replace Assurance and 
Improvement Plans (AIPs) (which for many councils had become very lengthy 
documents) with much shorter Local Scrutiny Plans (LSPs) that are more clearly 
focused on the specific local scrutiny risks and responses identified by the LAN. 

10. The risk assessments made by LANs have also changed. In previous years 
risk assessments resulted in one of the following judgements: no scrutiny 
required; further information needed; or scrutiny required. For 2015/16 we 

Page 337



6 |

introduced a new risk assessment option of 'ongoing oversight and monitoring 
required'. This scrutiny risk assessment option has been introduced to provide 
LANs with an opportunity to capture and reflect areas of risk or uncertainty within 
councils that require ongoing oversight and monitoring, but where additional 
scrutiny activity is unlikely to add value. Areas that might fall in to this category 
might include:

• identified risks (eg, local impact of welfare reform, developing longer-term 
financial plans and strategies) that are being managed and/or mitigated 
by the council where additional scrutiny activity is unlikely to add value in 
supporting improvement 

• risks that have been identified but which are not yet significant enough to 
justify scrutiny at present. 

11. This year LANs continued to maintain an interest in how the national  
public service reform agenda is being implemented by councils and their  
partners. In particular:

• community planning (including community empowerment, the shift 
towards prevention and local approaches to co-production) 

• preparations for implementation of health and social care integration

• the local impact of police and fire reform

• welfare reform planning (including local partnership working to mitigate any 
potential negative local impacts).

12. The outcomes of local discussions between LANs and councils on these 
topics have not been reported in LSPs but have, instead, been used to inform the 
SSG's assessment of progress that is being made by councils in responding to 
Scotland's wide-ranging and complex public service reform agenda.

Page 338



Part 2. Scrutiny activity  | 7

Part 2
Scrutiny activity

National scrutiny programmes

13. There is a range of national scrutiny activity planned across councils over the 
next year and beyond. Where activity has been identified for 2015/16 that impacts 
on individual councils it is included in the National Scrutiny Plan. Significant pieces 
of national scrutiny activity that are planned during 2015/16 include:

• Audit Scotland's programme of national performance audits that it 
undertakes on behalf of the Accounts Commission and Auditor General 
for Scotland. Audit Scotland has three performance audits covering local 
government planned during 2015/16. It will be developing a performance 
audit on social care services (which will involve some joint working with 
the Care Inspectorate) and will also be working jointly with the Care 
Inspectorate and Healthcare Improvement Scotland (HIS) on an initial 
position statement on Health and Social Care integration arrangements 
across Scotland. The third piece of work will be a follow-up audit on 
the progress that is being made across Scotland in improving roads 
maintenance. The performance audit programme for 2015/16  is 
available online. Audit Scotland will also continue to carry out a national 
programme of housing benefit risk assessments across councils.

• The Care Inspectorate will begin to review Alcohol and Drug Partnerships’ 
self-assessment of performance and progress of implementing the Quality 

Principles: Standard Expectations of Care and Support in Drug and Alcohol 

Services, within the Quality Improvement Framework.

• Education Scotland will be working in partnership with councils to carry 
out a validated self-evaluation (VSE) of educational psychology services 
across all councils over a two-year period beginning in 2015/16. It will also 
review of the quality of careers information advice and guidance services 
delivered by Skills Development Scotland across all council areas. This will 
be a three-year programme beginning in 2015/16. In addition, Education 
Scotland will continue to engage with councils for the purpose of VSE. 

• HMICS will be inspecting local policing divisions across Scotland over the 
next three years. This includes three divisions during 2015/16. Divisional 
inspections will cover partnership working and in particular, local scrutiny 
and engagement between Police Scotland and councils and the local 
Community Planning Partnership and Community Safety Partnership. Local 
police inspections also include a ‘plus’ element, which aims to investigate 
national issues through a local lens. These elements are subject to separate 
reports published on its website www.hmics.org.uk .

Page 339



8 |

• HMFSI will be inspecting local fire and rescue services across Scotland 
over the next five years. These inspections will examine, among other 
things, local scrutiny and engagement between the Scottish Fire and 
Rescue Service (SFRS) and councils. As part of its programme, HMFSI 
will inspect four local fire and rescue services during 2015/16. Additionally, 
HMFSI has a programme of thematic inspections, which in 2015 will 
include a look at SFRS preparedness for a serious flooding event. HMFSI 
may also carry out ad hoc inspections in response to specific events, which 
can involve contact with local authorities.

• The Scottish Housing Regulator (SHR) will carry out a programme of 
thematic inquiries across a range of housing services including: Gypsy/
Travellers; factoring services; gas safety; complaints handling; customer 
service standards; repairs; rent consultation; equalities; and openness and 
accessibility. It will also carry out regulatory assessments focused on the 
Scottish Social Housing Charter indicators. In carrying out its work, the 
SHR does not necessarily have any engagement with a council. Where this 
is the case, details of these are not shown in this plan.

Collaborative scrutiny

14. There is a range of collaborative scrutiny planned across local government in 
2015/16:

• As highlighted above, Audit Scotland will be working jointly with the 
Care Inspectorate looking at social care and jointly with both the Care 
Inspectorate and HIS on a Health and Social Care integration position 
statement. 

• The Care Inspectorate and Healthcare Improvement Scotland will be 
carrying out joint inspections of services for adults during 2015-16. 
Inspections will initially focus on services for older people then, at the latter 
part of the year, it is envisaged these will encompass other adults' services.

• The Care Inspectorate and HMICS will be undertaking a joint thematic 
review of Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangements (MAPPA) in 
Scotland during 2015. The purpose of the review will be to assess the 
status, efficiency and effectiveness of the MAPPA process in Scotland 
in terms of keeping people safe and reducing the potential risk of serious 
harm by registered sex offenders in our communities. It will cover all 32 
local authorities and involve local authorities, Police Scotland, NHS boards 
and the Scottish Prison Service.

• The Care Inspectorate will lead joint inspection of services for children 
and young people, which will also involve participation by HIS, Education 
Scotland and HMICS. These inspections are part of the Care Inspectorate's 
wider planned programme of national scrutiny work.

• HMICS is currently exploring opportunities with HMFSI around common 
inspection methodology and joint approaches, where appropriate, to 
examine local police and fire scrutiny engagement.

Page 340



Part 2. Scrutiny activity  | 9

15. On behalf of the SSG, national scrutiny partners will also be continuing to 
carry out a collaborative piece of work in partnership with Perth and Kinross 
Council and its community planning partners during 2015/16. This work aims to 
devise and assess a potential methodology for the evaluation and scrutiny of how 
community planning is operating at a local level, known as place-based scrutiny. 
This methodology will have particular focus on the four pillars of public service 
reform – prevention, partnership, people and performance. 

Page 341



10 |

Part 3
Strategic scrutiny group development 

and improvement priorities

16. The context in which the SSG operates has changed significantly since its 
establishment in 2008. A number of new scrutiny bodies have been created 
(Education Scotland, Care Inspectorate, HIS) and others have seen either their 
role and status amended (ie, SHR) or the nature of the service that they inspect 
change from a local to national service (HMICS, HMFSI). 

17. Over the same period the Scottish Government has also been implementing a 
wide-ranging public service reform agenda, which includes:

• the Scottish Government/COSLA review of community planning

• the creation of single national police, and fire and rescue services

• health and social care integration

• Getting it right for every child (GIRFEC) and the Children and Young People 
(Scotland) Act 2014

• college regionalisation.

18. A common feature of these developments is that they extend beyond local 
government and affect a range of different public sector bodies. However, the 
formal remit of the SSG currently remains the same as when it was established 
in 2008, ie focused on local government scrutiny coordination.

19. In the context of this changing public sector policy and delivery landscape, the 
SSG has been clear that it could add more value as a group if it were to:

• become the main forum for scrutiny bodies to develop coordinated 
strategic responses to major public sector legislative changes or policy 
developments (including public service reform) 

• broaden its scrutiny coordination role to include national thematic scrutiny 
activity and partnership-based audit and inspection work

• strengthen its focus on supporting improvement and promoting best 
practice in Scotland’s public services 

• better drive continuous improvements in operational scrutiny practices 
(eg, the alignment of scrutiny approaches, promoting more shared training 
across agencies, implementing more consistent approaches to self 
evaluation and supporting improvement).

Page 342



Part 3. Strategic scrutiny group development and improvement priorities  | 11

20. This changing context led the SSG, during 2014, to agree a new Terms of 
Reference that is designed to capture these broader ambitions for its role. During 
2014 the SSG also implemented four improvement projects to help it deliver its 
improvement ambitions. These projects were:

• Achieving effective alignment between external scrutiny and the 

public service reform agenda: the purpose of this improvement project 
is to ensure that scrutiny developments reflect the evolving public service 
reform agenda, with its focus on place, partnership, prevention, and 
performance.

• Implementing arrangements for improved coordination and 

alignment of national thematic scrutiny and the scrutiny of 

partnerships: the purpose of this improvement project is to establish 
new arrangements for ensuring appropriate ‘joined-up’ approaches to the 
scrutiny of key national policy developments and to improve the planning, 
scheduling and alignment of partnership-based scrutiny activity.

• Place-based scrutiny pilot: the purpose of this pilot is to devise and 
assess a potential methodology for the evaluation and scrutiny of how well 
public bodies are operating in partnership at a local level to deliver high 
quality integrated public services that reflect the needs of local people. The 
pilot will have a particular focus on the four pillars of public service reform – 
prevention, partnership, people and performance.

• Programme of operational scrutiny improvement: the purpose of this 
improvement project is to support the strategic group in driving continuous 
improvement in operational scrutiny practices that contribute to shared 
learning and the more consistent application of best practice across the 
scrutiny sector.

21. These projects are still being implemented and their outcomes will be 
reported later in the year. 

Page 343



12 |

Appendix 1
The Local Government Scrutiny 

Coordination Strategic Group members

Accounts 

Commission

The Accounts Commission is a non-departmental public body (NDPB). The Accounts 
Commission is the public’s independent watchdog for local government in Scotland. Its 
role is to examine how Scotland’s 32 councils manage their finances, help these bodies 
manage their resources efficiently and effectively, promote Best Value and publish 
information every year about how they perform. 

Audit Scotland Audit Scotland is a statutory body providing services to the Accounts Commission and 
the Auditor General for Scotland (AGS). Working together, the Accounts Commission, 
the AGS and Audit Scotland ensure that public sector bodies in Scotland are held to 
account for the proper, efficient and effective use of public funds. 

Care Inspectorate The Care Inspectorate is a non-departmental public body (NDPB). The Care 
Inspectorate’s purpose is to provide assurance and protection for people who use care, 
social work and children’s services.

Education Scotland Education Scotland is an executive agency. It is the Scottish Government’s national 
development and improvement agency for education. It is charged with providing 
support and challenge to the education system, from early years to adult learning, in 
line with the government’s policy objectives.

Healthcare 

Improvement 

Scotland

Healthcare Improvement Scotland (HIS) is a health body. The function of HIS is to 
improve the quality of the care and experience of every person in Scotland every time 
they access healthcare by supporting healthcare providers.

Her Majesty’s Fire 

Service Inspectorate

The Fire Service Inspectorate in Scotland exists to provide independent, risk-based 
and proportionate professional inspection of the Scottish Fire and Rescue Service. 
Its purpose is to give assurance to the Scottish public and Scottish ministers that the 
Service is working in an efficient and effective way, and to promote improvement in 
the Service. Through this, the Inspectorate provides external quality assurance to the 
Service, and provides support to the Service in delivering its functions.

Her Majesty’s 

Inspectorate of 

Constabulary in 

Scotland

Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary in Scotland (HMICS) provides independent 
scrutiny of both Police Scotland and the Scottish Police Authority. Its approach is to 
support Police Scotland and the Authority to deliver services that are high quality, 
continually improving, effective and responsive to local needs. It can inspect other UK 
police services that operate in Scotland and are members of the National Preventive 
Mechanism, inspecting police custody centres to monitor the treatment and conditions 
for detainees. 

Her Majesty’s 

Inspectorate of 

Prisons for Scotland

Her Majesty's Chief Inspector of Prisons for Scotland is required to inspect the  
15 prison establishments throughout Scotland in order to examine the treatment of, 
and the conditions for prisoners. The Chief Inspector also has responsibility for the 
inspection of legalised police cells and the treatment of and conditions for prisoners 
under escort.

Scottish Housing 

Regulator

The Scottish Housing Regulator (SHR) is a non-ministerial department. The statutory 
objective of the SHR is to safeguard and promote the interests of people who are or 
may become homeless, tenants of social landlords, or recipients of housing services 
provided by social landlords.

Page 344



Appendix 2. Glossary  | 13

Appendix 2
Glossary

Local Scrutiny Plan 

(LSP)

Document which captures agreed areas of risk and good practice, and the resulting 
scrutiny response for each council. It is the primary planning document for scrutiny bodies.

Local Area Network 

(LAN)

There is a LAN for each council, comprising representatives of all the scrutiny bodies 
who engage with the council. LAN members ensure that information and intelligence 
held by each scrutiny body is shared.

National Scrutiny 

Plan (NSP)

The aggregation of the individual council’s scrutiny plans into a national plan detailing all 
the scrutiny work planned across Scottish councils.

Scottish Social 

Housing Charter

The Scottish Social Housing Charter sets the standards and outcomes that all social 
landlords should aim to achieve when performing their housing activities. The Charter 
was approved by the Scottish Parliament and came into effect from 1 April.

Shared Risk 

Assessment (SRA)

A joint approach using key information about local government to plan scrutiny activity 
that is proportionate and based on risk.

Validated Self-

Evaluation (VSE)

Assistance provided by Education Scotland to councils on request, to help them 
develop their own methods and quality of self scrutiny.

Page 345



Audit Scotland, 110 George Street, Edinburgh EH2 4LH

T: 0131 625 1500  E: info@audit-scotland.gov.uk 

www.audit-scotland.gov.uk 

National scrutiny  
plan 2015/16
A summary of local government  

strategic scrutiny activity 

This report is available in PDF and RTF formats,  

along with a podcast summary at:  

www.audit-scotland.gov.uk 

If you require this publication in an alternative  

format and/or language, please contact us to  

discuss your needs: 0131 625 1500  

or info@audit-scotland.gov.uk 

For the latest news, reports and updates,  

follow us on Twitter or subscribe to our  

email delivery service:

  @AuditScotland

  Subscribe to updates

  pinterest.com/AuditScotland

Page 346



National Scrutiny Plan for Local Government 2015/16

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Council April    May      June     July     August   September October  November December January  February March  

Aberdeen City
MAPPA CPP F/U ASI ASI

HB review

Aberdeenshire
CSI CSI CSI

MAPPA

Angus
MAPPA  FBV (dates tbc)

Argyll & Bute
ASI ASI ASI

MAPPA  FBV (dates tbc)

Clackmannanshire
CSI F/U

MAPPA

Dumfries & Galloway
MAPPA CSI F/U ASI ASI

VSE (dates tbc) SHR performance investigation (tbc)

Dundee City
MAPPA CSI CSI Fire

East Ayrshire
MAPPA

East Dunbartonshire
MAPPA EPS review

East Lothian
MAPPA ASI ASI

HB review

East Renfrewshire
MAPPA

Fire

City of Edinburgh
MAPPA Local  FBV (dates tbc)

Policing +

Eilean Siar

CSI CSI Fire

ASI ASI

MAPPA

Falkirk
MAPPA CPP F/U CSI CSI

HB review

Fife
MAPPA CSI CSI CSI CIAG

Glasgow City
MAPPA CPP F/U CIAG

Highland
MAPPA

Inverclyde
EPS review MAPPA

Midlothian
MAPPA

Moray

MAPPA HB review CPP F/U

 FBV (dates tbc)

EPS review

North Ayrshire
MAPPA HB review CPP F/U

North Lanarkshire
MAPPA HB review

Orkney Islands
EPS review MAPPA HB review CPP F/U

SHR performance investigation (tbc)

Perth & Kinross
Place-based MAPPA HB review CIAG

inspection(pilot)

Renfrewshire
HB review MAPPA

Scottish Borders
MAPPA CIAG CSI CSI

CPP F/U

Shetland Islands
MAPPA CIAG HB review

CIAG

South Ayrshire
MAPPA BV (tbc)

South Lanarkshire
MAPPA ASI ASI ASI

Stirling
CSI F/U

MAPPA

West Dunbartonshire
MAPPA

West Lothian
MAPPA CPP F/U Fire

EPS review

Audit Scotland

Best Value (BV) 

Follow-up Best Value (FBV) 

Targeted Best Value Audit (TBV)

Community Planning Partnership follow-up (CPP F/U) 

Housing Benefit Risk Assessment (HB) 

Auditor

Additional annual audit work (AAA)

Care Inspectorate

Children’s Services Inspection (CSI)

Adult Services Inspection (ASI)

Care Inspectorate/HMICS

MAPPA

HMICS

Local Policing + 

Education Scotland

Education Psychology Service (EPS)

Validated Self-Evaluation (VSE)

Careers Information (CIAG) 

Other

HMFSI 

Local area inspections (Fire)

Scottish Housing Regulator

Performance Investigation (SHR) 

Local Area Network (LAN) 2 

LAN follow up work

Collaborative work  

As described

Key

Page 347



Page 348

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2.1 Transfer of Site, Langdykes Road - Referral from Finance, Policy and Resources Committee
	Transfer of site Langdykes Road

	3.1 Minute of Previous Meeting of 11 May 2015
	3.2 Workplan
	3.3 Decision Tracking Sheet
	3.5 Minute of Meeting of Corporate Health and Safety Committee of 20 February 2015
	4.1 Internal Audit Annual Report - PWC
	4.2 External Audit Progress Update - Report by External Audit
	4.3 Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Annual Report - Report by the Acting Director of Corporate Governance
	4.4 Data Protection Reporting - January to March 2015 - Report by the Acting Director of Corporate Governance
	5.1 Corporate Governance Risk Register - Report by the Acting Director of Corporate Governance
	6.1 Continuous Controls - Financial Controls Programme - PWC
	6.2 Pension Fund Financial Controls - PWC
	6.3 Compliance with Public Records (Scotland) Act - Phase 2 - PWC
	6.4 Management Information ICT - PWC
	6.5 Roads Construction Consent - PWC
	7.1 Review of ICT Services - Report by the External Auditor
	8.1 Outstanding Audit Recommendations - Report by the Acting Director of Corporate Governance
	8.2 Fleet Management Governance - PWC
	8.3 Arm's Length External Organisations Tier 2 Review
	9.1 Interim Report on the 2014/15 Audit - Report by the External Auditor
	9.2 Unaudited Annual Accounts 2014/15 - Report by Acting Director of Corporate Governance
	Unaudited ACC Charitable Trusts 2014-15

	10.1 Aberdeen Local Scrutiny Plan and the National Scrutiny Plan 2015/16 - Reports by External Audit
	National Scrutiny Plan 201
	National Scrutiny Plan 2015 - appendix


